
Incline Village General Improvement District 
Incline Village General Improvement District is a fiscally responsible community partner which provides superior utility services and community oriented 

recreation programs and facilities with passion for the quality of life and our environment while investing in the Tahoe basin. 
893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada 89451  (775) 832-1100  EMAIL: info@ivgid.org 

www.yourtahoeplace.com 

 
 

 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Incline Village General Improvement District (IVGID) Board of Trustees will be Held Starting at 6:00 
PM on April 24, 2024 in the Boardroom, 893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada. 
 
Public Comment is allowed and Members of the Public are Welcome to Provide Public Comment via Telephone at (877) 853-5247 
(the webinar ID will be posted to the IVGID Website on the day of the meeting). The Meeting will be Available for Viewing at 
https://livestream.com/accounts/3411104. 

  
 
A.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE*    
    

 

B.  ROLL CALL OF TRUSTEES*    
    

 

C.  INITIAL PUBLIC COMMENTS - Unless otherwise determined, the time limit shall be three minutes for each person wishing to make a 
public comment. Unless otherwise permitted by the Chair, no person shall be allowed to speak more than once on any single agenda item. Not to include 
comments on General Business items with scheduled public comment. The Board of Trustees may address matters brought up during public comment at the 
conclusion of the comment period but may not deliberate on any non-agendized item.   

    
 

D.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA (for possible action)  
The Board of Trustees may make a motion for a flexible agenda which is defined as taking items on the agenda out of order; combining agenda items with 
other agenda items; removing items from the agenda; moving agenda items to an agenda of another meeting, or voting on items in a block.  
-OR- The Board of Trustees may make a motion to accept and follow the agenda as submitted/posted.   

    
 

E.  GENERAL BUSINESS (for possible action) - PART 1    
    

 

   

 1.  SUBJECT: Conduct Interviews from the Five Citizen Submittals for the Position of Audit Committee 
Member At-Large and then Select Two Citizen Submittals to Become Members of the Incline Village 
General Improvement District Audit Committee and Appoint Two Board of Trustees Members to 
Become Members of the Incline Village General Improvement District Audit Committee, all positions 
would be effective April 25, 2024. (Requesting Staff Member: Assistant Director of Finance Adam 
Cripps) – pgs. 6 - 38 

   
Recommendation for Action: That the Board of Trustees Appoint Two Citizen At-Large Members and 
Two Board of Trustees Members to Serve on the Audit Committee effective April 25, 2024. 

 
    

 

F.  REPORTS TO THE BOARD - Reports are intended to inform the Board and/or the public.    
    

 

   
 1.  SUBJECT: Treasurers Report - February 2024 Activities District Treasury Report. (Requesting Staff 

Member: Assistant Director of Finance Adam Cripps) – pgs. 39 - 80 
      

 

   
 2.  SUBJECT: Verbal Report and Update on the Incline Beach House and Access Projects. (Requesting 

Staff Member: Interim Director of Public Works Kate Nelson) 
      

 

   
 3.  SUBJECT: Verbal Report and Update on the Public Works Department. (Requesting Staff Member: 

Interim Director of Public Works Kate Nelson) 
 

      
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

Page 1 of 257



 
 

 
Agenda for the Board Meeting of April 24, 2024 - Page 2 

 

Incline Village General Improvement District 
Incline Village General Improvement District is a fiscally responsible community partner which provides superior utility services and community oriented 

recreation programs and facilities with passion for the quality of life and our environment while investing in the Tahoe basin. 
893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada 89451  (775) 832-1100  EMAIL: info@ivgid.org 

www.yourtahoeplace.com 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

G.  CONSENT CALENDAR (for possible action)     
    

 

   
 1.  SUBJECT: Approval of the IVGID Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes for April 10, 2024. 

 – pgs. 81 - 115 
      

 

   

 2.  SUBJECT: Review, Discuss and Approve Amendment 3 for Clean Tahoe's Contract Services to 
Extend for an Additional Year in the Amount of $44,000; Fund: Solid Waste; Division: Utilities 
#20002738-7330. (Requesting Staff Member: Interim Director of Public Works Kate Nelson).  
– pgs. 116 - 120  

   
Recommendation for Action: That the Board of Trustees make a Motion to: 

1. Approve Amendment 3 for Clean Tahoe's Contract Services to Extend for an Additional Year in 
the Amount of $44,000; and, 

2. Direct the General Manager to Sign, and Execute the Amendment. 
 

   

 3.  SUBJECT: Review, Discuss, and Approve: 

1. The Professional Services Agreement for the Capital Improvement Water Main Replacement 
Alder Avenue #2299WS1802 Project with DOWL LLC for Construction Services in the 
Amount of $11,570; and, 

2. The Professional Services Agreement for the Capital Improvement Water Main Replacement 
Alder Avenue #2299WS1802 Project with Black Eagle Consulting Inc. for Construction 
Materials Testing in the Amount of $7,600; Project 2023/24 Capital Improvement Water Main 
Replacement Alder Avenue #2299WS1802; Fund: Utilities; Division: Water. (Requesting Staff 
Member: Interim Director of Public Works Kate Nelson) – pgs. 121 - 156 

   
Recommendation for Action: That the Board of Trustees make a Motion to: 

1. Approve the Professional Services Agreement with DOWL LLC for Construction Services 
Associated with the Alder Avenue Water Main Replacement Project - CIP #2299WS1802 in the 
Amount of $11,570; and, 

2. Approve the Professional Services Agreement with Black Eagle Consulting, Inc. for the 
Materials Testing and Inspection Associated with the Alder Avenue Water Main Replacement - 
CIP #2299WS1802 in the Amount of $7,600; and,  

3. Direct the General Manager to Sign, and Execute the Agreements. 

 
  

 
 

   

 4.  SUBJECT: Review, Discuss, and Approve the Agreement for Professional Services for the Effluent 
Storage Tank Project at the WRRF for SCADA Configuration Modifications - 2023/24 Capital Project 
Fund: Utilities; Division: Sewer: Project #2599SS2010 Effluent Storage Tank; Professional: 
Thunderbird Communications in the Amount of $9,531.45. (Requesting Staff Member: Interim Director 
of Public Works Kate Nelson) – pgs. 157 - 165 

Page 2 of 257



 
 

 
Agenda for the Board Meeting of April 24, 2024 - Page 3 

 

Incline Village General Improvement District 
Incline Village General Improvement District is a fiscally responsible community partner which provides superior utility services and community oriented 

recreation programs and facilities with passion for the quality of life and our environment while investing in the Tahoe basin. 
893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada 89451  (775) 832-1100  EMAIL: info@ivgid.org 

www.yourtahoeplace.com 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

   
Recommendation for Action: That the Board of Trustees make a Motion to: 

1. Approve the Professional Services Agreement with Thunderbird Communications for the 
Effluent Storage Tank Project in the Amount of $9,531.45; and, 

2. Authorize District General Manager to Execute the Agreement with Thunderbird 
Communications. 

 
    

 

   

 5.  SUBJECT: Review, Discuss, and Approve the Agreement for Services for Carpet Replacement Public 
Works Building A Lower Level - 2023/24 Capital Improvement Project; Fund: Utility; Division: Shared 
Sewer and Water; Project #2097BD1204 - New Carpet Building #A ; Vendor: Tahoe Specialty Flooring 
and Window Design in an Amount Not to Exceed $17,029.46. (Requesting Staff Member: Interim 
Director of Public Works Kate Nelson) – pgs. 166 - 172 

   
Recommendation for Action: That the Board of Trustees make a Motion to: 

1. Approve the Agreement for Services with Tahoe Specialty Flooring and Window Design for the 
Amount Not to Exceed $17,029.46; and, 

2. Direct the General Manager to Sign, and Execute the Agreement. 

 
    

 

   

 6.  SUBJECT: Review Discuss, and Approve the Agreement for Services for Floor Replacement in the 
Recreation Center Group Fitness Room - 2023/24 Capital Improvement Project; Fund: Community 
Services; Division: Recreation; Project # 4886LE001 - Fitness Equipment Floor Replacement; Vendor 
Croft Beck Group, LLC., in an Amount Not to Exceed $36,619. (Requesting Staff Member: Director of 
Parks & Recreation Shelia Leijon) – pgs. 173 - 198 

   
Recommendation for Action: That the Board of Trustees make a Motion to: 

1. Approve the Professional Services Agreement with Croft Beck Group, LLC., for Floor 
Replacement in the Recreation Center Group Fitness Room, CIP # 4886LE001 in the Amount 
of $36,619; and, 

2. Direct the General Manager to Sign, and Execute the Agreement.  

 
    

 

   

 7.  SUBJECT: Authorization to Increase and Transact Under Existing Blanket Purchase Order for Fiscal 
Year 2023/24, Pursuant to NRS 332.115, and Board Policy 21.1.0; for Vendor US Foodservice, Inc. in 
the Amount of $80,000 for an Updated Amount Not to Exceed $559,500.(Requesting Staff Member: 
Assistant Director of Finance Adam Cripps) – pgs. 199 – 200 
 
 

   

Page 3 of 257



 
 

 
Agenda for the Board Meeting of April 24, 2024 - Page 4 

 

Incline Village General Improvement District 
Incline Village General Improvement District is a fiscally responsible community partner which provides superior utility services and community oriented 

recreation programs and facilities with passion for the quality of life and our environment while investing in the Tahoe basin. 
893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada 89451  (775) 832-1100  EMAIL: info@ivgid.org 

www.yourtahoeplace.com 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

Recommendation for Action: That the Board of Trustees Approve an Increase to the Fiscal Year 
2023/24 Blanket Purchase Order for the Following Vendor: US Foodservice, Inc., in the Amount of 
$80,000 for an Updated Amount Not to Exceed $559,500. 

 
    

 

H.  GENERAL BUSINESS (for possible action) - PART 2    
    

 

   
 1.  SUBJECT: Review, Discuss, and  Approve the Recommended 2024 - 25 Golf Season Rates 

(Requesting Staff Member: General Manager of Golf Operations Timothy Sands) 
      

 

   

 2.  SUBJECT: Discussion, and Direction on Proposed Fee Schedule Modifications to Water, and Sewer 
Rates, and Direct Staff to Set the Date/Time of June 12, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. for the Public Hearing to 
Implement Amendments to the Sewer and Water Rates, as well as Adjustments to the Fee Schedule and 
to Publish the Notice in Accordance with the NRS 318.199 (Requesting Staff Member: Interim Public 
Works Director Kate Nelson) – pgs. 201 - 207 

   
Recommendation for Action: Authorize Staff to Schedule a Public Hearing on June 12, 2024, to 
Discuss, and Approve the Proposed Amendments to the Sewer and Water Rates, as well as Adjustments 
to the Fee Schedule and to Publish the Notice in Accordance with NRS 318.199. 

 
    

 

   

 3.  SUBJECT: Review, Discuss and Approve the Agreements for the Purchase of Laboratory Equipment - 
2023/24 Capital Project Fund: Utilities; Division: Public Works Shared: Project #LE24200100 Lab 
Equipment/Expansion; Vendors: Orange County Medical Sales in the Amount of $12,755.00, Thermo 
Electron North America LLC in the Amount of $19,932.00, Thermo Electron North America LLC in 
the Amount of $80,372.06 and Aqua Solutions in the Amount of $7,498.95. (Requesting Staff Member: 
Interim Director of Public Works Kate Nelson) – pgs. 208 - 251 

   
Recommendation for Action: That the Board of Trustees make a Motion to:  

1. Make the Following Findings: IVGID's Purchase of the Following Laboratory Equipment: 
Autoclave from Orange County Medical Sales, UV-Vis from Thermo Electron North America 
LLC, Ion Chromatograph from Thermo Electron North America LLC, and Dionized Water 
System from Aqua Solutions are Exempt from Competitive Solicitation for the Following 
Reasons: NRS 332.115.1.(d). 

2. Approve the Agreements for the Purchase of Laboratory Equipment - 2023/24 Capital Project 
Fund: Utilities; Division: Public Works Shared: Project #LE24200100 Lab 
Equipment/Expansion; Vendors:  

a. Orange County Medical Services in the Amount of $12,755.00 (Autoclave) 
b. Thermo Electron North America LLC in the Amount of $19,932.00 (UV-Vis 

Spectrophotometer) 
c. Thermo Electron North America LLC in the Amount of $80,372.06 (Ion 

Chromatograph) 
d. Aqua Solutions in the Amount of $7,498.95 (Dionized Water System) 

Page 4 of 257



 
 

 
Agenda for the Board Meeting of April 24, 2024 - Page 5 

 

Incline Village General Improvement District 
Incline Village General Improvement District is a fiscally responsible community partner which provides superior utility services and community oriented 

recreation programs and facilities with passion for the quality of life and our environment while investing in the Tahoe basin. 
893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada 89451  (775) 832-1100  EMAIL: info@ivgid.org 

www.yourtahoeplace.com 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

3. Direct the General Manager to Sign, and Execute the Agreements. 
 

    
 

    
 

I.  REDACTIONS FOR PENDING PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS (for possible action)    
    

 

J.  LONG RANGE CALENDAR – pgs. 252 - 257  
    

 

K.  BOARD OF TRUSTEES UPDATE    
    

 

L.  FINAL PUBLIC COMMENTS - Limited to a maximum of three minutes in duration.    
    

 

M.  ADJOURNMENT (for possible action)     
    

 

 
CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF THIS AGENDA 
I hereby certify that on or before 9:00 AM on Friday, April 19, 2024, a copy of this agenda (IVGID Board of Trustees Session of April 24, 2024) was delivered to the 
post office addressed to the people who have requested to receive copies of IVGID’s agendas; copies were e-mailed to those people who have requested; and a copy 
was posted, physically or electronically, at the following locations in accordance with Assembly Bill 213: 

1. IVGID Anne Vorderbruggen Building (893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada; Administrative Offices) 
2. IVGID’s website (www.yourtahoeplace.com/ivgid/board-of-trustees/meetings-and-agendas) 
3. State of Nevada public noticing website (https://notice.nv.gov/) 
4. IVGID's Recreation Center (980 Incline Way, Incline Village, Nevada) 

 
Persons may request copies of all agenda Materials by contacting the District Clerk or by visiting the Administrative Offices at the address listed above. 

 /s/ Heidi H. White  
Heidi H. White  
District Clerk (e-mail: hhw@ivgid.org/phone # 775-832-1268) 

 

IVGID Board of Trustees: Chair Sara Schmitz, Vice Chair Matthew Dent, Treasurer Raymond Tulloch, Secretary Michaela Tonking, and David Noble 
Notes: Items on the agenda may be taken out of order; combined with other items; removed from the agenda; moved to the agenda of another meeting; moved to or 
from the Consent Calendar section; or may be voted on in a block. Items with a specific time designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard 
later. Those items followed by an asterisk (*) are items on the agenda upon which the Board of Trustees will take no action. Members of the public who are disabled 
and require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to call IVGID at 832-1100 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. IVGID'S agenda 
packets are available at IVGID's website, www.yourtahoeplace.com; go to "Board Meetings and Agendas”. 
 

Page 5 of 257



M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Adam Cripps 
Assistant Director of Finance 

SUBJECT: Conduct Interviews from the Five Citizen Submittals for 
the Position of Audit Committee Member At-Large and 
then Select Two Citizen Submittals to Become Members 
of the Incline Village General Improvement District Audit 
Committee and Appoint Two Board of Trustees Members 
to Become Members of the Incline Village General 
Improvement District Audit Committee, all positions 
would be effective April 25, 2024 

DATE: April 16, 2024 

Tonight, the Board of Trustees will be conducting the interviews of the five (5) 
citizen applicants who submitted their resumes for consideration to be an Audit 
Committee At-Large member. Following these interviews, the Board of Trustees 
may appoint up to two (2) of these individuals to serve. 

A sample motion would be as follows: 

The Board of Trustees makes a motion to appoint [insert name(s)] to the Incline 
Village General Improvement District Audit Committee effective April 25, 2024. 
This appointment will be for a two-year term ending April 30, 2026. 

Also, tonight, the Board of Trustees will be appointing two Board members to serve 
on the Audit Committee as the last appointment was made on February 8, 2023 
and as these are annual appointments, it is time to make new appointments to this 
committee. 

A sample motion would be as follows: 

The Board of Trustees makes a motion to appoint Trustee [insert name(s)] to the 
Incline Village General Improvement District Audit Committee effective April 25, 
2024. The term of this appointment is for one year unless the Trustees term of 
service ends prior to April 24, 2025. If the term of service ends prior, the term of 
appointment ends at the end of that service. 

Page 6 of 257Page 6 of 257



 
 

Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting 
Audit Committee Charter 

Policy 15.1.0 
 

Adopted June 29, 2022  1 

 
The Incline Village General Improvement District is committed to be proactive, 
informed, and to provide the highest level of financial accountability and 
transparency to its parcel owners and other stakeholders (i.e., the State of 
Nevada).   
 
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) encourages the effective 
use of an audit committee in the public sector and considers such a committee an 
integral element of public accountability and governance. An Audit Committee 
plays a key role with respect to overseeing the integrity of the District’s annual 
financial statements (the “ACFR”) by ensuring those responsible for financial 
management (Management and the Board of Trustees) meet their responsibilities 
for maintaining an effective system of internal controls over financial reporting. An 
Audit Committee is a practical means for a governing body to provide much 
needed independent review and oversight of the District’s financial reporting 
processes, internal controls, and independent auditors.  
 
An Audit Committee also provides a forum separate from management in which 
auditors and other interested parties can candidly discuss concerns. By effectively 
carrying out its functions and responsibilities, an Audit Committee helps to ensure 
that procedures are in place to objectively assess management's practices, and 
that the independent auditors, through their own review, objectively assess the 
government's financial reporting practices.  
 
An Audit Committee should be formally established by the Board of Trustees, be 
adequately funded, and be subject to a formally approved Audit Committee 
Charter. 
 
POLICY: The Audit Committee (the “Committee”) is to assist the Board of Trustees 
fulfill its responsibilities in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS), 
District Policies, Practices, Ordinances, and Resolutions by providing oversight 
over the District’s financial reports, the system of internal controls including the 
internal audit plans and reports, and the independent auditor’s reports within the 
ACFR. 
 
The Committee shall have open communication with and maintain strong working 
relationships with the IVGID Board of Trustees, the General Manager, Director of 
Finance, and the independent auditor. 
 

Page 7 of 257



 
 

Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting 
Audit Committee Charter 

Policy 15.1.0 
 

Adopted June 29, 2022  2 

This Committee shall review the Charter annually with any recommended changes 
submitted to the Board of Trustees for consideration and possible approval. 
 
ORGANIZATION: The Committee shall consist of five (5) voting members. This 
includes two Board members appointed annually by Trustees and three members 
appointed by the Trustees to serve as qualified At-Large Members. Any 
recommendations for expanding the number of voting members will be 
recommended by the Committee and submitted to the Board of Trustees for 
possible approval. The Committee may retain financial or other appropriate 
advisors to attend meetings, provide guidance and training, as needed, and as 
approved by the Board of Trustees for financial expenditures. 
 
Members of the Committee should have or shall obtain an understanding of 
accounting, auditing, financial reporting, and internal controls to be able, with the 
assistance of an advisor if needed, to deliberate on issues for which the Committee 
is responsible. Therefore, the Board of Trustees may need to budget for periodic 
training of the Committee members and an outside advisor to assist the Committee 
with the independent conduct of its work with the approval of the Board of Trustees. 
Any advisor so engaged should possess the following qualifications: 
 

 A thorough understanding and experience with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP), Government Accounting Standard Board 
(GASB) statements, and financial reporting  

 Experience either preparing or auditing financial statements  
 Experience with internal controls  
 An understanding of the function of an audit committee 

 
At-large Committee members shall be independent. They shall not accept any 
consulting, advisory, or other compensatory fee from the District. All members shall 
not be an affiliated person with the District and at-large members suggested 
qualifications:  
 
At-Large Committee members shall be expected to comply with all District policies 
that apply to volunteers.  District staff shall be responsible for providing copies of 
all relevant policies to Committee members. 
 

 Annually, the Board of Trustees will appoint two Trustees to be Committee 
members. Appointing Trustees to serve successive years increases 
continuity and allows for knowledge retention. In the event a Trustee is 
removed or resigns, the Board of Trustees shall agendize to appoint a new 

Page 8 of 257



 
 

Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting 
Audit Committee Charter 

Policy 15.1.0 
 

Adopted June 29, 2022  3 

member to the Committee within thirty (30) days of the vacancy or the next 
available regular meeting, whichever is later. In accordance with GFOA 
recommendations, Trustees considered for appointment to the Committee 
shall not be exercising managerial responsibilities that fall within the scope 
of the audit of the  District.1   

 
 At-Large Members shall be appointed by the Board of Trustees from 

applicants with appropriate accounting, auditing, internal controls, and 
financial reporting expertise. This expertise could include: 

 
o Hold an active CPA license (preferably in Nevada) or have at least 

15 years of progressive financial management experience as 
evidenced on a resume, CV, or LinkedIn 

o Experience on governing board, either as committee or board 
member 

o Experience either preparing or auditing financial statements  
o Experience with internal controls  
o An understanding of the function of an audit committee 

 
 At-Large Members will serve staggered two-year terms: 

 
o For the first appointment, one member will serve a one-year term and 

the other two will serve a two-year term.   
o For each subsequent appointment the member will serve a two-year 

term.  
 

 Terms for At-Large and Trustees Members shall commence on March 1st 
and expire on the last day of February of the applicable year.  Committee 
members appointed to terms originally set to expire on June 30th shall serve 
until the last day of February after their term was set to expire.  Members 
appointed to fill a vacancy shall serve for the balance of the initial term. 

 
One member of the Committee shall be appointed by the Committee to be the 
Chair. The Chair will schedule all Committee meetings and provide Committee 

                                         
1 “To ensure the committee's independence and effectiveness, no governing body member who exercises 
managerial responsibilities that fall within the scope of the audit should serve as a member of the audit 
committee”  Source: GFOA  Best Practices, Audit Committee 

 

Page 9 of 257



 
 

Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting 
Audit Committee Charter 

Policy 15.1.0 
 

Adopted June 29, 2022  4 

members with a written agenda for each meeting. Committee Members may 
request agenda items for the Chair’s consideration and approval.   
 
The Committee members are limited to two 2-year terms, which may be extended 
with the Board of Trustees approval in the event there are no interested or qualified 
applicants to fill any future vacancies.  In the event of any regular or unexpected 
vacancies for At Large Members, staff shall conduct a public process to solicit and 
receive applications from interested community members for consideration by the 
Board of Trustees .  Staff shall begin this process with sufficient time to ensure the 
Board of Trustees can make biannual appointments and within thirty (30) days of 
any unexpected vacancy.  Staff shall begin this process with sufficient time to 
ensure the Board of Trustees can make biannual appointments and within thirty 
(30) days of any unexpected vacancy.   
 
1.0 Independent auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee 
 
The independent auditor will be engaged by and report directly to the Committee. 
The Committee is expected to maintain free and open communication with the 
independent auditor and District Staff. This communication may include periodic 
executive sessions with each of these parties. The independent auditor is to bring 
to the attention of the Committee any additional work required (and related fee 
impact), beyond the scope of work contained in the engagement letter and the 
audit plan, to fulfill their responsibilities before any such work is undertaken. 
 
2.0 Scope of the Committee’s Authority and Responsibilities 
 
It is the responsibility of the Committee to provide independent review, oversight 
and feedback on: 

 
1. Financial reporting 
2. Internal controls 
3. The independent audit of the basic financial statements  
4. The ACFR 

 
To fulfill these responsibilities, the Committee shall: 
 

2.1 Be independent, effectively communicate, and reinforce 
accountability. 
 

2.2 Manage the external independent audit procurement process.  

Page 10 of 257



 
 

Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting 
Audit Committee Charter 

Policy 15.1.0 
 

Adopted June 29, 2022  5 

 
2.2.1 Review and approve the Request for Proposal (RFP) for an 

independent auditor to be retained by the District.  Such 
engagement should be for no more than five fiscal years in 
duration. 

2.2.2 Make recommendations on the scope of work. 
2.2.3 Make recommendations to the Board of Trustees and take 

subsequent action to engage an independent auditor. 
2.2.4 Review and approve the engagement letter (i.e., contract) 

between the District and the independent auditor 
2.2.5 If deemed necessary, identify and recommend additional audit 

services to be performed. 
2.2.6 By March 31st of each calendar year, the Board of Trustees is 

to formally designate an external independent auditor and 
inform the Nevada Department of Taxation. (NRS 354.624 
item 3). 

2.2.7 When appropriate recommend the replacement of the 
independent auditor and the initiation of the procurement 
process (2.2.1). 

 
2.3 Facilitate the independent audit process. 
 

2.3.1 Review and approve, in consultation with the independent 
auditor, the annual audit plan, the scope of audit activities and 
schedules by June of each year 

2.3.2 Provide an independent forum for auditors to report findings or 
difficulties encountered during the audit 

2.3.3 Review with the District management and the independent 
auditor all major issues identified by the independent auditor 
regarding: 
2.3.3.1 Accounting Principles. 
2.3.3.2 ACFR presentation. 
2.3.3.3 Any significant changes in the selection or 

application of accounting principles. 
2.3.3.4 Significant judgments made in the preparation of 

the ACFR and basic financial statements. 
2.3.3.5 The effect of regulatory initiatives. 
2.3.3.6 Off-balance sheet structures. 

Page 11 of 257



 
 

Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting 
Audit Committee Charter 

Policy 15.1.0 
 

Adopted June 29, 2022  6 

2.3.3.7 Changes to audit plan of independent auditor as a 
result of any additional issues identified by the 
auditor. 

2.3.3.8 Any restrictions on the scope of the auditor's 
activities or on access to requested information or 
managements responses. 

2.3.4 To review with District management and the independent 
auditor any material conflicts or disagreements between 
District management and the independent auditor, whether or 
not resolved, regarding financial reporting, accounting 
practices or policies or other matters, that, individually or in the 
aggregate, could be significant to the District’s financial 
statements or the independent auditors’ report, and attempt to 
help resolve any conflicts or disagreements regarding financial 
reporting. 

2.3.5 According to the approved work plan, conduct 
periodic meetings with the external auditor to review progress, 
issues identified, concerns and the audit timeline. 

2.3.6 Review the Management Representation letter by the District's 
management prior to submittal of the letter to the independent 
auditor. 

2.3.7 The Committee shall submit a written report to the District’s 
Board of Trustees in conjunction with the presentation of the 
ACFR to the Board of Trustees by the end of December. 

 
2.4 Post Independent Audit Follow up 
 

2.4.1 Follow-up on any corrective action identified by the 
independent auditor, if any. 

2.4.2 Annually evaluate the work of the independent auditor and lead 
audit partner based on compliance with work plan and 
engagement letter.  
 

2.5 The Committee may identify a need to engage an external resource 
to address a specific area of concern. 

 
2.5.1 The Committee shall seek approval from Board of Trustees to 

obtain appropriate resources. 
2.5.2 The Committee shall agree the Scope of Work. 

Page 12 of 257



 
 

Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting 
Audit Committee Charter 

Policy 15.1.0 
 

Adopted June 29, 2022  7 

2.5.3 The Committee is responsible for engaging the resource to 
perform the scope of work.  

2.5.4 The external resource shall report findings to the Committee. 
2.5.5 The Committee will provide findings to the Board of Trustees 

and recommend possible implementation of the findings, if 
any. 

2.5.6 Management will have the responsibility for implementation of 
identified changes or enhancements. 

 
2.6 The Committee shall review and provide oversight of the internal 

controls ensuring management establishes, implements and reviews 
internal controls on a regular basis for functionality and 
effectiveness. 

 
2.6.1 Management will provide an annual schedule for the review 

of District Financial Practices (internal control) 
documents. These documents will be provided to the Audit 
Committee for their review and oversight. 

2.6.2 Review the annual internal control audit plan(s).  
2.6.3 Review management’s annual assessment of their internal 

controls for prior year audit plan.  
2.6.4 Review management’s identification of fraud risks, review the 

implementation of anti-fraud measures. 
 

2.7 Annually review the District’s Code of Conduct that promotes honest 
and ethical conduct; full, fair, accurate, timely disclosures in periodic 
reports including the ACFR; and compliance with applicable policies 
and practices to ensure it is adequate and up-to-date. 
 

2.8 To annually review and refine as necessary the whistleblower 
procedures for the receipt, retention, and treatment of complaints 
received by the District, from the public or anonymous submissions 
by employees of the District, regarding accounting, internal 
accounting controls, auditing matters, or suspected fraud for 
recommendation to the board of trustees for consideration and 
possible approval. 

 

Page 13 of 257



 
 

Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting 
Audit Committee Charter 

Policy 15.1.0 
 

Adopted June 29, 2022  8 

2.8.1 Review and refine as needed the procedures for educating 
employees on their individual role in ensuring the District’s 
financial integrity. 

2.8.2 Ensure employees of the District have an anonymous method 
for concerns to be submitted.  

 
2.9 Reports to Board of Trustees. 
 

2.9.1 The Committee shall submit an annual report to the Board of 
Trustees assessing its fulfillment of it duties and 
responsibilities as described in the Charter 

 
3.0 Meetings 
 

3.1 Meetings are to be conducted in accordance with the state’s Open 
Meeting Law NRS 241. The Board of Trustees will be emailed a copy 
of the meeting minutes. Meeting minutes will be posted on the District 
website. 

 
3.2 The committee will hold meetings up to twice per quarter, unless 

immediate action is needed and no less than four times per year. All 
members are expected to attend on a regular basis. Any member 
missing two consecutive meetings without due cause (i.e., illness) 
will be reviewed for continued membership on the Committee by the 
Chairs of the Committee and Board.  

 
3.3 The committee Chair shall establish the agenda for meetings and 

provide all briefing materials to members and the public in advance.  
 
3.4 The District's management is to provide to copies of all materials 

which are to be presented by management to a Committee's public 
meeting in compliance with NRS 241. 

 
3.5 The Committee shall review correspondence to determine if any 

action is to be taken. If needed, assign the responsibility to 
investigate and resolve the concern/question to the appropriate 
organizational leader. Communicate with the submitter, if known, 
regarding their submitted concern. 

 

Page 14 of 257



 
 

Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting 
Audit Committee Charter 

Policy 15.1.0 
 

Adopted June 29, 2022  9 

3.6 The Committee shall review all past correspondence which contains 
outstanding action items. Ensure responses and/or corrective action 
is taken in a timely manner. 

 
3.7 The Committee may ask members of management or others to 

attend meetings and provide pertinent information as necessary. 
 

3.8 An annual meeting is to be held with the independent auditor, the 
General Manager, the Director of Finance, legal counsel and anyone 
else as desired by the Committee to review the audited annual basic 
financial statements including the Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (ACFR) and the auditor’s material written communications 
with the District. 

 
4.0 Annual Financial Risk Assessment and Risk Management.  

 
The Committee shall review and discuss with District management and the 
independent auditor the District’s major financial risk exposures, and the steps 
management has taken to monitor and control those exposures. It is the Board’s 
responsibility to ensure the District has adequate controls and plans for risk 
mitigation for areas beyond finance.  

Page 15 of 257



                    

VOLUNTEER Registration, Release and Waiver, and Emergency Contact Information

� Adult � Child
Name of Volunteer ________________________________________________________      

Address ____________________________________    ______________________________    ___________    __________
Street / PO Box         City                                     State                   Zip

Phone Numbers ____________________________ ________________________ ______________________________
Day                Evening                Mobile

Email: ______________________________________________

In reference to this Registration, it is understood that Incline Village General Improvement District (IVGID) is a 
governmental entity formed under Nevada Revised Statute 318.  IVGID (aka) - Diamond Peak Ski Resort, Incline 
Village Parks & Recreation, The Golf Courses at Incline Village, and Public Works & Utilities.

The volunteer agrees to volunteer his/her services to IVGID in the capacity of:

              _______________________________               for        ________________________________________
Activity /Service                   Department
________________________________    ________________________________________

   Date Activity Begins                    Date Registration Expires

Volunteer agrees:

1) To perform this service for IVGID for civic, charitable or humanitarian reasons, without promise, expectation 
or receipt of compensation for services rendered;

2) To offer this service freely and without pressure or coercion, direct or implied, from IVGID;

3) That he/she is not employed by IVGID to perform the same type of services as those for which he/she is 
agreeing to volunteer;

4) That IVGID does afford worker’s compensation benefits to volunteer;

5) That if requested, he/she will be afforded a list of any inherent risks for the activity agreeing to volunteer.

Volunteer understands that IVGID is depending on his/her services.  If for a serious reason, the volunteer cannot keep 
this commitment, the volunteer will notify his/her supervisor in advance.  Additionally, Volunteer understand and agrees 
that he/she may have access to confidential and attorney-client privileged information. Volunteer agrees to keep such 
information confidential unless disclosure is authorized by IVGID or required by law.

Please initial to indicate you have read and understand the above________

RELEASE OF LIABILITY
I hereby, for myself, for my minor, and/or for my heirs, executors, and administrators, do hereby RELEASE, HOLD 
HARMLESS, AND INDEMNIFY IVGID, the organizers and/or sponsors of this activity, its officers, representatives, 
agents, trustees, and employees, from any and all liability for any damages and/or bodily injury, including death, which 
they may suffer due to my or my minor child’s participation in this activity.

Declaration  I declare that I have read and understand the contents of this form including the inherent risks noted 
below.  I am aware that this is a RELEASE OF LIABILITY and a contract between myself / minor child noted above and 
IVGID and sign it of my own free will.

Page 16 of 257



                                                                         

 
Assumption Of Risk  I understand that there are inherent risks in the activity I am volunteering for and that anyone, 
including a minor child, participating in such an activity may be exposed to the risk of bodily injury and/or property 
damage due to the nature of such activities.  I acknowledge that I have read and have initialed the inherent risks noted 
and I agree to assume such risks either for myself and/or a minor child in the participation of this activity. 
 

Please initial to indicate you have read and understand the above________ 
 

INHERENT RISKS IN THE ACTIVITY AS NOTED 
 
The inherent risks of ___________________________________________________ are hereby defined, but not limited 
to this definition, as those dangers or conditions, which are an integral part of the activity.  Inherent Risks defined are: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Such inherent risks can result in personal, bodily injury including death and/or property damage. 
 

Please initial to indicate you have read the above and accept the inherent risks as noted ________ 
 
WORKER’S COMPENSATION WAIVER 
Non-Coverage 
 

The undersigned understands that Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 616A.130 states, in part, that persons (participants / 
volunteers) who perform volunteer work in any formal program, which is being conducted within a state or local public 
organization may be deemed by a self-insured employer as employees and are entitled to the benefits of worker’s 
compensation when the organization approves such coverage. 
 

Incline Village General Improvement District (IVGID) is a governmental entity under Nevada Revised Statutes and is a 
self-insured employer for worker’s compensation under NRS 616.  IVGID (aka) - Diamond Peak Ski Resort, Incline 
Village Parks & Recreation, The Golf Courses at Incline Village, and Public Works & Utilities. 
 

It is further understood that IVGID does afford worker’s compensation benefits to volunteers in any of its programs and I 
do hereby accept these worker’s compensation provisions as stated above.  In addition, I understand that a complete 
copy of NRS 616A.130 may be provided upon request to IVGID. 
 

Please initial to indicate you have read and understand the above________ 
 
Emergency Contact 
 
Volunteer understands that the following information will only be used to contact the designated person listed below in a 
medical or incident emergency by IVGID.  Volunteer further understands that IVGID may furnish first aid care, including 
but not limited to, transportation of volunteer by paramedical personnel to a facility where defined medical care can be 
provided at no expense to IVGID. 
 
Emergency Contact    _____________________________   Relationship to Volunteer:   __________________________ 
 
Emergency Contact Number:   _________________________ Please  one:      Cell Phone          Home Phone 
 
Name of Parent / Guardian if Volunteer is a Minor: _________________________________________________________ 
                         (Please Print) 
 
Signature: ____________________________________________________Date: _________________________ 
     (Of Volunteer       or        Parent / Guardian if Volunteer is a Minor) 
 
 
 
 
Supervisor Signature:____________________________________________Date:_________________________ 

Page 17 of 257



 
 

Advertisement run dates: 3/22, 3/29, 4/5 and 4/12 

The Incline Village General Improvement District Board of Trustees is 
seeking interested candidates who wish to serve as an At-Large 
Member of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is seeking 
individuals with experience in accounting, auditing, financial 
reporting and/or internal controls. Two vacancies are to be filled. Any 
interested candidate should submit a letter of interest and a resume. 
These two documents can be submitted either via U.S. Mail 
addressed to Director of Administrative Services Susan Herron, IVGID, 
893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada 89451; or hand 
delivered to the aforementioned address; or submitted via e-mail 
(sah@ivgid.org). It is the interested candidate’s responsibility to 
ensure that their documents have been received for consideration. 
All submittals must be received no later than April 12, 2024, 12 noon 
(PST). 
 
Further, all interested candidates must be available to be interviewed 
during the Incline Village General Improvement District Board of 
Trustees regular meeting tentatively scheduled for April 24, 2024 at 
6:00 p.m. During this meeting, the Board of Trustees may make their 
final decision and the selected interested applicant may begin serving 
their term effective April 25, 2024. If you have any questions 
regarding this matter, please contact Susan Herron, Director of 
Administrative Services, IVGID, at (775) 832-1207 or via e-mail at 
sah@ivgid.org. 

Ad placed in the Tahoe Daily Tribune 
which is distributed in Incline Village and 
Crystal Bay, NV.  

Page 18 of 257



RJ-39017796

The Incline Village General Improvement District Board of 

Trustees is seeking interested candidates who wish to serve 

as an At-Large Member of the Audit Committee. This is a 

volunteer position.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please 

contact Susan Herron, Director of Administrative Services, 

IVGID, at (775) 832-1207 or via e-mail at sah@ivgid.org.

The Audit Committee is seeking individuals with experience in accounting, 
auditing, financial reporting and/or internal controls. Two vacancies are to 
be filled. Any interested candidate should submit a letter of interest and 
a resume. These two documents can be submitted either via U.S. Mail 
addressed to Director of Administrative Services Susan Herron, IVGID, 893 
Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada 89451; or hand delivered to 
the aforementioned address; or submitted via e-mail (sah@ivgid.org). It is the 
interested candidate’s responsibility to ensure that their documents have been 
received for consideration. All submittals must be received no later than April 12, 
2024, 12 noon (PST).
Further, all interested candidates must be available to be interviewed during the 
Incline Village General Improvement District Board of Trustees regular meeting 
tentatively scheduled for April 24, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. During this meeting, the 
Board of Trustees may make their final decision and the selected interested 
applicant may begin serving their term effective April 25, 2024.

Page 19 of 257



 
 
 

PATRICK 
DOMINICK 

  

Page 20 of 257



Page 21 of 257



Patrick L Dominick 

 

Overview 

Auditing and financial executive with over thirty-five years working with Audit Committees and Management to improve 
governance, internal controls and risk management.  Demonstrated focus on profitability while promoting adequate and 
effective procedures and policies. Directed audit and finance teams as large as forty. Chaired Board and Audit Committees for 
Not-For-Profits. Relevant experience: 

o Managed external audit relationships including fees. 
o Complied with AICPA Audit Committee guidance. 
o Evaluated operations, contracting, finance, governance, IT and regulatory compliance. 
o Planned and executed financial statement audits. 
o Conducted fraud investigations and assessed fraud prevention programs. 
o Planned use of data interrogation software.   
o Developed annual and strategic plans. 
o Evaluated ethics and whistleblower programs. 

 
Education 

MBA, Tulane University, 1979, Finance/Marketing. 
BBS, Tulane University, 1977, General Business. 

 
Work History 
Jackson Hole Conservation Alliance – Board of Directors Chair – 2023 to present 

Protecting wildlife, wild spaces and community character. 

Greater Yellowstone Coalition - Board of Directors Treasurer – 2015-2021, Audit Committee Chair, Investment   
 Committee Chair – Protecting the Yellowstone Ecosystem 

Institute Of Internal Auditors (IIA) – Seminar Instructor 2007 - present. 

Legal & General America – Vice President, Internal Audit - 1999 to 2013. 
Global insurance, annuity and investments firm. Reported to the Board’s Audit Committee, directed the internal 
audit program and managed the external audit relationship.  

MSRC - Director of Internal Audit - 1992 to 1998.  Maritime firm on-water pollution clean-up.  
Reported to the Board’s Audit Committee; developed company’s first internal audit program.  

Perpetual Savings Bank, FSB - Full-service publicly held Bank.  
Vice President, General Auditor & Corporate Compliance Officer - 1986 to 1990 
Vice President, Director of Accounting & Budgeting - 1990 to 1991 
Vice President, Division Director of Finance & Administration - 1991 to 1992 

Price Waterhouse – Assurance Manager 1984 to 1986, Supervisor 1981 to 1984 
Audited financial statements for publicly and privately held companies (manufacturing, financial services, oil & gas, 
real estate, law firm). Litigation support. Due diligence reviews.  

Professional Designations and Affiliations 
Certified Public Accountant (CPA retired)  Certified Fraud Examiner (CFE) 
Certified Internal Auditor (CIA)   Certified Risk Management Assurance (CRMA) 
American Institute of CPAs   Fellow, Life Management Institute (FLMI).  
 

Page 22 of 257



 
 
 

THEO 
NICHOLAS 

  

Page 23 of 257



Page 24 of 257



Page 25 of 257



Page 26 of 257



Page 27 of 257



 
 
 

KEVIN 
SAMMELMAN 
  

Page 28 of 257



Page 29 of 257



Page 30 of 257



 
 
 

CINDY 
SOLIS 

  

Page 31 of 257



Cindy Solis
1290 Sullivan Ln. # F
Sparks, NV 89431
ceesol30@gmail.com
323-517-5806

Dear Hiring Manager,

I am writing to express my interest as the Volunteer Audit Committee member for Incline Village. With a
strong academic background in communications and a passion for financial undertakings, I am excited
about the opportunity to apply my accounting and audit skills to support your team.

I have a bachelors in Communication Studies from California State University Northridge and a vast
professional background in the accounting and financial industry. As a staff accountant for a cannabis
production facility in Nevada, I developed a solid understanding of financial principles, auditing
procedures, and accounting software. Through my employment history, I gained hands-on experience in
analyzing financial data, conducting audits, and preparing financial statements. Additionally, my attention
to detail and analytical mindset enable me to identify discrepancies and recommend corrective actions
effectively.

What truly drives me is the opportunity to make a positive impact through my work. I am drawn to the
IVGID mission of “delivering proper recreational experiences through the highest level of water, sewer,
and solid waste services while striving for fiscal and environmental sustainability” and eager to contribute
my expertise to help achieve your goals. Volunteering with your organization would not only allow me to
gain practical experience in auditing but also provide me with the opportunity to give back to the
community and make a difference. Furthermore, I am highly motivated to continue learning and expand
my skills in accounting and auditing. Volunteering with IVGID would offer me valuable hands-on
experience and exposure to real-world audit processes at a municipality level, further enhancing my
professional development as an accountant.

I am confident that my academic background, coupled with my passion for accounting, make me a strong
candidate for this position.Thank you for considering my application. I am eager to discuss how my skills
and experiences align with the needs of your team. I look forward to the opportunity to contribute to IVGID
and support your mission.

Thank you,

Cindy Solis

Page 32 of 257



 C I N D Y S O L I S  

• Finance & Accounting• 

About Me  
Staff Accountant with over three years in the accounting industry. Highly dependable leader in both corporate and nonprofit 
sectors with keen attention to detail, communication, and dedication to accuracy. Desire to work in a mid to senior level 
accounting position with a fast-growing company.  
 

Education  
California State University Northridge- B.A Communication Studies – 2015  
   
Experience 

 Adaptive HR- Staff Accountant – Mar 2023 – Present   
 Assist in billing and invoicing, working both in AR and AP and processing cash collections as part of AR function 
 Support with federal and state filing requirements 
 Support the audit/review of our financial statements by our external auditors  
 Preparation of journal entries related to monthly General Ledger activity and adjusting journal entries 
 Prepare business license renewals 

 
 Faith In Action Nevada - Accounting Specialist – Jan 2021 – Feb 2023   

 Organized internal operations and bookkeeping for 501(c)3 state nonprofit 
 Quality Control and general ledger upkeep for grant tracking and donations 
 Preparing financial statements and grant budget reports 
 Research new funding opportunities including submitting Request for Proposals (RFP's). 
 Donor/Supporter database management and data analysis for recurring donors, active donors and new fundraising 

opportunities 
 

 FieldWorks LLC - Deputy Director – Aug 2020 – Dec 2020 
 Quality-control and data administration for climate reality action fund. Ensuring compliance with regulations, 

program implementation and daily goals 
 Program planning, recruitment, operation, and canvasser training  
 Cutting turf and assigning precincts for door-to-door campaign 

 
 MedGyn Products - Billing Specialist – May 2018 – Nov 2019  

 Processing work orders and sending invoices/billing updates to both National and international clients and sales 
managers 

 Receiving and tracking incoming payments for accurate reporting of billing data. Back-order support and 
payment processing through accounts payable system 
 

 TCA Architects - Administrative Assistant – Feb 2016 – May 2017 
 Office management and executive support to Vice President 
 Events management and logistics for Staff development and team building 
 Liaison between construction co. and contacts with project managers and designers 

 
 JP Morgan Chase Bank- Senior Teller – Feb 2011 – Feb 2017 

 Competence in basic math and proficiency in processing all banking transactions and monetary instruments  
 Awareness of providing excellent service by maintaining customer satisfaction and creating trust to generate a 

return business 
 Highly trained in meeting and dealing with the public in a friendly manner 
 Maintain and balance a daily cash drawer  

 
Skills 

 Quickbooks 
 Hubspot 
 SalesForce,  
 Canva  
 Salsa CRM/Engage  

 Hootsuite  
 Microsoft office programs 
 Adobe programs  
 G-Suites 
 VAN Voter File 

 
 
References – Available upon 
request  

Page 33 of 257



 
 
 

SARA 
THOMAS 

Page 34 of 257



Page 35 of 257



Page 36 of 257



Page 37 of 257



Page 38 of 257



TREASURER’S
REPORT
FEBRUARY 2024

Incline Village General Improvement District

Page 39 of 257



CONTENTS

Monthly Expenses

Year-to-Date Expenses

Investments

Debt Service

Cost Centers

Appendix A – Disbursements 
Greater Than $50,000

Appendix B – Check Register

Appendix C – Procurement Card 
Transactions

1

2

3

4

5

6

8

33

             

NOTE: Financial records are not yet closed for the months of July 2023 – February 2024.  
Reports are subject to change as additional information is available and updated. 

Page 40 of 257



1

MONTHLY EXPENSES FEBRUARY 2024

Accounts Payable Expenses

Gross Payroll Expenses

Total February Gross Payroll Expenses
Total February AP EFT Disbursements

Total February AP Checks
Total February Payroll and Accounts Payable

2,277,703
611,748
567,016

3,456,467

$

$

$

$

Page 41 of 257



2

YEAR-TO-DATE EXPENSES FEBRUARY 2024

YTD Accounts Payable Expenses

YTD Gross Payroll Expenses

Total YTD Gross Payroll Expenses
Total YTD AP Checks

Total YTD AP EFT Disbursements
Total YTD Payroll and Accounts Payable

17,734,608
18,020,753

6,250,798
42,006,159

$

$

$

$

Page 42 of 257



3

INVESTMENTS FEBRUARY 2024

Total Investments

35,817,223
211,458
(26,988)

$

$

$

Total Market Value of Investments
Total Monthly Change in Value of Investments

Total Monthly Change Due to Withdrawals for Debt Svc

Wells Fargo Account

Total Earnings and Change in Market Value
Total Monthly Dividends

Total Monthly Change in Value and Dividends

211,458
41,541

252,999

$

$

$

Page 43 of 257



4

DEBT SERVICE FEBRUARY 2024

Debt Service

Page 44 of 257



5

COST CENTER REPORTS FEBRUARY 2024

Cost Center YTD Revenues vs. YTD Expenses

Breakdown of Expenditures

Page 45 of 257



6

APPENDIX A
DISBURSEMENTS

GREATER THAN $50,000

Page 46 of 257



7

APPENDIX A FEBRUARY 2024

Disbursements Greater Than $50,000

Page 47 of 257



8

APPENDIX B

CHECK REGISTER

Page 48 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

85
21

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Ba

ke
rT

ill
y

US
,L

LP
13

,1
18

.7
5

Fi
na

nc
ia

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
Ac

co
un

tin
g

85
68

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
8,

46
2.

00
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

Ac
co

un
tin

g
85

12
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

Si
er

ra
El

ec
tr

on
ics

10
8.

03
Be

ac
h

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

25
.0

0
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

25
.0

0
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

24
.9

9
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

24
.9

9
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

83
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Pa
cif

ic
St

at
es

Co
m

m
un

ica
tio

ns
of

Ne
va

da
,I

nc
.

13
0.

20
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

83
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Pa
cif

ic
St

at
es

Co
m

m
un

ica
tio

ns
of

Ne
va

da
,I

nc
.

13
0.

20
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
55

.9
8

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

39
9.

98
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
84

89
02

/0
2/

20
24

EF
T

Ha
lo

Br
an

de
d

So
lu

tio
ns

,I
NC

1,
42

9.
02

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
24

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Ha

lo
Br

an
de

d
So

lu
tio

ns
,I

NC
1,

90
0.

00
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
84

89
02

/0
2/

20
24

EF
T

Ha
lo

Br
an

de
d

So
lu

tio
ns

,I
NC

1,
13

8.
38

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

84
89

02
/0

2/
20

24
EF

T
Ha

lo
Br

an
de

d
So

lu
tio

ns
,I

NC
2,

59
6.

42
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
86

09
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

1.
76

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

86
09

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
63

.5
7

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
26

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
24

5.
53

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
26

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
37

8.
15

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
83

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Pa

cif
ic

St
at

es
Co

m
m

un
ica

tio
ns

of
Ne

va
da

,I
nc

.
13

0.
20

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
83

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Pa

cif
ic

St
at

es
Co

m
m

un
ica

tio
ns

of
Ne

va
da

,I
nc

.
13

0.
20

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
35

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

(2
68

.6
5)

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
35

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

91
.3

7
Ge

ne
ra

lG
ov

er
nm

en
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
80

.5
8

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

(2
9.

85
)

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

(5
9.

70
)

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

(1
19

.4
0)

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

(1
49

.2
5)

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

62
6.

85
Ge

ne
ra

lG
ov

er
nm

en
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
62

6.
85

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

11
9.

60
Ge

ne
ra

lG
ov

er
nm

en
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
17

4.
80

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
02

02
/0

6/
20

24
EF

T
BA

VS
SM

LL
C

61
4.

00
Ge

ne
ra

lG
ov

er
nm

en
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

64
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

BA
VS

SM
LL

C
1,

38
8.

00
Ge

ne
ra

lG
ov

er
nm

en
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

02
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

BA
VS

SM
LL

C
63

8.
00

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
52

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Fi

rs
tC

ho
ice

Se
rv

ice
s

35
.0

0
Ge

ne
ra

lG
ov

er
nm

en
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

52
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Fi
rs

tC
ho

ice
Se

rv
ice

s
76

.9
0

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
80

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
M

os
sA

da
m

sL
LP

9,
91

8.
14

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
83

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Pa

cif
ic

St
at

es
Co

m
m

un
ica

tio
ns

of
Ne

va
da

,I
nc

.
13

0.
20

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
83

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Pa

cif
ic

St
at

es
Co

m
m

un
ica

tio
ns

of
Ne

va
da

,I
nc

.
13

0.
20

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

84
94

02
/0

2/
20

24
EF

T
Pi

tn
ey

Bo
w

es
In

c
50

2.
71

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

9

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024

Check Register

Page 49 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

86
11

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Pi

tn
ey

Bo
w

es
In

c
50

2.
71

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
30

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Sw

ift
Co

m
m

un
ica

tio
ns

of
Ca

lif
or

ni
a,

In
c

20
5.

50
Ge

ne
ra

lG
ov

er
nm

en
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

68
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

78
.2

8
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Co
ur

se
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
68

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
99

.1
8

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Co

ur
se

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

68
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

14
9.

16
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Co
ur

se
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
68

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
15

6.
97

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Co

ur
se

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

68
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

49
.9

7
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Co
ur

se
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
42

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
15

.0
0

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Co

ur
se

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

15
.0

0
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Co
ur

se
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
42

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
15

.0
0

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Co

ur
se

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

15
.0

0
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Co
ur

se
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
83

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Pa

cif
ic

St
at

es
Co

m
m

un
ica

tio
ns

of
Ne

va
da

,I
nc

.
13

0.
20

O
th

er
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

83
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Pa
cif

ic
St

at
es

Co
m

m
un

ica
tio

ns
of

Ne
va

da
,I

nc
.

13
0.

20
O

th
er

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
35

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

18
.7

9
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
47

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

38
.6

3
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

86
09

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
39

9.
07

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

15
.0

0
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
42

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
15

.0
0

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

15
.0

0
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
42

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
15

.0
0

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

15
.0

0
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
42

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
15

.0
0

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

15
.0

0
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
42

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
15

.0
0

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

65
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

DO
W

L,
LL

C
1,

80
7.

50
Se

w
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

65
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

DO
W

L,
LL

C
1,

01
2.

00
Se

w
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
86

06
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Ja
co

bs
En

gi
ne

er
in

g
Gr

ou
p

In
c

4,
68

7.
00

Se
w

er
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
83

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Pa

cif
ic

St
at

es
Co

m
m

un
ica

tio
ns

of
Ne

va
da

,I
nc

.
13

0.
20

Se
w

er
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
83

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Pa

cif
ic

St
at

es
Co

m
m

un
ica

tio
ns

of
Ne

va
da

,I
nc

.
13

0.
20

Se
w

er
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

86
16

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Si

lv
er

St
at

e
La

w
LL

C
17

9.
69

Se
w

er
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
68

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
62

.1
7

TW
SA

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

75
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

DO
W

L,
LL

C
28

5.
00

W
at

er
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

85
65

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
DO

W
L,

LL
C

14
,7

47
.5

0
W

at
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

83
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Pa
cif

ic
St

at
es

Co
m

m
un

ica
tio

ns
of

Ne
va

da
,I

nc
.

13
0.

20
W

at
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

83
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Pa
cif

ic
St

at
es

Co
m

m
un

ica
tio

ns
of

Ne
va

da
,I

nc
.

13
0.

20
W

at
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

86
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Re
so

ur
ce

Co
nc

ep
ts

,I
nc

.
1,

25
2.

50
W

at
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

86
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Re
so

ur
ce

Co
nc

ep
ts

,I
nc

.
2,

13
5.

50
W

at
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
86

16
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Si
lv

er
St

at
e

La
w

LL
C

17
9.

69
W

at
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
16

1.
58

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Pr

og
ra

m
s

Ad
ul

tS
po

rt
s

84
99

02
/0

6/
20

24
EF

T
Ai

rg
as

Na
tio

na
lC

ar
bo

na
tio

n
86

.6
9

Be
ac

h
Aq

ua
tic

s
85

59
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

Ai
rg

as
Na

tio
na

lC
ar

bo
na

tio
n

29
4.

67
Be

ac
h

Aq
ua

tic
s

10

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024                                         

Check Register Continued

Page 50 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

84
99

02
/0

6/
20

24
EF

T
Ai

rg
as

Na
tio

na
lC

ar
bo

na
tio

n
27

8.
77

Be
ac

h
Aq

ua
tic

s
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
(7

4.
94

)
Be

ac
h

Aq
ua

tic
s

85
47

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

(8
9.

97
)

Be
ac

h
Aq

ua
tic

s
85

35
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
(7

4.
82

)
Be

ac
h

Aq
ua

tic
s

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

30
.4

0
Be

ac
h

Aq
ua

tic
s

85
58

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
Ai

rg
as

In
c

56
6.

68
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Aq

ua
tic

s
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
51

.1
2

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Aq
ua

tic
s

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

32
.9

8
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Aq

ua
tic

s
86

03
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Gw
yn

ne
Cu

nn
in

gh
am

93
.8

0
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Aq

ua
tic

s
85

12
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

Si
er

ra
El

ec
tr

on
ics

13
0.

53
Be

ac
h

Be
ac

h
Ho

st
s

85
55

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
A

1
Na

tio
na

lF
ire

Co
/D

BA
Su

m
m

it
Co

m
pa

ni
es

84
5.

25
Bu

ild
in

gs
Bu

ild
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

55
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

A
1

Na
tio

na
lF

ire
Co

/D
BA

Su
m

m
it

Co
m

pa
ni

es
40

0.
50

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

85
55

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
A

1
Na

tio
na

lF
ire

Co
/D

BA
Su

m
m

it
Co

m
pa

ni
es

39
8.

25
Bu

ild
in

gs
Bu

ild
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

55
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

A
1

Na
tio

na
lF

ire
Co

/D
BA

Su
m

m
it

Co
m

pa
ni

es
50

1.
00

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

85
62

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

58
.4

7
Bu

ild
in

gs
Bu

ild
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

62
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
83

.9
9

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

85
62

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

47
.8

8
Bu

ild
in

gs
Bu

ild
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
85

.0
0

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

85
03

02
/0

6/
20

24
EF

T
Bu

ild
in

g
Co

nt
ro

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
In

c.
68

3.
21

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

85
49

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Bu

ild
in

g
Co

nt
ro

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
In

c.
1,

17
6.

64
Bu

ild
in

gs
Bu

ild
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

03
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

Bu
ild

in
g

Co
nt

ro
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

In
c.

2,
47

1.
25

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

85
76

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Gr

ea
tB

as
in

En
tr

y
In

c
3,

75
4.

96
Bu

ild
in

gs
Bu

ild
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

38
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Ri
ch

ar
d

Cl
ar

k
75

0.
00

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

85
50

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Ri

ch
ar

d
Cl

ar
k

1,
87

5.
00

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

85
90

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Ta

ho
e

Su
pp

ly
Co

m
pa

ny
LL

C
62

.6
2

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

85
56

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Ta

ho
e

Su
pp

ly
Co

m
pa

ny
LL

C
67

6.
20

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

85
00

02
/0

6/
20

24
EF

T
AL

SC
O

1.
27

Fa
cil

iti
es

Ch
at

ea
u

85
83

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Pa

cif
ic

St
at

es
Co

m
m

un
ica

tio
ns

of
Ne

va
da

,I
nc

.
13

0.
20

Fa
cil

iti
es

Ch
at

ea
u

85
83

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Pa

cif
ic

St
at

es
Co

m
m

un
ica

tio
ns

of
Ne

va
da

,I
nc

.
13

0.
20

Fa
cil

iti
es

Ch
at

ea
u

85
62

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

80
.9

8
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Ch
ild

Sk
iC

en
te

r
85

35
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
14

2.
47

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ch

ild
Sk

iC
en

te
r

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

17
.9

7
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Ch
ild

Sk
iC

en
te

r
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
15

2.
92

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ch

ild
Sk

iC
en

te
r

85
24

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Ha

lo
Br

an
de

d
So

lu
tio

ns
,I

NC
61

1.
00

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ch

ild
Sk

iC
en

te
r

86
04

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Ha

lo
Br

an
de

d
So

lu
tio

ns
,I

NC
1,

54
5.

42
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Ch
ild

Sk
iC

en
te

r
86

04
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Ha
lo

Br
an

de
d

So
lu

tio
ns

,I
NC

1,
94

9.
72

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ch

ild
Sk

iC
en

te
r

85
16

02
/0

6/
20

24
EF

T
UL

IN
E,

In
c

20
4.

42
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Ch
ild

Sk
iC

en
te

r
86

21
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
86

.7
3

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ch

ild
Sk

iC
en

te
r

85
34

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

69
1.

36
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Ch
ild

Sk
iC

en
te

r
85

01
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

An
dr

ew
M

or
ris

20
0.

00
W

at
er

Co
m

pl
ia

nc
e

Se
rv

cie
s

85
47

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

23
.6

9
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce

11

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024 

Check Register Continued

Page 51 of 257



CH
EC

K
NU

M
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

85
37

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Ca

sh
m

an
Eq

ui
pm

en
tC

om
pa

ny
78

6.
74

Ch
am

pi
on

sh
ip

Co
ur

se
Co

ur
se

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

86
05

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
He

ro
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
lL

LC
2,

40
2.

50
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
84

96
02

/0
2/

20
24

EF
T

St
ot

zE
qu

ip
m

en
t

20
0.

40
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

37
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Ca
sh

m
an

Eq
ui

pm
en

tC
om

pa
ny

78
6.

73
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Co
ur

se
Co

ur
se

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

84
96

02
/0

2/
20

24
EF

T
St

ot
zE

qu
ip

m
en

t
20

0.
40

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

15
.0

0
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

85
42

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
15

.0
0

Ch
am

pi
on

sh
ip

Co
ur

se
Co

ur
se

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

15
.0

0
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

85
42

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
15

.0
0

Ch
am

pi
on

sh
ip

Co
ur

se
Co

ur
se

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
85

12
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

Si
er

ra
El

ec
tr

on
ics

14
5.

53
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

85
12

02
/0

6/
20

24
EF

T
Si

er
ra

El
ec

tr
on

ics
12

3.
03

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

85
12

02
/0

6/
20

24
EF

T
Si

er
ra

El
ec

tr
on

ics
93

.0
3

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

85
12

02
/0

6/
20

24
EF

T
Si

er
ra

El
ec

tr
on

ics
40

.5
3

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

85
06

02
/0

6/
20

24
EF

T
De

ll
M

ar
ke

tin
g,

L.
P.

(s
of

tw
ar

e
w

as
AS

AP
)

2,
00

4.
24

Ch
am

pi
on

sh
ip

Co
ur

se
Dr

iv
in

g
Ra

ng
e

85
35

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

11
2.

18
En

gi
ne

er
in

g
En

gi
ne

er
in

g
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

85
68

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
12

4.
33

En
gi

ne
er

in
g

En
gi

ne
er

in
g

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
85

60
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

Al
pi

ne
Sm

ith
,I

nc
33

6.
20

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

62
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
32

.4
9

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

62
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
67

.7
5

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

62
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
23

.3
0

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

62
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
69

.9
9

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
31

.8
0

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
10

0.
19

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
29

7.
57

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
17

1.
90

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
36

.9
3

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

35
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
67

.8
9

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
88

.6
8

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
10

.6
2

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

81
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

M
un

ici
pa

lM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

Eq
ui

pm
en

t
1,

38
1.

48
Fl

ee
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

84
95

02
/0

2/
20

24
EF

T
Sh

af
er

Eq
ui

pm
en

tC
om

pa
ny

In
c.

99
8.

15
Fl

ee
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

85
78

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Sh

an
no

n
M

ar
ie

Sa
lsb

y
29

.0
0

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

28
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Si
lv

er
St

at
e

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l
10

,2
00

.7
7

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

54
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

St
ot

zE
qu

ip
m

en
t

16
2.

60
Fl

ee
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

86
17

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
St

ot
zE

qu
ip

m
en

t
25

2.
29

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

90
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Ta
ho

e
Su

pp
ly

Co
m

pa
ny

LL
C

16
5.

94
Fl

ee
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

85
62

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

19
.9

9
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Fi

tn
es

s
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
(1

99
.9

2)
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
85

35
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
(2

4.
99

)
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
85

12
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

Si
er

ra
El

ec
tr

on
ics

40
.5

3
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
85

46
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

AL
SC

O
27

5.
02

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

12

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024 

Check Register Continued

Page 52 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

85
61

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
AL

SC
O

27
5.

02
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
85

00
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

AL
SC

O
27

5.
02

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

85
00

02
/0

6/
20

24
EF

T
AL

SC
O

27
6.

52
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
15

6.
82

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

85
51

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Co

zz
in

iB
ro

s.
In

c
51

.0
0

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

85
51

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Co

zz
in

iB
ro

s.
In

c
79

.5
0

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

85
79

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Lin

de
Ga

s&
Eq

ui
pm

en
tI

nc
.

36
0.

18
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

25
.0

0
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

25
.0

0
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

0.
02

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

85
42

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
24

.9
9

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

85
42

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
0.

02
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

24
.9

9
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
86

13
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Ra
le

y'
s

17
.2

0
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
85

89
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Sy
sc

o
Fo

od
Se

rv
ice

so
fS

ac
ra

m
en

to
35

1.
76

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

86
19

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Sy

sc
o

Fo
od

Se
rv

ice
so

fS
ac

ra
m

en
to

61
6.

35
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
86

19
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Sy
sc

o
Fo

od
Se

rv
ice

so
fS

ac
ra

m
en

to
93

0.
10

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

86
19

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Sy

sc
o

Fo
od

Se
rv

ice
so

fS
ac

ra
m

en
to

43
6.

82
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
86

19
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Sy
sc

o
Fo

od
Se

rv
ice

so
fS

ac
ra

m
en

to
30

2.
62

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

86
19

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Sy

sc
o

Fo
od

Se
rv

ice
so

fS
ac

ra
m

en
to

56
3.

90
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
86

19
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Sy
sc

o
Fo

od
Se

rv
ice

so
fS

ac
ra

m
en

to
71

0.
07

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

85
89

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Sy

sc
o

Fo
od

Se
rv

ice
so

fS
ac

ra
m

en
to

93
9.

40
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
85

89
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Sy
sc

o
Fo

od
Se

rv
ice

so
fS

ac
ra

m
en

to
7.

00
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
85

34
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
44

7.
84

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

85
57

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

64
7.

05
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
86

21
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
68

.7
9

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

86
21

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

1,
63

5.
28

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

86
21

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

1,
51

3.
77

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

86
21

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

1,
60

5.
02

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

85
70

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

1,
16

3.
45

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

85
70

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

70
7.

17
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
85

57
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
80

8.
97

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

85
57

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

1,
66

9.
26

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

85
57

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

1,
57

8.
28

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

85
57

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

7.
00

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

85
57

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

87
6.

73
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
85

34
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
85

6.
59

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

85
32

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

1,
19

6.
61

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

85
32

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

1,
43

2.
85

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

85
32

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

67
.1

2
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
85

32
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
13

2.
80

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

13

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024

Check Register Continued

Page 53 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

N
DO

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

85
32

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

1,
00

8.
05

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

84
86

02
/0

2/
20

24
EF

T
AL

SC
O

39
5.

41
Fa

cil
iti

es
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

84
86

02
/0

2/
20

24
EF

T
AL

SC
O

2.
60

Fa
cil

iti
es

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
16

.9
0

Fl
ee

t
Go

lf
Eq

ui
pm

en
t M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

62
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
(2

69
.5

5)
Fl

ee
t

Go
lf

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

85
47

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

(6
3.

82
)

Fl
ee

t
Go

lf
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

48
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

AT
CO

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l
1,

23
6.

25
Fl

ee
t

Go
lf

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

86
17

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
St

ot
zE

qu
ip

m
en

t
30

4.
11

Fl
ee

t
Go

lf
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
84

96
02

/0
2/

20
24

EF
T

St
ot

zE
qu

ip
m

en
t

37
3.

12
Fl

ee
t

Go
lf

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

85
40

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
In

fin
iso

ur
ce

,I
nc

.D
BA

IS
ol

ve
d

Be
ne

fit
Se

rv
ice

s
52

2.
75

Pe
rs

on
ne

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
Hu

m
an

Re
so

ur
ce

s
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

15
.0

0
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Hy
at

tS
ho

p
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

15
.0

0
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Hy
at

tS
ho

p
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

15
.0

0
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Hy
at

tS
ho

p
85

42
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

15
.0

0
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Hy
at

tS
ho

p
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
54

.9
6

Fi
na

nc
ia

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
Se

rv
ice

s
85

71
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
48

.9
9

Fi
na

nc
ia

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
Se

rv
ice

s
85

71
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
9.

89
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

85
62

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

18
8.

35
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

85
62

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

37
.6

5
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

85
47

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

(3
9.

00
)

Fi
na

nc
ia

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
Se

rv
ice

s
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
7.

75
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

85
47

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

7.
87

Fi
na

nc
ia

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
Se

rv
ice

s
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
17

.9
8

Fi
na

nc
ia

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
Se

rv
ice

s
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
12

.9
9

Fi
na

nc
ia

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
Se

rv
ice

s
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
(1

3.
00

)
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

85
35

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

49
9.

99
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

85
35

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

11
.6

9
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

85
35

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

76
.4

4
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

85
35

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

(7
56

.6
0)

Fi
na

nc
ia

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
Se

rv
ice

s
85

35
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
(2

6.
00

)
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

29
9.

98
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

59
9.

96
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

67
9.

96
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

20
6.

99
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

15
5.

96
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

49
.1

9
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

12
.9

9
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

8.
99

Fi
na

nc
ia

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
Se

rv
ice

s
85

97
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

De
ll

M
ar

ke
tin

g
LP

C/
O

De
ll

US
A

L.
P.

9,
51

3.
91

Fi
na

nc
ia

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
Se

rv
ice

s
85

06
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

De
ll

M
ar

ke
tin

g,
L.

P.
(s

of
tw

ar
e

w
as

AS
AP

)
25

7.
39

Fi
na

nc
ia

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
Se

rv
ice

s
85

74
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

De
ll

M
ar

ke
tin

g,
L.

P.
(s

of
tw

ar
e

w
as

AS
AP

)
7,

67
6.

51
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

14

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024

Check Register Continued

Page 54 of 257



15

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024 

Check Register Continued

CH
EC

K
NU

M
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
NA

M
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

85
62

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

36
.4

9
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Lif
tO

pe
ra

tio
ns

85
47

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

(4
91

.7
6)

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Lif

tO
pe

ra
tio

ns
85

35
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
13

9.
80

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Lif

tO
pe

ra
tio

ns
85

35
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
12

9.
98

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Lif

tO
pe

ra
tio

ns
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
26

0.
30

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Lif

tO
pe

ra
tio

ns
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
54

.3
4

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Lif

tO
pe

ra
tio

ns
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
16

.8
5

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Lif

tO
pe

ra
tio

ns
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
15

.4
9

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Lif

tO
pe

ra
tio

ns
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
(9

7.
37

)
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Lif
tO

pe
ra

tio
ns

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

88
.9

7
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Lif
tO

pe
ra

tio
ns

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

(2
70

.4
0)

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Lif

tO
pe

ra
tio

ns
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
30

7.
43

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
M

ar
ke

tin
g

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

25
.0

0
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

M
ar

ke
tin

g
85

23
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Da
vi

d
Cu

m
m

in
gs

50
0.

00
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

M
ar

ke
tin

g
85

98
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Do
m

in
ic

M
or

el
li

50
0.

00
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

M
ar

ke
tin

g
85

09
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

Gi
lb

er
tR

Ga
us

50
0.

00
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

M
ar

ke
tin

g
85

77
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Ha
lo

Br
an

de
d

So
lu

tio
ns

,I
NC

1,
15

0.
00

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
M

ar
ke

tin
g

85
29

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
St

er
lin

g
Va

lle
y

Sy
st

em
sD

ba
:In

nt
op

ia
1,

77
4.

00
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

M
ar

ke
tin

g
86

00
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

EX
LM

ed
ia

1,
18

3.
92

Fa
cil

iti
es

M
ar

ke
tin

g
85

62
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
34

.8
6

Be
ac

h
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
85

62
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
52

.0
9

Be
ac

h
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
22

.4
9

Be
ac

h
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
32

.8
3

Be
ac

h
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
32

1.
99

Be
ac

h
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
84

90
02

/0
2/

20
24

EF
T

He
ro

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lL
LC

3,
42

6.
70

Be
ac

h
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
86

17
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

St
ot

zE
qu

ip
m

en
t

1,
47

4.
85

Be
ac

h
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
85

62
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
25

.6
5

Pa
rk

s
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
18

1.
00

Pa
rk

s
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
85

35
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
74

.9
9

Pa
rk

s
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
66

.5
0

Pa
rk

s
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
32

1.
98

Pa
rk

s
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
85

08
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

Fi
rs

tC
ho

ice
Se

rv
ice

s
18

2.
70

Pa
rk

s
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
86

02
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Fi
rs

tC
ho

ice
Se

rv
ice

s
80

.9
0

Pa
rk

s
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
85

52
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Fi
rs

tC
ho

ice
Se

rv
ice

s
22

4.
80

Pa
rk

s
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
85

26
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

88
7.

06
Pa

rk
s

Pa
rk

Se
rv

ice
s

85
83

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Pa

cif
ic

St
at

es
Co

m
m

un
ica

tio
ns

of
Ne

va
da

, I
nc

.
13

0.
20

Pa
rk

s
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
85

83
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Pa
cif

ic
St

at
es

Co
m

m
un

ica
tio

ns
of

Ne
va

da
,I

nc
.

13
0.

20
Pa

rk
s

Pa
rk

Se
rv

ice
s

86
17

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
St

ot
zE

qu
ip

m
en

t
1,

47
4.

84
Pa

rk
s

Pa
rk

Se
rv

ice
s

86
20

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Ta

ho
e

Su
pp

ly
Co

m
pa

ny
LL

C
17

5.
14

Pa
rk

s
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
85

90
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Ta
ho

e
Su

pp
ly

Co
m

pa
ny

LL
C

24
6.

75
Pa

rk
s

Pa
rk

Se
rv

ice
s

85
44

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
St

ra
ig

ht
Do

w
n

En
te

rp
ris

es
21

.4
1

Ch
am

pi
on

sh
ip

Co
ur

se
Pr

o
Sh

op

Page 55 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

85
62

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

63
.4

0
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Pr
op

er
ty

,P
ar

ki
ng

&
Tr

an
sp

or
t

85
35

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

15
.9

8
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Pr
op

er
ty

,P
ar

ki
ng

&
Tr

an
sp

or
t

85
35

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

9.
99

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Pr

op
er

ty
,P

ar
ki

ng
&

Tr
an

sp
or

t
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
29

6.
94

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Pr

op
er

ty
,P

ar
ki

ng
&

Tr
an

sp
or

t
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
12

5.
85

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Pr

op
er

ty
,P

ar
ki

ng
&

Tr
an

sp
or

t
85

04
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

CC
Cl

ea
ni

ng
Se

rv
ice

,L
LC

10
,6

95
.0

0
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Pr
op

er
ty

,P
ar

ki
ng

&
Tr

an
sp

or
t

85
56

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Ta

ho
e

Su
pp

ly
Co

m
pa

ny
LL

C
1,

31
0.

01
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Pr
op

er
ty

,P
ar

ki
ng

&
Tr

an
sp

or
t

85
90

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Ta

ho
e

Su
pp

ly
Co

m
pa

ny
LL

C
(6

66
.3

0)
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Pr
op

er
ty

,P
ar

ki
ng

&
Tr

an
sp

or
t

85
90

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Ta

ho
e

Su
pp

ly
Co

m
pa

ny
LL

C
2,

98
2.

31
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Pr
op

er
ty

,P
ar

ki
ng

&
Tr

an
sp

or
t

85
90

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Ta

ho
e

Su
pp

ly
Co

m
pa

ny
LL

C
99

.8
5

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Pr

op
er

ty
,P

ar
ki

ng
&

Tr
an

sp
or

t
85

56
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Ta
ho

e
Su

pp
ly

Co
m

pa
ny

LL
C

68
.1

8
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Pr
op

er
ty

,P
ar

ki
ng

&
Tr

an
sp

or
t

85
35

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

(6
9.

99
)

Se
w

er
Pu

m
pi

ng
85

91
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Th
un

de
rb

ird
Co

m
m

un
ica

tio
ns

4,
78

5.
00

Se
w

er
Pu

m
pi

ng
85

15
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

Th
un

de
rb

ird
Co

m
m

un
ica

tio
ns

3,
21

9.
69

W
at

er
Pu

m
pi

ng
85

91
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Th
un

de
rb

ird
Co

m
m

un
ica

tio
ns

4,
78

5.
00

W
at

er
Pu

m
pi

ng
85

00
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

AL
SC

O
50

.3
2

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Re
cC

en
te

rO
pe

ra
tio

ns
84

86
02

/0
2/

20
24

EF
T

AL
SC

O
22

8.
78

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Re
cC

en
te

rO
pe

ra
tio

ns
85

62
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
71

.7
3

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Re
cC

en
te

rO
pe

ra
tio

ns
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
7.

59
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Re

cC
en

te
rO

pe
ra

tio
ns

85
47

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

78
.3

2
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Re

cC
en

te
rO

pe
ra

tio
ns

85
47

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

17
5.

11
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Re

cC
en

te
rO

pe
ra

tio
ns

85
04

02
/0

6/
20

24
EF

T
CC

Cl
ea

ni
ng

Se
rv

ice
,L

LC
6,

20
0.

00
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Re

cC
en

te
rO

pe
ra

tio
ns

86
13

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Ra

le
y'

s
22

.0
8

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Re
cC

en
te

rO
pe

ra
tio

ns
85

12
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

Si
er

ra
El

ec
tr

on
ics

55
.5

3
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Re

cC
en

te
rO

pe
ra

tio
ns

85
56

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Ta

ho
e

Su
pp

ly
Co

m
pa

ny
LL

C
59

2.
20

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Re
cC

en
te

rO
pe

ra
tio

ns
85

62
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
16

.9
8

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Re

nt
al

&
Re

pa
ir

Sh
op

84
87

02
/0

2/
20

24
EF

T
Am

er
Sp

or
ts

W
in

te
r&

O
ut

do
or

12
.0

0
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Re
nt

al
&

Re
pa

ir
Sh

op
85

20
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
er

Sp
or

ts
W

in
te

r&
O

ut
do

or
30

0.
19

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Re

nt
al

&
Re

pa
ir

Sh
op

85
63

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
Am

er
Sp

or
ts

W
in

te
r&

O
ut

do
or

12
.0

0
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Re
nt

al
&

Re
pa

ir
Sh

op
85

95
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Am
er

Sp
or

ts
W

in
te

r&
O

ut
do

or
45

,0
00

.0
0

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Re

nt
al

&
Re

pa
ir

Sh
op

85
20

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

er
Sp

or
ts

W
in

te
r&

O
ut

do
or

1,
06

5.
93

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Re

nt
al

&
Re

pa
ir

Sh
op

85
20

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

er
Sp

or
ts

W
in

te
r&

O
ut

do
or

2,
02

0.
78

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Re

nt
al

&
Re

pa
ir

Sh
op

86
24

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
W

in
te

rs
te

ig
er

,I
nc

.
1,

30
4.

41
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Re
nt

al
&

Re
pa

ir
Sh

op
86

13
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Ra
le

y'
s

93
.1

9
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Pr
og

ra
m

s
Se

ni
or

s
85

85
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Re
no

Ta
ho

e
Ai

rp
or

tA
ut

ho
rit

y
48

.0
0

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Pr

og
ra

m
s

Se
ni

or
s

85
62

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

82
.9

1
Se

w
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
85

73
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Ca
sh

m
an

Eq
ui

pm
en

tC
om

pa
ny

2,
82

9.
33

Se
w

er
Sh

ar
ed

Ex
pe

ns
es

85
73

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Ca

sh
m

an
Eq

ui
pm

en
tC

om
pa

ny
2,

82
9.

33
Se

w
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
85

73
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Ca
sh

m
an

Eq
ui

pm
en

tC
om

pa
ny

2,
82

9.
33

Se
w

er
Sh

ar
ed

Ex
pe

ns
es

85
73

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Ca

sh
m

an
Eq

ui
pm

en
tC

om
pa

ny
2,

82
9.

33
Se

w
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
86

08
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

M
ot

io
n

an
d

Fl
ow

Co
nt

ro
lP

ro
du

ct
sI

nc
90

2.
19

Se
w

er
Sh

ar
ed

Ex
pe

ns
es

16

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024

Check Register Continued

Page 56 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

N
AM

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

85
62

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

41
.0

5
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
85

62
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
19

.6
5

W
at

er
Sh

ar
ed

Ex
pe

ns
es

85
47

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

69
.6

0
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
23

3.
23

W
at

er
Sh

ar
ed

Ex
pe

ns
es

85
35

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

15
6.

49
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
85

73
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Ca
sh

m
an

Eq
ui

pm
en

tC
om

pa
ny

2,
82

9.
33

W
at

er
Sh

ar
ed

Ex
pe

ns
es

85
73

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Ca

sh
m

an
Eq

ui
pm

en
tC

om
pa

ny
2,

82
9.

32
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
85

73
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Ca
sh

m
an

Eq
ui

pm
en

tC
om

pa
ny

2,
82

9.
33

W
at

er
Sh

ar
ed

Ex
pe

ns
es

85
73

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Ca

sh
m

an
Eq

ui
pm

en
tC

om
pa

ny
2,

82
9.

32
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
85

05
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

Da
ta

Pr
in

tS
er

vi
ce

s,
LL

C
27

2.
55

W
at

er
Sh

ar
ed

Ex
pe

ns
es

85
22

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Da

ta
Pr

in
tS

er
vi

ce
s,

LL
C

1,
18

8.
45

W
at

er
Sh

ar
ed

Ex
pe

ns
es

85
22

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Da

ta
Pr

in
tS

er
vi

ce
s,

LL
C

77
5.

72
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
85

75
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

DO
W

L,
LL

C
67

3.
75

W
at

er
Sh

ar
ed

Ex
pe

ns
es

85
99

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
DO

W
L,

LL
C

62
,7

85
.0

0
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
85

68
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

M
R

Co
py

In
c

12
4.

33
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
85

84
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Q
ua

di
en

tL
ea

sin
g

US
A,

In
c

69
.1

5
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
86

13
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Ra
le

y'
s

11
9.

93
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
86

13
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Ra
le

y'
s

11
.9

4
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
85

12
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

Si
er

ra
El

ec
tr

on
ics

59
.2

6
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
83

.8
6

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Sk

i&
Sn

ow
bo

ar
d

Sc
h

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

84
.1

5
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Sk
i&

Sn
ow

bo
ar

d
Sc

h
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
26

0.
46

Fl
ee

t
Sk

iE
qu

ip
m

en
tM

ai
nt

85
35

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

25
1.

49
Fl

ee
t

Sk
iE

qu
ip

m
en

tM
ai

nt
85

35
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
32

.9
0

Fl
ee

t
Sk

iE
qu

ip
m

en
tM

ai
nt

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

(3
9.

80
)

Fl
ee

t
Sk

iE
qu

ip
m

en
tM

ai
nt

86
14

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Re

no
Cy

cle
s&

Ge
ar

73
6.

91
Fl

ee
t

Sk
iE

qu
ip

m
en

tM
ai

nt
86

14
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Re
no

Cy
cle

s&
Ge

ar
48

7.
36

Fl
ee

t
Sk

iE
qu

ip
m

en
tM

ai
nt

86
14

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Re

no
Cy

cle
s&

Ge
ar

45
0.

48
Fl

ee
t

Sk
iE

qu
ip

m
en

tM
ai

nt
86

14
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Re
no

Cy
cle

s&
Ge

ar
34

2.
73

Fl
ee

t
Sk

iE
qu

ip
m

en
tM

ai
nt

86
14

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Re

no
Cy

cle
s&

Ge
ar

36
5.

45
Fl

ee
t

Sk
iE

qu
ip

m
en

tM
ai

nt
86

14
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Re
no

Cy
cle

s&
Ge

ar
12

1.
54

Fl
ee

t
Sk

iE
qu

ip
m

en
tM

ai
nt

85
28

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Si

lv
er

St
at

e
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l

93
5.

33
Fl

ee
t

Sk
iE

qu
ip

m
en

tM
ai

nt
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
95

.9
6

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Sk

iP
at

ro
l

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

21
.9

5
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Sk
iP

at
ro

l
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
86

.5
2

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Sk

iP
at

ro
l

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

38
.2

1
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Sk
iP

at
ro

l
85

27
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

No
rM

ed
13

9.
24

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Sk

iP
at

ro
l

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

18
2.

96
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Sl
op

e
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
53

.6
8

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Sl

op
e

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

19
5.

55
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Sl
op

e
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
89

.7
8

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Sl

op
e

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

17

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024

Check Register Continued

Page 57 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

N
AM

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

24
1.

29
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Sl
op

e
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

19
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
87

3.
52

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Sl

op
e

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

85
73

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Ca

sh
m

an
Eq

ui
pm

en
tC

om
pa

ny
5,

65
8.

66
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Sl
op

e
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
85

73
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Ca
sh

m
an

Eq
ui

pm
en

tC
om

pa
ny

5,
65

8.
66

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Sl

op
e

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

86
01

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Fa

ll
Lin

e
Co

rp
75

8.
00

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Sl

op
e

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

85
14

02
/0

6/
20

24
EF

T
Te

ch
no

Al
pi

n
US

A,
In

c
89

0.
85

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Sl

op
e

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

85
41

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
M

AD
O

NN
A

DU
NB

AR
12

5.
00

So
lid

W
as

te
So

lid
W

as
te

85
68

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
M

R
Co

py
In

c
62

.1
7

So
lid

W
as

te
So

lid
W

as
te

85
94

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
AH

EA
D

/K
at

e
Lo

rd
,L

LC
3,

11
4.

18
Te

nn
is

Te
nn

is
Se

rv
ice

s
85

83
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Pa
cif

ic
St

at
es

Co
m

m
un

ica
tio

ns
of

Ne
va

da
,I

nc
.

13
0.

24
Te

nn
is

Te
nn

is
Se

rv
ice

s
85

83
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Pa
cif

ic
St

at
es

Co
m

m
un

ica
tio

ns
of

Ne
va

da
,I

nc
.

13
0.

24
Te

nn
is

Te
nn

is
Se

rv
ice

s
84

90
02

/0
2/

20
24

EF
T

He
ro

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lL
LC

24
9.

75
Se

w
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

85
10

02
/0

6/
20

24
EF

T
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
Ch

ev
ro

n
Au

to
Ca

re
&

Ti
re

Ce
nt

er
75

.8
4

Se
w

er
Tr

an
sm

iss
io

n
86

16
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Si
lv

er
St

at
e

La
w

LL
C

50
3.

12
Se

w
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

85
62

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

69
.9

9
W

at
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

85
47

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

69
.9

8
W

at
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

85
47

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

17
9.

02
W

at
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

85
47

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

21
.5

0
W

at
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

85
35

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

27
2.

48
W

at
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

84
91

02
/0

2/
20

24
EF

T
Sh

an
no

n
M

ar
ie

Sa
lsb

y
13

.5
0

W
at

er
Tr

an
sm

iss
io

n
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
(1

8.
91

)
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
(2

2.
73

)
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
75

.0
6

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

85
47

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

45
.6

2
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
85

35
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
64

.5
0

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

85
35

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

14
7.

23
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
85

35
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
(2

4.
99

)
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
85

35
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
11

1.
56

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

85
19

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

36
.2

6
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
84

88
02

/0
2/

20
24

EF
T

Be
nt

ly
Fa

m
ily

LL
C

49
7.

42
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
85

72
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Be
nt

ly
Fa

m
ily

LL
C

31
9.

34
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
85

96
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Be
nt

ly
Fa

m
ily

LL
C

38
9.

34
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
85

72
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Be
nt

ly
Fa

m
ily

LL
C

33
3.

90
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
85

92
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

HD
Su

pp
ly

,I
NC

1,
01

2.
15

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

85
92

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
HD

Su
pp

ly
,I

NC
1,

34
1.

11
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
86

06
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Ja
co

bs
En

gi
ne

er
in

g
Gr

ou
p

In
c

4,
80

8.
04

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

86
13

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Ra

le
y'

s
3.

58
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
86

13
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Ra
le

y'
s

30
.9

7
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
86

13
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Ra
le

y'
s

40
.8

8
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
85

13
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

So
le

ni
sL

LC
5,

63
3.

40
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
85

31
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Ta
ho

e
Su

pp
ly

Co
m

pa
ny

LL
C

90
.7

9
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t

18

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024 

Check Register Continued

Page 58 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

85
90

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Ta

ho
e

Su
pp

ly
Co

m
pa

ny
LL

C
13

3.
12

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

85
93

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
W

es
te

rn
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
lL

ab
or

at
or

y
56

9.
50

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

86
23

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
W

es
te

rn
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
lL

ab
or

at
or

y
68

1.
10

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

85
45

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
W

es
te

rn
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
lL

ab
or

at
or

y
18

1.
79

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

85
18

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Ai

rg
as

In
c

59
.3

8
W

at
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
(2

2.
72

)
W

at
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
85

47
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
45

.6
2

W
at

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

85
35

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

11
1.

56
W

at
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
86

06
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Ja
co

bs
En

gi
ne

er
in

g
Gr

ou
p

In
c

4,
80

8.
04

W
at

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

86
07

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
M

at
he

so
n

Tr
iG

as
,I

nc
46

7.
80

W
at

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

86
07

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
M

at
he

so
n

Tr
iG

as
,I

nc
94

.6
5

W
at

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

85
45

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
W

es
te

rn
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
lL

ab
or

at
or

y
98

6.
20

W
at

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

85
45

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
W

es
te

rn
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
lL

ab
or

at
or

y
14

5.
50

W
at

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

85
62

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

32
.2

8
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

62
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
(3

0.
00

)
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

62
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

Am
az

on
Ca

pi
ta

lS
er

vi
ce

s,
IN

C
95

.0
4

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
35

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Am

az
on

Ca
pi

ta
lS

er
vi

ce
s,

IN
C

73
.4

4
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

36
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Ca
pi

ta
lB

ev
er

ag
e,

In
c.

92
0.

92
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

36
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Ca
pi

ta
lB

ev
er

ag
e,

In
c.

(2
21

.0
8)

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
36

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Ca

pi
ta

lB
ev

er
ag

e,
In

c.
1,

10
2.

52
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

36
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Ca
pi

ta
lB

ev
er

ag
e,

In
c.

43
7.

87
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

36
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Ca
pi

ta
lB

ev
er

ag
e,

In
c.

(3
50

.0
0)

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
36

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Ca

pi
ta

lB
ev

er
ag

e,
In

c.
1,

30
9.

57
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

36
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Ca
pi

ta
lB

ev
er

ag
e,

In
c.

49
4.

07
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

07
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

Fa
rm

er
Br

os
.C

o
71

6.
16

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
39

02
/1

3/
20

24
EF

T
Fa

rm
er

Br
os

.C
o

3,
07

9.
16

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
66

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
Fa

rm
er

Br
os

.C
o

1,
15

1.
40

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
07

02
/0

6/
20

24
EF

T
Fa

rm
er

Br
os

.C
o

84
6.

12
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

07
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

Fa
rm

er
Br

os
.C

o
70

7.
60

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
25

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Ha

rv
ey

Jo
hn

so
n

37
2.

40
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

11
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

L&
C

Co
ok

Sp
ec

ia
lty

Fo
od

s,
In

c.
87

9.
98

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
67

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
L&

C
Co

ok
Sp

ec
ia

lty
Fo

od
s,

In
c.

16
9.

54
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

67
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

L&
C

Co
ok

Sp
ec

ia
lty

Fo
od

s,
In

c.
12

9.
65

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
67

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
L&

C
Co

ok
Sp

ec
ia

lty
Fo

od
s,

In
c.

11
4.

54
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

67
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

L&
C

Co
ok

Sp
ec

ia
lty

Fo
od

s,
In

c.
(2

22
.0

0)
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

67
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

L&
C

Co
ok

Sp
ec

ia
lty

Fo
od

s,
In

c.
26

0.
93

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
67

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
L&

C
Co

ok
Sp

ec
ia

lty
Fo

od
s,

In
c.

10
3.

84
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

11
02

/0
6/

20
24

EF
T

L&
C

Co
ok

Sp
ec

ia
lty

Fo
od

s,
In

c.
1,

15
6.

59
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
84

92
02

/0
2/

20
24

EF
T

Lu
m

os
&

As
so

cia
te

s,I
nc

.
5,

00
0.

00
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
84

93
02

/0
2/

20
24

EF
T

Ne
w

W
es

tD
ist

rib
ut

in
g,

In
c.

94
7.

85
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

43
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

Ne
w

W
es

tD
ist

rib
ut

in
g,

In
c.

77
8.

05
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed

19

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024

Check Register Continued

Page 59 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

85
82

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Ne

w
W

es
tD

ist
rib

ut
in

g,
In

c.
3,

71
5.

15
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

10
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Ne
w

W
es

tD
ist

rib
ut

in
g,

In
c.

24
4.

00
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

10
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Ne
w

W
es

tD
ist

rib
ut

in
g,

In
c.

2,
11

5.
60

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

86
10

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Ne

w
W

es
tD

ist
rib

ut
in

g,
In

c.
26

0.
00

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

86
10

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Ne

w
W

es
tD

ist
rib

ut
in

g,
In

c.
52

8.
00

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
82

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Ne

w
W

es
tD

ist
rib

ut
in

g,
In

c.
54

2.
50

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

84
93

02
/0

2/
20

24
EF

T
Ne

w
W

es
tD

ist
rib

ut
in

g,
In

c.
25

0.
00

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

84
93

02
/0

2/
20

24
EF

T
Ne

w
W

es
tD

ist
rib

ut
in

g,
In

c.
2,

29
5.

45
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
84

93
02

/0
2/

20
24

EF
T

Ne
w

W
es

tD
ist

rib
ut

in
g,

In
c.

34
1.

00
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

12
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Pr
od

uc
e

Pl
us

34
1.

25
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

13
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Ra
le

y'
s

14
4.

96
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

13
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Ra
le

y'
s

44
.7

0
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

87
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Sh
au

n
Ri

le
y

51
0.

40
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

33
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
36

9.
36

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
53

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

1,
45

1.
88

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
69

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

1,
27

2.
27

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

86
15

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

52
5.

21
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

15
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
1,

52
1.

94
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

15
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
1,

43
3.

86
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

15
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
2,

65
3.

09
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

15
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
1,

22
2.

54
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

69
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
1,

95
0.

20
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

69
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
34

8.
60

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
69

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

34
2.

16
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

53
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
49

7.
20

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
53

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

1,
06

3.
24

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
53

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

84
4.

52
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

33
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
1,

10
0.

14
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

33
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
1,

27
8.

12
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

33
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
79

7.
45

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
33

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

94
6.

04
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

44
02

/1
3/

20
24

EF
T

St
ra

ig
ht

Do
w

n
En

te
rp

ris
es

1,
13

8.
90

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
88

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Sw

ire
Co

ca
Co

la
US

A
2,

40
7.

62
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

18
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Sw
ire

Co
ca

Co
la

US
A

62
5.

00
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

18
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Sw
ire

Co
ca

Co
la

US
A

3,
95

1.
54

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
88

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Sw

ire
Co

ca
Co

la
US

A
2,

18
1.

02
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

88
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Sw
ire

Co
ca

Co
la

US
A

(2
37

.0
0)

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

86
19

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Sy

sc
o

Fo
od

Se
rv

ice
so

fS
ac

ra
m

en
to

73
6.

92
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

19
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Sy
sc

o
Fo

od
Se

rv
ice

so
fS

ac
ra

m
en

to
92

2.
72

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

86
19

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Sy

sc
o

Fo
od

Se
rv

ice
so

fS
ac

ra
m

en
to

65
8.

18
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

19
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Sy
sc

o
Fo

od
Se

rv
ice

so
fS

ac
ra

m
en

to
37

4.
88

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

20

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024

Check Register Continued

Page 60 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

86
19

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
Sy

sc
o

Fo
od

Se
rv

ice
so

fS
ac

ra
m

en
to

70
9.

02
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

19
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

Sy
sc

o
Fo

od
Se

rv
ice

so
fS

ac
ra

m
en

to
57

1.
60

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
89

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Sy

sc
o

Fo
od

Se
rv

ice
so

fS
ac

ra
m

en
to

36
0.

32
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

89
02

/2
2/

20
24

EF
T

Sy
sc

o
Fo

od
Se

rv
ice

so
fS

ac
ra

m
en

to
93

0.
22

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
89

02
/2

2/
20

24
EF

T
Sy

sc
o

Fo
od

Se
rv

ice
so

fS
ac

ra
m

en
to

53
6.

34
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
84

97
02

/0
2/

20
24

EF
T

Th
om

as
Pe

tr
ol

eu
m

,L
LC

7,
12

4.
62

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

84
97

02
/0

2/
20

24
EF

T
Th

om
as

Pe
tr

ol
eu

m
,L

LC
5,

45
9.

16
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

32
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
53

.8
2

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
70

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

18
.7

4
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

21
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
11

,9
32

.6
1

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

86
21

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

11
,4

49
.8

8
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

21
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
37

5.
50

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

86
21

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

1,
27

2.
48

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

86
21

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

13
,1

04
.2

0
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

70
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
15

3.
41

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
70

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

80
.7

0
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

70
02

/2
0/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
15

6.
53

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
70

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

7,
16

7.
89

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
70

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

1,
24

7.
25

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
70

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

4,
87

3.
28

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
70

02
/2

0/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

(1
89

.4
0)

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
57

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

6,
16

3.
95

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
57

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

54
1.

96
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

57
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
4,

77
1.

57
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

57
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
10

,9
60

.4
8

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
57

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

24
6.

70
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

57
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
6,

52
5.

51
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

57
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
(2

3.
41

)
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

57
02

/1
5/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
48

.2
2

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
57

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

1,
54

8.
31

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
57

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

5,
25

2.
42

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
57

02
/1

5/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

11
3.

40
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

34
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
4,

86
8.

13
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

34
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
(1

13
.4

0)
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

34
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
69

.8
6

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
34

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

9,
30

2.
57

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
32

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

80
.7

6
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

32
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
5,

90
1.

82
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

32
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
19

3.
50

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
32

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

11
,2

63
.2

0
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

32
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
2,

62
9.

45
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed

21

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024

Check Register Continued

Page 61 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

85
32

02
/0

9/
20

24
EF

T
US

Fo
od

se
rv

ice
,I

nc
.

75
.6

3
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
85

32
02

/0
9/

20
24

EF
T

US
Fo

od
se

rv
ice

,I
nc

.
4,

83
2.

04
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
84

98
02

/0
2/

20
24

EF
T

W
ag

eW
or

ks
,I

NC
23

8.
59

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
17

02
/0

6/
20

24
EF

T
W

ag
eW

or
ks

,I
NC

25
1.

05
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

22
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

W
ag

eW
or

ks
,I

NC
20

0.
00

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

86
22

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
W

ag
eW

or
ks

,I
NC

57
.0

8
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

22
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

W
ag

eW
or

ks
,I

NC
42

3.
00

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

86
22

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
W

ag
eW

or
ks

,I
NC

15
.7

6
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

22
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

W
ag

eW
or

ks
,I

NC
20

.0
0

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

86
22

02
/2

8/
20

24
EF

T
W

ag
eW

or
ks

,I
NC

20
.0

0
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
86

22
02

/2
8/

20
24

EF
T

W
ag

eW
or

ks
,I

NC
26

.8
3

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

85
17

02
/0

6/
20

24
EF

T
W

ag
eW

or
ks

,I
NC

25
.2

0
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
84

98
02

/0
2/

20
24

EF
T

W
ag

eW
or

ks
,I

NC
7.

39
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
84

98
02

/0
2/

20
24

EF
T

W
ag

eW
or

ks
,I

NC
63

2.
50

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

84
98

02
/0

2/
20

24
EF

T
W

ag
eW

or
ks

,I
NC

2,
02

5.
17

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

84
98

02
/0

2/
20

24
EF

T
W

ag
eW

or
ks

,I
NC

20
.0

0
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
84

98
02

/0
2/

20
24

EF
T

W
ag

eW
or

ks
,I

NC
20

0.
00

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

84
98

02
/0

2/
20

24
EF

T
W

ag
eW

or
ks

,I
NC

31
.8

4
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
61

1,
74

7.
96

To
ta

lE
FT

11
82

15
51

02
/0

7/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Xe

ro
xC

or
po

ra
tio

n
29

2.
45

Ge
ne

ra
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

11
82

15
52

02
/0

7/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Xe

ro
xC

or
po

ra
tio

n
30

9.
79

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

11
82

16
85

02
/0

5/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Br

ea
kt

hr
u

Be
ve

ra
ge

NV
Re

no
,L

LC
5.

00
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

11
82

17
35

02
/0

6/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Co

br
a

PU
M

A
Go

lf,
IN

C
9.

74
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Pr
o

Sh
op

11
82

16
85

02
/0

5/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Br

ea
kt

hr
u

Be
ve

ra
ge

NV
Re

no
,L

LC
99

2.
00

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

16
85

02
/0

5/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Br

ea
kt

hr
u

Be
ve

ra
ge

NV
Re

no
,L

LC
14

4.
00

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

16
85

02
/0

5/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Br

ea
kt

hr
u

Be
ve

ra
ge

NV
Re

no
,L

LC
48

.2
6

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

17
34

02
/0

6/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Co

br
a

PU
M

A
Go

lf,
IN

C
(5

63
.5

0)
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
17

35
02

/0
6/

20
24

M
AN

UA
L

Co
br

a
PU

M
A

Go
lf,

IN
C

56
.0

0
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
17

35
02

/0
6/

20
24

M
AN

UA
L

Co
br

a
PU

M
A

Go
lf,

IN
C

50
7.

50
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
16

81
02

/0
5/

20
24

M
AN

UA
L

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
36

0.
00

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

16
82

02
/0

5/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

1,
95

3.
32

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

16
83

02
/0

5/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

1,
50

6.
60

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

16
84

02
/0

5/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

2,
14

6.
20

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

16
90

02
/0

1/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

34
7.

75
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
16

91
02

/0
1/

20
24

M
AN

UA
L

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
2,

01
5.

40
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
16

92
02

/0
1/

20
24

M
AN

UA
L

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
1,

20
0.

00
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
16

93
02

/0
1/

20
24

M
AN

UA
L

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
92

6.
76

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

16
94

02
/0

1/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

2,
58

2.
40

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

16
95

02
/0

1/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

1,
68

0.
52

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

22

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024

Check Register Continued

Page 62 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

11
82

16
96

02
/0

1/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

1,
76

0.
10

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

16
97

02
/0

1/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

1,
19

8.
81

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

16
98

02
/0

1/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

76
7.

28
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
16

99
02

/0
1/

20
24

M
AN

UA
L

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
1,

33
0.

35
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
17

00
02

/0
1/

20
24

M
AN

UA
L

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
60

0.
00

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

17
01

02
/0

1/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

12
0.

00
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
17

02
02

/0
1/

20
24

M
AN

UA
L

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
1,

98
3.

30
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
17

03
02

/0
1/

20
24

M
AN

UA
L

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
63

9.
47

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

17
04

02
/0

1/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

1,
33

4.
84

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

17
05

02
/0

1/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

1,
57

8.
25

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

17
06

02
/0

1/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

58
0.

89
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
17

07
02

/0
1/

20
24

M
AN

UA
L

Si
er

ra
M

ea
tC

o
45

9.
80

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

17
08

02
/0

1/
20

24
M

AN
UA

L
Si

er
ra

M
ea

tC
o

52
5.

25
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
29

,3
98

.5
3

To
ta

lM
an

ua
lC

he
ck

s

11
82

18
96

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
St

at
e

of
Ne

va
da

De
pt

of
Pu

bl
ic

Sa
fe

ty
40

.2
5

Fi
na

nc
ia

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
Ac

co
un

tin
g

11
82

18
96

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
St

at
e

of
Ne

va
da

De
pt

of
Pu

bl
ic

Sa
fe

ty
40

.2
5

Fi
na

nc
ia

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
Ac

co
un

tin
g

11
82

19
10

02
/2

0/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
NV

En
er

gy
1,

52
9.

01
Be

ac
h

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
17

79
02

/0
7/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

So
ut

hw
es

tG
as

75
2.

61
Be

ac
h

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
17

79
02

/0
7/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

So
ut

hw
es

tG
as

70
2.

45
Be

ac
h

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
18

99
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

US
Re

la
y

Co
rp

99
.0

0
Be

ac
h

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
19

32
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

AT
&

T
73

4.
40

Ch
am

pi
on

sh
ip

Co
ur

se
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

11
82

18
83

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
AT

&
T

(U
Ve

rs
e)

12
8.

56
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
19

07
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Di
re

cT
V,

In
c.

11
8.

75
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
19

23
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

O
ffi

ce
De

po
t

17
9.

23
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
17

79
02

/0
7/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

So
ut

hw
es

tG
as

1,
77

5.
59

Ch
am

pi
on

sh
ip

Co
ur

se
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

11
82

19
32

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
AT

&
T

73
4.

40
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
19

51
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

O
ffi

ce
De

po
t

78
.0

2
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
19

23
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

O
ffi

ce
De

po
t

28
6.

77
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
18

88
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

O
ffi

ce
De

po
t

55
.9

8
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
18

88
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

O
ffi

ce
De

po
t

44
.9

8
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
18

88
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

O
ffi

ce
De

po
t

33
.6

7
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
19

53
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Re
no

Di
sp

os
al

/D
ba

:W
as

te
M

an
ag

em
en

to
fN

ev
ad

a
1,

58
6.

88
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
19

32
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

AT
&

T
73

4.
40

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

11
82

18
67

02
/1

3/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ch

ar
te

rC
om

m
un

ica
tio

ns
Ho

ld
in

gs
,L

LC
13

1.
84

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

11
82

18
67

02
/1

3/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ch

ar
te

rC
om

m
un

ica
tio

ns
Ho

ld
in

gs
,L

LC
13

1.
84

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

11
82

19
10

02
/2

0/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
NV

En
er

gy
1,

06
7.

34
Ge

ne
ra

lG
ov

er
nm

en
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
19

23
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

O
ffi

ce
De

po
t

1,
43

3.
84

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

11
82

16
76

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ra

in
bo

w
Pr

in
tin

g
&

O
ffi

ce
Su

pp
lie

s,
In

c.
70

0.
00

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

11
82

18
61

02
/0

9/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Sh

re
d

IT
US

A
10

9.
00

Ge
ne

ra
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

23

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024

Check Register Continued

Page 63 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

N
AM

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

11
82

17
79

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
So

ut
hw

es
tG

as
1,

10
1.

93
Ge

ne
ra

lG
ov

er
nm

en
t

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
19

10
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

NV
En

er
gy

14
0.

53
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Co
ur

se
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

11
82

17
79

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
So

ut
hw

es
tG

as
63

6.
72

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Co

ur
se

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
19

32
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

AT
&

T
73

4.
40

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
19

23
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

O
ffi

ce
De

po
t

89
6.

15
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

11
82

17
53

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Pe

tt
y

Ca
sh

Re
cC

en
te

r
21

.9
2

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
16

76
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ra
in

bo
w

Pr
in

tin
g

&
O

ffi
ce

Su
pp

lie
s,

In
c.

99
.9

8
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

11
82

19
55

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Sh

re
d

IT
US

A
36

.0
0

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
17

79
02

/0
7/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

So
ut

hw
es

tG
as

1,
14

7.
83

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
19

32
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

AT
&

T
36

7.
19

Se
w

er
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

11
82

17
79

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
So

ut
hw

es
tG

as
3,

16
6.

79
Se

w
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
18

79
02

/1
3/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ta
ho

e
Ea

rt
h

Da
y

Fo
un

da
tio

n
50

0.
00

TW
SA

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
19

13
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ta
ho

e
Ea

rt
h

Da
y

Fo
un

da
tio

n
1,

00
0.

00
TW

SA
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

11
82

19
33

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ba

dg
er

M
et

er
,I

nc
.

15
,3

50
.4

7
W

at
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
19

17
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Fe
rg

us
on

W
at

er
w

or
ks

14
23

11
,5

74
.0

0
W

at
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
19

17
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Fe
rg

us
on

W
at

er
w

or
ks

14
23

48
,5

52
.0

0
W

at
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
19

10
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

NV
En

er
gy

1,
96

9.
73

W
at

er
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tio
n

11
82

17
79

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
So

ut
hw

es
tG

as
3,

16
6.

79
W

at
er

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n
11

82
18

58
02

/0
9/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Le
e

Jo
se

ph
,I

nc
.

56
.9

5
Be

ac
h

Aq
ua

tic
s

11
82

18
58

02
/0

9/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Le

e
Jo

se
ph

,I
nc

.
1,

59
5.

00
Be

ac
h

Aq
ua

tic
s

11
82

17
51

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

39
.0

7
Be

ac
h

Aq
ua

tic
s

11
82

18
58

02
/0

9/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Le

e
Jo

se
ph

,I
nc

.
22

8.
30

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Aq
ua

tic
s

11
82

18
58

02
/0

9/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Le

e
Jo

se
ph

,I
nc

.
1,

18
2.

00
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Aq

ua
tic

s
11

82
19

45
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ea

ga
n

Ba
lle

w
22

7.
80

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Aq
ua

tic
s

11
82

18
96

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
St

at
e

of
Ne

va
da

De
pt

of
Pu

bl
ic

Sa
fe

ty
20

1.
25

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Aq
ua

tic
s

11
82

19
10

02
/2

0/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
NV

En
er

gy
75

.8
8

Fa
cil

iti
es

As
pe

n
Gr

ov
e

11
82

17
79

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
So

ut
hw

es
tG

as
23

1.
90

Fa
cil

iti
es

As
pe

n
Gr

ov
e

11
82

18
93

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Sh

el
by

Lid
di

co
et

83
.7

5
Be

ac
h

Be
ac

h
Ho

st
s

11
82

18
96

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
St

at
e

of
Ne

va
da

De
pt

of
Pu

bl
ic

Sa
fe

ty
40

.2
5

Be
ac

h
Be

ac
h

Ho
st

s
11

82
19

58
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Th
e

Bi
ke

sm
ith

30
0.

00
Be

ac
h

Be
ac

h
Ho

st
s

11
82

18
98

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ti

ffa
ny

St
ra

ng
io

36
2.

47
Be

ac
h

Be
ac

h
Ho

st
s

11
82

19
03

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Za

ch
ar

y
M

cC
re

ig
ht

41
6.

07
Be

ac
h

Be
ac

h
Ho

st
s

11
82

19
05

02
/2

0/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Al

pi
ne

Se
pt

ic
an

d
Pl

um
bi

ng
,I

nc
.

30
0.

00
Bu

ild
in

gs
Bu

ild
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

c
11

82
18

52
02

/0
9/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

An
ix

te
rI

nc
63

4.
49

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
c

11
82

19
31

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
An

ix
te

rI
nc

1,
31

9.
24

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
c

11
82

19
31

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
An

ix
te

rI
nc

64
3.

29
Bu

ild
in

gs
Bu

ild
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

c
11

82
18

52
02

/0
9/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

An
ix

te
rI

nc
2,

02
8.

99
Bu

ild
in

gs
Bu

ild
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

c
11

82
18

52
02

/0
9/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

An
ix

te
rI

nc
44

9.
40

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
c

11
82

18
52

02
/0

9/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
An

ix
te

rI
nc

60
4.

89
Bu

ild
in

gs
Bu

ild
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

c
11

82
18

56
02

/0
9/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ec
ol

ab
In

c.
12

8.
53

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
c

11
82

17
49

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Gr

ai
ng

er
,I

nc
.

53
5.

97
Bu

ild
in

gs
Bu

ild
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

c

24

1 111111111111111 1 1 1 1 1

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024

Check Register Continued

Page 64 of 257



CH
EC

K
NU

M
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
NA

M
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

11
82

19
20

02
/2

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Gr

ai
ng

er
,I

nc
.

11
3.

70
Bu

ild
in

gs
Bu

ild
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
19

40
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Gr
ai

ng
er

,I
nc

.
86

.2
8

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

19
20

02
/2

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Gr

ai
ng

er
,I

nc
.

24
4.

22
Bu

ild
in

gs
Bu

ild
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
19

20
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Gr
ai

ng
er

,I
nc

.
12

9.
39

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

19
20

02
/2

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Gr

ai
ng

er
,I

nc
.

10
6.

44
Bu

ild
in

gs
Bu

ild
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
19

20
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Gr
ai

ng
er

,I
nc

.
19

5.
12

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

19
20

02
/2

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Gr

ai
ng

er
,I

nc
.

40
6.

56
Bu

ild
in

gs
Bu

ild
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
19

20
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Gr
ai

ng
er

,I
nc

.
22

0.
34

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

19
20

02
/2

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Gr

ai
ng

er
,I

nc
.

12
1.

66
Bu

ild
in

gs
Bu

ild
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
17

51
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
38

3.
95

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

9.
34

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

7.
64

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

59
1.

53
Bu

ild
in

gs
Bu

ild
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
82

.4
1

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

17
76

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Na

pa
Si

er
ra

Ne
va

da
,I

nc
13

.9
9

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

17
76

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Na

pa
Si

er
ra

Ne
va

da
,I

nc
16

.5
7

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

19
25

02
/2

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
PD

M
St

ee
lS

er
vi

ce
Ce

nt
er

s,
In

c
38

1.
85

Bu
ild

in
gs

Bu
ild

in
g

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

19
29

02
/2

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
W

es
te

rn
Tu

rf
&

Ha
rd

sc
ap

es
1,

79
9.

40
Bu

ild
in

gs
Bu

ild
in

g
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
19

10
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

NV
En

er
gy

2,
27

1.
09

Fa
cil

iti
es

Ch
at

ea
u

11
82

17
79

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
So

ut
hw

es
tG

as
1,

77
5.

59
Fa

cil
iti

es
Ch

at
ea

u
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
15

7.
80

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ch

ild
Sk

iC
en

te
r

11
82

19
51

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
O

ffi
ce

De
po

t
14

4.
44

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ch

ild
Sk

iC
en

te
r

11
82

18
96

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
St

at
e

of
Ne

va
da

De
pt

of
Pu

bl
ic

Sa
fe

ty
40

2.
50

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ch

ild
Sk

iC
en

te
r

11
82

18
96

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
St

at
e

of
Ne

va
da

De
pt

of
Pu

bl
ic

Sa
fe

ty
12

0.
75

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ch

ild
Sk

iC
en

te
r

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

13
.5

9
W

at
er

Co
m

pl
ia

nc
e

Se
rv

cie
s

11
82

19
52

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ra

in
bo

w
Pr

in
tin

g
&

O
ffi

ce
Su

pp
lie

s,
In

c.
79

.9
9

W
at

er
Co

m
pl

ia
nc

e
Se

rv
cie

s
11

82
18

78
02

/1
3/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

St
at

e
of

Ne
va

da
ND

EP
/B

W
PC

11
0.

00
W

at
er

Co
m

pl
ia

nc
e

Se
rv

cie
s

11
82

18
64

02
/0

9/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Te

st
w

av
e

LL
C

30
0.

00
W

at
er

Co
m

pl
ia

nc
e

Se
rv

cie
s

11
82

19
08

02
/2

0/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Gr

as
sR

oo
ts

Tu
rf

Su
pp

ly
LL

C
2,

00
3.

66
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
17

51
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
51

.2
5

Ch
am

pi
on

sh
ip

Co
ur

se
Co

ur
se

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

17
51

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

59
6.

89
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
65

.9
6

Ch
am

pi
on

sh
ip

Co
ur

se
Co

ur
se

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

54
6.

53
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
19

10
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

NV
En

er
gy

85
7.

56
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
16

77
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Si
er

ra
Pa

cif
ic

Tu
rf

Su
pp

ly
,I

nc
.

31
3.

12
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
17

79
02

/0
7/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

So
ut

hw
es

tG
as

1,
19

1.
12

Ch
am

pi
on

sh
ip

Co
ur

se
Co

ur
se

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

19
60

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Tu

rf
St

ar
,I

nc
.

1,
33

3.
04

Ch
am

pi
on

sh
ip

Co
ur

se
Co

ur
se

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

19
08

02
/2

0/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Gr

as
sR

oo
ts

Tu
rf

Su
pp

ly
LL

C
85

8.
72

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
17

51
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
24

.6
1

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
23

8.
95

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
23

.7
7

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce

25

11 111111111111111111111111111111111111 11 11 11 11 11

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024

Check Register Continued

Page 65 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

11
82

19
10

02
/2

0/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
NV

En
er

gy
27

6.
36

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Co

ur
se

Co
ur

se
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
17

79
02

/0
7/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

So
ut

hw
es

tG
as

81
0.

81
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Co
ur

se
Co

ur
se

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

16
75

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Pr

id
e

M
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g
2,

11
0.

00
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Co
ur

se
Co

ur
se

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
11

82
19

48
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

NC
GA

1,
19

6.
00

Ch
am

pi
on

sh
ip

Co
ur

se
Co

ur
se

Se
rv

ice
s

11
82

19
48

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
NC

GA
34

3.
00

Ch
am

pi
on

sh
ip

Co
ur

se
Co

ur
se

Se
rv

ice
s

11
82

18
72

02
/1

3/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Jo

rd
an

's
Tr

uc
k

an
d

Tr
ai

le
rE

qu
ip

m
en

t
2,

81
8.

71
Fl

ee
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

16
72

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ich
ae

lH
oh

lM
ot

or
Co

m
pa

ny
42

.8
5

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
18

59
02

/0
9/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ich

ae
lH

oh
lM

ot
or

Co
m

pa
ny

71
.3

9
Fl

ee
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

18
73

02
/1

3/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ich
ae

lH
oh

lM
ot

or
Co

m
pa

ny
20

3.
98

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
19

22
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ich

ae
lH

oh
lM

ot
or

Co
m

pa
ny

98
9.

62
Fl

ee
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

19
46

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ich
ae

lH
oh

lM
ot

or
Co

m
pa

ny
15

0.
32

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
16

72
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ich

ae
lH

oh
lM

ot
or

Co
m

pa
ny

43
.1

8
Fl

ee
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

16
72

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ich
ae

lH
oh

lM
ot

or
Co

m
pa

ny
86

.6
0

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
18

57
02

/0
9/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
id

w
es

tM
ot

or
Su

pp
ly

Co
.I

nc
.

88
9.

96
Fl

ee
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

17
51

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

32
6.

17
Fl

ee
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

17
51

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

87
.6

2
Fl

ee
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

18
1.

61
Fl

ee
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

17
76

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Na

pa
Si

er
ra

Ne
va

da
,I

nc
2,

13
3.

66
Fl

ee
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

16
74

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
O

'R
ei

lly
Au

to
m

ot
iv

e
St

or
es

,I
nc

48
8.

00
Fl

ee
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

19
50

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
O

'R
ei

lly
Au

to
m

ot
iv

e
St

or
es

,I
nc

71
.3

3
Fl

ee
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

19
50

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
O

'R
ei

lly
Au

to
m

ot
iv

e
St

or
es

,I
nc

(2
3.

23
)

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
19

50
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

O
'R

ei
lly

Au
to

m
ot

iv
e

St
or

es
,I

nc
82

.4
0

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
19

24
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Pa
pe

M
ac

hi
ne

ry
36

.7
5

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
19

24
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Pa
pe

M
ac

hi
ne

ry
1,

09
6.

14
Fl

ee
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

18
94

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Sm

ith
Po

w
er

Pr
od

uc
ts

,I
nc

14
1.

78
Fl

ee
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

19
56

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Sn

ap
on

In
du

st
ria

l
29

.7
1

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
19

60
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Tu
rf

St
ar

,I
nc

.
28

4.
89

Fl
ee

t
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
19

10
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

NV
En

er
gy

80
8.

00
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tR
ep

ai
r

11
82

17
79

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
So

ut
hw

es
tG

as
3,

37
7.

52
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Eq
ui

pm
en

tR
ep

ai
r

11
82

18
96

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
St

at
e

of
Ne

va
da

De
pt

of
Pu

bl
ic

Sa
fe

ty
80

.5
0

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Fi
tn

es
s

11
82

17
79

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
So

ut
hw

es
tG

as
50

9.
22

Be
ac

h
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

11
82

18
96

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
St

at
e

of
Ne

va
da

De
pt

of
Pu

bl
ic

Sa
fe

ty
40

.2
5

Ch
am

pi
on

sh
ip

Co
ur

se
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

11
82

18
69

02
/1

3/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iE
d

Fo
un

da
tio

n
71

1.
91

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

11
82

17
47

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Di

re
cT

V,
In

c.
71

8.
77

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

58
.6

2
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
11

82
18

75
02

/1
3/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

No
rt

he
rn

Ne
va

da
Pu

bl
ic

He
al

th
34

4.
00

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

11
82

18
74

02
/1

3/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
No

rt
he

rn
Ne

va
da

Pu
bl

ic
He

al
th

34
4.

00
Sn

ow
fla

ke
Lo

dg
e

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
11

82
17

79
02

/0
7/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

So
ut

hw
es

t G
as

44
0.

08
Sn

ow
fla

ke
Lo

dg
e

Fo
od

&
Be

ve
ra

ge
11

82
17

79
02

/0
7/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

So
ut

hw
es

tG
as

2,
52

6.
86

Sn
ow

fla
ke

Lo
dg

e
Fo

od
&

Be
ve

ra
ge

11
82

18
90

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Pe

tt
y

Ca
sh

Ad
m

in
1,

35
0.

00
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e

Ge
ne

ra
lM

an
ag

er
11

82
19

19
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

GP
S

In
du

st
rie

s,
LL

C
80

0.
00

Ch
am

pi
on

sh
ip

Co
ur

se
Go

lf
Ca

rt
s

26

1 1 1 1 1 1 1

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024

Check Register Continued

Page 66 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

11
82

19
10

02
/2

0/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
NV

En
er

gy
29

1.
45

Ch
am

pi
on

sh
ip

Co
ur

se
Go

lf
Ca

rt
s

11
82

17
79

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
So

ut
hw

es
tG

as
72

5.
66

Ch
am

pi
on

sh
ip

Co
ur

se
Go

lf
Ca

rt
s

11
82

18
54

02
/0

9/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Cl

ub
Ca

r,
LL

C
18

.8
6

Fl
ee

t
Go

lf
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
19

15
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Cl
ub

Ca
r,

LL
C

22
3.

62
Fl

ee
t

Go
lf

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

19
35

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Cl

ub
Ca

r,
LL

C
18

.9
2

Fl
ee

t
Go

lf
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
19

18
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Fl
ye

rs
En

er
gy

LL
C

1,
13

9.
42

Fl
ee

t
Go

lf
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
19

37
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Fl
ye

rs
En

er
gy

LL
C

53
7.

97
Fl

ee
t

Go
lf

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

13
.5

9
Fl

ee
t

Go
lf

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

17
76

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Na

pa
Si

er
ra

Ne
va

da
,I

nc
11

8.
52

Fl
ee

t
Go

lf
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
16

80
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Tu
rf

St
ar

,I
nc

.
1,

22
5.

54
Fl

ee
t

Go
lf

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

19
60

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Tu

rf
St

ar
,I

nc
.

1,
67

2.
29

Fl
ee

t
Go

lf
Eq

ui
pm

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
19

60
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Tu
rf

St
ar

,I
nc

.
(9

49
.4

1)
Fl

ee
t

Go
lf

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

19
60

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Tu

rf
St

ar
,I

nc
.

99
6.

88
Fl

ee
t

Go
lf

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

19
60

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Tu

rf
St

ar
,I

nc
.

37
8.

36
Fl

ee
t

Go
lf

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

19
60

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Tu

rf
St

ar
,I

nc
.

97
4.

26
Fl

ee
t

Go
lf

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

19
60

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Tu

rf
St

ar
,I

nc
.

82
2.

49
Fl

ee
t

Go
lf

Eq
ui

pm
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

18
96

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
St

at
e

of
Ne

va
da

De
pt

of
Pu

bl
ic

Sa
fe

ty
40

.2
5

Pe
rs

on
ne

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
Hu

m
an

Re
so

ur
ce

s
11

82
19

09
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Hy
at

tR
eg

en
cy

La
ke

Ta
ho

e
6,

13
2.

70
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Hy
at

tS
ho

p
11

82
18

67
02

/1
3/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ch
ar

te
rC

om
m

un
ica

tio
ns

Ho
ld

in
gs

,L
LC

21
9.

84
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

11
82

18
67

02
/1

3/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ch

ar
te

rC
om

m
un

ica
tio

ns
Ho

ld
in

gs
,L

LC
21

9.
84

Fi
na

nc
ia

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
Se

rv
ice

s
11

82
17

51
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
10

.5
0

Fi
na

nc
ia

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
Se

rv
ice

s
11

82
17

51
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
7.

64
Fi

na
nc

ia
lA

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Se
rv

ice
s

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

4.
84

Fi
na

nc
ia

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
Se

rv
ice

s
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
35

.6
7

Fi
na

nc
ia

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
Se

rv
ice

s
11

82
17

51
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
17

9.
40

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Lif

tO
pe

ra
tio

ns
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
63

1.
44

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Lif

tO
pe

ra
tio

ns
11

82
19

10
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

NV
En

er
gy

9,
45

0.
00

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Lif

tO
pe

ra
tio

ns
11

82
19

26
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Si
lv

er
Bl

u
M

ed
ia

LL
C

DB
A

Si
lv

er
Bl

u
Si

gn
s&

M
ed

ia
14

0.
00

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Lif

tO
pe

ra
tio

ns
11

82
18

97
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Te
cC

ol
or

Cr
af

t
1,

36
8.

00
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

M
ar

ke
tin

g
11

82
18

99
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

US
Re

la
y

Co
rp

90
0.

00
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

M
ar

ke
tin

g
11

82
16

66
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ar
am

ar
k

18
4.

08
Be

ac
h

Pa
rk

Se
rv

ice
s

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

37
9.

99
Be

ac
h

Pa
rk

Se
rv

ice
s

11
82

17
51

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

57
9.

88
Be

ac
h

Pa
rk

Se
rv

ice
s

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

11
8.

94
Be

ac
h

Pa
rk

Se
rv

ice
s

11
82

19
23

02
/2

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
O

ffi
ce

De
po

t
35

.8
5

Be
ac

h
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
11

82
18

92
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Re
no

Di
sp

os
al

/D
ba

:W
as

te
M

an
ag

em
en

to
fN

ev
ad

a
81

3.
34

Be
ac

h
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
11

82
17

51
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
76

3.
37

Pa
rk

s
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
41

9.
98

Pa
rk

s
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
83

1.
24

Pa
rk

s
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
11

82
19

10
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

NV
En

er
gy

1,
59

8.
03

Pa
rk

s
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
11

82
19

23
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

O
ffi

ce
De

po
t

53
.1

9
Pa

rk
s

Pa
rk

Se
rv

ice
s

27

1 111111111111111111111 1 1 1 1 1 1

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024

Check Register Continued

Page 67 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

11
82

19
51

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
O

ffi
ce

De
po

t
24

.1
5

Pa
rk

s
Pa

rk
Se

rv
ice

s
11

82
19

23
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

O
ffi

ce
De

po
t

35
.8

5
Pa

rk
s

Pa
rk

Se
rv

ice
s

11
82

18
92

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Re

no
Di

sp
os

al
/D

ba
:W

as
te

M
an

ag
em

en
to

fN
ev

ad
a

46
5.

22
Pa

rk
s

Pa
rk

Se
rv

ice
s

11
82

19
30

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ac

us
hn

et
Co

m
pa

ny
70

.7
0

Ch
am

pi
on

sh
ip

Co
ur

se
Pr

o
Sh

op
11

82
19

30
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ac
us

hn
et

Co
m

pa
ny

10
.3

3
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Pr
o

Sh
op

11
82

18
68

02
/1

3/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Cl

ev
el

an
d

Go
lf/

SR
IX

O
N

42
.7

0
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Pr
o

Sh
op

11
82

19
38

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
GG

bl
ue

,L
LC

37
.0

2
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Pr
o

Sh
op

11
82

19
39

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
GG

bl
ue

,L
LC

37
.0

2
Ch

am
pi

on
sh

ip
Co

ur
se

Pr
o

Sh
op

11
82

17
51

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

84
.6

3
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Pr
op

er
ty

,P
ar

ki
ng

&
Tr

an
sp

or
t

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

58
6.

57
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Pr
op

er
ty

,P
ar

ki
ng

&
Tr

an
sp

or
t

11
82

19
10

02
/2

0/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
NV

En
er

gy
8,

40
8.

53
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Pr
op

er
ty

,P
ar

ki
ng

&
Tr

an
sp

or
t

11
82

18
92

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Re

no
Di

sp
os

al
/D

ba
:W

as
te

M
an

ag
em

en
to

fN
ev

ad
a

98
3.

32
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Pr
op

er
ty

,P
ar

ki
ng

&
Tr

an
sp

or
t

11
82

18
92

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Re

no
Di

sp
os

al
/D

ba
:W

as
te

M
an

ag
em

en
to

fN
ev

ad
a

1,
58

6.
88

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Pr

op
er

ty
,P

ar
ki

ng
&

Tr
an

sp
or

t
11

82
17

79
02

/0
7/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

So
ut

hw
es

tG
as

8,
67

7.
90

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Pr

op
er

ty
,P

ar
ki

ng
&

Tr
an

sp
or

t
11

82
18

96
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

St
at

e
of

Ne
va

da
De

pt
of

Pu
bl

ic
Sa

fe
ty

40
.2

5
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Pr
op

er
ty

,P
ar

ki
ng

&
Tr

an
sp

or
t

11
82

18
96

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
St

at
e

of
Ne

va
da

De
pt

of
Pu

bl
ic

Sa
fe

ty
40

.2
5

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Pr

op
er

ty
,P

ar
ki

ng
&

Tr
an

sp
or

t
11

82
17

48
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

FA
RR

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

CO
RP

Db
a:

Re
so

ur
ce

De
ve

lo
pm

en
tC

O
1,

58
0.

00
Se

w
er

Pu
m

pi
ng

11
82

18
71

02
/1

3/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ja

so
n

Pa
tt

er
so

n
40

.0
0

Se
w

er
Pu

m
pi

ng
11

82
17

51
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
43

.0
5

Se
w

er
Pu

m
pi

ng
11

82
17

51
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
10

.1
9

Se
w

er
Pu

m
pi

ng
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
67

.1
2

Se
w

er
Pu

m
pi

ng
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
11

8.
99

Se
w

er
Pu

m
pi

ng
11

82
17

76
02

/0
7/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Na
pa

Si
er

ra
Ne

va
da

,I
nc

10
0.

77
Se

w
er

Pu
m

pi
ng

11
82

19
10

02
/2

0/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
NV

En
er

gy
9,

29
8.

96
Se

w
er

Pu
m

pi
ng

11
82

17
79

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
So

ut
hw

es
tG

as
46

6.
72

Se
w

er
Pu

m
pi

ng
11

82
19

01
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

W
as

te
M

gm
tL

oc
kw

oo
d

(re
fu

se
)

60
5.

42
Se

w
er

Pu
m

pi
ng

11
82

19
02

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
W

es
te

rn
Ne

va
da

Su
pp

ly
1,

12
6.

44
Se

w
er

Pu
m

pi
ng

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

6.
99

W
at

er
Pu

m
pi

ng
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
54

.2
0

W
at

er
Pu

m
pi

ng
11

82
17

76
02

/0
7/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Na
pa

Si
er

ra
Ne

va
da

,I
nc

14
.5

6
W

at
er

Pu
m

pi
ng

11
82

19
10

02
/2

0/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
NV

En
er

gy
23

,9
17

.7
6

W
at

er
Pu

m
pi

ng
11

82
17

79
02

/0
7/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

So
ut

hw
es

tG
as

34
0.

95
W

at
er

Pu
m

pi
ng

11
82

18
81

02
/1

3/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
W

es
te

rn
Ne

va
da

Su
pp

ly
15

8.
80

W
at

er
Pu

m
pi

ng
11

82
18

87
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

No
rt

he
rn

Ne
va

da
Pu

bl
ic

He
al

th
45

3.
00

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Re
cC

en
te

rO
pe

ra
tio

ns
11

82
19

10
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

NV
En

er
gy

5,
62

2.
56

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Re
cC

en
te

r O
pe

ra
tio

ns
11

82
17

53
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Pe
tt

y
Ca

sh
Re

cC
en

te
r

14
8.

46
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Re

cC
en

te
rO

pe
ra

tio
ns

11
82

16
76

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ra

in
bo

w
Pr

in
tin

g
&

O
ffi

ce
Su

pp
lie

s,
In

c.
49

.9
9

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Ce

nt
er

Re
cC

en
te

rO
pe

ra
tio

ns
11

82
17

79
02

/0
7/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

So
ut

hw
es

tG
as

10
,3

30
.4

7
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
Re

cC
en

te
rO

pe
ra

tio
ns

11
82

19
36

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Fe

dE
xF

re
ig

ht
17

7.
00

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Re

nt
al

&
Re

pa
ir

Sh
op

11
82

17
51

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

12
1.

75
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Re
nt

al
&

Re
pa

ir
Sh

op
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
15

8.
22

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Re

nt
al

&
Re

pa
ir

Sh
op

28

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024 

Check Register Continued

Page 68 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

11
82

18
96

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
St

at
e

of
Ne

va
da

De
pt

of
Pu

bl
ic

Sa
fe

ty
36

2.
25

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Re

nt
al

&
Re

pa
ir

Sh
op

11
82

18
96

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
St

at
e

of
Ne

va
da

De
pt

of
Pu

bl
ic

Sa
fe

ty
40

.2
5

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Re

nt
al

&
Re

pa
ir

Sh
op

11
82

18
96

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
St

at
e

of
Ne

va
da

De
pt

of
Pu

bl
ic

Sa
fe

ty
40

.2
5

Fi
na

nc
ia

lA
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n
Ri

sk
M

an
ag

em
en

t
11

82
17

53
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Pe
tt

y
Ca

sh
Re

cC
en

te
r

17
5.

85
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Pr
og

ra
m

s
Se

ni
or

s
11

82
19

32
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

AT
&

T
36

7.
20

W
at

er
Sh

ar
ed

Ex
pe

ns
es

11
82

16
67

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ba

dg
er

M
et

er
,I

nc
.

13
5.

43
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
11

82
16

67
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ba
dg

er
M

et
er

,I
nc

.
13

5.
40

W
at

er
Sh

ar
ed

Ex
pe

ns
es

11
82

18
55

02
/0

9/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Da

ta
W

es
t,

A
Di

v
of

Ha
rr

is
Sy

st
em

sU
SA

18
0.

00
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
11

82
19

16
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Di
re

cT
V,

In
c.

20
6.

23
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
11

82
19

07
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Di
re

cT
V,

In
c.

20
0.

21
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
21

.2
4

W
at

er
Sh

ar
ed

Ex
pe

ns
es

11
82

17
76

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Na

pa
Si

er
ra

Ne
va

da
,I

nc
59

.9
9

W
at

er
Sh

ar
ed

Ex
pe

ns
es

11
82

19
23

02
/2

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
O

ffi
ce

De
po

t
71

6.
92

W
at

er
Sh

ar
ed

Ex
pe

ns
es

11
82

17
52

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Pe

tt
y

Ca
sh

PW
4.

83
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
11

82
19

12
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ro
es

se
lH

ei
di

10
.7

2
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
11

82
19

12
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ro
es

se
lH

ei
di

10
.4

8
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
11

82
19

55
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Sh
re

d
IT

US
A

36
.0

0
W

at
er

Sh
ar

ed
Ex

pe
ns

es
11

82
18

96
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

St
at

e
of

Ne
va

da
De

pt
of

Pu
bl

ic
Sa

fe
ty

92
5.

75
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Sk
i&

Sn
ow

bo
ar

d
Sc

ho
ol

11
82

18
96

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
St

at
e

of
Ne

va
da

De
pt

of
Pu

bl
ic

Sa
fe

ty
32

2.
00

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Sk

i&
Sn

ow
bo

ar
d

Sc
ho

ol
11

82
18

86
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ka
ss

bo
hr

er
Al

lT
er

ra
in

Ve
hi

cle
s,

In
c.

22
4.

64
Fl

ee
t

Sk
iE

qu
ip

m
en

t M
ai

nt
en

an
11

82
19

21
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ka
ss

bo
hr

er
Al

lT
er

ra
in

Ve
hi

cle
s,

In
c.

47
.6

2
Fl

ee
t

Sk
iE

qu
ip

m
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
11

82
19

21
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ka
ss

bo
hr

er
Al

lT
er

ra
in

Ve
hi

cle
s,

In
c.

37
.7

2
Fl

ee
t

Sk
iE

qu
ip

m
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
11

82
19

21
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ka
ss

bo
hr

er
Al

lT
er

ra
in

Ve
hi

cle
s,

In
c.

1,
08

6.
94

Fl
ee

t
Sk

iE
qu

ip
m

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

11
82

19
21

02
/2

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ka

ss
bo

hr
er

Al
lT

er
ra

in
Ve

hi
cle

s,
In

c.
1,

59
6.

02
Fl

ee
t

Sk
iE

qu
ip

m
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
11

82
18

86
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ka
ss

bo
hr

er
Al

lT
er

ra
in

Ve
hi

cle
s,

In
c.

31
9.

11
Fl

ee
t

Sk
iE

qu
ip

m
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
11

82
18

86
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ka
ss

bo
hr

er
Al

lT
er

ra
in

Ve
hi

cle
s,

In
c.

84
1.

99
Fl

ee
t

Sk
iE

qu
ip

m
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
11

82
18

86
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ka
ss

bo
hr

er
Al

lT
er

ra
in

Ve
hi

cle
s,

In
c.

23
0.

78
Fl

ee
t

Sk
iE

qu
ip

m
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
11

82
19

43
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
id

w
es

tM
ot

or
Su

pp
ly

Co
.I

nc
.

56
5.

33
Fl

ee
t

Sk
iE

qu
ip

m
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
11

82
17

51
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
36

.5
2

Fl
ee

t
Sk

iE
qu

ip
m

en
tM

ai
nt

en
an

11
82

17
51

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

84
.9

9
Fl

ee
t

Sk
iE

qu
ip

m
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
11

82
17

76
02

/0
7/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Na
pa

Si
er

ra
Ne

va
da

,I
nc

11
5.

61
Fl

ee
t

Sk
iE

qu
ip

m
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
11

82
16

78
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Sn
ap

on
In

du
st

ria
l

41
.8

5
Fl

ee
t

Sk
iE

qu
ip

m
en

tM
ai

nt
en

an
11

82
18

96
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

St
at

e
of

Ne
va

da
De

pt
of

Pu
bl

ic
Sa

fe
ty

24
1.

50
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Sk
iP

at
ro

l
11

82
18

96
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

St
at

e
of

Ne
va

da
De

pt
of

Pu
bl

ic
Sa

fe
ty

40
.2

5
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Sk
iP

at
ro

l
11

82
17

51
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
46

3.
15

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Sl

op
e

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

11
7.

07
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Sl
op

e
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
19

10
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

NV
En

er
gy

12
3,

12
0.

25
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Sl
op

e
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
11

82
17

78
02

/0
7/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Sn
ow

Ec
on

om
ics

,I
nc

.
65

4.
55

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Sl

op
e

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

18
95

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Sn

ow
M

ac
hi

ne
s,

In
c(

SM
I)

2,
00

3.
94

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Sl

op
e

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

12
7.

38
So

lid
W

as
te

So
lid

W
as

te
11

82
18

96
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

St
at

e
of

Ne
va

da
De

pt
of

Pu
bl

ic
Sa

fe
ty

28
1.

75
Re

cr
ea

tio
n

Pr
og

ra
m

s
Sp

or
ts

29

1 111111111111 1 1 1 1 1 1

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024

Check Register Continued

Page 69 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

11
82

18
96

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
St

at
e

of
Ne

va
da

De
pt

of
Pu

bl
ic

Sa
fe

ty
40

.2
5

Re
cr

ea
tio

n
Pr

og
ra

m
s

Sp
or

ts
11

82
17

51
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
6.

88
Se

w
er

Su
pp

ly
11

82
17

51
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
39

.0
7

Se
w

er
Su

pp
ly

11
82

19
10

02
/2

0/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
NV

En
er

gy
14

,2
99

.6
8

Se
w

er
Su

pp
ly

11
82

19
27

02
/2

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Sk

y
Fi

be
rN

et
w

or
ks

12
5.

00
Se

w
er

Su
pp

ly
11

82
19

10
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

NV
En

er
gy

46
0.

06
Te

nn
is

Te
nn

is
Se

rv
ice

s
11

82
17

53
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Pe
tt

y
Ca

sh
Re

cC
en

te
r

86
.0

9
Te

nn
is

Te
nn

is
Se

rv
ice

s
11

82
17

50
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Je
ffr

ey
Ba

ug
hm

an
13

.5
3

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ti

ck
et

O
ffi

ce
11

82
19

44
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Lo
om

is
Ho

ld
in

g
US

,I
nc

DB
A

Lo
om

is
Ar

m
or

ed
US

,I
nc

78
2.

32
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Ti
ck

et
O

ffi
ce

11
82

18
88

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
O

ffi
ce

De
po

t
81

.5
8

Di
am

on
d

Pe
ak

Sk
iR

es
or

t
Ti

ck
et

O
ffi

ce
11

82
18

96
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

St
at

e
of

Ne
va

da
De

pt
of

Pu
bl

ic
Sa

fe
ty

16
1.

00
Di

am
on

d
Pe

ak
Sk

iR
es

or
t

Ti
ck

et
O

ffi
ce

11
82

18
84

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ci

nd
er

lit
e

Tr
uc

ki
ng

Co
rp

24
.2

5
Se

w
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

11
82

19
20

02
/2

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Gr

ai
ng

er
,I

nc
.

77
.3

5
Se

w
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

11
82

17
51

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

11
2.

93
Se

w
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

41
.7

8
Se

w
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

11
82

18
84

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ci

nd
er

lit
e

Tr
uc

ki
ng

Co
rp

11
9.

14
W

at
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

11
82

16
68

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
F.

W
.C

ar
so

n
Co

.
49

7.
50

W
at

er
Tr

an
sm

iss
io

n
11

82
16

69
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Gr
ai

ng
er

,I
nc

.
76

.9
1

W
at

er
Tr

an
sm

iss
io

n
11

82
17

75
02

/0
7/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Jo
se

ph
Sc

ot
t

78
.6

0
W

at
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

11
82

18
57

02
/0

9/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

id
w

es
tM

ot
or

Su
pp

ly
Co

.I
nc

.
68

0.
00

W
at

er
Tr

an
sm

iss
io

n
11

82
17

51
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
67

7.
82

W
at

er
Tr

an
sm

iss
io

n
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
17

9.
21

W
at

er
Tr

an
sm

iss
io

n
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
5.

94
W

at
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

11
82

17
52

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Pe

tt
y

Ca
sh

PW
40

.0
0

W
at

er
Tr

an
sm

iss
io

n
11

82
17

52
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Pe
tt

y
Ca

sh
PW

60
.0

0
W

at
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

11
82

17
52

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Pe

tt
y

Ca
sh

PW
20

.0
0

W
at

er
Tr

an
sm

iss
io

n
11

82
17

52
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Pe
tt

y
Ca

sh
PW

20
.0

0
W

at
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

11
82

17
52

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Pe

tt
y

Ca
sh

PW
20

.0
0

W
at

er
Tr

an
sm

iss
io

n
11

82
17

52
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Pe
tt

y
Ca

sh
PW

40
.0

0
W

at
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

11
82

17
52

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Pe

tt
y

Ca
sh

PW
20

.0
0

W
at

er
Tr

an
sm

iss
io

n
11

82
17

52
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Pe
tt

y
Ca

sh
PW

60
.0

0
W

at
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

11
82

17
52

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Pe

tt
y

Ca
sh

PW
40

.0
0

W
at

er
Tr

an
sm

iss
io

n
11

82
17

52
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Pe
tt

y
Ca

sh
PW

20
.0

0
W

at
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

11
82

17
52

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Pe

tt
y

Ca
sh

PW
20

.0
0

W
at

er
Tr

an
sm

iss
io

n
11

82
17

52
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Pe
tt

y
Ca

sh
PW

20
.0

0
W

at
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

11
82

17
52

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Pe

tt
y

Ca
sh

PW
60

.0
0

W
at

er
Tr

an
sm

iss
io

n
11

82
18

76
02

/1
3/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ra
in

bo
w

Pr
in

tin
g

&
O

ffi
ce

Su
pp

lie
s,

In
c.

29
.9

9
W

at
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

11
82

17
77

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ro

be
rt

Fl
yn

n
19

9.
12

W
at

er
Tr

an
sm

iss
io

n
11

82
18

77
02

/1
3/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Sn
ap

on
In

du
st

ria
l

24
4.

26
W

at
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

11
82

18
81

02
/1

3/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
W

es
te

rn
Ne

va
da

Su
pp

ly
1,

82
0.

28
W

at
er

Tr
an

sm
iss

io
n

11
82

18
70

02
/1

3/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ha

ch
Co

.
14

2.
78

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

30

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024

Check Register Continued

Page 70 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

11
82

16
70

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ja

so
n

Pa
tt

er
so

n
40

.0
0

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

17
74

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ja

so
n

Pa
tt

er
so

n
20

.0
0

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

19
41

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ja

so
n

Pa
tt

er
so

n
40

.0
0

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

17
74

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ja

so
n

Pa
tt

er
so

n
20

.0
0

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

16
71

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Jo

hn
K

W
ill

ia
m

s
20

.0
0

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

19
42

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Jo

hn
K

W
ill

ia
m

s
30

.0
0

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

19
42

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Jo

hn
K

W
ill

ia
m

s
69

.0
0

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

19
42

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Jo

hn
K

W
ill

ia
m

s
90

.0
0

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

19
42

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Jo

hn
K

W
ill

ia
m

s
40

.0
0

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

16
71

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Jo

hn
K

W
ill

ia
m

s
20

.0
0

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

16
71

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Jo

hn
K

W
ill

ia
m

s
20

.0
0

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

16
71

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Jo

hn
K

W
ill

ia
m

s
40

.0
0

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

17
51

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

53
.7

2
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
11

82
17

51
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
72

.2
2

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

17
51

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

60
.2

7
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
11

82
17

51
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
21

.2
3

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

17
51

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

97
.1

3
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
11

82
17

51
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
79

.0
4

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

10
.1

7
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
19

1.
59

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

5.
94

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

22
.0

8
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
38

.1
9

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

19
47

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

SC
In

du
st

ria
lS

up
pl

y
Co

.
17

2.
90

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

19
49

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ne

va
da

Di
vi

sio
n

of
St

at
e

La
nd

s
2,

06
0.

00
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
11

82
19

10
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

NV
En

er
gy

12
,4

98
.6

8
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
11

82
18

76
02

/1
3/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ra
in

bo
w

Pr
in

tin
g

&
O

ffi
ce

Su
pp

lie
s,

In
c.

88
.8

6
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
11

82
18

91
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ra
in

bo
w

Pr
in

tin
g

&
O

ffi
ce

Su
pp

lie
s,

In
c.

99
.7

6
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
11

82
18

92
02

/1
5/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Re
no

Di
sp

os
al

/D
ba

:W
as

te
M

an
ag

em
en

to
fN

ev
ad

a
51

4.
05

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

19
54

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ro

be
rt

O
lse

n
40

.0
0

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

18
62

02
/0

9/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Si

gm
a

Al
dr

ich
In

c
22

0.
08

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

18
62

02
/0

9/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Si

gm
a

Al
dr

ich
In

c
43

5.
86

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

18
62

02
/0

9/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Si

gm
a

Al
dr

ich
In

c
24

0.
24

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

17
79

02
/0

7/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
So

ut
hw

es
tG

as
5,

87
0.

11
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
11

82
19

59
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ti
m

Ba
ue

r
60

.0
0

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

19
00

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
VW

R
In

te
rn

at
io

na
lL

LC
21

5.
58

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

18
80

02
/1

3/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
VW

R
In

te
rn

at
io

na
lL

LC
22

8.
02

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

18
65

02
/0

9/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
W

ES
CO

Di
st

rib
ut

io
n

IN
C

10
1.

03
Se

w
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
11

82
18

65
02

/0
9/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

W
ES

CO
Di

st
rib

ut
io

n
IN

C
93

1.
08

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

17
54

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
W

ill
ia

m
Ro

bb
in

s
40

.0
0

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

19
14

02
/2

0/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
W

ill
ia

m
Ro

bb
in

s
40

.0
0

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

31

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024

Check Register Continued

Page 71 of 257



CH
EC

K
N

UM
BE

R
CH

EC
K

DA
TE

CH
EC

K
TY

PE
VE

ND
O

R
N

AM
E

AM
O

UN
T

DE
PT

NA
M

E
DI

VI
SI

O
N

11
82

19
61

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
W

ill
ia

m
Ro

bb
in

s
40

.0
0

Se
w

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

17
51

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

14
2.

90
W

at
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
11

82
17

51
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
23

.7
7

W
at

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

17
51

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

28
.0

2
W

at
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
36

.4
7

W
at

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

16
73

02
/0

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
M

ou
nt

ai
n

Ha
rd

w
ar

e
an

d
Sp

or
ts

In
cli

ne
Vi

lla
ge

,I
NC

51
.2

3
W

at
er

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
11

82
16

73
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

M
ou

nt
ai

n
Ha

rd
w

ar
e

an
d

Sp
or

ts
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
,I

NC
32

.2
7

W
at

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

19
10

02
/2

0/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
NV

En
er

gy
22

,6
09

.5
5

W
at

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

17
52

02
/0

6/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Pe

tt
y

Ca
sh

PW
19

.5
1

W
at

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

18
76

02
/1

3/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ra

in
bo

w
Pr

in
tin

g
&

O
ffi

ce
Su

pp
lie

s,
In

c.
88

.8
5

W
at

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

18
62

02
/0

9/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Si

gm
a

Al
dr

ich
In

c
22

0.
08

W
at

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

18
62

02
/0

9/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Si

gm
a

Al
dr

ich
In

c
43

5.
86

W
at

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

18
62

02
/0

9/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Si

gm
a

Al
dr

ich
In

c
24

0.
24

W
at

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

18
80

02
/1

3/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
VW

R
In

te
rn

at
io

na
lL

LC
22

8.
03

W
at

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

19
00

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
VW

R
In

te
rn

at
io

na
lL

LC
21

5.
59

W
at

er
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

11
82

18
82

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ac

us
hn

et
Co

m
pa

ny
29

5.
96

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

19
30

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Ac

us
hn

et
Co

m
pa

ny
3,

23
7.

00
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
19

30
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Ac
us

hn
et

Co
m

pa
ny

24
4.

02
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
18

66
02

/1
3/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Br
ea

kt
hr

u
Be

ve
ra

ge
NV

Re
no

,L
LC

33
5.

90
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
19

06
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Br
ea

kt
hr

u
Be

ve
ra

ge
NV

Re
no

,L
LC

36
9.

30
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
18

66
02

/1
3/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Br
ea

kt
hr

u
Be

ve
ra

ge
NV

Re
no

,L
LC

1,
20

6.
55

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

18
53

02
/0

9/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
CA

St
at

e
Di

sb
ur

se
m

en
tU

ni
t

31
9.

38
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
19

34
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

CA
St

at
e

Di
sb

ur
se

m
en

tU
ni

t
31

9.
38

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

18
68

02
/1

3/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Cl

ev
el

an
d

Go
lf/

SR
IX

O
N

4,
27

0.
00

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

18
85

02
/1

5/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Fl

ye
rs

En
er

gy
LL

C
14

,2
06

.6
9

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

19
37

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
Fl

ye
rs

En
er

gy
LL

C
15

,3
61

.5
0

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

19
39

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
GG

bl
ue

,L
LC

2,
23

2.
00

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

19
38

02
/2

8/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
GG

bl
ue

,L
LC

1,
89

0.
00

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

19
10

02
/2

0/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
NV

En
er

gy
26

6.
74

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

18
60

02
/0

9/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
O

pe
ra

tin
g

En
g

Lo
ca

lU
ni

on
#3

(D
UE

S)
1,

65
6.

00
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
19

11
02

/2
0/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

O
pe

ra
tin

g
En

gi
ne

er
sT

ru
st

Fu
nd

10
,6

20
.5

3
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
17

53
02

/0
6/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Pe
tt

y
Ca

sh
Re

cC
en

te
r

61
.9

3
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
18

63
02

/0
9/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

St
at

e
Co

ll
&

Di
sb

Un
it

SC
AD

U
1,

18
7.

69
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
19

57
02

/2
8/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

St
at

e
Co

ll
&

Di
sb

Un
it

SC
AD

U
1,

18
7.

69
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
16

79
02

/0
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e

Ta
ho

e
13

2.
00

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

11
82

19
28

02
/2

2/
20

24
PR

IN
TE

D
TY

R
Sp

or
t,

In
c.

69
4.

76
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
11

82
19

28
02

/2
2/

20
24

PR
IN

TE
D

TY
R

Sp
or

t,
In

c.
62

.1
8

Un
cla

ss
ifi

ed
Un

cla
ss

ifi
ed

53
7,

61
7.

44
To

ta
lP

rin
te

d
Ch

ec
ks

1,
17

8,
76

3.
93

TO
TA

LE
FT

AN
D

CH
EC

KS

32

APPENDIX B FEBRUARY 2024

Check Register Continued

Page 72 of 257



33

APPENDIX C
PROCUREMENT

CARD TRANSACTIONS

Page 73 of 257



Ca
rd

ho
ld

er
 N

am
e

Am
ou

nt
Su

pp
lie

r
De

sc
rip

tio
n 

De
pt

Br
oo

ke
 S

m
ith

-L
a 

Fa
ta

1.
49

G
oo

gl
e 

*g
oo

gl
e 

St
or

ag
e

G
oo

gl
e 

Ph
ot

o 
st

or
ag

e 
up

gr
ad

e
Ev

en
ts

Fo
od

 A
nd

 B
ev

0.
22

Sc
re

en
clo

ud
 C

ar
d 

fe
es

Fe
es

 
F 

& 
B

Fo
od

 A
nd

 B
ev

0.
22

Sc
re

en
clo

ud
 C

ar
d 

fe
es

Fe
es

 
F 

& 
B

Fo
od

 A
nd

 B
ev

0.
45

Sc
re

en
clo

ud
 C

ar
d 

fe
es

Fe
es

 
F 

& 
B

Fo
od

 A
nd

 B
ev

0.
68

Sc
re

en
clo

ud
 C

ar
d 

fe
es

Fe
es

 
F 

& 
B

Fo
od

 A
nd

 B
ev

1.
55

Sc
re

en
clo

ud
 C

ar
d 

fe
es

Fe
es

 
F 

& 
B

Fo
od

 A
nd

 B
ev

20
.0

0
Sc

re
en

clo
ud

M
on

th
ly 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
n

F 
& 

B

Fo
od

 A
nd

 B
ev

20
.4

3
Ch

ef
st

or
e 

75
60

Fo
od

 fo
r r

es
al

e 
fo

r D
ia

m
on

d 
Pe

ak
F 

& 
B

Fo
od

 A
nd

 B
ev

22
.8

5
Sc

re
en

clo
ud

M
on

th
ly 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
n

F 
& 

B

Fo
od

 A
nd

 B
ev

27
.5

1
Th

e 
W

eb
st

au
ra

nt
 S

to
re

 In
c

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Su

pp
pl

y 
fo

r D
ia

m
on

d 
Pe

ak
 F

&B
 

F 
& 

B

Fo
od

 A
nd

 B
ev

45
.7

0
Sc

re
en

clo
ud

M
on

th
ly 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
n

F 
& 

B

Fo
od

 A
nd

 B
ev

68
.1

0
Th

e 
W

eb
st

au
ra

nt
 S

to
re

 In
c

Br
oo

m
/M

op
 R

ac
k 

fo
r D

ia
m

on
d 

Pe
ak

 K
itc

he
n

F 
& 

B

Fo
od

 A
nd

 B
ev

68
.5

5
Sc

re
en

clo
ud

M
on

th
ly 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
n

F 
& 

B

Fo
od

 A
nd

 B
ev

10
6.

09
Th

e 
W

eb
st

au
ra

nt
 S

to
re

 In
c

Sa
nd

wi
ch

 c
on

ta
in

er
s 

fo
r D

ia
m

on
d 

Pe
ak

F 
& 

B

Fo
od

 A
nd

 B
ev

15
4.

90
Sc

re
en

clo
ud

M
on

th
ly 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
n

F 
& 

B

Fo
od

 A
nd

 B
ev

20
9.

86
Th

e 
W

eb
st

au
ra

nt
 S

to
re

 In
c

Sa
la

d 
an

d 
Sa

nd
wi

ch
 c

on
ta

in
er

s 
fo

r D
ia

m
on

d 
Pe

ak
F 

& 
B

Fo
od

 A
nd

 B
ev

20
9.

95
Th

e 
W

eb
st

au
ra

nt
 S

to
re

 In
c

Pr
in

te
r p

ap
er

 fo
r D

ia
m

on
d 

Pe
ak

 F
&B

 
F 

& 
B

Fo
od

 A
nd

 B
ev

35
8.

67
Ch

ef
st

or
e 

75
20

Fo
od

 fo
r r

es
al

e 
fo

r D
ia

m
on

d 
Pe

ak
F 

& 
B

IV
G

ID
 F

in
an

ce
78

.6
3

G
ov

er
nm

en
t F

in
an

ce
 O

ffi
c

G
FO

A 
Ed

uc
at

io
na

l M
at

er
ia

ls 
Fi

na
nc

e

G
re

g 
M

er
rit

t
3,

11
8.

00
Sp

 F
lig

ht
sc

op
e 

G
ol

f
M

ev
o+

la
un

ch
  m

on
ito

r, 
flig

ht
 p

ro
 p

ac
ka

ge
, t

ru
e 

go
lf 

E6
 e

xp
an

de
d 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
n

G
ol

f

G
re

g 
M

er
rit

t
29

4.
95

Ca
rls

 P
la

ce
 L

lc
Si

m
ul

at
or

 S
cr

ee
n 

G
ol

f 
Je

ff 
Cl

ou
th

ie
r

14
7.

00
Tu

rfn
et

Su
bs

cr
ip

tio
n 

to
 T

ur
fn

et
 o

nl
in

e 
G

ol
f -

 G
ro

un
ds

Je
ff 

Cl
ou

th
ie

r
14

8.
00

Tu
rfn

et
Su

bs
cr

ip
tio

n 
to

 T
ur

fn
et

 o
nl

in
e 

G
ol

f -
 G

ro
un

ds

Je
ff 

Cl
ou

th
ie

r
24

6.
70

Lo
we

s 
#0

03
21

Sp
lit 

ra
il r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t m

at
er

ia
ls,

 w
oo

d 
fo

r O
B 

St
ak

es
, s

ho
ve

ls,
re

ba
r

G
ol

f -
 G

ro
un

ds

Je
ff 

Cl
ou

th
ie

r
48

2.
40

Lo
we

s 
#0

03
21

Sp
lit 

ra
il r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t m

at
er

ia
ls,

 w
oo

d 
fo

r O
B 

St
ak

es
, s

ho
ve

ls,
re

ba
r

G
ol

f -
 G

ro
un

ds

Je
ff 

Cl
ou

th
ie

r
82

8.
52

Cr
ow

ne
 P

la
za

 P
ho

en
ix

Ho
te

l r
oo

m
 fo

r G
ol

f I
nd

us
try

 S
ho

w 
in

 P
ho

en
ix

G
ol

f -
 G

ro
un

ds

Cu
rti

s 
Tr

uj
illo

19
.0

0
M

vr
 O

nl
in

e.
Co

m
An

nu
al

 D
M

V 
Pu

ll ,
 O

ut
 o

f S
ta

te
 D

M
V 

Pu
ll

HR

Cu
rti

s 
Tr

uj
illo

19
.1

0
M

vr
 O

nl
in

e.
Co

m
An

nu
al

 D
M

V 
Pu

ll ,
 O

ut
 o

f S
ta

te
 D

M
V 

Pu
ll

HR

34 

APPENDIX C FEBRUARY 2024

Procurement Card Transactions

Page 74 of 257



Ca
rd

ho
ld

er
 N

am
e

Am
ou

nt
Su

pp
lie

r
De

sc
rip

tio
n 

De
pt

Cu
rti

s 
Tr

uj
illo

22
.9

9
M

vr
 O

nl
in

e.
Co

m
An

nu
al

 D
M

V 
Pu

ll ,
 O

ut
 o

f S
ta

te
 D

M
V 

Pu
ll

HR

Cu
rti

s 
Tr

uj
illo

57
.9

0
G

ra
in

ge
r

30
 A

ED
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Ca
rd

s 
, r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t o

f A
ED

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Ca

rd
s 

fo
r t

he
 D

ist
ric

t 
HR

Li
sa

 H
oo

pe
s

10
0.

00
W

py
*e

da
wn

ED
AW

N-
St

at
e 

of
 th

e 
Ec

on
om

y 
No

rth
er

n 
NV

/E
co

no
m

ic 
Up

da
te

 L
un

ch
eo

n 
M

tg
HR

Cu
rti

s 
Tr

uj
illo

18
7.

22
En

er
sp

ec
t M

ed
ica

l S
ol

ut
i

AE
D 

Ba
ck

pa
ck

 u
se

d 
fo

r p
or

ta
bl

e 
AE

D
HR

Li
sa

 H
oo

pe
s

34
9.

00
Ih

ire
, L

lc
O

nl
in

e 
Jo

b 
Li

st
in

g 
-S

r A
cc

ou
nt

an
t 

HR

Li
sa

 H
oo

pe
s

49
9.

00
Zi

pr
ec

ru
ite

r, 
In

c.
O

nl
in

e 
M

ul
tip

le
 J

ob
 L

ist
in

g 
- S

r. 
Ac

co
un

ta
nt

   
   

   
 

HR

Li
sa

 H
oo

pe
s

49
9.

00
Zi

pr
ec

ru
ite

r, 
In

c.
O

nl
in

e 
M

ul
tip

le
 J

ob
 L

ist
in

g 
- S

r. 
Ac

co
un

ta
nt

 &
 P

ay
ro

ll G
en

er
al

ist
   

   
   

 
HR

Er
in

 F
eo

re
69

7.
25

Ef
ile

/F
or

m
st

ax
AC

A 
Fo

rm
s 

- t
ax

 fo
rm

s 
fo

r 1
09

5 
fili

ng
 , 

pu
rc

ha
se

 fo
r K

at
hy

 F
 

HR

Er
in

 F
eo

re
2,

29
5.

00
Ce

ng
ag

e 
Le

ar
ni

ng
, I

nc
.

G
ra

nt
 W

rit
in

g 
Co

ur
se

 , 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 fo

r K
at

hy
 F

 
HR

Ch
ris

 L
av

er
y

-1
.0

0
In

cli
ne

 V
illa

ge
 G

en
er

al
Ve

rm
on

t W
eb

st
or

e 
Te

st
 R

ef
un

d
IT

Ch
ris

 L
av

er
y

1.
00

In
cli

ne
 V

illa
ge

 G
en

er
al

Ve
rm

on
t W

eb
st

or
e 

Te
st

 T
ra

ns
ac

tio
n

IT

Ch
ris

 L
av

er
y

1.
99

G
oo

gl
e 

*g
oo

gl
e 

St
or

ag
e

G
oo

gl
e 

O
NE

DR
IV

E 
- F

eb
ru

ar
y

IT

Ch
ris

 L
av

er
y

5.
48

Zo
om

.U
s 

88
8-

79
9-

96
66

Zo
om

 - 
Ad

di
tio

na
l C

lo
ud

 R
ec

or
di

ng
 S

pa
ce

 - 
30

G
B

IT

Ch
ris

 L
av

er
y

15
.0

0
Do

m
ai

ns
do

ne
rig

ht
 L

lc
Do

m
ai

n 
Re

ne
wa

l -
 T

ah
oe

h2
0.

or
g

IT

Ch
ris

 L
av

er
y

20
.0

0
Zo

om
.U

s 
88

8-
79

9-
96

66
Zo

om
 L

ice
ns

es
 - 

Fe
br

ua
ry

IT

Ch
ris

 L
av

er
y

20
.0

0
Zo

om
.U

s 
88

8-
79

9-
96

66
Zo

om
 L

ice
ns

es
 - 

Fe
br

ua
ry

IT

Ch
ris

 L
av

er
y

22
.1

7
Dn

h*
go

da
dd

y.
Co

m
Do

m
ai

n 
Re

ne
wa

l -
 T

he
ch

at
ea

ul
ak

et
ah

oe
IT

Ch
ris

 L
av

er
y

22
.1

7
Dn

h*
go

da
dd

y.
Co

m
Do

m
ai

n 
Re

ne
wa

l -
 In

cli
ne

Se
ni

or
s

IT

Ch
ris

 L
av

er
y

23
.0

0
Ei

g
Co

ns
ta

nt
 C

on
ta

ct
 - 

M
on

th
ly 

Li
ce

ns
e

IT
Ch

ris
 L

av
er

y
23

.0
0

Ei
g

Co
ns

ta
nt

 C
on

ta
ct

 - 
M

on
th

ly 
Li

ce
ns

e
IT

M
at

th
ew

 B
el

ot
e

30
.0

0
M

sf
t *

 E
01

00
qq

ah
f

O
36

5 
Li

ce
ns

e
IT

Ch
ris

 L
av

er
y

49
.0

0
Li

ve
st

re
am

.C
om

Li
ve

st
re

am
 L

ice
ns

e 
- F

eb
ru

ar
y

IT

M
at

th
ew

 B
el

ot
e

99
.0

0
Dr

i*
Vm

wa
re

 L
ice

ns
e

IT
M

at
th

ew
 B

el
ot

e
99

.9
4

Eb
ay

 O
*0

1-
11

12
8-

14
92

1
M

er
siv

e 
Po

d
IT

Ch
ris

 L
av

er
y

13
3.

02
Dn

h*
go

da
dd

y.
Co

m
Do

m
ai

n 
Re

ne
wa

l -
 E

xp
lo

re
In

cli
ne

Vi
lla

ge
Cr

ys
ta

lB
ay

, E
xp

lo
re

In
cli

ne
Cr

ys
ta

lB
ay

 a
nd

 
Ex

pl
or

eI
VC

B
IT

M
at

th
ew

 B
el

ot
e

18
4.

89
Eb

ay
 O

*2
0-

11
18

2-
29

80
1

M
ite

l V
O

IP
IT

M
at

th
ew

 B
el

ot
e

19
3.

20
M

sf
t *

 E
01

00
qq

86
o

O
36

5 
Li

ce
ns

e
IT

Ch
ris

 L
av

er
y

29
9.

00
Zo

om
.U

s 
88

8-
79

9-
96

66
Zo

om
 L

ice
ns

es
 - 

Fe
br

ua
ry

IT

M
at

th
ew

 B
el

ot
e

37
8.

27
Eb

ay
 O

*1
8-

11
21

2-
31

77
4

M
ite

l V
O

IP
IT

M
at

th
ew

 B
el

ot
e

53
0.

15
Eb

ay
 O

*1
9-

11
14

0-
31

85
8

M
ite

l V
O

IP
IT

35

APPENDIX C FEBRUARY 2024

Procurement Card Transactions Continued

Page 75 of 257



Ca
rd

ho
ld

er
 N

am
e

Am
ou

nt
Su

pp
lie

r
De

sc
rip

tio
n 

De
pt

M
at

th
ew

 B
el

ot
e

55
5.

15
Eb

ay
 O

*1
0-

11
15

5-
53

52
7

M
ite

l V
O

IP
IT

M
at

th
ew

 B
el

ot
e

55
5.

15
Eb

ay
 O

*1
9-

11
16

9-
93

39
4

M
ite

l V
O

IP
IT

M
at

th
ew

 B
el

ot
e

55
5.

15
Eb

ay
 O

*2
6-

11
17

6-
53

06
3

M
ite

l V
O

IP
IT

M
at

th
ew

 B
el

ot
e

55
5.

15
Eb

ay
 O

*1
9-

11
20

4-
42

54
8

M
ite

l V
O

IP
IT

M
at

th
ew

 B
el

ot
e

55
5.

15
Eb

ay
 O

*2
6-

11
20

6-
10

60
4

M
ite

l V
O

IP
IT

M
at

th
ew

 B
el

ot
e

59
1.

96
M

on
op

ric
e,

 In
c.

Ca
bl

in
g

IT

M
at

th
ew

 B
el

ot
e

79
9.

95
Pa

dd
le

.N
et

* E
m

ai
la

rc
h

Em
ai

lA
rc

hi
te

ct
 L

ice
ns

e
IT

Ch
ris

 L
av

er
y

80
9.

54
Ad

ob
e 

In
c.

Ad
ob

e 
Li

ce
ns

es
 - 

Fe
br

ua
ry

IT
M

at
th

ew
 B

el
ot

e
1,

65
0.

00
Eb

ay
 O

*0
5-

11
16

5-
00

70
7

M
ite

l V
O

IP
IT

Pa
ul

 R
ay

m
or

e
20

.0
0

M
ai

lch
im

p
M

on
th

ly 
em

ai
l m

ar
ke

tin
g 

fe
es

 - 
Te

nn
is 

& 
Pi

ck
le

ba
ll s

ha
re

M
ar

ke
tin

g

Pa
ul

 R
ay

m
or

e
29

.9
9

Ad
ob

e 
In

c.
Ro

ya
lty

-fr
ee

 im
ag

e,
 m

us
ic,

 v
id

eo
 c

lip
 s

ub
sc

rip
tio

n 
fo

r V
id

eo
 &

 P
ho

to
 P

ro
du

ct
io

n 
Co

or
di

na
to

r p
ro

je
ct

s
M

ar
ke

tin
g

Pa
ul

 R
ay

m
or

e
29

.9
9

Dr
on

el
in

k
So

ftw
ar

e 
to

 a
llo

w 
ae

ria
l d

ro
ne

 fl
ig

ht
s 

al
on

g 
pr

e-
pr

og
ra

m
m

ed
 ro

ut
es

M
ar

ke
tin

g

Pa
ul

 R
ay

m
or

e
50

.0
0

M
ai

lch
im

p
M

on
th

ly 
em

ai
l m

ar
ke

tin
g 

fe
es

 - 
M

t G
ol

f s
ha

re
M

ar
ke

tin
g

Pa
ul

 R
ay

m
or

e
54

.9
5

Bi
ng

 B
an

ne
rs

Si
gn

ag
e 

in
 D

ia
m

on
d 

Pe
ak

 p
ar

kin
g 

lo
t -

 n
o 

dr
op

-o
ff 

zo
ne

M
ar

ke
tin

g

Pa
ul

 R
ay

m
or

e
54

.9
9

Ad
ob

e 
In

c.
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

M
an

ag
er

 m
on

th
ly 

fe
es

 fo
r A

do
be

 C
re

at
ive

 C
lo

ud
 lic

en
sin

g 
fe

es
M

ar
ke

tin
g

Pa
ul

 R
ay

m
or

e
54

.9
9

Ad
ob

e 
In

c.
Vi

de
o 

& 
Ph

ot
o 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n 
Co

or
di

na
to

r m
on

th
ly 

fe
es

 fo
r A

do
be

 C
re

at
ive

 C
lo

ud
 lic

en
sin

g 
fe

es
M

ar
ke

tin
g

Ja
cly

n 
Re

am
54

.9
9

Ad
ob

e 
*8

00
-8

33
-6

68
7

M
on

th
ly 

Ad
ob

e 
so

ftw
ar

e 
fe

es
, G

ra
ph

ics
& 

Vi
de

o 
Ed

itin
g 

M
ar

ke
tin

g

Pa
ul

 R
ay

m
or

e
86

.5
9

Vi
st

ap
rin

t
Re

pr
in

t o
f b

us
in

es
s 

ca
rd

s 
fo

r M
ar

ke
tin

g 
M

an
ag

er
M

ar
ke

tin
g

Pa
ul

 R
ay

m
or

e
10

0.
00

M
ai

lch
im

p
M

on
th

ly 
em

ai
l m

ar
ke

tin
g 

fe
es

 - 
Ch

am
p 

G
ol

f s
ha

re
M

ar
ke

tin
g

Pa
ul

 R
ay

m
or

e
12

6.
00

M
ai

lch
im

p
M

on
th

ly 
em

ai
l m

ar
ke

tin
g 

fe
es

 - 
Pa

rk
s 

& 
Re

c 
sh

ar
e

M
ar

ke
tin

g

Pa
ul

 R
ay

m
or

e
15

9.
00

Tb
l* 

Pi
lo

t I
ns

tit
ut

e
Vi

de
o 

& 
Ph

ot
o 

Co
or

di
na

to
r t

ra
in

in
g 

fo
r P

ar
t 1

07
 d

ro
ne

 p
ilo

t l
ice

ns
in

g
M

ar
ke

tin
g

Ja
cly

n 
Re

am
18

9.
61

Bi
ng

 B
an

ne
rs

Ba
nn

er
s 

fo
r S

kiP
ro

 R
en

o,
 D

P 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

to
 R

en
o 

Sk
ie

rs
 

M
ar

ke
tin

g

Pa
ul

 R
ay

m
or

e
33

5.
00

Ta
ho

e 
Ne

va
da

 L
ov

e
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

De
pt

. p
riz

es
 - 

pa
ss

 h
ol

de
r d

es
ig

n
M

ar
ke

tin
g

G
wy

nn
e 

Cu
nn

in
gh

am
40

.7
4

Sp
 S

wi
m

ou
tle

t.C
om

Pa
rk

s 
& 

Re
c 

- A
qu

at
ics

G
wy

nn
e 

Cu
nn

in
gh

am
12

0.
00

Co
st

co
 W

hs
e 

#0
12

7
An

nu
al

 M
em

be
rs

hi
pf

or
 R

ec
 C

en
te

r 
Pa

rk
s 

& 
Re

c 
- A

qu
at

ics

G
wy

nn
e 

Cu
nn

in
gh

am
19

7.
23

Co
st

co
 W

hs
e 

#0
12

7
Sn

ac
ks

 fo
r C

om
m

un
ity

 S
no

ws
ho

e 
Ev

en
t o

n 
02

/0
9/

24
Pa

rk
s 

& 
Re

c 
- A

qu
at

ics

G
wy

nn
e 

Cu
nn

in
gh

am
26

0.
47

Cr
os

by
s 

Ta
ve

rn
Se

ni
or

 S
no

ws
ho

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
 - 

lu
nc

h 
Pa

rk
s 

& 
Re

c 
- A

qu
at

ics

G
wy

nn
e 

Cu
nn

in
gh

am
40

0.
00

Sw
im

 A
ng

el
fis

h
Ad

ap
tiv

e 
Sw

im
 C

er
tif

ica
tio

ns
 fo

r 2
 in

st
ru

ct
or

s 
Pa

rk
s 

& 
Re

c 
- A

qu
at

ics

Sa
m

an
th

a 
G

ou
gh

-5
5.

99
Sp

 S
up

er
es

se
O

rd
er

 w
as

 a
 m

ist
ak

e,
 re

fu
nd

ee
d 

Pa
rk

s 
& 

Re
c 

- P
ar

ks

Sa
m

an
th

a 
G

ou
gh

27
.4

6
Vi

st
ap

rin
t

Bu
sin

es
s 

Ca
rd

s 
- r

es
to

ck
 o

f b
us

in
es

s 
ca

rd
s

Pa
rk

s 
& 

Re
c 

- P
ar

ks

36

APPENDIX C FEBRUARY 2024

Procurement Card Transactions Continued

Page 76 of 257



Ca
rd

ho
ld

er
 N

am
e

Am
ou

nt
Su

pp
lie

r
De

sc
rip

tio
n 

De
pt

Sa
m

an
th

a 
G

ou
gh

27
.4

6
Vi

st
ap

rin
t

Bu
sin

es
s 

Ca
rd

s 
- r

es
to

ck
 o

f b
us

in
es

s 
ca

rd
s

Pa
rk

s 
& 

Re
c 

- P
ar

ks

Sa
m

an
th

a 
G

ou
gh

49
.9

9
Pp

*g
oo

gl
e 

G
oo

gl
e 

St
or

ag
e

Ph
ot

o 
St

or
ag

e 
fo

r b
ac

ku
p 

of
 m

ob
ile

 p
ho

to
s 

Pa
rk

s 
& 

Re
c 

- P
ar

ks

Sa
m

an
th

a 
G

ou
gh

50
.0

0
Pp

*g
oo

gl
e 

G
oo

gl
e 

St
or

ag
e

Ph
ot

o 
St

or
ag

e 
fo

r b
ac

ku
p 

of
 m

ob
ile

 p
ho

to
s 

Pa
rk

s 
& 

Re
c 

- P
ar

ks

Sa
m

an
th

a 
G

ou
gh

55
.9

9
Sp

 S
up

er
es

se
O

rd
er

 w
as

 a
 m

ist
ak

e,
 re

fu
nd

ee
d 

Pa
rk

s 
& 

Re
c 

- P
ar

ks

Sa
m

an
th

a 
G

ou
gh

34
2.

00
W

he
ni

wo
rk

.C
om

Sc
he

du
lin

g 
So

ftw
ar

e 
- Y

ea
rly

 S
ub

sc
rip

tio
n

Pa
rk

s 
& 

Re
c 

- P
ar

ks

Sa
m

an
th

a 
G

ou
gh

34
2.

00
W

he
ni

wo
rk

.C
om

Sc
he

du
lin

g 
So

ftw
ar

e 
- Y

ea
rly

 S
ub

sc
rip

tio
n

Pa
rk

s 
& 

Re
c 

- P
ar

ks

Pa
nd

or
a 

Ba
hl

m
an

8.
97

In
cli

ne
 V

illa
ge

 G
ro

Su
pp

ly 
fo

r R
ec

 C
en

te
r 

Pa
rk

s 
& 

Re
c 

- R
ec

Pa
nd

or
a 

Ba
hl

m
an

11
.9

6
In

cli
ne

 V
illa

ge
 G

ro
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

su
pp

ly 
Pa

rk
s 

& 
Re

c 
- R

ec

Ti
m

 K
el

ly
32

.9
5

Aw
ar

dz
on

e-
F1

e6
90

t1
Tr

op
hy

 fo
r F

al
l v

ol
le

yb
al

l c
oe

d 
ch

am
pi

on
s

Pa
rk

s 
& 

Re
c 

- R
ec

Pa
nd

or
a 

Ba
hl

m
an

47
.7

4
Am

zn
 M

kt
p 

Us
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Su
pp

ly 
Pa

rk
s 

& 
Re

c 
- R

ec
Pa

nd
or

a 
Ba

hl
m

an
52

.7
4

Ra
le

y 
S 

#1
13

Fo
od

 M
er

ch
an

di
se

 
Pa

rk
s 

& 
Re

c 
- R

ec
Pa

nd
or

a 
Ba

hl
m

an
54

.0
4

Am
zn

 M
kt

p 
Us

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Su

pp
ly 

Pa
rk

s 
& 

Re
c 

- R
ec

Pa
nd

or
a 

Ba
hl

m
an

96
.6

8
Sa

m
sc

lu
b.

Co
m

F&
B 

M
er

ch
an

di
se

 
Pa

rk
s 

& 
Re

c 
- R

ec
Pa

nd
or

a 
Ba

hl
m

an
11

9.
63

Sp
ec

tru
m

Ca
bl

e 
TV

Pa
rk

s 
& 

Re
c 

- R
ec

Pa
nd

or
a 

Ba
hl

m
an

19
3.

90
Sa

m
sc

lu
b.

Co
m

Fo
od

 M
er

ch
an

di
se

 
Pa

rk
s 

& 
Re

c 
- R

ec

Pa
nd

or
a 

Ba
hl

m
an

26
6.

49
Am

az
on

.C
om

*r0
51

q7
rh

1
op

er
at

in
g 

Su
pp

ly 
Pa

rk
s 

& 
Re

c 
- R

ec

Je
nn

ife
r M

oo
re

10
.7

9
Co

st
co

 W
hs

e 
#0

12
7

Ve
ts

 C
lu

b 
lu

nc
he

s
Pa

rk
s 

& 
Re

c 
- S

r. 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

in
g

Je
nn

ife
r M

oo
re

57
.7

7
Co

st
co

 W
hs

e 
#0

12
7

Se
ni

or
 P

ro
gr

am
s-

 C
on

v 
Ca

fé
 S

up
pl

ie
s

Pa
rk

s 
& 

Re
c 

- S
r. 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g

Je
nn

ife
r M

oo
re

78
.9

4
Co

st
co

 W
hs

e 
#0

12
7

Re
c 

Ce
nt

er
 C

of
fe

e 
Sr

v
Pa

rk
s 

& 
Re

c 
- S

r. 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

in
g

Je
nn

ife
r M

oo
re

11
2.

73
M

of
os

 P
izz

a 
Pa

st
a 

In
c

Se
ni

or
 P

ro
gr

am
s 

- s
no

ws
ho

e 
lu

nc
he

s
Pa

rk
s 

& 
Re

c 
- S

r. 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

in
g

Je
nn

ife
r M

oo
re

14
7.

62
M

of
os

 P
izz

a 
Pa

st
a 

In
c

Se
ni

or
 P

ro
gr

am
s 

- s
no

ws
ho

e 
lu

nc
he

s
Pa

rk
s 

& 
Re

c 
- S

r. 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

in
g

Je
nn

ife
r M

oo
re

18
2.

16
M

of
os

 P
izz

a 
Pa

st
a 

In
c

Se
ni

or
 P

ro
gr

am
s 

- s
no

ws
ho

e 
lu

nc
he

s
Pa

rk
s 

& 
Re

c 
- S

r. 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

in
g

Di
an

a 
Ro

bb
69

.0
0

Ps
i S

er
vic

es
 L

lc 
Us

d
M

et
er

 T
ec

h 
NV

 D
rin

kin
g 

W
at

er
 D

ist
rib

ut
io

n 
O

p 
1 

te
st

PW
 - 

Ad
m

in

Di
an

a 
Ro

bb
12

1.
51

In
 *b

ur
ris

 C
om

pu
te

r F
or

m
s

Do
or

 H
an

ge
rs

 fo
r M

et
er

 T
am

pe
rin

g 
Po

st
in

g 
PW

 - 
Ad

m
in

IV
G

ID
 B

ld
g

16
8.

99
Cl

ick
sa

fe
ty

O
SH

A 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r L
ar

ry
PW

 - 
Bu

ild
in

gs

IV
G

ID
 B

ld
g

20
7.

67
Sl

ak
ey

 B
ro

th
er

s
Pa

rts
 fo

r h
ea

te
r a

t p
um

p 
st

at
io

n
PW

 - 
Bu

ild
in

gs

IV
G

ID
 B

ld
g

90
6.

16
Su

pp
lyh

ou
se

.C
om

Fl
as

h 
va

lve
 fo

r R
ec

 C
en

te
r 

PW
 - 

Bu
ild

in
gs

IV
G

ID
 B

ld
g

1,
71

2.
67

Sl
ak

ey
 B

ro
th

er
s

Re
pl

ac
em

en
t H

ea
te

r 
PW

 - 
Bu

ild
in

gs

IV
G

ID
 B

ld
g

1,
92

3.
70

Su
pp

lyh
ou

se
.C

om
Fl

as
ho

m
et

er
 fo

r R
ec

 C
en

te
r

PW
 - 

Bu
ild

in
gs

IV
G

ID
 B

ld
g

2,
42

2.
22

Ho
m

ed
ep

ot
.C

om
Bl

in
ds

 fo
r R

ec
 C

en
te

r d
ue

 to
 o

nl
d 

on
es

 fa
ilin

g 
PW

 - 
Bu

ild
in

gs

Ti
m

 B
ux

to
n

75
.0

0
O

ffi
ce

 O
f W

at
er

 P
ro

gr
am

s
Ed

uc
at

io
na

l B
oo

ks
 fo

r o
pe

ra
to

r S
ta

te
 C

er
tif

ica
tio

n 
PW

 - 
Co

m
pl

ia
nc

e

M
ad

on
na

 D
un

ba
r

45
.0

0
Do

m
ai

ns
do

ne
rig

ht
 L

lc
Do

m
ai

n 
Re

ne
wa

l, 
dr

in
kt

ah
oe

ta
p.

or
g

PW
 - 

Co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

Re
so

ur
ce

s

M
ad

on
na

 D
un

ba
r

64
.4

3
In

 *o
ne

 B
oa

t, 
In

c.
M

on
th

ly 
W

eb
 A

ds
-B

ea
r S

m
ar

t
PW

 - 
Co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
Re

so
ur

ce
s

37

APPENDIX C FEBRUARY 2024

Procurement Card Transactions Continued

Page 77 of 257



Ca
rd

ho
ld

er
 N

am
e

Am
ou

nt
Su

pp
lie

r
De

sc
rip

tio
n 

De
pt

M
ad

on
na

 D
un

ba
r

64
.4

4
In

 *o
ne

 B
oa

t, 
In

c.
M

on
th

ly 
W

eb
 A

ds
- T

W
SA

PW
 - 

Co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

Re
so

ur
ce

s

M
ad

on
na

 D
un

ba
r

75
.0

0
Aw

wa
.O

rg
W

eb
in

ar
 m

icr
op

la
st

ics
PW

 - 
Co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
Re

so
ur

ce
s

M
ad

on
na

 D
un

ba
r

13
0.

99
Nw

l*m
ar

m
ot

 8
77

77
78

04
2

Un
ifo

rm
 J

ac
ke

t 
PW

 - 
Co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
Re

so
ur

ce
s

M
ad

on
na

 D
un

ba
r

1,
25

0.
00

In
 *l

aw
 O

ffi
ce

 O
f L

ar
a 

Pe
TW

SA
 tr

ad
em

ar
k 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n

PW
 - 

Co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

Re
so

ur
ce

s

Ro
nn

ie
 R

ec
to

r
49

.0
0

Co
ns

en
su

sd
o

W
eb

in
ar

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 fo
r E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
st

af
f

PW
 - 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g

Ro
nn

ie
 R

ec
to

r
50

.0
0

Ne
va

da
 B

oa
rd

 O
f P

ro
fe

ss
io

Re
ne

wa
l o

f H
ud

so
n 

Kl
ei

n's
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Li

ce
ns

e
PW

 - 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g

Ro
nn

ie
 R

ec
to

r
12

5.
00

Nv
 B

oa
rd

 O
f E

ng
in

ee
rs

Re
ne

wa
l o

f H
ud

so
n 

Kl
ei

n's
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Li

ce
ns

e
PW

 - 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g

Ro
nn

ie
 R

ec
to

r
17

5.
00

Nc
ee

s.
O

rg
Re

ne
wa

l o
f H

ud
so

n 
Kl

ei
n's

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

Li
ce

ns
e

PW
 - 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g

Ro
nn

ie
 R

ec
to

r
31

1.
00

Am
er

ica
n 

W
at

er
 W

or
ks

 A
ss

o
Re

ne
wa

l o
f T

im
 B

ux
to

n's
 A

W
W

A 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p
PW

 - 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g

Ri
ch

 A
lle

n
-1

4.
99

W
el

ls 
Fa

rg
o

Re
fu

nd
 fo

r d
isp

ut
ed

 c
ha

rg
e 

PW
 - 

Fl
ee

t
Ri

ch
 A

lle
n

-1
4.

99
W

el
ls 

Fa
rg

o
Re

fu
nd

 fo
r d

isp
ut

ed
 c

ha
rg

e 
PW

 - 
Fl

ee
t

Ri
ch

 A
lle

n
14

.9
9

Am
az

on
 P

rim
e

Di
sp

ut
ed

 c
ha

rg
e 

PW
 - 

Fl
ee

t
Ri

ch
 A

lle
n

19
4.

34
Sq

 *s
ie

rra
 S

er
vic

es
 L

lc
Li

ft 
Cy

lin
de

r 
PW

 - 
Fl

ee
t

Ri
ch

 A
lle

n
98

5.
53

Si
m

pl
e 

Ti
re

Ti
re

s 
PW

 - 
Fl

ee
t

Za
ch

er
y 

St
ep

he
ns

7.
64

Th
e 

Ho
m

e 
De

po
t #

33
12

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Su

pp
ly 

- 6
'' s

te
el

 T
-p

os
t

PW
 - 

M
tc

e.

Za
ch

er
y 

St
ep

he
ns

19
.9

3
Th

e 
Ho

m
e 

De
po

t #
33

12
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Su
pp

ly 
- v

el
cr

o 
ex

tre
m

e 
ta

pe
PW

 - 
M

tc
e.

Za
ch

er
y 

St
ep

he
ns

34
.4

6
Th

e 
Ho

m
e 

De
po

t #
33

12
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Su
pp

ly 
- t

oo
ls

PW
 - 

M
tc

e.

Za
ch

er
y 

St
ep

he
ns

39
.2

6
Th

e 
Ho

m
e 

De
po

t #
33

12
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Su
pp

ly 
- t

oo
ls

PW
 - 

M
tc

e.

Er
ic 

Fr
ei

st
ro

ffe
r

3.
00

Ra
in

bo
w 

Pr
in

tin
g 

& 
O

ffi
ce

Pe
tty

 c
as

h 
sli

ps
 

PW
 - 

Pi
pe

lin
e

Er
ic 

Fr
ei

st
ro

ffe
r

43
.9

2
Ra

le
y 

S 
#1

13
Dr

in
kin

g 
wa

te
r

PW
 - 

Pi
pe

lin
e

Ca
rl 

St
um

p
25

2.
24

Th
e 

Ho
m

e 
De

po
t 3

31
2

Ne
w 

St
ra

ps
 fo

r r
ac

he
t  

PW
 - 

Pi
pe

lin
e

Er
ic 

Fr
ei

st
ro

ffe
r

92
5.

00
Na

ss
co

, I
nc

.
PA

CP
 C

er
tif

ica
tio

n 
Cl

as
s 

PW
 - 

Pi
pe

lin
e

Tr
oy

 S
an

de
rs

60
.0

0
Pa

yp
al

Cl
as

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
In

di
go

 W
at

er
 G

ro
up

-C
EU

's 
an

d 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
PW

 - 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

Br
ya

n 
Ka

m
bi

ts
ch

61
.4

1
Ra

dw
el

l I
nt

er
na

tio
na

l
Ne

w 
co

nt
ac

ts
 fo

r S
PS

-1
0 

M
ot

or
 S

ta
rte

r 
PW

 - 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

Br
ya

n 
Ka

m
bi

ts
ch

95
.2

8
Fi

lte
r E

le
m

en
t S

to
re

Fi
lte

r f
or

 a
m

bi
en

t o
zo

ne
 m

on
ito

r
PW

 - 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

Bi
ll R

ob
bi

ns
99

.0
0

Th
e 

Ho
m

e 
De

po
t #

33
09

M
ilw

au
ke

e 
Dr

ill 
us

ed
 fo

r L
ab

 w
at

er
 s

am
pl

in
g

PW
 - 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t

Tr
oy

 S
an

de
rs

14
0.

00
O

r H
ea

lth
 A

ut
ho

rit
y

W
at

er
 C

er
tif

ica
te

 R
en

ew
al

PW
 - 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t

Br
ya

n 
Ka

m
bi

ts
ch

32
9.

02
Ra

dw
el

l I
nt

er
na

tio
na

l
Ne

w 
Dr

ive
 fo

r p
ol

ym
er

e 
sk

id
s 

PW
 - 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t

Ka
yle

n 
Pr

io
r

33
5.

00
Nv

 R
ur

al
 W

at
er

 A
ss

o
At

te
nd

in
g 

NV
 R

ur
al

 W
at

er
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
- K

ay
le

n 
P 

PW
 - 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t

Ka
yle

n 
Pr

io
r

33
5.

00
Nv

 R
ur

al
 W

at
er

 A
ss

o
At

te
nd

in
g 

NV
 R

ur
al

 W
at

er
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
- C

ai
tlin

 D
PW

 - 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

Br
ya

n 
Ka

m
bi

ts
ch

48
4.

59
Ra

dw
el

l I
nt

er
na

tio
na

l
Ne

w 
co

nt
ac

ts
 fo

r S
PS

-1
0 

M
ot

or
 S

ta
rte

r 
PW

 - 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

38

APPENDIX C FEBRUARY 2024

Procurement Card Transactions Continued

Page 78 of 257



Ca
rd

ho
ld

er
 N

am
e

Am
ou

nt
Su

pp
lie

r
De

sc
rip

tio
n 

De
pt

Tr
oy

 S
an

de
rs

61
3.

83
Un

ite
d 

Se
cu

rit
y P

ro
du

cts
Ne

w 
au

to
 d

ial
er

 fo
r s

ew
er

 p
um

pin
g 

St
at

ion
 a

lar
m

ing
PW

 - 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

Ka
yle

n 
Pr

ior
96

0.
00

Ca
lifo

rn
ia 

W
at

er
 E

nv
iro

n
At

te
nd

ing
 C

W
EA

 A
nn

ua
l C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
 0

4.
08

.2
4-

04
.1

2.
24

 
PW

 - 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

Tr
oy

 S
an

de
rs

1,
01

6.
61

De
no

ra
 W

at
er

 T
ec

hn
olo

g
Re

ce
rti

fic
at

ion
 o

f E
qu

ipm
en

t 
PW

 - 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

Tr
oy

 S
an

de
rs

1,
75

8.
00

Sp
 F

or
en

sic
sd

et
ec

to
rs

SP
S-

1 
 4

 G
as

 m
on

ito
rin

g
PW

 - 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

Jim
 Y

ou
ng

blo
od

10
.0

0
Ca

lifo
rn

ia 
W

at
er

 E
nv

iro
n

CW
EA

 - 
Co

nt
inu

ing
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

un
its

 
PW

 - 
Ut

ilit
ies

Jim
 Y

ou
ng

blo
od

10
.0

0
Ca

lifo
rn

ia 
W

at
er

 E
nv

iro
n

CW
EA

 - 
Co

nt
inu

ing
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

un
its

 
PW

 - 
Ut

ilit
ies

Jim
 Y

ou
ng

blo
od

10
.0

0
Ca

lifo
rn

ia 
W

at
er

 E
nv

iro
n

CW
EA

 - 
Co

nt
inu

ing
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

un
its

 
PW

 - 
Ut

ilit
ies

Jim
 Y

ou
ng

blo
od

20
.0

0
Ca

lifo
rn

ia 
W

at
er

 E
nv

iro
n

CW
EA

 - 
Co

nt
inu

ing
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

un
its

 
PW

 - 
Ut

ilit
ies

Jim
 Y

ou
ng

blo
od

25
.0

0
Ca

lifo
rn

ia 
W

at
er

 E
nv

iro
n

CW
EA

 - 
Co

nt
inu

ing
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

un
its

 
PW

 - 
Ut

ilit
ies

Jim
 Y

ou
ng

blo
od

25
.0

0
Ca

lifo
rn

ia 
W

at
er

 E
nv

iro
n

CW
EA

 - 
Co

nt
inu

ing
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

un
its

 
PW

 - 
Ut

ilit
ies

Jim
 Y

ou
ng

blo
od

25
.0

0
Ca

lifo
rn

ia 
W

at
er

 E
nv

iro
n

CW
EA

 - 
Co

nt
inu

ing
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

un
its

 
PW

 - 
Ut

ilit
ies

Jim
 Y

ou
ng

blo
od

11
5.

00
Ia

pm
o

Un
ifo

rm
ed

 P
lum

bin
g 

Co
de

 b
oo

ks
 fo

r G
PA

 L
ea

d 
Se

rv
ice

 L
ine

 In
ve

nt
or

y P
ro

jec
t

PW
 - 

Ut
ilit

ies

IV
GI

D 
Sk

i
-6

0.
00

Ps
ia 

W
es

te
rn

 D
ivi

sio
n

Sk
i

IV
GI

D 
Sk

i
13

.9
9

Di
sn

ey
 P

lus
Su

bs
cr

ipt
ion

 se
rv

ice
 fo

r s
tre

am
ing

 vi
de

os
 to

 p
lay

 in
 C

hil
d 

Sk
i C

en
te

r 
Sk

i

IV
GI

D 
Sk

i
15

.0
0

Di
am

on
d 

Pe
ak

 L
oc

ke
r

Cr
ed

it t
o 

be
 re

ce
ive

d 
wa

s u
se

d 
fo

r t
es

tin
g 

Sk
i

IV
GI

D 
Sk

i
19

.9
9

Ad
ob

e 
In

c.
Su

bs
cr

ipt
ion

 se
rv

ice
 fo

r P
ro

gr
am

 to
 e

dit
 d

oc
um

en
ts 

Sk
i

IV
GI

D 
Sk

i
19

.9
9

Ad
ob

e 
In

c.
su

bs
cr

ipt
ion

 se
rv

ice
 fo

r p
ro

gr
am

 to
 e

dit
 d

oc
um

en
ts 

Sk
i

IV
GI

D 
Sk

i
28

.9
5

Pa
nd

or
a.

M
oo

dm
ed

ia.
Co

m
Su

bs
cr

ipt
ion

 fo
r s

tre
am

ing
 m

us
ic 

to
 p

lay
 in

 th
e 

Re
nt

al 
sh

op
 

Sk
i

IV
GI

D 
Sk

i
60

.0
0

M
sft

 * 
E0

80
0r

2k
iq

Su
bs

cr
ipt

ion
 se

rv
ice

 S
ha

rp
oin

t t
o 

co
m

m
un

ica
te

 a
nd

 d
oc

um
en

t a
cti

vit
ies

 
Sk

i

IV
GI

D 
Sk

i
23

0.
00

Ps
ia 

W
es

te
rn

 D
ivi

sio
n

PS
IA

 L
ev

el 
1 

Re
gis

tra
tio

n 
M

et
zin

ge
r, 

C.
Sk

i

IV
GI

D 
Sk

i
35

3.
34

Em
er

ge
nc

y M
ed

ica
l P

ro
du

c
Su

pp
lie

s o
f m

ed
ica

l m
at

er
ial

s f
or

 P
at

ro
l R

oo
m

 
Sk

i

IV
GI

D 
Sk

i
67

5.
00

Re
sp

on
de

r A
llia

nc
e

Co
ur

se
s f

or
 se

rv
ice

s i
n 

pa
tro

l 
Sk

i

To
ta

l
45

,1
83

.0
3

39

APPENDIX C FEBRUARY 2024

Procurement Card Transactions Continued

Page 79 of 257



Page 80 of 257



   INCLINE VILLAGE  
GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING  
PUBLIC MEETING  

Live and Via Zoom 

Held at the Boardroom 
893 Southwood Boulevard 
Incline Village, Nevada 

Wednesday, April 10, 2024 

Reported by:  Brandi Ann Vianney Smith 
Job Number:   IVGID 35 

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 2
A P P E A R A N C E S 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
SARA SCHMITZ, CHAIR 

RAY TULLOCH, TREASURER (via Zoom) 
DAVE NOBLE, MEMBER 

ALSO PRESENT 
SERGIO RUDIN, LEGAL COUNSEL 
HEIDI WHITE, DISTRICT CLERK 

-o0o-

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 3
I N D E X 

PAGE 
A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 5 
B. ROLL CALL OF TRUSTEES 5 
C. INITIAL PUBLIC COMMENTS 6 
D. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 27 
E. REPORTS TO THE BOARD

E 1.  General Manager's Monthly Report 28
E 2.  Utility Infrastructure Master

Plans for Water and Sewer 33
E 3.  Incline Beach House and Access

Project Verbal Report 52
E 4.  Project Savings Identified

Verbal Report 60

F. CONSENT CALENDAR 61
F 1.  Meeting Minutes for 3/6/24

Approval
F 2.  Meeting Minutes for 3/13/24

Approval
F 3.  Meeting Minutes for 3/28/24

Approval
F 4.  Painting Interior of Chateau

Approval
F 5.  Mountain Golf Course Cart Barn

Roof Approval
F 6.  IVGID Spooner Effluent Pump

Station Easement Amendments
Approval

G. GENERAL BUSINESS
G 1.  Alder Avenue Water Main

Replacement 61
G 2.  Skate Park Enhancement Project 64
G 3.  Full-Time Construction Inspection

and Materials Testing 66

H. REDACTIONS FOR PENDING PUBLIC RECORDS
REQUESTS 75

 
I. LONG RANGE CALENDAR 75 
J. BOARD OF TRUSTEES UPDATE 81 

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

 4
K. FINAL PUBLIC COMMENTS 83 
L. ADJOURNMENT 87 

-o0o-

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 81 of 257



   5
Incline Village, Nevada - 4/10/2024 - 6:00 P.M. 

-o0o- 
 
 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Good evening.  It's six
o'clock here in Incline Village.  It is a regular
meeting of the Incline Village General Improvement
District Board of Trustees on April the 10th at the
Boardroom here on Southwood Boulevard.  

We'll begin the meeting with the Pledge of
Allegiance.
A.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

(Pledge of Allegiance.)
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Moving on to the roll call

of trustees.
B.  ROLL CALL OF TRUSTEES 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Trustee Tulloch?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Present.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Trustee Noble?
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Here.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  And I believe Trustee Dent

is not joining us this evening, but Trustee Tonking
intended to call in, so we will let the record
reflect when she joins.  Myself, Sara Schmitz, so we
do have a quorum of the Board.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

   6
We will move on to initial public comment.

C.  INITIAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
MR. CHURCH:  Good evening.  I am Jeff

Church, also known as Watchdog Jeff Church, and my
website is watchdogjeff.com.  

I'm also a trustee for the Washoe County
School District, District A, so I am your trustee.
I've met many of you before.  I do have to do this
disclaimer:  Views are mine, and I am a candidate
for reelection, so I wanted to introduce myself to
those that don't know me.  

I am a terrible politician.  I tell the
truth, I state my views, I don't mess around on
that, I just have no filter, and that's one reason
I'm here to talk about the TTD and the mobility hub.
I voted no.  I was totally opposed to it.  Now I'm
hearing rumors that they might not use it.  

We sold it to them way under market value,
and if they don't use it, the point is I want it
back.  I want to use for our staff housing, I don't
want it be condos for somebody, I want it for our
people for staff housing, and then maybe potentially
for Washoe County housing or state housing for our
employees, but not for any other purpose.  It was
ours, we sold it under good faith that they were

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

   7
going to use it for public purposes, and now maybe
they're not.  

I'm also opposed to the closing of the
Incline Village Middle School.  I have eleven
different reasons I could state why I'm opposed to
closing the middle school, but it's really a
nonstarter for me.

Couple of things I just kind of want to
educate you for in the little time I have left.
There's actually two bites of the apple you're going
to get in voting for school trustees.  You have
District A, which is what I am, there's three
candidates, they're all educated people, I just ask
you to look.  And then there's about seven
candidates for the at-large G.  

The reason I bring that up, I'd love to
have somebody do a forum, let's put us on the hot
seat, ask us tough questions.  How do we believe --
what about the closing of middle school?  If there's
any group that could possibly hold a non-partisan
candidate forum, early voting starts in mid-May, so
let's get 'er done, get us up here and put us on the
hot seat and ask us the tough questions.  

I will say -- I have a little bit of time
left -- there's three candidates in my district,

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

   8
Stephanie Flores, wonderful lady, I'd call her a
moderate.  I'm clearly conservative, I make no bones
about that.  And then Ms. Hull, for lack of a better
term, progressive, a hand-picked progressive one.
So you have candidates, they're all good, depending
on your point of view.  I think I'm the best.  I
stand on my record.  I'm a retired military officer,
retired Reno PD, multiple college degrees,
successful.  I've lived here so long that I have the
old, blue Nevada plate, which they will pry out of
my cold, dead hands, and I used to live at Incline
Village many years ago until I moved down the hill.  

Thank you for the time and have a good
day.

MR. MOLINELLI:  Good evening.  My name is
Joe Molinelli.  

My comments will be in reference to Mr.
Katz' comments about Tim Kelly during the March 6th
special meeting.  For the record, no one has asked
me to be here, no one has asked me to defend
Mr. Kelly, but after the comments I wanted to speak
up, not only a friend, but a good person's
reputation is wrongly trashed.  

I don't know Mr. Katz personally, but I
don't believe he has any kids in youth sports, and I

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 82 of 257



   9
don't believe he's been involved in the adult sports
leagues organized and run by Mr. Kelly, so I'm not
sure what his accusations are based on.  

My wife and I have been homeowners in
Incline for almost 10 years, full-time residents for
the past five.  We have a nine-year-old son who has
played in almost all the youth sports leagues since
he was three.  I've been a volunteer coach for
almost of all these teams, and I played in many of
the adult leagues, so I believe I have credibility
to speak on this as I've personally seen, firsthand,
how much time Tim puts into his role at IVGID and is
supporting our community through his position.  

Since I first met Tim, I've always said --
and I believe anybody who personally knows him -- no
idea how he does it all, from everything in his
IVGID role, supporting these sports organizations,
coaching the high school team, to being involved in
the church community, taking care of his family, he
does everything.  He puts in countless hours during
the day, evenings, and weekends organizing and
running all these youth sports leagues as well as
the adult leagues.  He's also refereed and coached
many of these league teams and games because there
aren't enough volunteers to help out.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  10
Tim has not only helped our son become a

better athlete, but first and foremost, he's been a
leader for our son.  He's taught him and all of our
kids how to be better people, how to be great
teammates, how to treat each other with respect.  

Tim is a pillar of this community, and
he's done so much good for it through his role at
IVGID, he's impacted hundreds if not thousands of
kids, past and present.  "Evil" is the last word I
would use to describe Tim.  

Mr. Katz' comments I believe were not only
uninformed, but they were reckless and careless.
All anybody has to do is spend time around the Rec
Center in the mornings, or any of the field gyms in
the afternoons, evenings, or weekends and you would
see how much time Tim puts into our kids and to
these organizations.  To suggest anything is just
wrong.

If the Board -- and this is my ask -- is
pursuing these baseless accusations, I hope that you
do the proper diligence to find out the truth.  Tim
is a great man, and he's done a lot for this
community.  

Thank you.
MR. EZO:  Hello.  Ken Ezo.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  11
I just wanted to comment, basically

touching the same topic Joe was speaking on.  I
don't have any agenda, I don't have any awareness of
where those comments about Tim Kelly were coming
from.  I was made aware of them, like many other
people, these last few weeks, and I just wanted to
vouch for Tim as a person and as an employee of the
Rec Center and the people in this community.  

I moved here with my family three years
ago with two young boys.  Tim and his family were
some of the first people we met.  He's just been
absolutely everywhere, running clinics, summer
camps, rec league.  I'm a coach and got to know him
a little bit on some of the rec leagues.  

And, yeah, he's had a huge impact on my
family, and has been an awesome role model for my
boys.  We just see him absolutely everywhere, just
constantly pouring energy and passion into
everything he does.  I think he's just, yeah, been
incredibly important for the community.  

Like I said, I have no idea where those
comments were coming from, but I was very, very
surprised, as I'm sure many people were, and I just
wanted to make that perspective known.  

Thanks.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  12
MR. GROSS:  Good evening.  My name is

Michael Gross, and I've been a resident here in
Incline Village for almost 10 years now.  

On a positive note, I'm here to inform the
Board of a donor-funded memorial plaza proposal that
was submitted to our IVGID General Manager Bobby
Magee last month.  The offering comprises about 360
square feet of cobblestone plaza, which is about the
size of a small backyard patio, a large granite
monument with inscriptions, two granite benches, and
three flagpoles.

The best identified location is a
two-and-a-half-foot-high plateau above the northern
end of the Village Green.  It's along Incline Way
and across the street from the Recreational Center.
The location is currently occupied by two park
benches, which could be easily moved to either side,
and this location is perfect with a list of
attributes that is far too long to list in this
small amount of time.

Prior to proposal submittal, a small team
reached out to various Incline Village organizations
and leadership to assess community interest in the
memorial plaza.  We had a great response, with
endorsements from, of course, the Veteran's Club,

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 83 of 257



  13
the Military (inaudible) Association, two Rotary
Clubs, the Incline Village Realtors Association, and
others.  We've also worked with our philanthropic
partners, the Parasol Tahoe Community Foundation,
Claudia Anderson, and the Incline Tahoe Foundation.  

A large number of town, villages, hamlets,
cities have some form of a memorial.  Each bring a
greater sense of community and a shared remembrance
of those who sacrificed their lives for our
community.  

As we all know, Incline Village is
decentralized, there is no town center.  We believe
that the monument would bring a greater focus to the
Village Green, it would be an easily recognized
landmark, and a source of community pride.  It would
also be a gathering point for national holidays,
flag retirement ceremonies, and other events.

All the needed donor funding has been
identified, with an estimated fabrication and
installation costs of around $110,000.  We are
currently collaborating with Bobby Magee on the
process for IVGID evaluation approval.  

We believe we will need to come before the
Board two times; the first would be a conditional
approval.  Is it a good idea?  Is it a good use of

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  14
community property, does the community benefit and
support this monument?  

The second would be final approval.  Going
through the due diligence, design and layout,
detailed statement of work, subcontractor quotes,
terms and conditions, funding.

(Expiration of three minutes.)
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  You can leave your written

comments.
MR. GROSS:  I left copies of the proposal.
MR. NOLET:  Chris Nolet, resident of

Lakeshore, retired CPA.  
I'm going to make a few comments tonight

to fall under my comments from March 28th with
regard to the notion that we have audited financial
statements for the year ended June 30th, 2023.  We
do have a signed report from our auditors, but the
report is a disclaimer opinion.  And a disclaimer
opinion means the financial statements are not
audited.  

Their disclaimer opinion says:  We do not
express an opinion on the company's financial
statements because of all these reasons.  

I'm just not sure what part of "we do not
express an opinion" we don't understand.  These are

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  15
not audited financial statements as they're
regularly referred to in a press release of late and
other settings.  

Rather than punish you with a recitation
of the auditing literature, I'll just tell you what
dictionary.com says about a disclaimer:  You are
renouncing, repudiating, denying, and disavowing.  

Our auditor said they couldn't finish the
audit, there were too many open items, and that was
it.  So, we do not have audited financial
statements.  This is not a matter of nomenclature or
semantics; I just don't understand how there can be
any confusion on this.  And the press release from
April 3rd certainly compounds this misleading
assertion.  

Moreover, I listened to the GLGF meeting
last week, and what they accepted was our ACFR with
financials in it, which there's a disclaimer of
opinion.  Mr. Magee was asked what kind of report
the auditors had given the District, and he
appropriately responded, "A disclaimer of opinion."
I'm just at a complete loss as why we still keep
calling these "audited," and it has a lot of
important ramifications.  

So I don't understand what the problem is.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  16
If you need help, I'm happy to come in and help you
with the literature.  I will note in my almost two
years of dealing with our audit firm, occasionally
they can get a little laxed with their nomenclature.
If some of the confusion's coming from them, I think
I can help that as well.

I would conclude to say that I don't think
calling these financial things "audited" isn't going
to end well.  Perpetuating a categorically incorrect
narrative, the financial statements audited, will
come to an end at some point.  

I'll just add, the ACFR is not on the
website yet.  I don't know why it's not since it was
accepted over a week ago.  If you go to the
financial transparency page, which is where you
would find that, it says:  If you have questions,
call Paul Navazio.

I'm not going to do that.  Lastly, I'll
just say I'm not the only one that's kind of got
this issue in their craw, and there are two other
groups that I know of that are looking at both
regulatory and legal recourse to set the record
straight.  

Thank you.
MR. SCHULTZ:  Joe Schultz, Incline

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 84 of 257



  17
resident.  

This Board of Trustees is making serious
progress to identify, addressing, and correcting the
many serious problems ignored, created, and
prolonged by weak previous boards and unbridled
general managers.  The majority of the critics of
this Board of Trustees have taken, it seems, little
to no time to appoint themselves with the facts
presented by the long history of community
mismanagement nor the voluminous meeting documents
available before each meeting.  They come armed
primarily with gossip, hearsay, and opinions of
their lesser-informed comrades to these meetings
and/or posts on social media, inaccurate and unjust
criticisms of this board and individual trustees.

Would these critics rather have the next
board revert back to hiring the less competent,
retain ineffective employees, grant promotions based
on longevity and not on performance, and kicking the
can of critical, overdue improvements down the road
for another decade or two?  The penalty for previous
procrastinations has already resulted in costs
doubling.  

What would be better, having a very
personal GM or a highly competent one?  Or hiring

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  18
another finance director who would fall years behind
in accounting requirements, buying then not
implementing new accounting software programs?  Or
continuing to collect your money after bond
obligations are retired?  What about extolling the
virtues of directors and employees who use legal
subterfuge to conceal mismanagement by refusing to
reveal legitimate document requests from concerned
community members?  Would returning to that past
produce a better future?

While many, if not most, of the speakers
at this pubic forum are educated, they are seemingly
unaware that when they veer out of their lane of
expertise, they are devoid of any credibility or
authority to undermine the serious efforts in
deliberations of the current trustees to manage the
affairs of this community.  

At a recent town hall meeting, an informal
session was conducted based on the last Flash
survey.  I wondered about the comments.  However,
unlike most respondents, I withheld my reservations
until the meeting, and the explanations and
information derived from the survey response became
quite clear when reviewed.

Many thanks to all those who offer

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  19
reasoned commentary designed to encourage and help
the IVGID trustees carry out the responsibilities.
All other nonconstructive critics simply pull the
community down while making the job of our publicly
elected officials tedious if not impossible.
Please, in the future, for the good of our
community, offer constructive commentary.  

Thank you.
MS. MARTINI:  Margaret Martini, Incline

Village.  
I have heard around town a lot that our

general manager doesn't even live here.  And I just
wanted to say that he probably doesn't live here
because who in their right mind would completely
uproot themselves from their family and et cetera,
wherever he is governing from, for a two-year, a
paltry two-year contract?  

To completely dismantle your family and
move into an area just for a two-year contract is
asking an unreasonable request.  And so to all those
who are screaming from the rooftops "he doesn't even
live here," well, let's talk about Mr. Winquest, who
didn't even live here, but he was physically here
weekly, as is Mr. Magee, and what did we have then?
We had chaos.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  20
At least with Mr. Magee, and I urge

everybody to go and look at the letter that he
provided of his recommendations, to let everyone
know that he is completely and utterly qualified for
this position.  And if you look and see that we've
even submitted bank statements that were audited for
the short time that he's been here, he has performed
miracles in this accounting department.  And I think
we really need to be thankful because that is one of
the things that everyone was concerned about: the
books, the books, the accounting, the accounting.  

Well, he has done a remarkable job in the
short time that he's been here.  And when you look
at what people are saying about them, I challenge,
even some of those candidates who are CPAs for
Fortune 500 companies, to think that they could have
accomplished any more than he has accomplished,
especially with a computer software program that was
probably defunct by the time we even started to
implement it.  

And so I just want say thank you to
Mr. Magee for stepping in, realizing that, and then
the next thing I think we need is an employee audit.

Thank you.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  No other public comments

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 85 of 257



  21
in the room.  Any online?

MR. DOBLER:  Cliff Dobler, 995 Fairway.
Davis Farr, LLC, was engaged by IVGID to

perform an audit on the basic financial
statements for the year ended June 30th, 2023.  The
goal was to complete an audit required by auditing
standards and issue an opinion that the financial
statements are presented fairly in all material
respects in the respective positions of all funds.  

Because IVGID staff could not provide the
auditor with the information necessary to complete
the audit, no opinion was given by the auditor.
There was no completed audit.

IVGID staff, the Board of Trustees, and
the outside auditors somehow believe that the
financial statements were audited.  Press releases
were provided to the Tribune, IVGID announcements,
and to the Nevada Department of Taxation that the
financial statements were audited.  These statements
are misrepresentations and carries violations of the
law.  I would highly recommend that these
announcements be withdrawn to avoid the potential
for costly litigation.  

Now, I did a four-hour review of the
financial statements and was appalled at the vast

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  22
number of errors and misrepresentations.  I have
found over 40 errors, which in the aggregate would
be considered substantial, suggesting the financial
statements are worthless.  Here are a few examples:  

In the MDA on page 12, the payment of $1
million made to the county for overpayment of
collection of property taxes was recorded as a
liability three years ago.  The payment should have
reduced the liability and not be a reduction of the
current year's revenues.  

After several years, the money collected
for the pipeline became restricted on the statement
of net position for proprietary funds, page 93, but
was not restricted on page 17 for the proprietary
funds.  

On note 14 on page 44 describes the note
as "unrestricted funds," which is an error; it's the
complete opposite. 

A $1 million transfer was made from the
general fund to the utility fund.  The amount was
recorded in reverse.  Are the balances correct?  

Lastly, 2023 costs for construction and
progress for the utility fund has four different
numbers in four different locations.  The MDA on
page 14 states the amount of 6.5 million.  The

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  23
statement of cash flow on page 25 states the amount
is 3.4 million.  Note 5, capital assets, page 37 and
38, states the amount of 7.5 million.  The
restricted funds on note 14, page 44, states the
amount of the pipeline is only 5.5 million.  Which
one is right?

There is no credibility to the unaudited
financial statements.  

Thank you.  
MR. BRIGGS:  Good evening.  This is

Michael Briggs.  I live at 582 Douglas Court in
Incline Village.  

I wanted to make a few comments about the
golf rates that are on tonight's agenda based upon
the report from last year's golf season that was
submitted to the Golf Advisory Committee by Darren
Howard.

First, 2023 was the first time in
recent years that residents who paid the daily rate
played more rounds than residents with Play Passes,
and I think that was probably intended by the Board
policy.  

Two, the Picture Pass and Play Passes,
basically all residents play, has now dropped from
75 percent in 2020 to 63 percent in 2023.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  24
Third, the average revenue per round paid

for by Play Pass Holders has risen from $50 in 2020
to $80 in 2023.  That's a $30 increase or 60 percent
increase.  I think we are at the point on the Laffer
curve where an increase in rates going forward will
result in a reduction in revenues.  And if there's a
cost or expenses problem at the golf courses, I
think we need to address it, but don't raise rates
further.  

Finally, last year the IVGID Board of
Trustees adopted a policy for free reservations for
residents during the entire season, I think that was
popular, and still tee times were easily available
for residents to obtain.  I would recommend
strongly, though, that if that policy is continued
that the Board put in a no resale or transfer for
value restriction on those passes.  Otherwise, we
could end up with a problem with people getting free
tee times and reselling them.  

Thanks for your time.
MR. WRIGHT:  Frank Wright, Crystal Bay.
I'm a candidate for the board, along with

five other people.  This is a clear-cut election.
You got two choices.  We can continue being the
laughing stock of Washoe County.  Our financials

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 86 of 257



  25
have been, in the past, a disaster, they are getting
better.  We have people working on fixing a lot of
things that are really, really wrong.  And if you
elect the candidates who are here for their
self-serving purposes, then you're going to get the
same thing over and over and over again.

There are some problems here.  There are
employee problems, big time, and if we don't correct
them now and a new board comes in of the same old,
same old, same old, we will be the laughing stock of
Washoe County for another couple of years.  Do you
really want that?  Do you want board members who are
up here serving for their own self-serving interest
and catering to people who elect them that want
freebies, they want other people to pay for their
amenities, or your want people that are responsible,
people that are honest, people that will do what is
necessary for this community to maximize all of our
venues and have the people that are living here
enjoy them, not just few, out-of-town golfers who
join a golf club and get preferred tee times?  I'll
be really interested in seeing what kind of rates
are recommended for golfers.  

We have the ability to sell some tee times
that we've never been able to sell now because in

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  26
the past, all these tee times were given away in
February and you couldn't sell them to people who
would pay a lot of money, which would result in all
of us that live here getting lower rates because the
people who don't live here will be paying more.  If
they're paying more, that means we can charge less
for the citizens who are living here, and the golf
courses won't lose $2 million a year.

My suggestion is see your candidates, find
out the ones who are here to help our community, and
find out the ones who are here to help themselves to
our amenities for their own self-serving purposes.
It's very easy to figure out.  

If anyone is on the list that is running
for office that was part of that disaster called
"the recall," I'd really think twice about what in
the world they brought to our community and how
ridiculous the whole thing was.  The recall was a
major disaster and a major black eye to this
community.  

Our financials are a major black eye to
this is community.  Let's put an end to it.  Let's
put in trustees who care about our community.  I'm
one of them.  

Thank you.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  27
MATT:  That was our last public comment.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  That closes out agenda

item C.  Moving on to agenda item D.
D.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Staff has requested the
removal of G 1, which was to review, discuss, and
approve recommended 2024/2025 golf rates.  That will
be moved to our next meeting.  That agenda item will
be just deferred for one meeting.  

Are there any other changes to the agenda?
Sergio, do I need a motion if we're

changing the agenda in any way?
MR. RUDIN:  I think since it's an item on

your agenda, you might as well have a motion.  I
think it's pretty straightforward to do it.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I would move that we
accept the agenda as posted, except for we will
remove item G 1.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Do I hear a second?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll second.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All those in favor?  
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Aye.  
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Aye.
Motion passes.  We will defer that agenda

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  28
item.  Moving on to agenda item E.
E.  REPORTS TO THE BOARD 

E 1.  General Manager's Monthly Report  
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  That begins with our

District Manager's monthly status report.  I will
hand the floor over to you, GM Magee.

MR. MAGEE:  I wanted to start out today
with some good news on the Public Works front.  At
the recent California Water Environment Association
annual awards, we had a number of people in Public
Works that won awards.  And so I wanted give a huge
shout-out to Bobby Olson, who received an award for
mechanical technician person of the year.  To Brian
Kambitsch, who received an award for electrical
instrumentation person of the year.  Jeff Donahue
for pretreatment pollution prevention person of the
year.  And to Sarah Vidra for community engagement
and outreach person of the year.  In addition, I'm
very happy to report that IVGID received a team
award for safety plant of the year team.  

I wanted to give a big shout-out to the
Public Works team.  These are things that they
should be exceptionally proud of.

Moving on, the spring edition of IVGID
Magazine was released today.  It is on the

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 87 of 257



  29
yourtahoeplace website now, and the issues have been
mailed out so residents should be receiving those
soon.  

I wanted to highlight a couple of things
that you'll find in the magazine.  One is the
comprehensive IVGID use summer camp guide for
parents looking to enroll their kids in camps this
summer.  There's some listings of programs for
senior and active adults this spring and early
summer.  Youth and adult sports leagues for this
spring and summer.  Some beach rules and updates to
the beach can be found in the magazine.  There's a
photo recap of Diamond Peak special events this
winter.  And finally updates on major capital
improvement projects that the District will be
working on this construction season.  

I would highly encourage people to check
out the spring edition of the IVGID Magazine.  

Then finally the last thing I wanted to
highlight is out at the beaches, with the weather
getting warmer, we've noticed an increase in
activity at the beaches and wanted to let everyone
know that there's limited staff in beach operations
right now with a ramp up that is occurring through
April.  The beach ambassadors are already out there

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  30
full time, but with Diamond Peak staying open,
candidly, some of the employees that are likely to
be working at the beaches are currently working at
Diamond Peak.  Over the next couple of weeks, we
anticipate that there will be a ramp up in staffing
until we're fully staffed sometime in mid to late
April.  

Finally, the last thing I have is that I
wanted to announce that the RFID gate pilot program
with the goose dogs has been a resounding success.
The beach staff is reporting a tremendous amount of
positive feedback from the community, and they
wanted to share with the Board that they have got
nothing but positive comments from the community on
that.  

With that, I'll close out my report, and
if the Board has any questions, I'd be happy to take
those at this time.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I'm wondering if you would
like to clarify anything relative to the public
comments about the audit.  Would you like to take
that?

MR. MAGEE:  I certainly can.  So, as I
spoke to the Department of Taxation, the requirement
was that we submitted the audited financial

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  31
statements.  And I do understand that there's some
debate on the semantics of the language that was
used.  I have talked to Jennifer Farr, and her
opinion is that she has issued an opinion.  The
opinion is a disclaimer of opinion.  

And so I understand that there's debate
around that, but at the committee on local
government finance, they did accept the documents,
and the State let us know that they believe we are
in full compliance with the law.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you.  Is one of that
items of compliance is to submit audited financials?

MR. MAGEE:  Yeah.  We do need to submit
audited financials, and these financials are
considered audited by the committee, by the State,
and so that's why they've shared with us that
they're accepting them as complete at this time.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  General Manager Magee,
I'm looking at the financial report and the Tyler
Munis reimplementation or correction or whatever.
We thought by bringing in an experienced project
manager to run this, rather than just assume that we
can do all part time?

MR. MAGEE:  The answer yes.  We are doing
it both in house, and we're also engaging with some

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  32
of the experts at Baker Tilly and using their
recommendations for the items that they believe we
should look at.  And so ultimately it is Assistant
Director Adam Cripps who is making the decisions on
how to most appropriately set up the internal
controls within the system and the way that the
system works.  And then he's working, obviously,
with Director of IT Mike Gove as well.  And so we do
have an entire team of people that are working this.  

We have not considered bringing forward a
recommendation to the Board at this time, which
would include additional resources for this, but we
are working within the resources that the Board has
already provided and we do have experts on staff
with Baker Tilly that are assisting us with that.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I understand that.  
One of the key issues we identified with

the original implementation was the attempts to do
it ourselves without using a system integrator or an
experienced project manager dedicated to that that
could drive the project.  

I'd certainly -- while no disrespect to
the experts at Baker Tilly or whatever, driving an
ERP-type project like this does require some special
skills.  I would ask you to consider it.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 88 of 257



  33
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  The one thing I just

wanted to mention to my fellow board members is that
in discussing with the General Manager, the public
records request that gets published in his monthly
report, we're actually going to bring an agenda item
just to clarify what the Board wants to see because
this list is only going to get longer with every
month.  So, we will be bringing that back as an item
for brief direction of what needs to be included in
the board packet.

Seeing no more questions on the General
Manager report, we'll move on to item E 2.  

E 2.  Utility Infrastructure Master Plans for 
Water and Sewer  

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I will hand this over to
the interim Director of Public Works Ms. Nelson and
her team.

MS. NELSON:  As you're aware, in
October of 2022 the Board of Trustees approved the
water and sewer master plan project.  The original
scope included the SKATA master plan as well, but
due to budgetary issues, that was re-budgeted as a
separate project.  Public works staff is currently
preparing the statement of qualifications to be
advertised in the near future for that project.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  34
The master plan's purpose is to document

system trends and capacity, infrastructure condition
and performance, and provide a plan for the near and
long-term capital improvement replacement needs.
DOWL Engineering worked closely with the Public
Works staff to gain knowledge of both systems and
provide their independent review of the overall
systems.  

I'd like to introduce Luke Tipton with
DOWL Engineering.  He is their water and wastewater
leader, and he's going to provide a short
presentation to the Board.  And then we're here to
answer questions.

MR. TIPTON:  Very pleased to present
DOWL's evaluations of the water and sewer utilities
as a result of the completion of the utility master
plans.  

Tonight we're going to go through the
master planning process and some of the key goals,
as well as explaining how we grade the system, and
then looking at the specific results for the water
and sewer systems.  I will note, I'm going to try
and streamline this as much as possible.  I know
we're trying to save some time here, so I will kind
of breeze through a few of these slides here.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  35
First, preparing a utility master plan,

it's a multi-phase process.  It starts with a large
data collection and review stage.  We interview
utility operations staff, we come up and tour your
facilities, do field investigations and field
surveys all so that we can then make some
engineering evaluations of your system capacity and
performance.

Ultimately, all of that information gets
documented in the plan itself.  This plan went
through three rounds of review and improvement.  We
workshopped it with District staff, and ultimately
presented and recommended the capital improvement
program with the plan, which is the primary goal.
Of any utility master plan, that CIP is the roadmap
for the future to answer the question for the
utility and community, what do we need to do and
when do we need to do it?

We're going to look at the water and sewer
system and look at what DOWL's evaluation of those
systems are.  In doing so, we're using a rubric that
was developed by the American Society of Civil
Engineers for the nation's infrastructure report
card.  It's really a scale, A through F scale,
ranging from exceptional to failing.  And I do want

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  36
to note that, while this rubric was developed by
others, all of the grades given to your
infrastructure are opinions of DOWL based on our
professional expertise and working with water and
wastewater utilities.

Looking specifically at the water system,
we can see we broke the water system into four
primary components, and then provided individual
evaluation grades for each of the criteria listed on
this table.  Ultimately then, we average all of
those grades and result in the overall grade which
we see on the column to the right.  

For the water system, the overall grade
for those system components ranged from C to an
A-minus, and really what that tells us is that the
Burnt Cedar facility is in really good shape,
doesn't require significant improvements in the near
future, however routine maintenance and implementing
best management practices are critical to
maintaining that performance into the future.  

Looking at the lowest-scoring component
with a distribution system of a C, that tells that
that component requires attention, and the reason
for that and the reason for the D in the future need
category is that almost half of your system requires

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 89 of 257



  37
replacement of aging water mains, that you're having
multiple failures due to old pipes.

Altogether, we take those individual
component grades which results in a composite grade,
and overall system grade of a B-minus, which really
B-minus says that the system is adequate for now but
it's in danger of declining if the District isn't
proactive.

And then we can also see that of how the
system compares to the national report card grade,
infrastructure report card grade, and the State of
Nevada report card grade, which both were C-minuses
the last time those were conducted.

I mentioned the aging water main
replacement project, here's a figure that identifies
the mains recommended for replacement, which, like I
said, is about half of your distribution system.

Moving quickly on this slide, this slide
is intended to highlight that the seasonal
fluctuations in water demand, primarily tied to
outdoor irrigation, you can see that in the summer,
the average daily demand is around 5 million gallons
per day, whereas in the winter, we're more around 1
million gallons per day.  

Looking now at the sewer system, the sewer

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  38
system, we broke into the components of the
collection system, the lift stations which pump the
sewer to the water resource recovery facility, that
facility is its own component, then the effluent
export system.  Overall, the sewer system scored a
little lower than the water system.  And some items
I want to point out are looking at, under the health
and safety evaluation criterion, the lift stations
and the water resource recovery facility all scored
a D.  

Lift stations, that was primarily due to
your sewer pump station 10, which has some outdated
technology, which makes it very difficult to replace
parts.  That lift station sits directly adjacent to
Lake Tahoe.  

And then on the water resource recovery
facility, the reason for the low score there is the
lack of effluent storage capacity at that facility.
However, we anticipate that grade significantly
increasing once the new effluent storage tank is
online, which is slated for, I think, this
construction season.

As I mentioned, the sewer system score is
a little lower than that water system at an overall
grade of a C-plus, which is really a call for

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  39
attention and improvement.  And the comparison to
the national and state grades there is looking
better than the national report card, but actually
lower than the State of Nevada report grade of a
B-minus.

This figure is of the water resource
recovery facility and some of the uniprocesses we've
identified for improvements in the near future.

With that, prepared to answer any
questions or comments on the plans.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Putting a little more
context with regards to the grades, so with regards
to the WRRF, once that tank gets put into service at
the end of this coming construction season, right
now that grade's a D, where do you expect it to be
after that?

MR. TIPTON:  I expect it to be -- it would
probably be in the low Bs, really.  That category
covers really what could be the consequence of a
failure and not be able to export effluent is a real
high risk for the utility.  Having more storage
capacity if something were to happen on that export
system is a great benefit to the facility.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Then with the effluent
export, overall grade is C-plus, and you're very

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  40
well aware, we've got the replacement of the
effluent pipeline going on for the next
several years.  What do you anticipate that grade
being once that project is complete?

MR. TIPTON:  I would anticipate that
probably being an A-minus, B-plus, somewhere in
there.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Then you mentioned with
lift stations, it's sewer pump station number 10
that is dragging that grade down currently; is that
correct?

MR. TIPTON:  That was the critical
facility because of that outdated technology, and
that's why, in the CIP, it's recommend for
replacement in fiscal year '26.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  '26.  And do you think
fiscal year -- never mind.

Then with regards to the water system
grades distribution, and you referenced replacement
of the water mains is what's driving that degrade at
this point; is that correct?

MR. TIPTON:  Correct.  Yes.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  And so we currently have a

water main replacement program in place now, does
that need to be accelerated in your opinion?

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 90 of 257



  41
MR. TIPTON:  It could be accelerated.  I

mean, that program -- 
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I guess, should it be

accelerated, in your professional opinion?
MR. TIPTON:  I think that the District is

doing a lot in that regard.  And we're recommending
spending $3-, $4-, $5 million a year ever year for
the next ten years to replace, starting with the
steel water mains, which are failing most
frequently, which is a problem for service outages
as well as driving up costs.  It's always more
costly to spot repair instead of wholesale replace.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Do you see the District's
water main replacement program as it currently
stands adequate to address that degrade, and that
over the next ten years that would be a sufficient
response or would you like to see something more
coming from the District with regards to that?

MR. TIPTON:  I think that the plan we've
laid out in the master plan is adequate, and that
the District staff is doing their best to address
this problem and replace those mains.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I did see something
disturbing.  If I go to the executive summary of
your report on page 11, where states that we don't

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  42
have any assessment scoring data or risk evaluation
metrics, yet we've been investing several million
bucks a year in asset replacement, and it's not that
long since we had an asset management -- manager or
director, I can't remember which it was, that
concerns me a bit.  So we haven't really been
properly targeting investment, is that your finding?

MS. NELSON:  Is that in the sewer master
plan or the water master plan?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  It's in the water mater
plan, the executive summary, page 11, under section
2.0, condition assessment and risk analysis.

MR. TIPTON:  When we scoped this project
and originally met with the District staff, it was
the belief this data existed, however, that
infrastructure scoring was not available, and so
that's why we have recommended a program to score
all of your water and sewer assets -- it's in both
plans, really -- here in the near future to better
understand the condition of your facilities.  

On the water side, it's a little less
important than on the sewer side just because it's
difficult to make those investigations.  We are --
the District does maintain an annual leak testing
program, and we're asking to continue that and even

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  43
ramp it up slightly.  

But then on the sewer side, it's to review
all of the videos that currently exist, they just
have not been scored by a NASCO-certified
individual.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  And this would be
normal.  If you look at your risk assessment and the
condition assessment, this concerns me.  Do you have
some recommendations or changes to our current
investment plans and our programs and how we better
target this investment?

MS. NELSON:  I'll answer that.  We are
looking at, in next year's budget, requesting funds
for additional camera equipment, as well as training
for our staff to become NASCO certified.  That's
what we're doing on the operations side to address
those issues.  

We have a robust GIS system where all of
that information can be input and then stored
forever, basically, so that's the direction that we
would like to take.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  But is this -- are we
putting a lot of pause on our current investment
plans to look at better targeting of investment, or
are we just moving it still with the multi-shot and

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  44
not really targeting the critical areas?

MR. TIPTON:  In our opinion, I think
District staff is aware of what the critical areas
are, but, yes, we are recommending that the District
beef up their program and maintain frequent scoring
of their assets, and really see paying off five,
six, seven years down the line.  And not necessarily
that that needs to be completed to know what the
next big problem is.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Understood.  So as part
of the recommendations, accurate targeting rather
than just blanket hitting an area?

MR. TIPTON:  Yes.  You know, that data
would help us more accurately score which areas have
the highest likelihood of failure.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  The next question is
really for Ms. Nelson.  In terms of last year, we
spent a lot of time and money on developing the
financing profile for the next five, ten years.  

Is there anything in these recommendations
in this master plan that is going to change these
and going to require a reassessment of that?

MS. NELSON:  I think there will be.  And
we will -- we're in the midst of budget right now,
so you will probably be seeing some redlined changes

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 91 of 257



  45
in your budget for the next year and then the
out years as well.

We can certainly track that so it's easy
to identify if that helps for the Board.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Will we also be
revisiting the plan and then seeing what the impact
is on rates based on these changes?

MS. NELSON:  Absolutely.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  One final overall

comment, and, I think, for the benefit of the
public.  I'm not surprised that the overall
assessment here, this is not something unique to
Incline Village, it's pretty much common right
across the nation because most of the water
infrastructure has been put in 50, 60 to 100 years
ago.  It's starting to fail across the country, this
isn't something unique to us.

MS. NELSON:  That's correct.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  My question piggybacks on

Trustee Tulloch, and that is we have a history of
scheduling projects, budgeting projects, and then
not getting them complete in that fiscal year and
carrying things over.  

To me, some of these things are critically
important to get addressed in a timely fashion.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  46
Does staff have the capacity to deliver according to
what they're proposing be the capital project plan?

MS. NELSON:  We are reviewing that.  We've
already begun that process.  And we know that we're
short staffed.  General Manager Magee has authorized
us to advertise for the senior engineer position.  I
think that there's two different things going on
there as well because our construction season spans
a fiscal year, you do see a lot of carryover, but we
have that six-month period to get the projects done.  

I think that we've done a pretty good job
about getting the designs done early, bidding, and
moving projects forward over the last couple
of years that we have been more fully staffed.  With
the loss of the director, things have shifted, so
that is where it's really important that we do get
that senior engineer back on board so we can keep
the momentum going.  

But we are evaluating that, our capacity
and then the capacity to actually bring in
consultants to do the work.  You will notice that
the Alder Avenue project, it was done by an outside
engineer.  We're having that engineer continue to do
through the construction administration.  

We're doing different things to try to

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  47
make sure that we can address the projects.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Then to the rate study,
with the rate study, do we need to go back and do a
reevaluation?  Because this year, we decided that we
were going to use the data from last year, use the
recommendation from last year with this updated
information, do we need to go back out to have a
professional reevaluate the rates?

MS. NELSON:  I would highly suggest that;
however for this budget, we don't have time.  

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Correct.
MS. NELSON:  However, we will be using

finance staff and myself to evaluate and go through
the changes in the budget versus the year two of the
rate study just to see how close we are and if we do
need to adjust that year two.

Our plan is to bring that rate hearing
forward in May so that at least the rates are in
place for the next fiscal year before July 1.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Do you want on the long
range calendar in October/November to potentially
evaluate having a rate study done for next season?

MS. NELSON:  I would actually like to
start that in August.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  In August.  So, we'll just

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  48
need to update the long range calendar to get that
scheduled.

My question that wasn't answered is around
the description that you give about the density of
the sewage.  Okay?  In your description in the
executive summary, you start talking about how the
low-flush toilets and low-flow shower heads actually
is changing the plant and changing the capacity of
the plant.

You had talked about originally the plant
had a capacity for some amount based on a certain
assumption.  Now those assumptions have changed.
I'm wondering if we should go and say what is the
new capacity given the denser materials?  Because we
have a lot of rezoning that has been done, and I
think that we should get ahead of it and understand
where we are with limitations.  

It seems like the sewer side is
potentially more critical to have addressed, the
water might not be as critical of an issue after our
discussion, but I think that would be -- I would
think that would be some helpful analysis for us to
have done.

The other thing I'm wondering if you could
update, in the sewer executive summary in these

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 92 of 257



  49
pages where there's red numbers, I just couldn't see
what it was that you were trying to highlight.  And
it might be good to just add some verbiage so that
others don't have the same question as I did when I
read the document.  That's just a suggestion.

MR. TIPTON:  Okay.
MS. NELSON:  I'd like to just address the

concentration of the wastewater.  
Operations staff is moving in a different

direction, and that's why we came in front of the
Board to request the approval on the probes to be
able to analyze and get ahead of what's coming in
and actually modify the process a little bit.

Next board meeting, you'll see a request
for lab equipment, and that lab equipment is
twofold, it'll help with water system testing that
we have going on, as well as realtime testing of
wastewater that's coming in so we can actually
calibrate and make sure that we're changing things
from reading the probes and making sure that we're
seeing the actual results that we're after.  

That's kind of how we're tweaking the
system at the operation level, but, yes.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Here's just my layman's
question:  With the change, does it actually reduce

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  50
the capacity that the station can handle?  That's
just the nutshell of the question.

MR. TIPTON:  Yeah.  The short answer's
yes.  But I'd also say that DOWL has currently
engaged the District where we're exploring what it
would take to create a biological model of the
facility where we can run analyses and understand
what truly is the current capacity of the plant and
how would that be impacted with future development,
and/or how that would be impacted with changes to
certain unit processes.  

We're just starting that process now.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  That's something that'll

be on your plate.  Okay.  Thank you.
I do really appreciate the grading and

it's very simple and easy to understand.  And the
reports, I think it'll really help staff, and it'll
help the Board to prioritize projects and understand
the roadmap we're on in the utilities.

Any other questions?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Just with regard to the

rate study, given that we just did a full-blown rate
study, very high cost, it was 12 months ago, I'm
assuming that we still have the supporting
spreadsheets and documentation.  Can I suggest that

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  51
rather than just diving into this later in the fall,
perhaps we plug some numbers based on some of these
proposals for increased capital and probably
increased operating costs?  

Can I suggest that maybe we just plug some
of these numbers in to give us sighting shot to
start with before we start on another full-blown
study?  Once we start doing them every two years,
it's adding a significant level of cost as well.

MS. NELSON:  That was my plan for this
initial rate hearing that you'll come to the Board
in May.  However, what I'm recommending is just an
update to the rate study that was completed.  It
won't be a full-blown rate study, but we can
certainly keep that in mind.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yeah.  I think my
follow-up question to that is by November or so, are
we really going to have flushed out what this means
in terms of additional investment and additional
affects?

MS. NELSON:  I think we need to be moving
in that direction.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Okay.  I would just ask
that we make sure we have that properly flushed out
before we invest more in a further rate study.  In

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  52
the short term, we can plug in numbers to the model.

MS. NELSON:  Understood.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you both very much

for the presentation, the brief presentation, and
also for all of the effort that went into this.
It's really helpful to have a roadmap for our
future.  Thank you.

Moving on.  
E 3.  Incline Beach House and Access Project 

Verbal Report 
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Verbal report and update

on the Incline Beach House and access projects.
MS. NELSON:  The team met this week.  They

had to make up for last week's meeting because it
was spring break and most of the project team was
out of town.

The team is focused on getting all of the
entitlements in order.  That includes reviewing the
site encumbrances, such as site constraints, the
sewer limitations, as well as TRPA allowable
coverage.  We have started the coverage verification
process with TRPA.  The Board will be seeing a
contract for the geotechnical investigation as well
as the soils hydro report probably at the April 24th
meeting.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 93 of 257



  53
Currently, the project is on schedule with

the Board-authorized $4 million, all in budget for
the Beach House project.  It has been mentioned from
members of the Board that the design needs to be
completed without regarding to the authorized
budget.  If this is the desire of the entire Board
to revisit the authorized dollar amount, please note
that this is not an agendized item for this evening,
but I would suggest it come back maybe during the
long range calendar discussion and put it on the
Board agenda at that time.

Staff is planning to receive the
preliminary budget from the project team on Monday.
Staff will be meeting with the finance team to
review the budget, update, and provide an update at
the following meeting, April 24th meeting.  It might
be a good opportunity to start the discussion of
bonding at that point because we will have both
preliminary project costs for the Beach House as
well as the access project.

And with that, I will turn over to the
Board for any questions.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Any questions?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  In terms of the overall

design, have we reached out to Incline Spirits, who

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  54
have been running the bar very successfully, that we
have their input for that as well, assuming that we
continue the same operating model going forward to
make sure that we can have a situation where we
could have different bar providers as to food
providers?

MS. NELSON:  I don't know that we've
reached out to date, but we do have that planned
for, hopefully, within the next week.

We have meetings going on on Monday to
discuss, again, the budget portion of it, and then
we will reach out to Incline Spirits just to get
their feedback on where the project is and what
needs they may have or see any changes that they
might suggest.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Let's make sure that the
two operations can operate independently if
required, that there's no conflict.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I, too, think that we need
to have a design that segregates the food aspect of
it from the bar aspect of it, because we potentially
in the future could have different vendors providing
food service compared to bar service, and so we
wouldn't want to have commingling of property and
access and that sort of thing.  I think that's very

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  55
important.

One of the things -- I sat in on the
meeting this past week, it was very informative, and
one of things on the design that I've thought about
that I think we should potentially also reconsider
is in the design, it included four outdoor showers,
full showers, and that I think that we would be
better served by having foot showers as opposed to
full-on showers.  I think that would be a prudent
decision.

The other thing, Trustee Dent had asked me
to share some things.  He had asked me to share he
doesn't think we should have showers, he said you
could have the foot showers, that makes sense, but
that we should really design for the future and that
we may have different vendors.  We need to have that
separation.  

The other thing that he wanted to bring to
staff's attention, because I don't know if it has
been, but the general manager of the Hyatt had
informed us that they are going to be dismantling
that brand-new bar that they just built at the beach
at the Hyatt, and he basically said if you are
interested in any of the infrastructure or
equipment, let me know because it's going.  So it

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  56
might be worthwhile to take a look at how they have
it, and if we had the ability to lift things, that
potentially could be a huge cost savings.  That was
Trustee Dent.  

I have not been down to look it, so I
can't speak to how it's different from the design,
but I think the team is going on the right
direction.  But I do think there's an aspect of what
are the requirements of the design, and then what
was that do to the cost?  And I think we need to
take things in a step-by-step, okay, here's what the
Board really would like to see.

And I would encourage you to reach out to
Incline Spirits, because one of the things they had
shared with me is that the design of the kitchen at
the Burt Cedar facility is very inefficient, and
they have to actually have more staff at that
kitchen than they do at the Incline.  

And given that we're always struggling to
get summer staff and staffing, we need to make sure
that it is designed efficiently so that it minimizes
the number of staff that needs to be there in order
serve the public.  

Are there any other questions or comments?
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I don't have any real

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 94 of 257



  57
comments at this point because I haven't seen the
design.  I've seen a couple of pictures but that's
it, so I have no basis upon which to make any
informed comments or decisions or recommendations
today.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Does staff feel
comfortable -- Trustee Dent, I think, was thinking
that when the fascia pictures were shared with us
that we were also just seeing sort of basics of the
bar and the kitchen layout, but that wasn't
included.  

It is too preliminary at this point to
share it?

MS. NELSON:  I believe so.  I think
they're still working with the kitchen designer and
staff for layout, that kind of thing.  The
schematics that are being developed are very
preliminary.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I guess I would just
encourage staff to share with the Board, because I
think having input from the Board sooner rather than
later helps to keep the design costs down, and we
don't want to get to the end of a design phase and
then have board members saying, well, this doesn't
quite work for this reason or that reason.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  58
I think if there's some way to keep us

somewhat informed as we're going along, I think it
would be helpful, especially because you're going to
be giving us updates at every meeting.

MS. NELSON:  Um-hum.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  The next milestone is the

30 percent design schematics, and what I don't want
to see is the Board trying to micromanage every
little minutia piece.  I'm waiting for those 30
percent schematics, and then I think we can take
that and then provide any feedback at that point.  

But this weekly feedback, unless there's
questions that they have, I don't want get in the
way of staff and the contractors at this point.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Absolutely.  But the way
to keep costs down is to make sure that you're going
in with design constraints that you understand.  

This separation, that was an assumption
that was being made is that they could be comingled,
and when I discovered that, I thought I don't think
that is what the Board is asking for.  It's not
micromanagement; it's making sure that our design is
going to meet what we feel as a board we want for
the future.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I would just respectfully

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  59
disagree.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you for that.  
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I would just say I'm a

little bit concerned, I maybe misheard it, but I
heard some things, well, we can just open up the
funding now.  I think let's see the 30 percent
design at the agreed budget because we've judged all
the proposed vendors based on that.  I don't think
at this state we suddenly tell the vendors, no, it's
okay, we can suddenly rip through the budget.  I
think that would be unfair to the other contestants
as well.  

I would expect to see the 30 percent
design that comes to us at the end of the month
based on the existing budget.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I agree.  But I also don't
want a design coming back that doesn't meet basic
constraints about separation of food and the bar.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I totally agree.  I
think, to me, that's an essential to run the
operations effectively.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Is this sufficient
feedback and direction for you?

MS. NELSON:  Yeah, I believe so.  
We will just move forward, see what the

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  60
preliminary budgets come in at, and then we'll
update the Board at the next meeting.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All right.  Thank you.
E 4.  Project Savings Identified Verbal Report 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Verbal report and update
on the project savings identified for the Board for
the reappropriating of funds for the operating
account from the augmentation of the '23/'24 budget.  

MS. NELSON:  At the board meeting on
March 13th, the Board requested that staff find
savings and unused funds throughout the water
utility fund to cover the costs of the $300,000
increase to the distribution main and repair budget.

We did work with finance.  There was over
$278,000 in the Crystal Peak water line replacement
project, so we are requesting that the 300,000 be
helped with the $278,000 from that project.  

We also have the line item in the water
utility shared expense budget of $25,000 for the
portion of the utility rate study that we did not
move forward, so we will take the remainder, the
$22,000, from that budget to augment the water
transmission repair and maintenance budget.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Are there any questions?
Seeing none, that closes out agenda item

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 95 of 257



  61
E.  Would you like to move on to the consent
calendar or take a quick break first?
F.  CONSENT CALENDAR  

F 1.  Meeting Minutes for 3/6/24 Approval 
F 2.  Meeting Minutes for 3/13/24 Approval 
F 3.  Meeting Minutes for 3/28/24 Approval 
F 4.  Painting Interior of Chateau Approval 
F 5.  Mountain Golf Course Cart Barn Roof 
       Approval 
F 6.  IVGID Spooner Effluent Pump Station 

  Easement Amendments Approval 
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I would move that we

approve items F 1 through F 6, as recommended in the
agenda notice.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  There's a motion.  Is
there a second?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll second.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All those in favor?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Aye.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Aye.
The consent calendar is approved.  We will

take a short break, and we'll be back at 7:35 and
begin with former G 2.

(Recess from 7:23 p.m. to 7:35 p.m.)
G.  GENERAL BUSINESS 

G 1.  Alder Avenue Water Main Replacement 
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Beginning with new item G

1, formerly G 2, review, discuss, and approve a

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  62
construction contract for the water main replacement
on Alder Avenue and to authorize staff to execute
change orders if required up to 10 percent
additions.  

MS. NELSON:  For your consideration
tonight is the construction contract with Gerhardt &
Berry Construction.  The proposed work is to
eliminate approximately 1,300 linear feet of steel
line; 800 feet of that is within a private parcel
that does not currently have an easement, and the
remaining 500 feet is within the Northwood Boulevard
right-of-way.

The project consists of replacing
approximately 1,000 -- actually, installing new,
1,000 linear feet of PVC water main within the Alder
Avenue right-of-way.  This serves a couple of
benefits to the water system.  It provides
redundancy and loops the system where it connects to
dead ends, basically, so it will provide the
capacity needed to serve the fire flows as well as
domestic needs in that area.

At this time, I will turn it over to the
Board for any questions.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I have question about the
overall long-term project.  We talked about the data

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  63
sheet, did you put that information together?

MS. NELSON:  I ran out of time.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  The question I had asked

is since this is a multi-year project, we used to
get the data sheets, would say what the original
engineering estimate was, what we have spent to
date, where we are.  And this just only the talks
about the carryover as opposed to the bigger scope.  

And when this is done as a project
closure, you'll need to have that information
anyway, so I was just asking for that information.

MS. NELSON:  This is a multi-year project.
It is part of the water main replacement project.
We did separate it into design funds last
fiscal year and moving forward to construction.  And
I do apologize for not getting that completed.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I just was asking because
I was thinking you had it and forgot to share it.
That's really the only question I had.  I just
wanted to kind of know where we were in the overall
project plan that's this multi-year project.

No other questions?  Do I hear a motion
from the board?

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I would move to approve
the recommendation as it appears in now item G 1 of

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  64
the Board agenda.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Do I hear a second?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll second.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All those in favor?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Aye.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Aye.
Thank you.  Motion passes 3/0.  Moving on

to G 2, formerly G 3.  
G 2.  Skate Park Enhancement Project  

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Discuss and approve the
agreement for the 30 percent schematic design
contract for the skate park enhancement.

MS. NELSON:  Tonight I'm bringing forward
the 30 percent schematic design with Spohn Ranch.
The Public Works staff advertised for statements of
qualifications in January.  We had intended to open
those in early February, but we extended the time
frame because there was very little interest in the
project.  We did finally receive two design-build
firms that submitted packages, and Spohn Ranch was
the responsive package.  

Their work will include two designs; one
design for a 2,000-square foot project and another
design for a 4,000-square foot project.  The designs

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 96 of 257



  65
and cost estimates will be brought back to the Board
at the second meeting in June to advance the
project.  

On another important note, the extension
of time request for the grant has been approved by
Washoe County, and it's extended through December
31st of 2025.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you.  You answered
my question.

Questions?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  In terms of doing this

design, we're doing a 30 percent design first, and
then going to have to go out for bid for a hundred
percent, or will this just flow through?  It seems
quite an elaborate process, two-step process for a
relatively straightforward project.

MS. NELSON:  In the meeting, we were
directed by the Board to basically utilize the grant
funds at $250,000 or see what could happen if we
used $500,000, which was approved by the Board at
the May 25th board meeting.  That is why you see
this sort of two-step project.  

Once the designs are brought forward to
the Board, that will be at that meeting that you can
opt to go with design one, design two, or whatever

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  66
option you may come up with as a board.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Is there actually
sufficient space there for an extra 2,000-feet
extension given it's a fairly irregularly shaped
parcel?

MS. NELSON:  It is an irregularly shaped
parcel, but the area is larger than you visually see
due to, I think, overgrowth.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I don't have any further
questions.  You answered mine proactively.  Thank
you.

I'd like to take a motion.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I would move that we

approve the recommendations as they appear in item G
2 of the Board notice.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll second.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  A motion's been made and

seconded.  All those in favor?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Aye.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Aye.
Motion passes three to zero.
Moving on to new G 3, formerly G 4.  

G 3.  Full-Time Construction Inspection and 
Materials Testing 

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  67
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Review, discuss, and

approve an agreement for professional services for a
full-time construction inspection and materials
testing.  

MS. NELSON:  We are bringing forward the
contract with Construction Materials Engineers
for 24-hour, full-time inspection and materials
testing services to be completed during the 2024
construction season of the export pipeline project.

If there are any questions I can answer, I
am here.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Is this just for the
coming construction season?

MS. NELSON:  Correct.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Is there a reason this

is not just covering the rest, the following two
construction seasons as well?

MS. NELSON:  Staff has taken the position
that we, you know, we used one company last season,
we went out for RFPs again this season, and we would
like to keep our options open based on the overall
performance during the construction season.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Okay.  How did the
pricing compare?

MS. NELSON:  The pricing is more than it

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  68
was last season, but last season we did not work
July and August.  This year, we are working through
July and August.  Comparatively, it's about, based
on schedule, it comes in fairly equally.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Okay.  So the cost
per hour is fairly similar?

MS. NELSON:  Correct.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Any other questions?

Would anyone care to make a motion?
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I would move that we

approve the recommendations as they appear in item G
3 of the Board notice.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll second.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All in favor?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Aye.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Aye.
Motion carries.  Thank you.  Moving on to

new G 4, formerly G 5.
G 5.  Bargaining Unit Negotiations, Kamer Zuker 

Abbott Engagement  
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Review, discuss, and

approve a letter of engagement for labor and
employment legal services.  

MR. MAGEE:  The next item on tonight's

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 97 of 257



  69
agenda is consideration of a letter of engagement
for labor and employment legal services with Kamer
Zuker Abbott for bargaining unit negotiation
purposes.  As a matter of best practice, it is
recommended that the District use a professional
labor negotiator with the requisite experience to
act on behalf of the District as the lead
negotiator.  

Staff first reached out to BBK to see if
their firm had any available attorneys with both the
experience and capacity to act on the District's
behalf.  BBK did not have anybody readily available;
however, they did make a referral for Mr. Scott
Abbott.  

Director of Human Resources Erin Feore
thoroughly vetted the law firm, and Mr. Abbott
specifically, both Ms. Feore and myself are
recommending his services.  

Initially Mr. Abbott's firm requested to
hold the engagement letter as confidential, and the
staff report as presented recommends --
recommendations reflected that request.
Subsequently, the firm has agreed to attaching the
engagement letter as supplemental material, which
the Board received earlier today.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  70
The recommended action tonight includes a

little bit of a change, and we're asking that the
Board direct staff to sign the engagement letter,
and then also to direct staff to have a
not-to-exceed, total contract amount of $50,000
without returning to the Board with updates on the
status of negotiations.  And if there were
protracted negotiations at that point, we would need
to ask for an additional amount, but that's what we
are recommending to the Board at this time.  

Ms. Feore and I are available to answer
any questions that the Board may have.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Are there questions from
either of you?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Couple questions.  Do we
realistically think that the 50,000 is going to
cover it?

MR. MAGEE:  I believe that based on
current information we have that will be enough to
cover it.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Second question is does
this come out of the general fund, or which District
operation covers the union staff primarily?

MR. MAGEE:  This is very likely to come
out of a number of funds.  We do believe that each

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  71
fund, it would be appropriate for them to pay their
fair share.  

At this time, we believe that we have
existing appropriations that we can cover this, no
matter where it is, however where this ultimately
gets paid for will be determined through the course
of negotiations.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I just wanted to make
sure it was not just being picked by the general
fund, but it's been allocated appropriately.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I have a question,
probably does go to Director Feore.  In years past,
roughly how many hours has this labor negotiation
process taken in the past?

MS. FEORE:  Last year, we were on track
for having approximately four meetings, each meeting
lasting anywhere from an hour to an hour and a half
or two hours if we had more folks that we were
speaking to.  And what we had done at the beginning
of that meeting was we kind of set up a playbook,
we're going to have four meetings, this is how we're
going to design this, everybody agreed to the terms,
and then we moved forward.

That was the only year that since I've
been with the District that I was involved in that.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  72
I do know that there was one year in the past where
I believe it did end up going to mediation, but that
was -- I hope I'm not speaking out of turn, but I
believe that was in 2020, 2019, or something like
that.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Last year, I do recall --
probably last year and maybe the prior negotiation
as well -- there was all of management, the director
of finance was there, the director of HR, will that
still be the case if we hire this attorney or will
the attorney be handling things themselves?

MS. FEORE:  The attorney would be -- as
General Manager Magee and I have discussed, the
attorney would be designated as the lead negotiator,
and then I would be present to help facilitate the
meetings.  Then there would be meetings with those
folks, the Director of Public Works, the Assistant
Director of Finance, General Manager Magee, and
myself would talk about our side of the table, and
then we would go back.  

But in the actual meetings, I believe the
design was that I would be there as the facilitator
to help move the meetings along.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  So it might be a more
effective use because staff time isn't being

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 98 of 257



  73
consumed?  

MS. FEORE:  Very much so.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  It might be an offset

there.
MS. FEORE:  Right.  And we'll know a

little bit more once we have had an opportunity to
engage with this firm and with Mr. Scott Abbott
himself.  We'll get an idea of what his
recommendations are, and then we can always make
sure that we keep the Board informed as to that as
well.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Who is directing his
efforts, is that the General Manager?

MR. MAGEE:  Ultimately, we'll accept
direction from the full Board, and that's what will
be presented to the lead negotiator.  But, yes, I'll
be coordinating his efforts along with Ms. Feore.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you.  I appreciate
that.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Just a quick one.
Director Feore, did I hear you say General Manager
Magee will not be directly involved in the
negotiations; is that correct?

MS. FEORE:  He won't be in the room as
we're working through the negotiations, but he

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  74
absolutely will be involved in that when it comes to
engaging with staff as to IVGID's requests and their
part of the negotiations, that is where General
Manager Magee, Assistant Director of Finance Adam
Cripps, and interim Director of Public Works Kate
Nelson would be in the room to discuss.  

So it's far more limited.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Excellent.  That was

what I was hoping for.  I was very uncomfortable
last year when we had the general manager directly
in the negotiations because then there's nowhere to
go to.  With the general manager out of the
negotiations, there's always a reason to take things
back and avoid making decisions on the fly.

Thank you.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Would anyone care to make

a motion?
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I move that we approve the

recommendations as they appear in item G 4, along
with the directive for staff to ensure that the
language in the engagement letter is updated to note
that the agreement will not exceed $50,000 without
further approval from the Board of Trustees.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I'll second.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  75
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  All those in favor?
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Aye.
TRUSTEE NOBLE:  Aye.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Aye.
Motion passes three to zero.  Moving on to

item H.  
H.  REDACTIONS FOR PENDING PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I don't believe we have
any.  
I.  LONG RANGE CALENDAR 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  We will go on to the long
range calendar on pages 590 through 594 of the board
packet.

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  I just highlight the last
item, consideration of a donation to Red, White, and
Tahoe Blue.  There is a request that has come in,
and I would just ask that staff evaluate the request
and bring back a recommendation at the next board
meeting on whether or not that's something that is
worth pursuing.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I hear you.  
Sergio, one of things that came -- was

brought to my attention by another trustee is that
they were concerned that this would violate Dillon's
Rule.  So can we have legal at least evaluate this

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  76
before we have staff spending time on it?

MR. RUDIN:  I have looked into that issue
already.  I'm not concerned about it from the aspect
of Dillon's Rule.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Would this potentially
come from the beach fund or would this be coming out
of the general fund?

MR. MAGEE:  I also received the request
for this consideration.  We have not evaluated it
any further at this point.  We have not looked into
where this would be coming from.  Unless we hear
different from the Board tonight, we intend to
evaluate that over the next couple of weeks and
bring a recommendation forward related to the
request that has been received on the April 24th
meeting.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Has a specific amount been
specifically requested?  

MR. MAGEE:  Yes, it has.  
Sergio, can I disclose that this time,

what the request was for?  
MR. RUDIN:  (Inaudible response.)
MR. MAGEE:  The request was for a donation

to Red, White, and Tahoe Blue in an amount of
$25,000.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 99 of 257



  77
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  And that would be over and

above our staff dealing with 4th of July, which I
know is a cost to the District as well.

MR. MAGEE:  That is correct.  The request
was for the monetary donation to support the event.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Okay.  All right.  Thank
you.

I'm going to hand it over to the General
Manager because I know that he has been diligently
taking notes as we've gone on with this meeting, and
he and I reviewed the long range calendar today and
made some additional updates.  I'm going to hand the
floor over to him.

MR. MAGEE:  One of the things that I will
note that has changed on the April 24th meeting, it
currently shows the adoption of the final budget.
That's definitely incorrect, we will not be bringing
forward a request to adopt the final budget before
the Board has had an opportunity to even look at the
thing.  That's going to be pushed, and we'll have
some thoughts on when we'll actually bring those
items forward at a later date.  We have been working
with the Chair, I'm trying to pin down some specific
dates that are in full compliance in the NRS and the
direction we have received from the Nevada

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  78
Department of Taxation.  

As the Board noted earlier tonight, one of
the things that I've requested the Public Works
staff bring forward at each meeting is a Beach House
project update.  I've heard from all of the trustees
that there is significant interest among all
five trustees in knowing where that project's at.
And so we've requested that they continue to bring
these types of reports forward and seek direction
and any input from the full Board.

And with that, if there's anything else
that the Board would like to see moved around, moved
up, re-prioritized, I'm happy to receive any
direction at this time.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Thank you.
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Can I ask that we move

the CIC recommendations to the capital policy back
to the May meeting?  I'm looking at my calendar over
the next few weeks, probably move that back to
the 8th of May.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I'm confused on that
because I believe staff was bringing that forward;
correct?  Are you saying that you want to have that
reviewed by the CIC before coming back to the Board?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  I wasn't aware this was

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  79
a recommendation coming from staff.  It's the first
I've heard of it.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I thought that staff had
shared a draft with all of us for input.  Am I
mistaken?

MR. MAGEE:  No, you are not mistaken.  We
did send out the policy to the full Board, and we
asked if there was any thoughts or comments back to
staff that we would be happy to consider individual
thoughts before putting together what will
ultimately be the final staff recommendation on
this.  

Staff has continued to work on putting
this together, and I think that moving it back to
the May 8th meeting would be appropriate given where
it's at at this time, though.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I think the confusion is
is it going to the CIC or is this coming from staff?
That's what I'm trying to get clarified with Trustee
Tulloch.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Forgive me.  Yeah, if
this went out, I've missed it somewhere.  Perhaps it
could be re-sent or advise me when it was re-sent,
General Manager Magee.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  And were you -- Trustee

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  80
Tulloch, were you wanting the CIC to weigh in on
this?  It was a draft that finance took a leadership
role on.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Yeah, I can't say at
this moment because without reviewing the draft,
it's hard to say.  I've obviously missed the draft
somewhere, so if somebody can advise me what date it
was sent.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  It was some time ago.
I'll ask General Manager Magee if he could please
have staff resend it to -- do you need to resend it
to potentially all of the Trustees?  Did you get any
feedback from any Trustees?

MR. MAGEE:  I have received feedback from
a couple of Trustees, yes, already.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Okay.  All right.  Thank
you.

MR. MAGEE:  But we're happy to resend it
to Trustee Tulloch.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Then my question is on the
24th, the golf club recommendations, I want to be
clear, this is not recommendations from the golf
club.  This is trying to make more transparent the
agreement between golf clubs and the District.  

And that is something -- is legal counsel

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 100 of 257



  81
bringing that forward, is staff bringing that
forward?  Because I don't believe it's Trustee
Tonking any longer.  

MR. MAGEE:  The intention is that General
Manager of Golf Tim Sands would be bringing that
forward.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Okay.  Great.  Thank you
for the clarification.

I don't have any other comments or
feedback, and hopefully you captured the public
records requests and a couple of the other things
that we talked about tonight.  If you can just let
Heidi know, that would be terrific.  

Is there anything else on long range
calendar?

Seeing none, we'll move on to Board of
Trustees updates.
J.  BOARD OF TRUSTEE UPDATES 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Trustee Tulloch, do you
have an update from the CIC?

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  No update at this stage.
Thank you.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Okay.  What about the
Audit Committee at this point?  We have interviews
coming up -- correct? -- on the 24th.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  82
TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  That is correct.  We'll

delay the next Audit Committee meeting until the
appointments are made.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I believe that we'll have
to do a little bit of research to just clarify terms
because when Trustee Tulloch was on the Audit
Committee, then he became a trustee, so we'll just
have to identify whether both of these are for
two-year terms or if one is a one-year term and one
is a two-year term because there are two positions
on the audit committee that we would potentially be
appointing on the 24th.  

Have we had applicants coming in?
MR. MAGEE:  Yes, we've had a tremendous

amount of interest in this.  And we have received
some exceptionally well-qualified individuals for
the committee and the Board to consider.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Do we need to set a
specific time for those interviews at the meeting on
the 24th?  Do we want to start it at the very
beginning?  I mean, I want to be respectful of
people's time.  

MR. MAGEE:  Sure.  We can certainly do
that.

TRUSTEE TULLOCH:  Just with regard to

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  83
two-year and one-year positions.  My recollection is
when we started the audit committee, the only reason
probably for having one of the positions as a
one-year position was to make sure that we got a
regular rotation, we didn't all three been appointed
or are leaving at the same time.  My recollection
was that the Audit Committee charter was that, going
forward, all the positions would become two years,
provided there wasn't a case of all three terms
surviving at the same time.

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  You are correct.  And we
will have to look and see when Mr. Brandle's term is
up because that might be the staggered year.  Good
call on that.  Thank you.

Trustee Noble, any updates on Snowflake
Lodge or the housing?

TRUSTEE NOBLE:  No.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  I don't have any updates

that I jotted down.  That's concludes the Trustee
updates.  I believe we move on to final public
comment.
K.  FINAL PUBLIC COMMENT 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Seeing no public comments
in the room, do we have any online?

MS. KNAAK:  Hi.  This is Yolanda Knaak.  

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  84
It was a good meeting.  I wanted to get

more information, if you could put out to the public
more information on the request of the Red, White,
and Tahoe Blue financial donation.  I know -- I
thought that group had some financial issues in the
past, and so I wanted to get more information on
that.  

Thank you so much.
MS. DOBLER:  Hi.  This is Ellie Dobler,

995 Fairway.  
In my past 30 years in Incline, I

volunteered to be treasurer for various
organizations in town.  I have a strong math
background and am a graduate of UCLA, familiar with
both Quicken and Quick Books for reporting purposes.  

When I presented my first treasurer's
report to -- I believe it was the Mountain Niners
golf group, I asked for approval of the report.  I
was then corrected by the board chair stating that
the report can only be accepted but not approved
until someone reviewed it.

So when the Department of Taxation
accepted our unaudited financials that were
delivered the night before, it does not mean that
they are approved.  Understand the difference.  They

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 101 of 257



  85
were delivered, they were accepted not approved.
Had they been approved, they wouldn't be requesting
another meeting in August of this year.

Thank you very much.
MR. DOBLER:  This is Cliff Dobler, 995

Fairway.
I'd like to talk a little bit about this

capital projects as we get started into the new
budget.  Now, first of all, tonight you approved
that Alder water pipeline.  There was
a million-two-fifty budget, the project is only
going to cost $700,000.  The $550,000 should have
been put back into the reserves, but instead -- and
probably you didn't look at -- the staff is
suggesting that it be carried over into next year.
Now, that's no consistency with what has happened in
the past, and my biggest objection is how many times
do we have to tell staff that it goes into the
reserves and not to be carried over into
another year.  

Now, when I was in the committee meeting
last week, I stated that the carryover projects were
getting quite substantial.  I said it was somewhere
around 20 million.  Indeed, it was even more than
that with 23 million.  $23 million.  And when Ms.

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  86
Nelson turns around and tells me, well, you know, if
we take out the big projects, it's only like $4- or
$5 million, that really doesn't matter.  What
matters is you got 95 to 100 projects that are being
carried forward, and my experience of seven years in
being with IVGID is they don't have the capacity to
do ten.  Five, maybe.

So I think we need to get this carryover
under control.  And you may want to adjust a policy
position on that because I've seen three instances
where they try to bring on an ice skating rink and
try to bring in $4 million for tennis courts, and
and this $550,000 they want to plug into next year.
And they want to plug it in for future water mains.
Well, we know from what we were told tonight that we
got 116 miles of water mains that are in C
condition, so I make you a bet we could have 50 to
75 million that we're going to have to be replacing
over the next four to five years.  Let's get serious
about this capital projects and carryovers.  

I guess the last thing I want to say is
photographs don't do anything.  Why don't these
engineers sit down and do a graphic plan and attach
that so we kind of know what we're talking about?
You got a picture of a fence with a tree over it,

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  87
and you say we've got to spend $450,000 to repair
this fence.  You don't know how long it is, you
don't know anything about it.  The idea is if the
engineer sat down and actually designed a schematic
and put it in there, someone might actually know
what the hell they're --

(Expiration of three minutes.)
MATT:  That was our last caller, Chair.
CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Any other public comments

in the room?
L.  ADJOURNMENT 

CHAIR SCHMITZ:  Seeing none, we will
adjourn tonight's meeting at 8:10 p.m.  Thank you
all.  Thank you staff.  

(Meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m.)

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

  88
STATE OF NEVADA ) 

)  ss. 
COUNTY OF WASHOE ) 

 
I, BRANDI ANN VIANNEY SMITH, do hereby 

certify: 
That I was present on April 10, 2024, at 

the Board of Trustees public meeting, via Zoom, and 
took stenotype notes of the proceedings entitled 
herein, and thereafter transcribed the same into 
typewriting as herein appears. 

That the foregoing transcript is a full, 
true, and correct transcription of my stenotype 
notes of said proceedings consisting of 88 pages, 
inclusive. 

DATED:  At Reno, Nevada, this day of 17th 
day of April, 2024. 
 

    /s/ Brandi Ann Vianney Smith 
 

 
___________________________ 
BRANDI ANN VIANNEY SMITH 

 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 102 of 257



INVOICE
BAVS SM-LLC

brandiavsmith@gmail.com
United States

BILL TO
Incline Village General Improvement
District
Susan Herron / Heidi White

775-832-1218
AP@ivgid.org

Invoice Number: IVGID 35

Invoice Date: April 17, 2024

Payment Due: May 10, 2024

Amount Due (USD): $878.00

Items Quantity Price Amount

Base fee
April 10, 2024 BOT meeting

1 $350.00 $350.00

Per page fee
April 10, 2024 BOT meeting

88 $6.00 $528.00

Subtotal: $878.00

Total: $878.00

Amount Due (USD): $878.00

Page 103 of 257



Page 104 of 257



Page 105 of 257



Page 106 of 257



Page 107 of 257



Page 108 of 257



Page 109 of 257



Page 110 of 257



Page 111 of 257



Page 112 of 257



Page 113 of 257



Page 114 of 257



Page 115 of 257



 ITEM G.2. 
M E M O R A N D U M 

  
TO: Board of Trustees 
  
THROUGH: Bobby Magee, District General Manager 
  
FROM: Kate Nelson, Interim Director of Public Works 
  
SUBJECT: Review, Discuss and Approve Amendment 3 for Clean Tahoe's 

Contract Services to Extend for an Additional Year in the Amount of 
$44,000; Fund: Solid Waste; Division: Utilities #20002738-7330. 
(Requesting Staff Member: Interim Director of Public Works Kate 
Nelson).  

  
RELATED FY 2023 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
BUDGET INITIATIVE(S): 

LONG RANGE PRINCIPLE #1 - SERVICE 
The District will provide superior quality service 
through responsible stewardship of District 
resources and assets with an emphasis on the 
parcel owner and customer experience. 
 
LONG RANGE PRINCIPLE #2 – RESOURCES 
AND ENVIRONMENT 
Initiating and maintaining effective practices of 
environmental sustainability for a healthy 
environment, a strong community and a lasting 
legacy. 

  
RELATED DISTRICT 
POLICIES, PRACTICES, 
RESOLUTIONS OR 
ORDINANCES 

Ordinance #1 - Solid Waste 

  
DATE: April 24, 2024 
 

 
 
I. RECOMMENDATION  
Review, Discuss and Approve: 

1. Amendment 3 for Clean Tahoe's Contract Services to Extend for an 
Additional Year in the Amount of $44,000; and, 

2. Direct the General Manager to Sign and Execute the Amendment. 

  

Page 116 of 257



 
II. BACKGROUND  
Several agencies, including IVGID have formed the Clean Tahoe Multi-
Jurisditional Program as "Funding Partners" to enhance litter and garbage 
management services in the Lake Tahoe Basin and surrounding areas. Each 
Funding Partner has a separate Agreement with Clean Tahoe for litter abatement 
and garbage services to address their specific services, terms, conditions, and 
compensation schedule. 
 
The District has contracted with Clean Tahoe for field services since FY 2021/22. 
 Clean Tahoe field services include solid waste field response and enforcement 
duties in accordance with Solid Waste Ordinance 1. Amendment 3 will continue 
these services from July 1, 2024, to June 30, 2025 (Attachment 1).   
  
Clean Tahoe's scope has been specifically tailored for duties previously 
performed by the former Public Works Solid Waste Technician, and includes 
office support for "one stop field call," multiple customer contacts, violation 
documentation, site cleanup, three site visits per client, and initial paperwork 
processing.  The work conducted by Clean Tahoe has allowed for responsive 
action regarding reported trash spills; has provided extensive information on 
route conditions, equipment conditions and provided quick response to reported 
spills; provided site cleanups, customer service response and site 
documentation. Administrative tasks have been conducted professionally and in 
a timely manner. Required documentation of activities and actions has been 
provided. The vendor is maintaining excellent customer service with both IVGID 
and the public, allowing for continued successful enforcement of IVGID 
Ordinance 1. Other regional jurisdictions are renewing separate scopes as a 
partnership addressing litter abatement, illegal dumping and other regional trash 
concerns under the Clean Tahoe Multi-Jurisdictional Program. 
  
Public Works staff recommends approval of Amendment 3 for Clean Tahoe 
(Attachment 1) to extend the contract for an additional 1-year term in the total 
amount of $44,000 for 500 service hours, billed at $88/hour.  The contract 
amount has increased by $4,000 this year for a total expenditure of $44,000.   
 
In accordance with Board Policy 3.1.0. Subsection 0.4, this item is included on 
the Consent Calendar as it is routine business of the District.  
 
III. BID RESULTS  
Not Applicable 
 
IV. FINANCIAL IMPACT AND BUDGET  
This item has been included in the proposed FY 2024/25 Fund: Solid Waste; 
Division: Utilities #20002738-7330 budget line item. 
 
V. ALTERNATIVES  
Not approve the continuation of this contract. 

Page 117 of 257



 
VI. COMMENTS  
Amendment 3 has been reviewed and approved by the District's Legal Counsel.  
 
VII. BUSINESS IMPACT/BENEFIT  
This item is not a "rule" within the meaning of Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 
237, and does not require a Business Impact Statement.   
 
VIII. ATTACHMENTS  
1. 2024 Clean Tahoe Amendment  
 
IX. DECISION POINTS NEEDED FROM THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES   
 

Page 118 of 257



Clean Tahoe, Inc. Amendment 3 to SFA Dated May 13, 2021 Page 1 of 2

AMENDMENT NO. 3
TO SHORT FORM AGREEMENT DATED MAY 13, 2021 

BETWEEN 
INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

AND 
CLEAN TAHOE, INC.

This Amendment No. 3 to the Short Form Agreement dated May 13, 2021 (“Amendment”) is made
and entered into as of by and between the Incline Village
General Improvement District (“District”) and Clean Tahoe, Inc., a California corporation 
(“Consultant”).  District and Consultant are sometimes individually referred to as “Party” and 
collectively as “Parties.”

Recitals
A. Original Agreement.  On May 13, 2021, the Parties have entered into a Short Form Agreement

for contract field enforcement of IVGID’s Solid Waste Ordinance 1, and as amended by
previous instruments dated June 10, 2022 and April 4, 2023 (“Original Agreement”), which is
incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth herein, for the purpose of District retaining
Consultant to provide the Services set forth therein.

B. Amendment Purpose.  District and Consultant wish to amend the Original Agreement to
extend the Original Agreement’s Period of Service for an additional year.

Amendment

Now therefore, the Parties hereby modify the Original Agreement as follows:

1. Definitions. All capitalized terms used in this Amendment not defined in this Amendment 
shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Original Agreement if defined in the Original 
Agreement.

2. Compensation: Amount of Compensation for this Amendment will be Forty-Four Thousand
Dollars ($44,000), to be billed in quarterly payments of $11,000 each; with payment to
Contractor per Article 4 of the Original Agreement.

3. Continuing Effect of Agreement.  All provisions of the Original Agreement otherwise remain in
full force and effect and are reaffirmed.  From and after the date of this Amendment, whenever
the term “Agreement” appears in the Original Agreement, it shall mean the Original Agreement
as amended by this Amendment.

a. This contract will be effective July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025.

4. Adequate Consideration.  The Parties hereto irrevocably stipulate and agree that they have
each received adequate and independent consideration for the performance of the obligations
they have undertaken pursuant to this Amendment.

5. Severability.  If any portion of this Amendment is declared invalid, illegal, or otherwise
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall continue in
full force and effect.

Page 119 of 257



Clean Tahoe, Inc. Amendment 3 to SFA Dated May 13, 2021 Page 2 of 2

OWNER: 
INCLINE VILLAGE G. I. D.

CONTRACTOR:  
CLEAN TAHOE, INC.

Agreed to: Agreed to:

By: By:

District General Manager
Signature of Authorized Agent

Print or Type Name and Title

Date

Reviewed as to Form:
Date

Sergio Rudin
District General Counsel

If Contractor is a corporation, attach 
evidence of authority to sign.

Date

Signature of Authorized Agent

Page 120 of 257



 ITEM G.3. 
M E M O R A N D U M 

  
TO: Board of Trustees 
  
THROUGH: Bobby Magee, District General Manager 
  
FROM: Kate Nelson, Interim Director of Public Works 
  
SUBJECT: Review, Discuss and Approve: 

1. The Professional Services Agreement for the Capital 
Improvement Water Main Replacement Alder Avenue 
#2299WS1802 Project with DOWL LLC for Construction 
Services in the Amount of $11,570; and, 

2. The Professional Services Agreement for the Capital 
Improvement Water Main Replacement Alder Avenue 
#2299WS1802 Project with Black Eagle Consulting Inc for 
Construction Materials Testing in the Amount of $7,600; 
Project 2023/24 Capital Improvement Water Main Replacment 
Alder Avenue #2299WS1802; Fund: Utilities; Division: Water. 
(Requesting Staff Member: Interim Director of Public Works 
Kate Nelson) 

  
RELATED FY 2023 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
BUDGET INITIATIVE(S): 

LONG RANGE PRINCIPLE #5 – ASSETS AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
The District will practice perpetual asset 
renewal, replacement and improvement to 
provide safe and superior long term utility 
services and recreation venues, facilities, and 
services. 

  
RELATED DISTRICT 
POLICIES, PRACTICES, 
RESOLUTIONS OR 
ORDINANCES 

Board Policy 12.1.0 Multi-year Capital Planning; 
Board Policy 21.2.0 Purchasing Policy for Public 
Works Contracts 

  
DATE: April 24, 2024 
 

 
 
I. RECOMMENDATION  
That the Board of Trustees make a motion to: 

1. Approve the Professional Services Agreement with DOWL LLC for 

Page 121 of 257



construction services associated with the Alder Avenue Water Main 
Replacement Project - CIP #2299WS1802 in the amount of $11,570; and, 

2. Approve the Professional Services Agreement with Black Eagle 
Consulting, Inc. for the materials testing and inspection associated with the 
Alder Avenue Water Main Replacement - CIP #2299WS1802 in the 
amount of $7,600; and,  

3. Direct the General Manager to sign and execute the Agreements. 

  
 
II. BACKGROUND  
The Alder Avenue Water Main Replacement Project is a FY 2023/24 Capital 
Improvement Project (Project). The Design Agreement with DOWL was approved 
in November 2023 via the expedited Contract Urgency Review Form (CURF) 
process, and the Construction Contract with Gerhardt and Berry Construction 
was approved at the April 10, 2024, Board of Trustees meeting (Item G.2). The 
Project consists of the installation of approximately 1,000 linear feet (LF) of new 
water main and appurtenances within the Alder Avenue right-of-way. 
 
DOWL was previously tasked with Water Modeling, Surveying and Design/Bid 
preparation on the Project. Since DOWL has been solicited to perform these 
other stages, they were chosen to continue with Construction Services during the 
construction phase of the Project. DOWL's Construction Services responsibilities 
will include: provide a conformed set of plans and specifications to issue for 
construction; review material submittals from the Contractor; respond to requests 
for information throughout construction; periodically make site visits; conduct 
Substantial Completion and Punch-List inspections at the end of construction; 
provide As-Built and Record drawings. 
 
A critical aspect of project success is related to quality control. This refers to the 
oversight of the contractor and their construction activities and documentation 
necessary to demonstrate compliance with both technical and regulatory 
specifications (Washoe County and IVGID). 
 
Black Eagle's responsibilities for quality control tasks include: inspection of all 
backfill materials upon delivery and during on-site handling/installation; testing of 
backfill, aggregates and asphalt during placement and compaction. Staff does 
not have the necessary resources to complete all the responsibilities required to 
meet regulatory material testing requirements. Therefore, a third party consultant 
is required to perform all material testing both on the work site and in a 
laboratory.  
 
The proposed Professional Services Agreement with DOWL LLC is included as 
Attachment 1 and the proposed Professional Services Agreement with Black 
Eagle Consulting Inc is included as Attachment 2.  
 
III. BID RESULTS  

Page 122 of 257



The scope of work for each Professional Service Agreement for DOWL and 
Black Eagle Consulting are not subject to competitive solicitation pursuant to 
NRS 332.115.1(b). 
 
DOWL is the most suitable consultant for design-related Construction Services 
as they are the Engineer of Record for this project. 
 
IV. FINANCIAL IMPACT AND BUDGET  
The Alder Ave Water Main Replacement Project, CIP #2299WS1802, is included 
in the Board-approved FY 2023/24 CIP Budget (Item G.7 and G.9, 5/25/2023), 
with a Total Project Budget of $1,250,000. The Cost Estimate for the entire 
Project, from Design Phase through Construction, is approximately $691,735. 
 
The Table below presents the Approved and Proposed Project Cost for the Alder 
Avenue Water Main Replacement Project: 
 
 

Task Budget Comment 

District Project 
Management & 
Construction Inspection 

$50,000 Initial project start up 
through project 
completion 

Construction by Gerhardt 
& Berry 

$483,604 Approved 4/10/2023 

Contract Contingency 
(~10%) 

$48,500 Approved 4/10/2023 

DOWL (Survey) $12,881 Completed 

DOWL (Water Modeling) $7,000 Completed 

DOWL (Design and 
Bidding Services) 

$70,580 Completed 

DOWL (Construction 
Services) 

$11,570 Pending 

Black Eagle Consulting 
(Material Testing) 

$7,600 Pending 

Project Total: $691,735 N/A 
 
The difference between the initial Project budget and the total Project budget 
(following closeout) will be returned to the Water Main Replacement - Future CIP 
Budget (#2299WS1803). 
  
 
V. ALTERNATIVES  
There are no alternatives presented. The materials testing and inspection 

Page 123 of 257



services are required for Washoe County Encroachment Permit compliance. 
 
VI. COMMENTS  
The Agreements have been reviewed and approved by the District's Legal 
Counsel.  
 
VII. BUSINESS IMPACT/BENEFIT  
This Item is not a "Rule" within the meaning of Nevada Revised Statutes, 
Chapter 237, and does not require a Business Impact Statement.  
 
VIII. ATTACHMENTS  
1. 2024-04-25 - Black Eagle Professional Services Agreement Alder Avenue 

Matl's Testing 
2. 2024-04-25 Professional Services Agreement Alder Avenue Matl's Testing 
 
IX. DECISION POINTS NEEDED FROM THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES   
 

Page 124 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 1 

INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

1. PARTIES AND DATE.

This Agreement is made and entered into as of April 25, 2024 by and between the Incline Village 
General Improvement District, a Nevada general improvement district (“District”) and Black Eagle 
Consulting, Inc., a domestic corporation with its principal place of business at 1345 Capital 
Boulevard, Suite A in Reno, Nevada (“Consultant”).  The District and Consultant are sometimes 
individually referred to as “Party” and collectively as “Parties.” 

2. RECITALS.

2.1 District.  District is a general improvement district organized under the laws of the State of 
Nevada, with power to contract for services necessary to achieve its purpose. 

2.2 Consultant.  Consultant desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of 
certain professional services required by the District on the terms and conditions set forth 
in this Agreement.  Consultant represents that it is experienced in providing construction 
materials testing and inspection services to public clients, is licensed in the State of 
Nevada, and is familiar with the plans of District. 

2.3 Project.  District desires to engage Consultant to provide materials testing and inspection 
services during the District’s Alder Avenue Water Line Improvements Project ("Project”). 

3. TERMS.

3.1 Scope of Services and Term.

3.1.1 General Scope of Services.  Consultant promises and agrees to furnish to the District, all 
labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work necessary 
to fully and adequately supply materials testing and inspection services necessary for the 
Project (“Services”).  The types of services to be provided are more particularly described 
in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  All Services shall be 
subject to, and performed in accordance with this Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference, and all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules 
and regulations.  As described in Section 3.3, the District shall pay for such services in 
accordance with the Schedule of Charges set forth in Exhibit B.  

3.1.2 Term. The term of this Agreement shall be from May 1, 2024 to , 2024, unless 
earlier terminated as provided herein.  The Parties may, by mutual written consent, extend 
the term of this Agreement if necessary to complete the Project.   

3.2 Responsibilities of Consultant. 

3.2.1 Control and Payment of Subordinates; Independent Contractor.  The Services shall be 
performed by Consultant or under its supervision.  Consultant will determine the means, 
methods and details of performing the Services subject to the requirements of this 

Page 125 of 257

LLC



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 2 

Agreement and such directions and amendments from District as herein provided.  The 
District retains Consultant on an independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  
No employee or agent of Consultant shall become an employee of District.  Any additional 
personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of Consultant shall 
also not be employees of the District and shall at all times be under Consultant’s exclusive 
direction and control.  Consultant shall pay all wages, salaries, and other amounts due 
such personnel in connection with their performance of Services under this Agreement 
and as required by law.  Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and obligations 
respecting such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security taxes, 
income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers’ 
compensation insurance. 

3.2.2 Schedule of Services.  Consultant shall perform its services in a prompt and timely manner 
within the term of this Agreement and shall commence performance upon receipt of written 
notice from the District to proceed (“Notice to Proceed”).  The Notice to Proceed shall set 
forth the date of commencement of work. 

3.2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements.  All work prepared by Consultant shall be 
subject to the District’s approval. 

3.2.4 Substitution of Key Personnel.  Consultant has represented to the District that certain key 
personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement.  Should one or 
more of such personnel become unavailable, Consultant may substitute other personnel 
of at least equal competence subject to the District’s written approval.  In the event that 
the District and Consultant cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, the District 
shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement for cause.  As discussed below, any 
personnel who fail or refuse to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the District, 
or who are determined by the District to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the 
adequate or timely completion of the Project or a threat to the safety of persons or 
property, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant at the request of 
the District.  The key personnel for performance of this Agreement are as follows: Tyler 
Hough. 

3.2.5 District’s Representative.  The District hereby designates Interim Engineering Manager 
Hudson Klein or his designee to act as its representative for the performance of this 
Agreement (“District’s Representative”).  The District’s Representative shall have the 
power to act on behalf of the District for all purposes under this Contract.  Consultant shall 
not accept direction or orders from any person other than the District’s Representative or 
her designee. 

3.2.6 Consultant’s Representative.  Consultant hereby designates Tyler Hough, or their 
designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (“Consultant’s 
Representative”).  Consultant’s Representative shall have full authority to represent and 
act on behalf of the Consultant for all purposes under this Agreement.  The Consultant’s 
Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, using his best skill and attention, 
and shall be responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures 
and for the satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.7 Coordination of Services.  Consultant agrees to work closely with the District staff in the 
performance of Services and shall be available to the District’s staff, consultants and other 
staff at all reasonable times. 

Page 126 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 3 

3.2.8 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees.  Consultant shall perform all Services 
under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with the standards 
generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the 
State of Nevada.  Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional 
calling necessary to perform the Services.  Consultant warrants that all employees and 
subcontractors shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned 
to them.  Finally, Consultant represents that it, its employees and subcontractors have all 
licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required 
to perform the Services, including a Washoe County Business License, and that such 
licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement.  As 
provided for in the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, Consultant shall perform, 
at its own cost and expense and without reimbursement from the District, any services 
necessary to correct errors or omissions which are caused by the Consultant’s failure to 
comply with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any employee of the Consultant or 
its sub-consultants who is determined by the District to be uncooperative, incompetent, a 
threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat to the safety of persons 
or property, or any employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services in a manner 
acceptable to the District, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant 
and shall not be re-employed to perform any of the Services or to work on the Project. 

3.2.9 Laws and Regulations.  Consultant shall keep itself fully informed of and in compliance 
with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting the 
performance of the Project or the Services, and shall give all notices required by law.  If 
required, Consultant shall assist District, as requested, in obtaining and maintaining all 
permits required of Consultant by federal, state and local regulatory agencies.  Consultant 
shall be liable for all violations of local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in 
connection with the Project and the Services.  If the Consultant performs any work knowing 
it to be contrary to such laws, rules and regulations and without giving written notice to the 
District, Consultant shall be solely responsible for all costs arising therefrom.  Consultant 
shall defend, indemnify and hold the District, its officials, directors, officers, employees 
and agents free and harmless, pursuant to the indemnification provisions of this 
Agreement, from any claim or liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply 
with such laws, rules or regulations. 

3.2.10 Insurance. 

3.2.10.1 Time for Compliance.  Consultant shall not commence the Services under this 
Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the District that it has secured all 
insurance required under this section.  In addition, Consultant shall not allow any 
subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence 
satisfactory to the District that the subcontractor has secured all insurance required under 
this section. 

3.2.10.2 Minimum Requirements.  Consultant shall, at its expense, procure and maintain for the 
duration of the Agreement insurance meeting the requirements set forth herein.  
Consultant shall also require all of its subcontractors to procure and maintain the same 
insurance for the duration of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the 
following minimum levels of coverage: 

(A) Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Consultant shall maintain limits no less than: (1) 
General Liability: A minimum of $2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, 

Page 127 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 4 

personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance 
or other form with general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate 
limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/location or the general aggregate 
limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability: A 
minimum of $1,000,000 combined single limit (each accident) for bodily injury and 
property damage; and (3) Industrial Insurance: Workers’ Compensation limits as 
required by the Labor Code of the State of Nevada.  Employer’s Liability limits of 
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease; and (4) Professional 
Liability/Errors and Omissions: Consultant shall procure and maintain, and require 
its sub-consultants to procure and maintain, for a period of five (5) years following 
completion of the Services, professional liability/errors and omissions liability 
insurance appropriate to their profession.  Such insurance shall be in an amount 
not less than $1,000,000 per claim, and shall be endorsed to include contractual 
liability.  “Covered Professional Services” as designated in the Professional 
Liability/Errors and Omissions policy must specifically include work performed 
under this Agreement. 

Requirements of specific coverage or limits contained in this section are not 
intended as a limitation on coverage, limits, or other requirement, or a waiver of 
any coverage normally provided by any insurance.  Any available coverage shall 
be provided to the parties required to be named as additional insured pursuant to 
this Agreement.  Defense costs shall be payable in addition to the limits. 

3.2.10.3 Insurance Endorsements.  The insurance policies shall contain the following provisions, 
or Consultant shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or approved by the District 
to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 

(A) Commercial General Liability.  The commercial general liability policy shall be 
endorsed to provide the following: (1) the District, its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds; (2) the 
insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the District, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers, or if excess, shall 
stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s scheduled 
underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District, 
its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers shall be excess 
of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in 
any way; and (3) the insurance coverage shall contain or be endorsed to provide 
waiver of subrogation in favor of the District, its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers or shall specifically allow Consultant to waive 
its right of recovery prior to a loss. Consultant hereby waives its own right of 
recovery against District, and shall require similar written express waivers and 
insurance clauses from each of its subconsultants. 

(B) Automobile Liability.  The automobile liability policy shall be endorsed to provide 
the following: (1) the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, 
operation, maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, 
hired or borrowed by the Consultant or for which the Consultant is responsible; (2) 
the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the District, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers, or if excess, shall 

Page 128 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 5 

stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s scheduled 
underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District, 
its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers shall be excess 
of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in 
any way; and (3) the insurance coverage shall contain or be endorsed to provide 
waiver of subrogation in favor of the District, its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers or shall specifically allow Consultant to waive 
its right of recovery prior to a loss. Consultant hereby waives its own right of 
recovery against District, and shall require similar written express waivers and 
insurance clauses from each of its subconsultants. 

(C) Industrial (Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability) Insurance. The insurer 
shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the District, its directors, 
officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers for losses paid under the 
terms of the insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Consultant. 

(D) All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall be 
endorsed to state that:  (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced or 
canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return 
receipt requested, has been given to the District; and (B) any failure to comply with 
reporting or other provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, shall 
not affect coverage provided to the District, its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers. 

3.2.10.4 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations.  All insurance required by this Section 
shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions.  In addition, such insurance shall 
not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the District, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers. 

3.2.10.5 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions 
must be declared to and approved by the District.  Consultant shall guarantee that, at the 
option of the District, either: (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or 
self-insured retentions as respects the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 
agents and volunteers; or (2) the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment 
of losses and related investigation costs, claims and administrative and defense 
expenses. 

3.2.10.6 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or 
authorized to do business in the state of Nevada and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less 
than A-VII.  The District in no way warrants that the above-required minimum insurer rating 
is sufficient to protect the Consultant from potential insurer insolvency. 

3.2.10.7 Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish the District with original certificates of 
insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this Agreement on forms 
satisfactory to the District.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy 
shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and 
shall be on forms provided by the District if requested.  All certificates and endorsements 
must be received and approved by the District before work commences.   

3.2.10.8 Subconsultants.  Consultant shall not allow any subcontractors or subconsultants to 
commence work on any subcontract until they have provided evidence satisfactory to the 

Page 129 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 6 

District that they have secured all insurance required under this section.  Policies of 
commercial general liability insurance provided by such subcontractors or subconsultants 
shall be endorsed to name the District as an additional insured using ISO form CG 20 38 
04 13 or an endorsement providing the exact same coverage.  If requested by Consultant, 
District may approve different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for particular 
subcontractors or subconsultants. 

3.2.10.9 Compliance with Coverage Requirements.  If at any time during the life of the Agreement, 
any policy of insurance required under this Agreement does not comply with these 
specifications or is canceled and not replaced, District has the right but not the duty to 
obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid by District will be promptly 
reimbursed by Consultant or District will withhold amounts sufficient to pay premium from 
Consultant payments. In the alternative, District may terminate this Agreement for cause. 

3.2.11 Safety. Consultant shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid injury or damage to 
any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Consultant shall at all times be in 
compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations, and 
shall exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the 
nature of the work and the conditions under which the work is to be performed.   

3.3 Fees and Payments. 

3.3.1 Compensation. Consultant shall receive compensation, including authorized 
reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement in accordance with the 
Schedule of Charges set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference.  The total compensation to be provided under this Agreement shall not exceed 
Seven Thousand Six Hundred Dollars ($7,600.00) without written approval of District’s 
Engineering Manager.  Extra Work may be authorized, as described below; and if 
authorized, said Extra Work will be compensated at the rates and manner set forth in this 
Agreement. 

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation. Consultant shall submit to District a monthly itemized invoice 
which indicates original contract amount, amount previously invoiced and current 
remaining balance on contract, work completed and hours of Services rendered by 
Consultant.  The invoice shall also describe the amount of Services and supplies provided 
since the initial commencement date of Services under this Agreement, and since the start 
of the subsequent billing periods, through the date of the invoice.  Invoices shall be sent 
to AP@ivgid.org.   District shall, within thirty (30) days of receiving such invoice, review 
the invoice and pay all approved charges thereon.  

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses.  Consultant shall not be reimbursed for any expenses 
unless authorized under Exhibit B, or otherwise in writing by the District. 

3.3.4 Extra Work.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, the District may request that 
Consultant perform Extra Work.  As used herein, “Extra Work” means any work which is 
determined by the District to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but 
which the Parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of 
this Agreement.  Consultant shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without 
written authorization from the District’s Representative.  Where Extra Work is deemed 
merited by the District, an amendment to the Agreement shall be prepared by the District 
and executed by both Parties before performance of such Extra Work, or the District will 

Page 130 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 7 

not be required to pay for the changes in the scope of work.  Such amendment shall 
include the change in fee and/or time schedule associated with the Extra Work.  
Amendments for Extra Work shall not render ineffective or invalidate unaffected portions 
of this Agreement. 

3.4 Accounting Records. 

3.4.1 Maintenance and Inspection.  Consultant shall maintain accurate and complete books, 
documents, accounting records and other records pertaining to the Services for six (6) 
years (or longer as required by applicable law) from the date of final payment under this 
Agreement.  Consultant shall make such records available to the District for inspection, 
audit, examination, reproduction, and copying at Consultant’s offices at all reasonable 
times. However, if requested, Consultant shall furnish copies of said records at its expense 
to the District, within seven (7) business days of the request. 

3.5 General Provisions. 

3.5.1 Termination of Agreement. 

3.5.1.1 Grounds for Termination.  The District may, by written notice to Consultant, terminate the 
whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by giving written notice 
to Consultant of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, at least seven 
(7) days before the effective date of such termination.  Upon termination, Consultant shall 
be compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to the 
District, and Consultant shall be entitled to no further compensation.  Consultant may not 
terminate this Agreement except for cause.  Consultant shall not be entitled to payment 
for unperformed Services, and shall not be entitled to damages or compensation for 
termination of this Agreement by District except for the amounts authorized herein.   

3.5.1.2 Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein, the District may 
require Consultant to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data (defined 
below) and other information of any kind prepared by Consultant in connection with the 
performance of Services under this Agreement.  Consultant shall be required to provide 
such documents and other information within fifteen (15) days of the request. 

3.5.1.3 Additional Services.  In the event this Agreement is terminated in whole or in part as 
provided herein, the District may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it may 
determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated. 

3.5.2 Delivery of Notices.  All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given 
to the respective Parties at the following address, or at such other address as the 
respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

District
Incline Village General Improvement District 
893 Southwood Blvd. 
Incline Village, NV 89451 
Attn: Kate Nelson, P. E.

Consultant
Black Eagle Consulting, Inc. 
1345 Capital Blvd., Ste. E 
Reno, NV 89502 
Attn: Tyler Hough 

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, forty-eight 
(48) hours after deposit in the U.S.  Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the 

Page 131 of 257

LLC



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 8 

Party at its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the 
date actual notice occurred, regardless of the method of service. 

3.5.3 Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality. 

3.5.3.1 Documents & Data.  All source code, reports, programs, manuals, disks, tapes, and any 
other material prepared by or worked upon by Consultant for the Services shall be the 
exclusive property of the District, and the District shall have the right to obtain from 
Consultant and to hold in District’s name copyrights, trademark registrations, patents, or 
whatever protection Consultant may appropriate to the subject matter.  Consultant shall 
provide District with all assistance reasonably required to perfect the rights in this 
subsection. 

3.5.3.2 Confidentiality.  All ideas, memoranda, specifications, plans, procedures, drawings, 
descriptions, computer program data, input record data, written information, and other 
Documents and Data either created by or provided to Consultant in connection with the 
performance of this Agreement shall be held confidential by Consultant.  Such materials 
shall not, without the prior written consent of the District, be used by Consultant for any 
purposes other than the performance of the Services.  Nor shall such materials be 
disclosed to any person or entity not connected with the performance of the Services or 
the Project unless disclosure is compelled due to law or court order.  Nothing furnished to 
Consultant which is otherwise known to Consultant or is generally known, or has become 
known, to the related industry shall be deemed confidential.  Consultant shall not use the 
District’s name or insignia, photographs of the Project, or any publicity pertaining to the 
Services or the Project in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio 
production or other similar medium without the prior written consent of the District. 

3.5.4 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one another, and shall 
take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 
appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.5.5 Attorney’s Fees.  If either Party commences an action against the other Party, either legal, 
administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, the 
prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the losing party 
reasonable attorney’s fees and all other costs of such action.  

3.5.6 Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall defend, indemnify 
and hold the District, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents free and 
harmless from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, 
loss, damage or injury, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, 
in any manner arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to any negligence or willful 
misconduct of Consultant, its officials, officers, employees, agents, consultants, and 
contractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of the Services, the 
Project, or this Agreement, including without limitation the payment of all consequential 
damages, expert witness fees, and attorney’s fees and other related costs and expenses. 
Consultant shall defend, at Consultant's own cost, expense and risk, any and all such 
aforesaid suits, actions or other legal proceedings of every kind that may be brought or 
instituted against District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.  
Consultant shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered 
against District or its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers, in any 
such suit, action or other legal proceeding.  Consultant shall reimburse District and its 

Page 132 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 9 

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers, for any and all legal 
expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the 
indemnity herein provided, including correction of errors and omissions.  Consultant's 
obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by 
the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  

3.5.6.1 Design Professional.  To the extent required by NRS 338.155, Consultant’s obligation to 
defend, indemnify, and hold District, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and 
agents free and harmless shall not include any liability, damage, loss, claim, action or 
proceeding caused by the negligence, errors, omissions, recklessness or intentional 
misconduct of the employees, officers or agents of the District.  Moreover, Consultant’s 
obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold District, its officials, officers, employees, 
volunteers, and agents free and harmless from any liability, damage, loss, claim, action or 
proceeding caused by the negligence, errors, omissions, recklessness or intentional 
misconduct of the Consultant or the employees or agents of the Consultant which are 
based upon or arising out of the professional services of the Consultant.  If the Consultant 
is adjudicated to be liable by a trier of fact, the trier of fact shall award reasonable 
attorney’s fees and costs to be paid to the District, as reimbursement for the attorney’s 
fees and costs incurred by the District in defending the action, by the Consultant in an 
amount which is proportionate to the liability of the Consultant.  This Section shall only 
apply to the extent required by NRS 338.155 and shall not otherwise limit Consultant’s 
obligation to defend, indemnify and hold the District harmless as required under Section 
3.5.6. 

3.5.7 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the Parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, understandings 
or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by both Parties. 

3.5.8 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Nevada. 
Venue shall be in Washoe County. 

3.5.9 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this Agreement. 

3.5.10 District’s Right to Employ Other Consultants.  The District reserves right to employ other 
consultants in connection with this Project. 

3.5.11 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit 
of the successors in interest, executors, administrators and assigns of each Party. 

3.5.12 Assignment or Transfer.  Consultant shall not assign, hypothecate, or transfer, either 
directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the prior 
written consent of the District.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any 
assignees, hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such 
attempted assignment, hypothecation or transfer. 

3.5.13 Subcontracting.  Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the work required by this 
Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without prior written approval of District. 
Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all provisions 
stipulated in this Agreement. 

Page 133 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 10 

3.5.14 Construction; References; Captions.  Since the Parties or their agents have participated 
fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be 
construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party. 
Any term referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days 
and not work days.  All references to Consultant include all personnel, employees, agents, 
and subcontractors of Consultant, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All 
references to the District include its officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers 
except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and 
paragraphs are for convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, 
augment, or describe the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 

3.5.15 Amendment; Modification.  No supplement, modification, or amendment of this Agreement 
shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties. 

3.5.16 Waiver.  No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, 
whether of the same or other covenant or condition.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or 
service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any contractual 
rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise. 

3.5.17 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right 
or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

3.5.18 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or 
otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions 
shall continue in full force and effect. 

3.5.22 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Consultant has all requisite power and authority to conduct 
its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement.  Each Party warrants 
that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and 
authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party. 

3.5.23 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall 
constitute an original. 

3.5.24 Limitation of Liability.  The District does not and will not waive and expressly reserves all 
available defenses and limitations contained in Chapter 41 of the Nevada Revised 
Statutes.  Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive damages.  

3.5.25 Non-Appropriations.  The District may terminate this Agreement, effective immediately 
upon receipt of written notice on any date specified if for any reason the District’s funding 
source is not appropriated or is withdrawn, limited, or impaired. 

3.5.26 Compliance with Laws.  Consultant shall keep itself fully informed of and in compliance 
with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting the 
performance of the Project or the Services.  Consultant shall not discriminate against any 
person on the grounds of race, color, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
identity or gender expression, age, disability, national origin or any other status protected 
under any applicable law.  Consultant is not currently engaged in, and during the duration 
of the Agreement shall not engage in, a Boycott of Israel. The term “Boycott of Israel” has 
the meaning ascribed to that term in NRS 332.065. Consultant shall be responsible for all 
fines, penalties, and repayment of any State of Nevada or federal funds (including those 

Page 134 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 11 

that the District pays, becomes liable to pay, or becomes liable to repay) that may arise 
as a direct result of the Consultant’s non-compliance with this subsection. 

3.5.27 Prohibited Interests.  Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not employed nor 
retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for 
Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, Consultant warrants that it has 
not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or 
other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this 
Agreement.  For breach or violation of this warranty, District shall have the right to rescind 
this Agreement without liability.  For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or 
employee of District, during the term of his or her service with District, shall have any direct 
interest in this Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising 
therefrom. 

3.5.28 Whistleblower Provisions. This Agreement is not intended to and will not preclude 
Consultant’s employees from exercising available rights under the District’s Whistleblower 
Policy and associated procedures for reporting suspected misconduct, as that term is 
defined in the Whistleblower Policy. All reports of suspected misconduct will be handled 
by the District in accordance with the Whistleblower Policy. 

OWNER:  
INCLINE VILLAGE G. I. D. 

CONTRACTOR:   
BLACK EAGLE CONSULTING 

Agreed to: Agreed to: 

By: By: 
Signature of Authorized Agent 

Print or Type Name and Title 

Date 

Reviewed as to Form: 
Date

Sergio Rudin 
District General Counsel 

If Contractor is a corporation, 
attach evidence of authority to 
sign. 

Date 

Signature of Authohhhhhhhh rized Agent

Page 135 of 257

Shaun A. Smith, P.E., LEED AP,  
Regional Vice President

April 17, 2024



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 12 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The following information was used to develop the Consultant’s scope of services and cost: 

Page 136 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 13 

EXHIBIT B 

SCHEDULE OF CHARGES

Page 137 of 257



BLACK EAGLE CONSULTING, LLC

2024 STANDARD RATES FOR SERVICES
The following lists a schedule of fees associated with engineering, materials testing, and construction testing and inspection 
support services. For projects lasting less than 4 weeks, invoices will be submitted upon project completion, while monthly 
invoices will be submitted for projects that last longer than 4 weeks. Overtime is defined as any hour of service provided in excess 
of 40 hours in a single week or any hour of service provided on a Saturday or Sunday. Any overtime work will be invoiced at time 
and one-half. Double time is defined as any hour of service provided on a holiday. Any double time work will be invoiced at 
double time.

SUPPORT SERVICE RATE/HOUR

Regional Vice President $175.00
Senior Consultant $175.00

ENGINEERING:
Division Manager $170.00
Project Manager $145.00
Project Engineer/Geologist $140.00
Engineering Technician $100.00
Drafting $ 85.00

MATERIALS TESTING:
Division Manager $150.00
Senior Materials Technician $100.00
Materials Technician II $ 87.00
Materials Technician I $ 80.00

CONSTRUCTION TESTING AND INSPECTION:
Division Manager $160.00
Project Manager $135.00
Field Manager/Assistant Project Manager $115.00
Special Inspector (ICC) $108.00
Inspector/Tester $103.00

TRAVEL AND EQUIPMENT:
Vehicle $  10.00
Mileage $1.50/mile
Per Diem P.O.R.*
Nuclear Densometer $ 1 0 .00
Coring Machine $ 50.00
Pachometer $ 20.00
Torque Wrench $ 20.00
Skidmore-Wilhelm Bolt Tension $ 20.00
Magnetic Particle/Ultrasonic Equipment $ 25.00
Thickness Gauge $ 20.00
Schmidt Hammer $ 15.00
Vane Shear $ 15.00
HERZ $ 65.00
ReMi Geophysical $600.00/day
Cross hole Sonic Logging $500.00/day
Floor Flatness Equipment + Labor $200.00/Hour

CLERICAL:
Clerical/Word Processor $ 65.00
Computer $ 10.00
Supplies Cost + 10%
Copying $   0.20/page
Color Copies:  8-1/2" x 11" $   0.50/page
Color Copies:  11" x 17" $   2.00/page

OUTSIDE SERVICES: Cost + 10%

Page 138 of 257



BLACK EAGLE CONSULTING, LLC

2024 STANDARD RATES FOR SERVICES

TESTS UNIT PRICE

SOILS TESTING:
Moisture Content (ASTM D 2216) $ 25.00/test
Moisture Content and Dry Density (ASTM D 2937) $ 50.00/test
Atterberg Limit (ASTM D 4318)  $115.00/test
Minus 200 Wash (ASTM D 1140) $ 80.00/test
Standard Sieve Analysis (ASTM D 6913) $125.00/test
Hydrometer Analysis minus No. 10 (ASTM D 422)  $225.00/test
Soil Specific Gravity (ASTM D 854) $110.00/test
R-Value, Untreated Field Sample (ASTM D 2844) $350.00/test

¾” Batching        add $ 35.00/test
Consolidation, 4 points & 1 Rebound Point (ASTM D 2435)  $400.00/test
Direct Shear, UU, CU, CD (ASTM D 3080) $400.00/test
Unconfined Compression (ASTM D 2166) $100.00/test
Durability Index $150.00/test
California Bearing Ratio $700.00/test
Resistivity (Miller Soil Box) $100.00/test
Standard Proctor Compaction (ASTM D 698)

Method A or B (4-inch mold) or Method C (6-inch mold) $175.00/test
Modified Proctor Compaction (ASTM D 1557)

Method A or B (4-inch mold) or Method C (6-inch mold) $200.00/test
Compaction Check Point (4-inch or 6-inch mold) $ 60.00/test
Rock Correction (ASTM D 4718) $ 95.00/test
Harvard Miniature (Nev T-101)  $250.00/test
Expansion Index $180.00/test

AGGREGATE TESTING:
Standard Sieve Analysis (ASTM D 6913) $125.00/test
Atterberg Limit (ASTM D 4318)  $115.00/test
Moisture Content (ASTM D 2216) $ 25.00/test
Specific Gravity Fine Aggregate with Absorption (ASTM C 128) $ 95.00/test
Specific Gravity Coarse Aggregate with Absorption (ASTM C 127)  $ 95.00/test
Clay Lumps and Friable Particles (ASTM C 142)  $ 90.00/test
Flat and Elongated Particles (CRD 119, 120) $ 85.00/test
Fractured Faces (Nev T-230)  $ 85.00/test
Sand Equivalent (ASTM D 2419) $125.00/test
Cleanness Test of Aggregate  $125.00/test
Organic Impurities (ASTM C 40) $ 75.00/test
Dry Unit Weight of Aggregate (ASTM C 29) $ 60.00/test
Sodium Soundness of Aggregate (ASTM C 88)  $ 95.00/fraction
Los Angeles Rattler, 1.5 inch minus aggregate size (ASTM C 131) and
Los Angeles Rattler, greater than 1.5-inch aggregate size (ASTM C 535) $300.00/test

PORTLAND CEMENT TESTING:
Compression of Concrete Cylinder (ASTM C 39)  $ 25.00/ea.
Compression of Grout Cylinder (UBC 24-28) $ 25.00/ea.
Compression of Mortar Cylinder (UBC 24-22) $ 25.00/ea.
Compression of Cored Concrete (ASTM C 42)  $ 50.00/ea.
Compression of Shotcrete per Core $100.00/ea.
Flexural Strength of Concrete Beams (ASTM C 78, C 293)  $100.00/ea.
Splitting Tensile Strength of Concrete Cylinder (ASTM C 496) $ 55.00/ea.

Page 139 of 257



BLACK EAGLE CONSULTING, LLC

2024 STANDARD RATES FOR SERVICES

MASONRY TESTING:
Compression of Masonry Unit (ASTM C 140) (Set of 3) $210.00/set
Compression of Masonry Prism (ASTM C 1314) $150.00/ea.
Shrinkage (Set of 3) $450.00/set
Moisture (Set of 3) $120.00/set

ASPHALT CONCRETE TESTING:
Bitumen Content by Ignition $120.00/test
Asphalt Gradation $100.00/test
Marshall Stability and Flow, Compaction and Unit Weight (ASTM D 1559) $230.00/test
Maximum Theoretical Specific Gravity (ASTM D 2041) $100.00/test
Unit Weight of Asphalt Cores (ASTM D 2726) $ 40.00/ea.
Hveem Compaction and Stability $130.00/ea.
Hot Mix Asphalt Mix Design P.O.R.*
CTB Mix Design P.O.R.*

MISCELLANEOUS:
Mobile Asphalt/Soils Testing Laboratory P.O.R.*
Special Handling $ 75.00/hour
Rush Charge 50% Additional Charge
Fireproofing $ 75.00/test

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Laboratory test unit prices are based upon the average running time required for each test. Special research, sample or 
equipment preparation or laboratory consulting will be based upon hourly personnel charges.  Fixed unit prices do not 
include extra preparation time for large bulk samples, saturated samples or extremely clayey samples. This time will be 
invoiced on a per-hour basis. Special report preparation and data presentation beyond industry standards will also be 
invoiced on a per-hour basis. Cost estimates for hourly charges will be provided on a project-specific basis upon request.

Any specialized testing not covered by this fee schedule will be developed or subcontracted out under Black Eagle 
Consulting, LLC supervision. Costs for these tests will be time-and-materials. When applicable, subcontractors’ fees will 
be invoiced at cost plus ten (10) percent.

All samples will be discarded thirty (30) days after submission of our report, unless otherwise directed by the client. Upon 
request, Black Eagle Consulting, LLC will deliver samples to the client, shipping collect on delivery, or will store them for 
an agreed charge.

2024 Standard Rates for Service are subject to annual increase.

* Price on request

2024-NV

Page 140 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 1 

INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

1. PARTIES AND DATE.

This Agreement is made and entered into as of April 25, 2024 by and between the Incline Village 
General Improvement District, a Nevada general improvement district (“District”) and Black Eagle 
Consulting, Inc., a domestic corporation with its principal place of business at 1345 Capital 
Boulevard, Suite A in Reno, Nevada (“Consultant”).  The District and Consultant are sometimes 
individually referred to as “Party” and collectively as “Parties.” 

2. RECITALS.

2.1 District.  District is a general improvement district organized under the laws of the State of 
Nevada, with power to contract for services necessary to achieve its purpose. 

2.2 Consultant.  Consultant desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of 
certain professional services required by the District on the terms and conditions set forth 
in this Agreement.  Consultant represents that it is experienced in providing construction 
materials testing and inspection services to public clients, is licensed in the State of 
Nevada, and is familiar with the plans of District. 

2.3 Project.  District desires to engage Consultant to provide materials testing and inspection 
services during the District’s Alder Avenue Water Line Improvements Project ("Project”). 

3. TERMS.

3.1 Scope of Services and Term.

3.1.1 General Scope of Services.  Consultant promises and agrees to furnish to the District, all 
labor, materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work necessary 
to fully and adequately supply materials testing and inspection services necessary for the 
Project (“Services”).  The types of services to be provided are more particularly described 
in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  All Services shall be 
subject to, and performed in accordance with this Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference, and all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules 
and regulations.  As described in Section 3.3, the District shall pay for such services in 
accordance with the Schedule of Charges set forth in Exhibit B.  

3.1.2 Term. The term of this Agreement shall be from May 1, 2024 to , 2024, unless 
earlier terminated as provided herein.  The Parties may, by mutual written consent, extend 
the term of this Agreement if necessary to complete the Project.   

3.2 Responsibilities of Consultant. 

3.2.1 Control and Payment of Subordinates; Independent Contractor.  The Services shall be 
performed by Consultant or under its supervision.  Consultant will determine the means, 
methods and details of performing the Services subject to the requirements of this 

Page 141 of 257

LLC



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 2 

Agreement and such directions and amendments from District as herein provided.  The 
District retains Consultant on an independent contractor basis and not as an employee.  
No employee or agent of Consultant shall become an employee of District.  Any additional 
personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of Consultant shall 
also not be employees of the District and shall at all times be under Consultant’s exclusive 
direction and control.  Consultant shall pay all wages, salaries, and other amounts due 
such personnel in connection with their performance of Services under this Agreement 
and as required by law.  Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and obligations 
respecting such additional personnel, including, but not limited to: social security taxes, 
income tax withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, and workers’ 
compensation insurance. 

3.2.2 Schedule of Services.  Consultant shall perform its services in a prompt and timely manner 
within the term of this Agreement and shall commence performance upon receipt of written 
notice from the District to proceed (“Notice to Proceed”).  The Notice to Proceed shall set 
forth the date of commencement of work. 

3.2.3 Conformance to Applicable Requirements.  All work prepared by Consultant shall be 
subject to the District’s approval. 

3.2.4 Substitution of Key Personnel.  Consultant has represented to the District that certain key 
personnel will perform and coordinate the Services under this Agreement.  Should one or 
more of such personnel become unavailable, Consultant may substitute other personnel 
of at least equal competence subject to the District’s written approval.  In the event that 
the District and Consultant cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel, the District 
shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement for cause.  As discussed below, any 
personnel who fail or refuse to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the District, 
or who are determined by the District to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the 
adequate or timely completion of the Project or a threat to the safety of persons or 
property, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant at the request of 
the District.  The key personnel for performance of this Agreement are as follows: Tyler 
Hough. 

3.2.5 District’s Representative.  The District hereby designates Interim Engineering Manager 
Hudson Klein or his designee to act as its representative for the performance of this 
Agreement (“District’s Representative”).  The District’s Representative shall have the 
power to act on behalf of the District for all purposes under this Contract.  Consultant shall 
not accept direction or orders from any person other than the District’s Representative or 
her designee. 

3.2.6 Consultant’s Representative.  Consultant hereby designates Tyler Hough, or their 
designee, to act as its representative for the performance of this Agreement (“Consultant’s 
Representative”).  Consultant’s Representative shall have full authority to represent and 
act on behalf of the Consultant for all purposes under this Agreement.  The Consultant’s 
Representative shall supervise and direct the Services, using his best skill and attention, 
and shall be responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures 
and for the satisfactory coordination of all portions of the Services under this Agreement. 

3.2.7 Coordination of Services.  Consultant agrees to work closely with the District staff in the 
performance of Services and shall be available to the District’s staff, consultants and other 
staff at all reasonable times. 

Page 142 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 3 

3.2.8 Standard of Care; Performance of Employees.  Consultant shall perform all Services 
under this Agreement in a skillful and competent manner, consistent with the standards 
generally recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the 
State of Nevada.  Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional 
calling necessary to perform the Services.  Consultant warrants that all employees and 
subcontractors shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services assigned 
to them.  Finally, Consultant represents that it, its employees and subcontractors have all 
licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required 
to perform the Services, including a Washoe County Business License, and that such 
licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement.  As 
provided for in the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, Consultant shall perform, 
at its own cost and expense and without reimbursement from the District, any services 
necessary to correct errors or omissions which are caused by the Consultant’s failure to 
comply with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any employee of the Consultant or 
its sub-consultants who is determined by the District to be uncooperative, incompetent, a 
threat to the adequate or timely completion of the Project, a threat to the safety of persons 
or property, or any employee who fails or refuses to perform the Services in a manner 
acceptable to the District, shall be promptly removed from the Project by the Consultant 
and shall not be re-employed to perform any of the Services or to work on the Project. 

3.2.9 Laws and Regulations.  Consultant shall keep itself fully informed of and in compliance 
with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting the 
performance of the Project or the Services, and shall give all notices required by law.  If 
required, Consultant shall assist District, as requested, in obtaining and maintaining all 
permits required of Consultant by federal, state and local regulatory agencies.  Consultant 
shall be liable for all violations of local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in 
connection with the Project and the Services.  If the Consultant performs any work knowing 
it to be contrary to such laws, rules and regulations and without giving written notice to the 
District, Consultant shall be solely responsible for all costs arising therefrom.  Consultant 
shall defend, indemnify and hold the District, its officials, directors, officers, employees 
and agents free and harmless, pursuant to the indemnification provisions of this 
Agreement, from any claim or liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply 
with such laws, rules or regulations. 

3.2.10 Insurance. 

3.2.10.1 Time for Compliance.  Consultant shall not commence the Services under this 
Agreement until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the District that it has secured all 
insurance required under this section.  In addition, Consultant shall not allow any 
subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence 
satisfactory to the District that the subcontractor has secured all insurance required under 
this section. 

3.2.10.2 Minimum Requirements.  Consultant shall, at its expense, procure and maintain for the 
duration of the Agreement insurance meeting the requirements set forth herein.  
Consultant shall also require all of its subcontractors to procure and maintain the same 
insurance for the duration of the Agreement. Such insurance shall meet at least the 
following minimum levels of coverage: 

(A) Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Consultant shall maintain limits no less than: (1) 
General Liability: A minimum of $2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, 

Page 143 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 4 

personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance 
or other form with general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate 
limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/location or the general aggregate 
limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability: A 
minimum of $1,000,000 combined single limit (each accident) for bodily injury and 
property damage; and (3) Industrial Insurance: Workers’ Compensation limits as 
required by the Labor Code of the State of Nevada.  Employer’s Liability limits of 
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease; and (4) Professional 
Liability/Errors and Omissions: Consultant shall procure and maintain, and require 
its sub-consultants to procure and maintain, for a period of five (5) years following 
completion of the Services, professional liability/errors and omissions liability 
insurance appropriate to their profession.  Such insurance shall be in an amount 
not less than $1,000,000 per claim, and shall be endorsed to include contractual 
liability.  “Covered Professional Services” as designated in the Professional 
Liability/Errors and Omissions policy must specifically include work performed 
under this Agreement. 

Requirements of specific coverage or limits contained in this section are not 
intended as a limitation on coverage, limits, or other requirement, or a waiver of 
any coverage normally provided by any insurance.  Any available coverage shall 
be provided to the parties required to be named as additional insured pursuant to 
this Agreement.  Defense costs shall be payable in addition to the limits. 

3.2.10.3 Insurance Endorsements.  The insurance policies shall contain the following provisions, 
or Consultant shall provide endorsements on forms supplied or approved by the District 
to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 

(A) Commercial General Liability.  The commercial general liability policy shall be 
endorsed to provide the following: (1) the District, its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds; (2) the 
insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the District, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers, or if excess, shall 
stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s scheduled 
underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District, 
its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers shall be excess 
of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in 
any way; and (3) the insurance coverage shall contain or be endorsed to provide 
waiver of subrogation in favor of the District, its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers or shall specifically allow Consultant to waive 
its right of recovery prior to a loss. Consultant hereby waives its own right of 
recovery against District, and shall require similar written express waivers and 
insurance clauses from each of its subconsultants. 

(B) Automobile Liability.  The automobile liability policy shall be endorsed to provide 
the following: (1) the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, 
operation, maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, 
hired or borrowed by the Consultant or for which the Consultant is responsible; (2) 
the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the District, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers, or if excess, shall 

Page 144 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 5 

stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Consultant’s scheduled 
underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District, 
its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers shall be excess 
of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in 
any way; and (3) the insurance coverage shall contain or be endorsed to provide 
waiver of subrogation in favor of the District, its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers or shall specifically allow Consultant to waive 
its right of recovery prior to a loss. Consultant hereby waives its own right of 
recovery against District, and shall require similar written express waivers and 
insurance clauses from each of its subconsultants. 

(C) Industrial (Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability) Insurance. The insurer 
shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the District, its directors, 
officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers for losses paid under the 
terms of the insurance policy which arise from work performed by the Consultant. 

(D) All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall be 
endorsed to state that:  (A) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced or 
canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return 
receipt requested, has been given to the District; and (B) any failure to comply with 
reporting or other provisions of the policies, including breaches of warranties, shall 
not affect coverage provided to the District, its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers. 

3.2.10.4 Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations.  All insurance required by this Section 
shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions.  In addition, such insurance shall 
not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the District, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers. 

3.2.10.5 Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions 
must be declared to and approved by the District.  Consultant shall guarantee that, at the 
option of the District, either: (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or 
self-insured retentions as respects the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 
agents and volunteers; or (2) the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment 
of losses and related investigation costs, claims and administrative and defense 
expenses. 

3.2.10.6 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or 
authorized to do business in the state of Nevada and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less 
than A-VII.  The District in no way warrants that the above-required minimum insurer rating 
is sufficient to protect the Consultant from potential insurer insolvency. 

3.2.10.7 Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish the District with original certificates of 
insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this Agreement on forms 
satisfactory to the District.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy 
shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and 
shall be on forms provided by the District if requested.  All certificates and endorsements 
must be received and approved by the District before work commences.   

3.2.10.8 Subconsultants.  Consultant shall not allow any subcontractors or subconsultants to 
commence work on any subcontract until they have provided evidence satisfactory to the 

Page 145 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 6 

District that they have secured all insurance required under this section.  Policies of 
commercial general liability insurance provided by such subcontractors or subconsultants 
shall be endorsed to name the District as an additional insured using ISO form CG 20 38 
04 13 or an endorsement providing the exact same coverage.  If requested by Consultant, 
District may approve different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for particular 
subcontractors or subconsultants. 

3.2.10.9 Compliance with Coverage Requirements.  If at any time during the life of the Agreement, 
any policy of insurance required under this Agreement does not comply with these 
specifications or is canceled and not replaced, District has the right but not the duty to 
obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid by District will be promptly 
reimbursed by Consultant or District will withhold amounts sufficient to pay premium from 
Consultant payments. In the alternative, District may terminate this Agreement for cause. 

3.2.11 Safety. Consultant shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid injury or damage to 
any person or property.  In carrying out its Services, the Consultant shall at all times be in 
compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations, and 
shall exercise all necessary precautions for the safety of employees appropriate to the 
nature of the work and the conditions under which the work is to be performed.   

3.3 Fees and Payments. 

3.3.1 Compensation. Consultant shall receive compensation, including authorized 
reimbursements, for all Services rendered under this Agreement in accordance with the 
Schedule of Charges set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference.  The total compensation to be provided under this Agreement shall not exceed 
Seven Thousand Six Hundred Dollars ($7,600.00) without written approval of District’s 
Engineering Manager.  Extra Work may be authorized, as described below; and if 
authorized, said Extra Work will be compensated at the rates and manner set forth in this 
Agreement. 

3.3.2 Payment of Compensation. Consultant shall submit to District a monthly itemized invoice 
which indicates original contract amount, amount previously invoiced and current 
remaining balance on contract, work completed and hours of Services rendered by 
Consultant.  The invoice shall also describe the amount of Services and supplies provided 
since the initial commencement date of Services under this Agreement, and since the start 
of the subsequent billing periods, through the date of the invoice.  Invoices shall be sent 
to AP@ivgid.org.   District shall, within thirty (30) days of receiving such invoice, review 
the invoice and pay all approved charges thereon.  

3.3.3 Reimbursement for Expenses.  Consultant shall not be reimbursed for any expenses 
unless authorized under Exhibit B, or otherwise in writing by the District. 

3.3.4 Extra Work.  At any time during the term of this Agreement, the District may request that 
Consultant perform Extra Work.  As used herein, “Extra Work” means any work which is 
determined by the District to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but 
which the Parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary at the execution of 
this Agreement.  Consultant shall not perform, nor be compensated for, Extra Work without 
written authorization from the District’s Representative.  Where Extra Work is deemed 
merited by the District, an amendment to the Agreement shall be prepared by the District 
and executed by both Parties before performance of such Extra Work, or the District will 

Page 146 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 7 

not be required to pay for the changes in the scope of work.  Such amendment shall 
include the change in fee and/or time schedule associated with the Extra Work.  
Amendments for Extra Work shall not render ineffective or invalidate unaffected portions 
of this Agreement. 

3.4 Accounting Records. 

3.4.1 Maintenance and Inspection.  Consultant shall maintain accurate and complete books, 
documents, accounting records and other records pertaining to the Services for six (6) 
years (or longer as required by applicable law) from the date of final payment under this 
Agreement.  Consultant shall make such records available to the District for inspection, 
audit, examination, reproduction, and copying at Consultant’s offices at all reasonable 
times. However, if requested, Consultant shall furnish copies of said records at its expense 
to the District, within seven (7) business days of the request. 

3.5 General Provisions. 

3.5.1 Termination of Agreement. 

3.5.1.1 Grounds for Termination.  The District may, by written notice to Consultant, terminate the 
whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without cause by giving written notice 
to Consultant of such termination, and specifying the effective date thereof, at least seven 
(7) days before the effective date of such termination.  Upon termination, Consultant shall 
be compensated only for those services which have been adequately rendered to the 
District, and Consultant shall be entitled to no further compensation.  Consultant may not 
terminate this Agreement except for cause.  Consultant shall not be entitled to payment 
for unperformed Services, and shall not be entitled to damages or compensation for 
termination of this Agreement by District except for the amounts authorized herein.   

3.5.1.2 Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement is terminated as provided herein, the District may 
require Consultant to provide all finished or unfinished Documents and Data (defined 
below) and other information of any kind prepared by Consultant in connection with the 
performance of Services under this Agreement.  Consultant shall be required to provide 
such documents and other information within fifteen (15) days of the request. 

3.5.1.3 Additional Services.  In the event this Agreement is terminated in whole or in part as 
provided herein, the District may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it may 
determine appropriate, services similar to those terminated. 

3.5.2 Delivery of Notices.  All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given 
to the respective Parties at the following address, or at such other address as the 
respective parties may provide in writing for this purpose: 

District
Incline Village General Improvement District 
893 Southwood Blvd. 
Incline Village, NV 89451 
Attn: Kate Nelson, P. E.

Consultant
Black Eagle Consulting, Inc. 
1345 Capital Blvd., Ste. E 
Reno, NV 89502 
Attn: Tyler Hough 

Such notice shall be deemed made when personally delivered or when mailed, forty-eight 
(48) hours after deposit in the U.S.  Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed to the 

Page 147 of 257

LLC



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 8 

Party at its applicable address.  Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the 
date actual notice occurred, regardless of the method of service. 

3.5.3 Ownership of Materials and Confidentiality. 

3.5.3.1 Documents & Data.  All source code, reports, programs, manuals, disks, tapes, and any 
other material prepared by or worked upon by Consultant for the Services shall be the 
exclusive property of the District, and the District shall have the right to obtain from 
Consultant and to hold in District’s name copyrights, trademark registrations, patents, or 
whatever protection Consultant may appropriate to the subject matter.  Consultant shall 
provide District with all assistance reasonably required to perfect the rights in this 
subsection. 

3.5.3.2 Confidentiality.  All ideas, memoranda, specifications, plans, procedures, drawings, 
descriptions, computer program data, input record data, written information, and other 
Documents and Data either created by or provided to Consultant in connection with the 
performance of this Agreement shall be held confidential by Consultant.  Such materials 
shall not, without the prior written consent of the District, be used by Consultant for any 
purposes other than the performance of the Services.  Nor shall such materials be 
disclosed to any person or entity not connected with the performance of the Services or 
the Project unless disclosure is compelled due to law or court order.  Nothing furnished to 
Consultant which is otherwise known to Consultant or is generally known, or has become 
known, to the related industry shall be deemed confidential.  Consultant shall not use the 
District’s name or insignia, photographs of the Project, or any publicity pertaining to the 
Services or the Project in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, television or radio 
production or other similar medium without the prior written consent of the District. 

3.5.4 Cooperation; Further Acts.  The Parties shall fully cooperate with one another, and shall 
take any additional acts or sign any additional documents as may be necessary, 
appropriate or convenient to attain the purposes of this Agreement. 

3.5.5 Attorney’s Fees.  If either Party commences an action against the other Party, either legal, 
administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, the 
prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to have and recover from the losing party 
reasonable attorney’s fees and all other costs of such action.  

3.5.6 Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall defend, indemnify 
and hold the District, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents free and 
harmless from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, 
loss, damage or injury, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, 
in any manner arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to any negligence or willful 
misconduct of Consultant, its officials, officers, employees, agents, consultants, and 
contractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of the Services, the 
Project, or this Agreement, including without limitation the payment of all consequential 
damages, expert witness fees, and attorney’s fees and other related costs and expenses. 
Consultant shall defend, at Consultant's own cost, expense and risk, any and all such 
aforesaid suits, actions or other legal proceedings of every kind that may be brought or 
instituted against District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.  
Consultant shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered 
against District or its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers, in any 
such suit, action or other legal proceeding.  Consultant shall reimburse District and its 

Page 148 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 9 

directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers, for any and all legal 
expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in enforcing the 
indemnity herein provided, including correction of errors and omissions.  Consultant's 
obligation to indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by 
the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  

3.5.6.1 Design Professional.  To the extent required by NRS 338.155, Consultant’s obligation to 
defend, indemnify, and hold District, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and 
agents free and harmless shall not include any liability, damage, loss, claim, action or 
proceeding caused by the negligence, errors, omissions, recklessness or intentional 
misconduct of the employees, officers or agents of the District.  Moreover, Consultant’s 
obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold District, its officials, officers, employees, 
volunteers, and agents free and harmless from any liability, damage, loss, claim, action or 
proceeding caused by the negligence, errors, omissions, recklessness or intentional 
misconduct of the Consultant or the employees or agents of the Consultant which are 
based upon or arising out of the professional services of the Consultant.  If the Consultant 
is adjudicated to be liable by a trier of fact, the trier of fact shall award reasonable 
attorney’s fees and costs to be paid to the District, as reimbursement for the attorney’s 
fees and costs incurred by the District in defending the action, by the Consultant in an 
amount which is proportionate to the liability of the Consultant.  This Section shall only 
apply to the extent required by NRS 338.155 and shall not otherwise limit Consultant’s 
obligation to defend, indemnify and hold the District harmless as required under Section 
3.5.6. 

3.5.7 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the Parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, understandings 
or agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a writing signed by both Parties. 

3.5.8 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Nevada. 
Venue shall be in Washoe County. 

3.5.9 Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this Agreement. 

3.5.10 District’s Right to Employ Other Consultants.  The District reserves right to employ other 
consultants in connection with this Project. 

3.5.11 Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit 
of the successors in interest, executors, administrators and assigns of each Party. 

3.5.12 Assignment or Transfer.  Consultant shall not assign, hypothecate, or transfer, either 
directly or by operation of law, this Agreement or any interest herein without the prior 
written consent of the District.  Any attempt to do so shall be null and void, and any 
assignees, hypothecates or transferees shall acquire no right or interest by reason of such 
attempted assignment, hypothecation or transfer. 

3.5.13 Subcontracting.  Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the work required by this 
Agreement, except as expressly stated herein, without prior written approval of District. 
Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a provision making them subject to all provisions 
stipulated in this Agreement. 

Page 149 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 10 

3.5.14 Construction; References; Captions.  Since the Parties or their agents have participated 
fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this Agreement shall be 
construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any Party. 
Any term referencing time, days or period for performance shall be deemed calendar days 
and not work days.  All references to Consultant include all personnel, employees, agents, 
and subcontractors of Consultant, except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  All 
references to the District include its officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers 
except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.  The captions of the various articles and 
paragraphs are for convenience and ease of reference only, and do not define, limit, 
augment, or describe the scope, content, or intent of this Agreement. 

3.5.15 Amendment; Modification.  No supplement, modification, or amendment of this Agreement 
shall be binding unless executed in writing and signed by both Parties. 

3.5.16 Waiver.  No waiver of any default shall constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, 
whether of the same or other covenant or condition.  No waiver, benefit, privilege, or 
service voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the other Party any contractual 
rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise. 

3.5.17 No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right 
or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

3.5.18 Invalidity; Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal, or 
otherwise unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions 
shall continue in full force and effect. 

3.5.22 Authority to Enter Agreement.  Consultant has all requisite power and authority to conduct 
its business and to execute, deliver, and perform the Agreement.  Each Party warrants 
that the individuals who have signed this Agreement have the legal power, right, and 
authority to make this Agreement and bind each respective Party. 

3.5.23 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, each of which shall 
constitute an original. 

3.5.24 Limitation of Liability.  The District does not and will not waive and expressly reserves all 
available defenses and limitations contained in Chapter 41 of the Nevada Revised 
Statutes.  Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive damages.  

3.5.25 Non-Appropriations.  The District may terminate this Agreement, effective immediately 
upon receipt of written notice on any date specified if for any reason the District’s funding 
source is not appropriated or is withdrawn, limited, or impaired. 

3.5.26 Compliance with Laws.  Consultant shall keep itself fully informed of and in compliance 
with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting the 
performance of the Project or the Services.  Consultant shall not discriminate against any 
person on the grounds of race, color, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
identity or gender expression, age, disability, national origin or any other status protected 
under any applicable law.  Consultant is not currently engaged in, and during the duration 
of the Agreement shall not engage in, a Boycott of Israel. The term “Boycott of Israel” has 
the meaning ascribed to that term in NRS 332.065. Consultant shall be responsible for all 
fines, penalties, and repayment of any State of Nevada or federal funds (including those 

Page 150 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 11 

that the District pays, becomes liable to pay, or becomes liable to repay) that may arise 
as a direct result of the Consultant’s non-compliance with this subsection. 

3.5.27 Prohibited Interests.  Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not employed nor 
retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for 
Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  Further, Consultant warrants that it has 
not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee 
working solely for Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or 
other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this 
Agreement.  For breach or violation of this warranty, District shall have the right to rescind 
this Agreement without liability.  For the term of this Agreement, no member, officer or 
employee of District, during the term of his or her service with District, shall have any direct 
interest in this Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit arising 
therefrom. 

3.5.28 Whistleblower Provisions. This Agreement is not intended to and will not preclude 
Consultant’s employees from exercising available rights under the District’s Whistleblower 
Policy and associated procedures for reporting suspected misconduct, as that term is 
defined in the Whistleblower Policy. All reports of suspected misconduct will be handled 
by the District in accordance with the Whistleblower Policy. 

OWNER:  
INCLINE VILLAGE G. I. D. 

CONTRACTOR:   
BLACK EAGLE CONSULTING 

Agreed to: Agreed to: 

By: By: 
Signature of Authorized Agent 

Print or Type Name and Title 

Date 

Reviewed as to Form: 
Date

Sergio Rudin 
District General Counsel 

If Contractor is a corporation, 
attach evidence of authority to 
sign. 

Date 

Signature of Authohhhhhhhh rized Agent

Page 151 of 257

Shaun A. Smith, P.E., LEED AP,  
Regional Vice President

April 17, 2024



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 12 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The following information was used to develop the Consultant’s scope of services and cost: 

Page 152 of 257



Black Eagle Consulting Alder Avenue Water Mains Materials Testing & Inspection Page 13 

EXHIBIT B 

SCHEDULE OF CHARGES

Page 153 of 257



BLACK EAGLE CONSULTING, LLC

2024 STANDARD RATES FOR SERVICES
The following lists a schedule of fees associated with engineering, materials testing, and construction testing and inspection 
support services. For projects lasting less than 4 weeks, invoices will be submitted upon project completion, while monthly 
invoices will be submitted for projects that last longer than 4 weeks. Overtime is defined as any hour of service provided in excess 
of 40 hours in a single week or any hour of service provided on a Saturday or Sunday. Any overtime work will be invoiced at time 
and one-half. Double time is defined as any hour of service provided on a holiday. Any double time work will be invoiced at 
double time.

SUPPORT SERVICE RATE/HOUR

Regional Vice President $175.00
Senior Consultant $175.00

ENGINEERING:
Division Manager $170.00
Project Manager $145.00
Project Engineer/Geologist $140.00
Engineering Technician $100.00
Drafting $ 85.00

MATERIALS TESTING:
Division Manager $150.00
Senior Materials Technician $100.00
Materials Technician II $ 87.00
Materials Technician I $ 80.00

CONSTRUCTION TESTING AND INSPECTION:
Division Manager $160.00
Project Manager $135.00
Field Manager/Assistant Project Manager $115.00
Special Inspector (ICC) $108.00
Inspector/Tester $103.00

TRAVEL AND EQUIPMENT:
Vehicle $  10.00
Mileage $1.50/mile
Per Diem P.O.R.*
Nuclear Densometer $ 1 0 .00
Coring Machine $ 50.00
Pachometer $ 20.00
Torque Wrench $ 20.00
Skidmore-Wilhelm Bolt Tension $ 20.00
Magnetic Particle/Ultrasonic Equipment $ 25.00
Thickness Gauge $ 20.00
Schmidt Hammer $ 15.00
Vane Shear $ 15.00
HERZ $ 65.00
ReMi Geophysical $600.00/day
Cross hole Sonic Logging $500.00/day
Floor Flatness Equipment + Labor $200.00/Hour

CLERICAL:
Clerical/Word Processor $ 65.00
Computer $ 10.00
Supplies Cost + 10%
Copying $   0.20/page
Color Copies:  8-1/2" x 11" $   0.50/page
Color Copies:  11" x 17" $   2.00/page

OUTSIDE SERVICES: Cost + 10%

Page 154 of 257



BLACK EAGLE CONSULTING, LLC

2024 STANDARD RATES FOR SERVICES

TESTS UNIT PRICE

SOILS TESTING:
Moisture Content (ASTM D 2216) $ 25.00/test
Moisture Content and Dry Density (ASTM D 2937) $ 50.00/test
Atterberg Limit (ASTM D 4318)  $115.00/test
Minus 200 Wash (ASTM D 1140) $ 80.00/test
Standard Sieve Analysis (ASTM D 6913) $125.00/test
Hydrometer Analysis minus No. 10 (ASTM D 422)  $225.00/test
Soil Specific Gravity (ASTM D 854) $110.00/test
R-Value, Untreated Field Sample (ASTM D 2844) $350.00/test

¾” Batching        add $ 35.00/test
Consolidation, 4 points & 1 Rebound Point (ASTM D 2435)  $400.00/test
Direct Shear, UU, CU, CD (ASTM D 3080) $400.00/test
Unconfined Compression (ASTM D 2166) $100.00/test
Durability Index $150.00/test
California Bearing Ratio $700.00/test
Resistivity (Miller Soil Box) $100.00/test
Standard Proctor Compaction (ASTM D 698)

Method A or B (4-inch mold) or Method C (6-inch mold) $175.00/test
Modified Proctor Compaction (ASTM D 1557)

Method A or B (4-inch mold) or Method C (6-inch mold) $200.00/test
Compaction Check Point (4-inch or 6-inch mold) $ 60.00/test
Rock Correction (ASTM D 4718) $ 95.00/test
Harvard Miniature (Nev T-101)  $250.00/test
Expansion Index $180.00/test

AGGREGATE TESTING:
Standard Sieve Analysis (ASTM D 6913) $125.00/test
Atterberg Limit (ASTM D 4318)  $115.00/test
Moisture Content (ASTM D 2216) $ 25.00/test
Specific Gravity Fine Aggregate with Absorption (ASTM C 128) $ 95.00/test
Specific Gravity Coarse Aggregate with Absorption (ASTM C 127)  $ 95.00/test
Clay Lumps and Friable Particles (ASTM C 142)  $ 90.00/test
Flat and Elongated Particles (CRD 119, 120) $ 85.00/test
Fractured Faces (Nev T-230)  $ 85.00/test
Sand Equivalent (ASTM D 2419) $125.00/test
Cleanness Test of Aggregate  $125.00/test
Organic Impurities (ASTM C 40) $ 75.00/test
Dry Unit Weight of Aggregate (ASTM C 29) $ 60.00/test
Sodium Soundness of Aggregate (ASTM C 88)  $ 95.00/fraction
Los Angeles Rattler, 1.5 inch minus aggregate size (ASTM C 131) and
Los Angeles Rattler, greater than 1.5-inch aggregate size (ASTM C 535) $300.00/test

PORTLAND CEMENT TESTING:
Compression of Concrete Cylinder (ASTM C 39)  $ 25.00/ea.
Compression of Grout Cylinder (UBC 24-28) $ 25.00/ea.
Compression of Mortar Cylinder (UBC 24-22) $ 25.00/ea.
Compression of Cored Concrete (ASTM C 42)  $ 50.00/ea.
Compression of Shotcrete per Core $100.00/ea.
Flexural Strength of Concrete Beams (ASTM C 78, C 293)  $100.00/ea.
Splitting Tensile Strength of Concrete Cylinder (ASTM C 496) $ 55.00/ea.

Page 155 of 257



BLACK EAGLE CONSULTING, LLC

2024 STANDARD RATES FOR SERVICES

MASONRY TESTING:
Compression of Masonry Unit (ASTM C 140) (Set of 3) $210.00/set
Compression of Masonry Prism (ASTM C 1314) $150.00/ea.
Shrinkage (Set of 3) $450.00/set
Moisture (Set of 3) $120.00/set

ASPHALT CONCRETE TESTING:
Bitumen Content by Ignition $120.00/test
Asphalt Gradation $100.00/test
Marshall Stability and Flow, Compaction and Unit Weight (ASTM D 1559) $230.00/test
Maximum Theoretical Specific Gravity (ASTM D 2041) $100.00/test
Unit Weight of Asphalt Cores (ASTM D 2726) $ 40.00/ea.
Hveem Compaction and Stability $130.00/ea.
Hot Mix Asphalt Mix Design P.O.R.*
CTB Mix Design P.O.R.*

MISCELLANEOUS:
Mobile Asphalt/Soils Testing Laboratory P.O.R.*
Special Handling $ 75.00/hour
Rush Charge 50% Additional Charge
Fireproofing $ 75.00/test

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Laboratory test unit prices are based upon the average running time required for each test. Special research, sample or 
equipment preparation or laboratory consulting will be based upon hourly personnel charges.  Fixed unit prices do not 
include extra preparation time for large bulk samples, saturated samples or extremely clayey samples. This time will be 
invoiced on a per-hour basis. Special report preparation and data presentation beyond industry standards will also be 
invoiced on a per-hour basis. Cost estimates for hourly charges will be provided on a project-specific basis upon request.

Any specialized testing not covered by this fee schedule will be developed or subcontracted out under Black Eagle 
Consulting, LLC supervision. Costs for these tests will be time-and-materials. When applicable, subcontractors’ fees will 
be invoiced at cost plus ten (10) percent.

All samples will be discarded thirty (30) days after submission of our report, unless otherwise directed by the client. Upon 
request, Black Eagle Consulting, LLC will deliver samples to the client, shipping collect on delivery, or will store them for 
an agreed charge.

2024 Standard Rates for Service are subject to annual increase.

* Price on request

2024-NV

Page 156 of 257



 ITEM G.4. 
M E M O R A N D U M 

  
TO: Board of Trustees 
  
THROUGH: Bobby Magee, District General Manager 
  
FROM: Kate Nelson, Interim Director of Public Works 
  
SUBJECT: Review, Discuss, and Approve the Agreement for Professional 

Services for the Effluent Storage Tank Project at the WRRF for 
SCADA Configuration Modifications - 2023/24 Capital Project Fund: 
Utilities; Division: Sewer: Project #2599SS2010 Effluent Storage 
Tank; Professional: Thunderbird Communications in the Amount of 
$9,531.45. (Requesting Staff Member: Interim Director of Public 
Works Kate Nelson) 

  
RELATED FY 2023 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
BUDGET INITIATIVE(S): 

LONG RANGE PRINCIPLE #5 – ASSETS AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
The District will practice perpetual asset 
renewal, replacement and improvement to 
provide safe and superior long term utility 
services and recreation venues, facilities, and 
services. 

  
RELATED DISTRICT 
POLICIES, PRACTICES, 
RESOLUTIONS OR 
ORDINANCES 

Board Policies 12.1.0 Multi-year Capital 
Planning; 13.2.0 Capital Planning Capital 
Expenditures; 21.2.0 Purchasing Policy for 
Public Works Contracts 

  
DATE: April 24, 2024 
 

 
 
I. RECOMMENDATION  
That the Board of Trustees make a motion to: 

1. Approve the Professional Services Agreement with Thunderbird 
Communications for the Effluent Storage Tank Project for the amount of 
$9,531.45; and, 

2. Authorize the District General Manager to execute the Agreement with 
Thunderbird Communications. 

 
 
  

Page 157 of 257



 
II. BACKGROUND  
The construction of the new two million gallon (2MG) Effluent Storage Tank 
Project was approved on March 28, 2024 (Item E.3). There is an existing 0.5MG 
steel tank in use at the wastewater resource recovery facility (WRRF) that is 
currently monitored by a Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 
system.  
 
In order to complete construction of the new 2MG tank, the existing 0.5MG steel 
tank appurtenances need to be demolished for replacement. As part of this, the 
existing vault that houses the SCADA control system for the 0.5MG will be 
demolished and the SCADA hardware must be relocated until completion of the 
new tank-related facilities. However, the existing 0.5MG gallon tank must 
maintain operational use of the SCADA system and the related transducers to 
monitor tank storage levels for the Spooner Pump Station and high level alarming 
controls. 
 
Thunderbird communications is the primary contractor the IVGID Plant 
Operations Staff use for SCADA programming. Therefore, the proposed 
agreement is to provide for temporary relocation of the existing SCADA controls. 
 
III. BID RESULTS  
The Services Agreement was not solicited for public bid. There is no requirement 
for this professional service to be solicited for competitive bid per NRS 
338.13862(b): the contract value is less than $25,000.  
 
As the current SCADA contractor for the WWRF, Thunderbird Communications is 
the most suitable consultant to provide the SCADA programming services. 
 
IV. FINANCIAL IMPACT AND BUDGET  
The total proposed budget for programming for the temporary controls is 
$9,351.45. Refer to attached Services Agreement, Attachment A. 
 
The proposed amount above was included as part of the budget augmentation 
approved and presented in the February 28, 2024 Board of Trustees meeting 
(Item G.3) as summarized below. 
 
 
Description Cost Estimate 

Direct Construction Costs $ 5,663,000 

CMAR Fee $ 566,300 

Risk Reserve $ 410,000 

IVGID Operations Staff $ 38,000 

IVGID Project Management $ 90,000 

Page 158 of 257



Engineering Construction Administration Services $ 200,000 

Contract Contingency $ 190,000 

Temporary SCADA $ 26,500 

Subtotal $ 7,183,800 

Spent to date $ 880,000 

TOTAL $ 8,063,800 
  
 
V. ALTERNATIVES  
No alternatives are presented. This is an essential task required to enable 
construction of the new storage tank. 
 
VI. COMMENTS  
The Agreement for Professional Services has been reviewed and approved by 
the District's Legal Counsel.  
 
VII. BUSINESS IMPACT/BENEFIT  
This item is not a "rule" within the meaning of Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 
237, and does not require a Business Impact Statement.  
 
VIII. ATTACHMENTS  
1. ATTACHMENT A - Services Agreement - Thunderbird 

Communications_Effluent Tank SCADA Modifications 
 
IX. DECISION POINTS NEEDED FROM THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES   
 

Page 159 of 257



ATTACHMENT A

Page 160 of 257



PURCHASE ORDER TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR SERVICES

1. Acceptance; Entire Agreement.  This purchase order for
services issued by the INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”) to the Contractor
designated in the purchase order must be promptly accepted
and acceptance is expressly limited to the terms of this order.
Any addition or different terms in the Contractor's forms are
hereby deemed to be material alterations and notice of
objection to them and rejection of them is hereby given.
Contractor's performance of any portion of this order shall be
considered acceptance by the Contractor of the terms herein.

2. Compensation. Contractor shall be paid on a time and
materials or firm fixed fee basis, as may be agreed upon by
the parties as described in this Purchase Order, or in
documents attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof,
within 30 days of receipt of invoice.  If the work is performed
on a time and materials basis, the invoice shall include a
detailed description of the work performed, labor hours and
materials.

3. Compliance with Law.  Contractor shall comply with all
applicable laws and regulations of the federal, state and local
government.  DISTRICT shall assist Contractor, as requested,
in obtaining and maintaining all permits required of Contractor 
by Federal, State and local regulatory agencies.  Contractor
is responsible for all costs of clean up and/or removal of
hazardous and toxic substances spilled as a result of his or
her work.

4. Standard of Care.  The Contractor shall perform the work
in accordance with generally accepted professional practices
and principles and in a manner consistent with the level of
care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the
profession practicing under similar conditions.  Contractor
shall also comply with State and Federal environmental and
safety regulations as they apply to the scope of work.

5. Insurance. Contractor  shall take out and maintain:  A.
Commercial General Liability Insurance, of at least
$1,000,000 per occurrence/ $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily
injury, personal injury and property damage, naming
DISTRICT as an Additional Insured;  B. Automobile Liability
Insurance for bodily injury and property damage including
coverage for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles, of at least 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property
damage;  C. Workers’ Compensation in compliance with
applicable statutory requirements and Employer's Liability
Coverage of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence;  and D.
Contractors providing professional services shall provide
Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance of at
least $1,000,000. Insurance carriers shall be licensed or
authorized to do business in Nevada.

6. Indemnification.  The Contractor shall indemnify and hold
harmless DISTRICT, its officials, officers, agents and
employees  from  and against any and all claims, liabilities,
expenses or damages, including reasonable attorneys’ fees,
for injury or death of any person, or damage to property, or
interference with use of property, or patent infringement or
fees for use of patented items, or any claim of the Contractor
or a subcontractor for wages or benefits which arise in
connection with the performance of the Contract, except to the 
extent caused or resulting from the active or sole negligence
or willful misconduct of DISTRICT.  The foregoing indemnity
includes, but is not limited to, the cost of prosecuting or
defending such action with legal counsel acceptable to
DISTRICT and DISTRICT’s attorneys’ fees incurred in such
an action.  If Contractor’s obligation to defend, indemnify,

and/or hold harmless arises out of Contractor’s performance 
of “design professional” services subject to NRS 338.155, 
then, and only to the extent required by NRS 338.155, which 
is fully incorporated herein, Contractor’s indemnification 
obligation shall be limited to the extent that such liabilities, 
damages, losses, claims, actions or proceedings are caused 
by the negligence, errors, omissions, recklessness or 
intentional misconduct of the Contractor or its employees and 
agents. Moreover, while Contractor shall not be required to 
initially defend the District, Contractor, if adjudicated to be 
liable by a trier of fact, the Contractor shall be reimburse the 
District or the attorney’s fees and costs incurred by the District 
defending the action in an amount which is proportionate to 
the liability of the Contractor. 

7. Contract Terms. Nothing herein shall be construed to give
any rights or benefits to anyone other than DISTRICT and the
Contractor.  The unenforceability, invalidity or illegality of any
provision(s) of this Contract shall not render the other
provisions unenforceable, invalid or illegal.  Notice may be
given or delivered by depositing the same in any United States 
Post Office, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage
prepaid, addressed to the parties to the addresses set forth in
the purchase order.  Contractor shall not assign, sublet, or
transfer this Contract or any rights under or interest in this
Contract without the written consent of DISTRICT, which may
be withheld for any reason.  Contractor is retained as an
independent contractor and is not an employee of DISTRICT.
No employee or agent of Contractor shall become an
employee of DISTRICT.  This is an integrated Contract
representing the entire understanding of the parties as to
those matters contained herein, and supersedes and cancels
any prior oral or written understanding or representations with
respect to matters covered hereunder.  This Contract may not
be modified or altered except in writing signed by both parties
hereto. This Purchase Order is not intended to and will not
preclude Contractor’s employees from exercising available
rights under the DISTRICT’s Whistleblower Policy and
associated procedures for reporting suspected misconduct,
as that term is defined in the Whistleblower Policy. All reports
of suspected misconduct will be handled by the DISTRICT in
accordance with the Whistleblower Policy.

8. Notice of Labor Dispute.  Whenever Contractor has
knowledge that an actual or potential labor dispute may delay
performance under this purchase order, Contractor shall
immediately notify and submit all relevant information to
DISTRICT.

9. Changes. By written notice, DISTRICT may from time to
time, direct work suspension or make changes in quantities,
drawings, designs, specifications, place of delivery or delivery 
schedules, methods of shipment and packaging, and property 
and services furnished to DISTRICT by Contractor. If such
change causes an increase or decrease in the price of this
purchase order or in the time required for performance,
Contractor or DISTRICT shall promptly notify the other party
thereof and assert its claim for adjustment within thirty (30)
days after the change is ordered, and an equitable adjustment 
shall be made.  However, nothing in this clause shall excuse
the Contractor from proceeding immediately with the
purchase order as changed.

10. Obligations.  Contractor shall be solely responsible for
providing all materials, labor, tools, equipment, water, light,
power, transportation, superintendence, and temporary
construction of every nature and all other services and all

Page 161 of 257



 

   

facilities necessary to execute, complete, and deliver the work 
within the specified time. 
 
11.  Damage to District Facilities.  Damage to DISTRICT or 
public facilities or private property caused by the Contractor 
or by its subcontractors during performance of services shall 
be repaired and/or replaced in kind at no cost to the 
DISTRICT. 
 
12.  Site Safety and Cleanup.  The project site shall be kept 
clean and free of hazards at all times during performance of 
services. After and installation is completed at the site, as 
applicable, Contractor shall clean the surrounding area to the 
condition prior to delivery and installation. 

 
13.  Installation.  If the Contractor is responsible for providing 
installation services, finished installation work and/or 
equipment shall be subject to final inspection and acceptance 
or rejection by the DISTRICT. 
 
14. Whistleblower Provisions. This Agreement is not intended 
to and will not preclude Consultant’s employees from 
exercising available rights under the District’s Whistleblower 
Policy and associated procedures for reporting suspected 
misconduct, as that term is defined in the Whistleblower 
Policy. All reports of suspected misconduct will be handled by 
the District in accordance with the Whistleblower Policy.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 162 of 257



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
1664 Auburn Ravine Road, Auburn, CA  95603          Web  http://www.thunder-bird.com 
Phone (530)888-8100   FAX (530)888-8185 Email  sales@thunder-bird.com 
 

 
 
February 7, 2024 
 
 
Subject:  Incline Village General Improvement District 
    Effluent Tank SCADA Modifications, Project #23-0111.TS 
 
 
The following is Thunderbird Communications’ pricing for SCADA modifications for 
the Effluent Tank modifications. This proposal includes the following hardware: 
 

- Additional Mixed I/O module for the addition of new analog inputs. 
- Additional backplane to allow mounting of the unit into the permanent housing 

upon final installation. 

  

The additional backplane will allow all of the RTU (CPU, power supply, modules, radio, 
and battery) to be installed onto one backplane which can be installed in the permanent 
housing.  The layout of the backplane is shown above. The current configuration has the 
unit installed with the modules, radio, and battery all installed separately due to space 
limitations at the time of installation. 
 
This proposal includes the following labor: 
 

Page 163 of 257



 Project 23-0111.TS   Page 2 

- One day on site to document and assist with moving of the RTU to a temporary 
location 

- Development of a functional specification, defining I/O connections, functionality, 
and HMI modifications to be made 

- All required programming of RTU, FIU, Intouch, Historian, and WIN911 software 
- Implementation of changes in field 
- Assembly of RTU onto new backplane and assistance with moving to permanent 

location 
- Field testing on site 
 
Pricing is shown on the following pages.  Please feel free to contact me with any 
questions or comments. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Tom Swick 
 
Tom Swick 
Thunderbird Communications, Inc. 
  

Page 164 of 257



 Project 23-0111.TS   Page 4 

Cost Breakdown 
IVGID 

Effluent Tank Modifications 
 

Engineering Cost Breakdown  
   

  No. Days No. Days   
Function (In-House) (On-Site)  Cost  
      
One Day on Site to Assist with 
Moving of RTU to Temporary 
Location   1 $1,290.00  
Develop New Functional 
Specification and I/O Wiring 
Documentation 1   $1,160.00  
Develop Programming for RTU 
Application and Intouch 
Database In House, Provide 
Intouch Database Addressing 
Documentation 1   $1,160.00  
Implement RTU Programming, 
Modify FIU Application, Add 
Intouch Database and Display 
Modificaitons, WIN911 Alarming, 
and Historian Changes on Site   2 $2,580.00  
Assistance with Moving of RTU 
On Site, Assembling of RTU 
onto New Chassis   1 $1,290.00  
Participate in Field Testing 
Operations on Site   1 $1,290.00  
        
Engineering Total     $8,770.00  

 
 

Equipment Cost Breakdown 
     

Equipment   Qty.  Item Price   Ext'd Price  
       
FLN3572 Mixed I/O Module 1 $513.95  $513.95  
Medium Metal Chassis with Motherboard 1 $247.50  $247.50  
       
Equipment Total       $761.45  

Page 165 of 257



 ITEM G.5. 
M E M O R A N D U M 

  
TO: Board of Trustees 
  
THROUGH: Bobby Magee, District General Manager 
  
FROM: Kate Nelson, Interim Director of Public Works 
  
SUBJECT: Review, Discuss and Approve the Agreement for Services for Carpet 

Replacement Public Works Building A Lower Level - 2023/24 Capital 
Improvement Project; Fund: Utility; Division: Shared Sewer and 
Water; Project #2097BD1204 - New Carpet Building #A ; Vendor: 
Tahoe Specialty Flooring and Window Design in an Amount Not to 
Exceed $17,029.46. (Requesting Staff Member: Interim Director of 
Public Works Kate Nelson) 

  
RELATED FY 2023 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
BUDGET INITIATIVE(S): 

LONG RANGE PRINCIPLE #5 – ASSETS AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
The District will practice perpetual asset 
renewal, replacement and improvement to 
provide safe and superior long term utility 
services and recreation venues, facilities, and 
services. 

  
RELATED DISTRICT 
POLICIES, PRACTICES, 
RESOLUTIONS OR 
ORDINANCES 

Purchasing Policy for Goods and Services 
21.1.0. 

  
DATE: April 24, 2024 
 

 
 
I. RECOMMENDATION  
That the Board of Trustees make a motion to: 

1. Approve the Agreement for Services with Tahoe Specialty Flooring and 
Window Design for the Amount Not to Exceed $17,029.46; and, 

2. Direct the General Manager to Sign and Execute the Agreement. 

  
 
II. BACKGROUND  
The carpet in Public Works Building A, installed in 2006, has reached the end of 
its lifespan, particularly on the lower level used by the pipeline crew and fleet. To 

Page 166 of 257



address this, high-traffic walk-off mats will be installed to extend the life of the 
new carpet. This initiative aligns with Board Policy 12.1.0 for facility maintenance 
and is included in the Consent Calendar per Board Policy 3.1.0 Subsection 0.4. It 
falls within the approved FY 2023/24 Capital Improvements Expense Budget in 
the Shared Utilites Fund. 
 
III. BID RESULTS  
The Public Works Buildings Division solicited bids for this work in January 2024 
from three qualified local contractors. One responsive proposal was received 
from Tahoe Specialty Flooring and Window Design.  The nonresponsive 
contractors were Simonian Flooring and SI Legacy.  
 
IV. FINANCIAL IMPACT AND BUDGET  
At the Board of Trustees meeting on May 25, 2023 (Item G.7 and G.9), the FY 
2023/24 budget was approved. This project has an approved budget of $47,000. 
All unused funds will remain within the fund balance. 
 
V. ALTERNATIVES  
The Board of Trustees may defer or decide not to move forward with staff's 
recommendation and the lower floor of Public Works Building A will remain in its 
current condition. 
 
VI. COMMENTS  
The Agreement between the District and Tahoe Specialty Flooring and Window 
Design has been reviewed and approved by District Legal Counsel. 
 
VII. BUSINESS IMPACT/BENEFIT  
This item is not a "rule" within the meaning of Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 
237, and does not require a Business Impact Statement.  
 
VIII. ATTACHMENTS  
1. Carpet Install - Bldg A Lower Level 
 
IX. DECISION POINTS NEEDED FROM THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES   
 

Page 167 of 257



Account No. 2097BD1204 Purchase Order No.
CONTRACTOR

Tahoe Specialty Flooring & Window Design
930 Tahoe Boulevard, #103
Incline Village, NV 89451
Attn: Annie Daly
annie@tahoespecialtyflooring.com
775-832-1177

INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Public Works Department
1220 Sweetwater Road
Incline Village, NV 89451
Attn:  Andrew Ansotegui
ada@ivgid.org / 775-558-9090

This Purchase Order is subject to the attached terms and conditions.

Services:

Per Contractor’s quote ES401763, provide and install Shared Force carpet tile to Public Works 
Building A lower floor Fleet Superintendent’s office, Pipeline Distribution/Collections 
Supervisor’s office and Pipeline meeting room/lunch room. Work includes:

Removal and reset furniture and equipment.
Tear-out and dispose of existing glued-down carpet tiles.
Prep cracked concrete subfloor.
6” rubber base.

Price: $17,029.46

SIGNATURES ON LAST PAGE.

xxxxxxxxxxx     775.831.2200 
ommmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

Page 168 of 257



 

PURCHASE ORDER TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR SERVICES
 

1.  Acceptance; Entire Agreement.  This purchase order for 
services issued by the INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”) to the Contractor 
designated in the purchase order must be promptly accepted 
and acceptance is expressly limited to the terms of this order. 
Any addition or different terms in the Contractor's forms are 
hereby deemed to be material alterations and notice of 
objection to them and rejection of them is hereby given. 
Contractor's performance of any portion of this order shall be 
considered acceptance by the Contractor of the terms herein.   
 
2.  Compensation. Contractor shall be paid on a time and 
materials or firm fixed fee basis, as may be agreed upon by 
the parties as described in this Purchase Order, or in 
documents attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof, 
within 30 days of receipt of invoice.  If the work is performed 
on a time and materials basis, the invoice shall include a 
detailed description of the work performed, labor hours and 
materials. 
 
3.  Compliance with Law.  Contractor shall comply with all 
applicable laws and regulations of the federal, state and local 
government.  DISTRICT shall assist Contractor, as requested, 
in obtaining and maintaining all permits required of Contractor 
by Federal, State and local regulatory agencies.  Contractor 
is responsible for all costs of clean up and/or removal of 
hazardous and toxic substances spilled as a result of his or 
her work.  
 
4.  Standard of Care.  The Contractor shall perform the work 
in accordance with generally accepted professional practices 
and principles and in a manner consistent with the level of 
care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the 
profession practicing under similar conditions.  Contractor 
shall also comply with State and Federal environmental and 
safety regulations as they apply to the scope of work. 
   
5.  Insurance. Contractor  shall take out and maintain:  A. 
Commercial General Liability Insurance, of at least 
$1,000,000 per occurrence/ $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily 
injury, personal injury and property damage, naming 
DISTRICT as an Additional Insured;  B. Automobile Liability 
Insurance for bodily injury and property damage including 
coverage for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles, of at least 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property 
damage;  C. Workers’ Compensation in compliance with 
applicable statutory requirements and Employer's Liability 
Coverage of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence;  and D. 
Contractors providing professional services shall provide 
Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance of at 
least $1,000,000. Insurance carriers shall be licensed or 
authorized to do business in Nevada.   
 
6.  Indemnification.  The Contractor shall indemnify and hold 
harmless DISTRICT, its officials, officers, agents and 
employees  from  and against any and all claims, liabilities, 
expenses or damages, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, 
for injury or death of any person, or damage to property, or 
interference with use of property, or patent infringement or 
fees for use of patented items, or any claim of the Contractor 
or a subcontractor for wages or benefits which arise in 
connection with the performance of the Contract, except to the 
extent caused or resulting from the active or sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of DISTRICT.  The foregoing indemnity 
includes, but is not limited to, the cost of prosecuting or  
defending such action with legal counsel acceptable to 
DISTRICT and DISTRICT’s attorneys’ fees incurred in such 
an action.  If Contractor’s obligation to defend, indemnify,  

 
and/or hold harmless arises out of Contractor’s performance 
of “design professional” services subject to NRS 338.155, 
then, and only to the extent required by NRS 338.155, which 
is fully incorporated herein, Contractor’s indemnification 
obligation shall be limited to the extent that such liabilities, 
damages, losses, claims, actions or proceedings are caused 
by the negligence, errors, omissions, recklessness or 
intentional misconduct of the Contractor or its employees and 
agents. Moreover, while Contractor shall not be required to 
initially defend the District, Contractor, if adjudicated to be 
liable by a trier of fact, the Contractor shall be reimburse the 
District or the attorney’s fees and costs incurred by the District 
defending the action in an amount which is proportionate to 
the liability of the Contractor. 
 
7.  Contract Terms. Nothing herein shall be construed to give 
any rights or benefits to anyone other than DISTRICT and the 
Contractor.  The unenforceability, invalidity or illegality of any 
provision(s) of this Contract shall not render the other 
provisions unenforceable, invalid or illegal.  Notice may be 
given or delivered by depositing the same in any United States 
Post Office, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage 
prepaid, addressed to the parties to the addresses set forth in 
the purchase order.  Contractor shall not assign, sublet, or 
transfer this Contract or any rights under or interest in this 
Contract without the written consent of DISTRICT, which may 
be withheld for any reason.  Contractor is retained as an 
independent contractor and is not an employee of DISTRICT.  
No employee or agent of Contractor shall become an 
employee of DISTRICT.  This is an integrated Contract 
representing the entire understanding of the parties as to 
those matters contained herein, and supersedes and cancels 
any prior oral or written understanding or representations with 
respect to matters covered hereunder.  This Contract may not 
be modified or altered except in writing signed by both parties 
hereto. This Purchase Order is not intended to and will not 
preclude Contractor’s employees from exercising available 
rights under the DISTRICT’s Whistleblower Policy and 
associated procedures for reporting suspected misconduct, 
as that term is defined in the Whistleblower Policy. All reports 
of suspected misconduct will be handled by the DISTRICT in 
accordance with the Whistleblower Policy. 
 
8.  Notice of Labor Dispute.  Whenever Contractor has 
knowledge that an actual or potential labor dispute may delay 
performance under this purchase order, Contractor shall 
immediately notify and submit all relevant information to 
DISTRICT. 
 
9.  Changes. By written notice, DISTRICT may from time to 
time, direct work suspension or make changes in quantities, 
drawings, designs, specifications, place of delivery or delivery 
schedules, methods of shipment and packaging, and property 
and services furnished to DISTRICT by Contractor. If such 
change causes an increase or decrease in the price of this 
purchase order or in the time required for performance, 
Contractor or DISTRICT shall promptly notify the other party 
thereof and assert its claim for adjustment within thirty (30) 
days after the change is ordered, and an equitable adjustment 
shall be made.  However, nothing in this clause shall excuse 
the Contractor from proceeding immediately with the 
purchase order as changed. 
 
10.  Obligations.  Contractor shall be solely responsible for 
providing all materials, labor, tools, equipment, water, light, 
power, transportation, superintendence, and temporary 
construction of every nature and all other services and all 

Page 169 of 257



facilities necessary to execute, complete, and deliver the work 
within the specified time.

11. Damage to District Facilities.  Damage to DISTRICT or
public facilities or private property caused by the Contractor
or by its subcontractors during performance of services shall
be repaired and/or replaced in kind at no cost to the
DISTRICT.

12. Site Safety and Cleanup.  The project site shall be kept
clean and free of hazards at all times during performance of
services. After and installation is completed at the site, as
applicable, Contractor shall clean the surrounding area to the
condition prior to delivery and installation.

13. Installation.  If the Contractor is responsible for providing
installation services, finished installation work and/or
equipment shall be subject to final inspection and acceptance
or rejection by the DISTRICT.

14. Whistleblower Provisions. This Agreement is not intended
to and will not preclude Consultant’s employees from
exercising available rights under the District’s Whistleblower
Policy and associated procedures for reporting suspected
misconduct, as that term is defined in the Whistleblower
Policy. All reports of suspected misconduct will be handled by
the District in accordance with the Whistleblower Policy.

OWNER: 
INCLINE VILLAGE G. I. D.

CONTRACTOR:  
Tahoe Specialty Flooring & Window 
Design

Agreed to: Agreed to:

By: By:
Bobby M ee
District General Manager 

Signature of Authorized Agent

Print or Type Name and Title

Date

Reviewed as to Form:
Date

Sergio Rudin
District General Counsel

Date

Coreen Serrano - Vice President

4/5/2024

Page 170 of 257



QUOTE

E
S

401763

Ship ToSold To

INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT
ANDY-775-558-9090
ADA@IVGID.ORG

INCLINE VILLAGE PUBLIC WORKS
1220 SWEETWATER ROAD
INCLINE VILLAGE, NV  89451

Page    1TAHOE SPECIALTY FLOORING & WINDOW DESIGN
930 TAHOE BLVD., #103

RALEY'S CENTER
INCLINE VILLAGE, NV  89451

Telephone: 775-831-2200

Tele #1

02/12/24 ES401763775-832-1177

Quote Date Quote NumberPO Number

PROVIDE AND INSTALL RETHREAD OR ORNATE 18" X 36" CARPET    $  15,494.20
TILE IN FIRST FLOOR BACK MEETING ROOM, UTILITY DEPARTMENT
AND UTILITY DEPARTMENT MEETING ROOM 

REMOVE & RESET FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT                         1,900.00

TEAR OUT & DISPOSE OF EXISTING GLUED DOWN CARPET               3,000.00

PREP CRACKED CONCRETE SUB-FLOOR                                  600.00

6" RUBBER BASE                                                 1,950.00

                                                                       $  22,944.20

SHARED FORCE CARPET TILE IN LIEU OF RETHREAD OR ORNATE:                $  (5,914.74)

NEW TOTAL:                                                             $  17,029.46

04/01/24
0.00Sales Representative(s):
0.00

Misc. Charges:
ANNIE DALY

Sales Tax: 0.00
0.00Misc. Tax:

0.00

QUOTE TOTAL: $0.00

Service:
Material:

2:17PM

Page 171 of 257



QUOTE

E
S

401763

Ship ToSold To

INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT
ANDY-775-558-9090
ADA@IVGID.ORG

INCLINE VILLAGE PUBLIC WORKS
1220 SWEETWATER ROAD
INCLINE VILLAGE, NV  89451

Page    2TAHOE SPECIALTY FLOORING & WINDOW DESIGN
930 TAHOE BLVD., #103

RALEY'S CENTER
INCLINE VILLAGE, NV  89451

Telephone: 775-831-2200

Tele #1

02/12/24 ES401763775-832-1177

Quote Date Quote NumberPO Number

CA LICENSE #719861 - NV LICENSE #74473

QUOTATION VALID FOR 30 DAYS FROM DATE OF ISSUE UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED

WE THANK YOU FOR SUPPORTING OUR COMMUNITY BY SHOPPING LOCALLY!

04/01/24
0.00Sales Representative(s):
0.00

Misc. Charges:
ANNIE DALY

Sales Tax: 0.00
0.00Misc. Tax:

0.00

QUOTE TOTAL: $0.00

Service:
Material:

2:17PM

Page 172 of 257



 ITEM G.6. 
M E M O R A N D U M 

  
TO: Board of Trustees 
  
THROUGH: Bobby Magee, District General Manager 
  
FROM: Shelia Leijon, Director of Parks & Recreation 
  
SUBJECT: Review Discuss and Approve the Agreement for Services for Floor 

Replacement in the Recreation Center Group Fitness Room - 
2023/24 Capital Improvement Project; Fund: Community Services; 
Division: Recreation; Project # 4886LE001 - Fitness Equipment 
Floor Replacement; Vendor Croft Beck Group, LLC., in an Amount 
Not to Exceed $36,619. (Requesting Staff Member: Director of Parks 
& Recreation Shelia Leijon) 

  
RELATED FY 2023 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
BUDGET INITIATIVE(S): 

LONG RANGE PRINCIPLE #5 – ASSETS AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
The District will practice perpetual asset 
renewal, replacement and improvement to 
provide safe and superior long term utility 
services and recreation venues, facilities, and 
services. 

RELATED DISTRICT 
POLICIES, PRACTICES, 
RESOLUTIONS OR 
ORDINANCES 

Capital Planning Multi-Year Capital Planning 
Policy 12.1.0; Purchasing Policy for Goods and 
Services 21.1.0 

DATE: April 24, 2024 
 

 
 
I. RECOMMENDATION  
That the Board of Trustees make a motion to: 
 

1. Approve the Professional Services Agreement with Croft Beck Group, 
LLC., for floor replacement in the Recreation Center Group Fitness Room, 
CIP # 4886LE001 in the amount of $36,619; and, 

2. Direct the General Manager to sign and execute the Agreement.  

  
 
II. BACKGROUND  
The Group Fitness area, extensively utilized for fitness, dance, and personal 
training services within the Recreation Center programs over the past 13 years, 

Page 173 of 257



features Classic Exterra Wood flooring. However, due to heavy use, the flooring 
exhibits signs of wear and tear, with several planks showing warping, marring, 
and gaps, thereby posing potential trip hazards. Consequently, the existing 
flooring has been deemed irreparable and has reached the end of its useful life. 
Accordingly, replacement is scheduled as part of the approved FY 2023/24 
Fitness Equipment Capital Improvement budget. 
 
For the replacement flooring, the Robbins Forever Marley flooring has been 
chosen. This flooring system, tailored and biomechanically researched for 
performance, offers exceptional durability and comfort, surpassing traditional 
wooden sprung floors. Its superior characteristics include outstanding uniformity, 
vibration control, impact force reduction, and deflection, ensuring a safe and 
comfortable surface for all levels of activity. Moreover, its longevity is enhanced 
by the option for resurfacing, thereby extending its useful life. 
 
The selection of the Durable Forever Marley Performance surface is based on 
several key factors: 

1. Seamless, slip-resistant, non-reflective, and dimensionally stable 
performance. 

2. Comfort and safety provided by a thick resilient pad, offering excellent 
force reduction, vibration damping, and deflection to soften landings. 

3. Excellent acoustics facilitated by a continuous resilient subfloor, ensuring 
consistent sound and uniformity. 

4. Uniform resilience achieved through a continuous subfloor, enhancing 
rolling load carrying ability. 

5. Five-year limited warranty, providing assurance of quality and 
performance. 

 
Repair of the floor will involve pouring a top layer of seamless polyurethane over 
the current surface. This proposed work aligns with the Board's Policy 12.1.0 
regarding the maintenance of existing facilities. Additionally, it falls within the 
routine business of the District as per Board Policy 3.1.0, Subsection 0.4, and is 
included on the Consent Calendar. This inclusion reflects its alignment with the 
currently approved District's FY 2023/24 Carry-Forward Capital Improvements 
Expense Budget within the Facilities budget. 
 
III. BID RESULTS  
Staff solicited bids for this work in 2024 from three qualified sprung floor vendors. 
Two proposals were received: Croft – Beck Group LLC were the sole provider of 
Forever Marley flooring and installation/shipping of the flooring at $36,619. 
O’Mara Flooring proposed a sprung wood flooring without installation and 
shipping at $30,070 for materials only.  Fitness Flooring Indianapolis did not 
respond to requests. The proposed Agreement with Croft – Beck Floors is 
included.  
 
IV. FINANCIAL IMPACT AND BUDGET  

Page 174 of 257



At the Board of Trustees meeting on May 25, 2023 (Item G.7 and G.9), the FY 
2023/24 budget was approved. This project has an approved budget of $70,000. 
All unused funds will remain within the fund balance. 
 
V. ALTERNATIVES  
The Board of Trustees may defer or decide not to move forward with this 
recommendation and the flooring in the Recreation Center Group Fitness Room 
will remain in its current condition. 
 
VI. COMMENTS  
The Agreement between the District and Croft Beck Group LLC has been 
reviewed and approved by District Legal Counsel. 
 
VII. BUSINESS IMPACT/BENEFIT  
This item is not a "rule" within the meaning of Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 
237, and does not require a Business Impact Statement.  
 
VIII. ATTACHMENTS  
1. Agreement - Rec Center Flooring Replacement  
2. Flooring Images 
 
IX. DECISION POINTS NEEDED FROM THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES   
 

Page 175 of 257



 

 1  

SHORT FORM CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
BETWEEN INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  

and  
CROFT-BECK GROUP LLC 

for 
CONSTRUCTION INSTALLATION SERVICES 

 
1. PARTIES AND DATE. 

This Contract is made and entered as of April 25, 2024 by and between the INCLINE 
VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, a Nevada general improvement district 
(“District”) and CROFT-BECK GROUP LLC, a Utah Limited Liability Company with its principal 
place of business at 2133 South 1260 West, Salt Lake City, UT 84119 (“Contractor”).  District and 
Contractor are sometimes individually referred to as “Party” and collectively as “Parties” in this 
Contract. 

 
2. RECITALS. 

2.1 District.  District is a general improvement district organized under the laws of the 
State of Nevada, with power to contract for services necessary to achieve its purpose.  

2.2 Contractor.  Contractor desires to perform and assume responsibility for the 
provision of certain construction services required by the District on the terms and conditions set 
forth in this Contract.  Contractor represents that it is duly licensed and experienced in providing 
construction services relating to the work to furnish and install “Robbins Le Lena A Forever 
Marley” dance floor subfloor system of approx. 1,131 square feet at the Incline Village Recreation 
Center multipurpose room, that it and its employees or subcontractors have all necessary licenses 
and permits to perform the services in the State of Nevada, and that it is familiar with the plans of 
District.   

2.3 Project.  District desires to engage Contractor to render such services for the 
Multipurpose Room Flooring Replacement (“Project”) as set forth in this Contract. 

2.4 Project Documents.  Contractor has obtained, and delivers concurrently herewith, 
all insurance documentation, as required by the Contract. By reference herein, Contractor agrees 
to review and comply with the District’s Ordinances and Standard Specification for Public Works 
Construction (the “Orange Book”).  

3. TERMS 

3.1 Incorporation of Documents.  This Contract includes and hereby incorporates in 
full by reference the following documents, including all exhibits, drawings, specifications and 
documents therein, and attachments and addenda thereto:  

 Scope of Work  (Exhibit A) 
 Le Lena A Forever Marley Sell Sheet and Warranty (Exhibit B) 
 Schedule of Charges (Exhibit C)  

 
3.2 Contractor’s Basic Obligation; Scope of Work.  Contractor promises and agrees, 

at its own cost and expense, to furnish to the District all labor, materials, tools, equipment, 
services, and incidental and customary work necessary to fully and adequately complete the 

Page 176 of 257



 

 2  

Project, including all structures and facilities necessary for the Project or described in the Contract 
(hereinafter sometimes referred to as the “Work”), for a Total Contract Price as specified in 
Section 3.7 of and pursuant to this Contract.  All Work shall be subject to, and performed in 
accordance with the above referenced documents, as well as the exhibits attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference.   

The Work is generally described as follows: Multipurpose Room Flooring Replacement at 
the District’s Recreation Center, located at 980 Incline Way, in Incline Village, Washoe County, 
Nevada. 

3.2.1 Change in Scope of Work.  Any change in the scope of the Work, method 
of performance, nature of materials or price thereof, or any other matter materially affecting the 
performance or nature of the Work shall not be paid for or accepted unless such change, addition 
or deletion is approved in writing by a valid change order executed by the District.  Should 
Contractor request a change order due to unforeseen circumstances affecting the performance 
of the Work, such request shall be made within five (5) business days of the date such 
circumstances are discovered or shall waive its right to request a change order due to such 
circumstances.  If the Parties cannot agree on any change in price required by such change in 
the Work, the District may direct the Contractor to proceed with the performance of the change 
on a time and materials basis. 

3.3 Period of Performance.   

3.3.1 Contract Time.  Contractor shall perform and complete all Work under this 
Contract by June 28, 2024, which time may be extended as necessary to account for extended 
material delivery time as more clearly set forth in Exhibit A (“Contract Time”). Contractor shall 
perform its Work in strict accordance with any completion schedule, construction schedule or 
project milestones developed by the District.  Contractor agrees that if such Work is not completed 
within the aforementioned Contract Time and/or pursuant to any such completion schedule, 
construction schedule or project milestones developed pursuant to provisions of the Contract, it 
is understood, acknowledged and agreed that the District will suffer damage.   

3.3.2 Force Majeure.  Neither District nor Contractor shall be considered in 
default of this Contract for delays in performance caused by circumstances beyond the 
reasonable control of the non-performing party.  For purposes of this Contract, such 
circumstances include but are not limited to, abnormal weather conditions; floods; earthquakes; 
fire; pandemics or epidemics; war; riots and other civil disturbances; strikes, lockouts, work 
slowdowns, and other labor disturbances; sabotage or judicial restraint.  Should such 
circumstances occur, the non-performing party shall, within a reasonable time of being prevented 
from performing, give written notice to the other party describing the circumstances preventing 
continued performance and the efforts being made to resume performance of this Contract.  
Contractor’s exclusive remedy in the event of delay covered under this section shall be a non-
compensable extension of the Contract Time. 

3.3.3 Liquidated Damages.  Contractor and District recognize that time is of the 
essence, and that District will suffer financial and other losses if the Work is not completed in the 
Contract Time, as may be modified by mutual agreement of the parties. The parties also recognize 
the delays, expense, and difficulties involved in proving, in a legal or arbitration proceeding, the 
actual loss suffered by District if the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of 
requiring any such proof, District and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but 
not as a penalty), Contractor shall pay to District Two Hundred Fifty dollars ($250.00) for each 

Page 177 of 257



 

 3  

working day beyond the Contract Time that the Work is not completed, without an extension of 
time approved by the District in writing. If District recovers liquidated damages for a delay in 
completion by Contractor, such liquidated damages are District’s sole and exclusive remedy for 
such delay, and District is precluded from recovering any other damages, whether actual, direct, 
excess, or consequential, for such delay, except for special damages (if any) specified in this 
Contract. 

3.3.4 Hours of Work.  Working hours, including equipment “warm up,” shall occur 
between 8 a.m. and 7 p.m. Monday through Friday. Only emergency work may occur on 
Saturdays, with prior approval of District. 

3.4 Standard of Performance; Performance of Employees.   

3.4.1 Contractor shall perform all Work under this Contract in a skillful and 
workmanlike manner, and consistent with the Contract Documents and the standards generally 
recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State of Nevada. 
Contractor represents and maintains that it is skilled in the professional calling necessary to 
perform the Work.  Contractor warrants that all employees and subcontractors shall have 
sufficient skill and experience to perform the Work assigned to them.  Finally, Contractor 
represents that it, its employees, and its subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications 
and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to perform the Work, including any 
required business license, and that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout 
the term of this Contract.  As provided for in the indemnification provisions of this Contract, 
Contractor shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without reimbursement from the 
District, any work necessary to correct errors or omissions which are caused by Contractor’s 
failure to comply with the standard of care provided for herein.  Any employee who is determined 
by the District to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the safety of persons or the Work, or 
any employee who fails or refuses to perform the Work in a manner acceptable to the District, 
shall be promptly removed from the Project by Contractor and shall not be re-employed on the 
Work. 

3.4.2 Contractor’s warranty and guarantee hereunder excludes defects or 
damage caused by abuse, modification, or improper maintenance or operation by persons other 
than Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers, or any other individual or entity for whom Contractor 
is responsible; or normal wear and tear under normal usage.  

 3.4.3 Contractor’s obligation to perform and complete the Work in accordance 
with the Contract Documents is absolute. None of the following will constitute an acceptance of 
work that is not in accordance with the Contract Documents or a release of Contractor’s obligation 
to perform the work in accordance with the Contract Documents: 

 a. Observations by District’s representative;  

 b. Recommendation by District’s representative or payment by District 
of any progress or final payment; 

 c. The issuance of a certificate of substantial completion by District’s 
representative or any payment related thereto by District; 

 d. Use or occupancy of the Project or any part thereof by District;  

Page 178 of 257



 

 4  

 e. Any review and approval of a shop drawing or sample submittal or 
the issuance of a notice of acceptability by District’s representative; 

 f. Any inspection, test, or approval by others; or 

 g. Any correction of defective work by District.  

3.5 Correction Period.  

  3.5.1 If, within one year after the date of substantial completion (or such longer 
period of time as may be prescribed by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by 
the Contract Documents) or by any specific provision of the Contract Documents, any work is 
found to be defective, or if the repair of any damages to the land or areas made available for 
Contractor’s use by District or permitted by laws and regulations is found to be defective, 
Contractor shall promptly, without cost to District and in accordance with District’s written 
instructions: 

   a. Repair such defective land or areas; or 

   b. Correct such defective work; or 

   c. If the defective work has been rejected by District, remove it from 
the Project and replace it with work that is not defective, and  

   d. Satisfactorily correct or repair or remove and replace any damage 
to other work, to the work of others or other land or areas resulting therefrom. 

  3.5.2 If Contractor does not promptly comply with the terms of District’s written 
instructions, or in an emergency where delay would cause serious risk of loss or damage, District 
may have the defective work corrected or repaired or may have the rejected work removed and 
replaced. All claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges 
of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other 
dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such correction or repair or such removal and 
replacement (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others) will 
be paid by Contractor. 

  3.5.3 In special circumstances where a particular item of equipment is placed in 
continuous service before substantial completion of all the Project, the correction period for that 
item may start to run from an earlier date if so provided in the Specifications. 

  3.5.4 Where defective work (and damage to other work resulting therefrom) has 
been corrected or removed and replaced under this Section 3.5, the correction period hereunder 
with respect to such work will be extended for an additional period of one year after such 
correction or removal and replacement has been satisfactorily completed. 

  3.5.5 Contractor’s obligations under this Section 3.5 are in addition to any other 
obligation or warranty. The provisions of this Section 3.5 shall not be construed as a substitute 
for or a waiver of the provisions of any applicable statute of limitation or repose. 

3.6 District’s Basic Obligation.  District agrees to engage and does hereby engage 
Contractor as an independent contractor to furnish all materials and to perform all Work according 
to the terms and conditions herein contained for the sum set forth above.  Except as otherwise 

Page 179 of 257



 

 5  

provided in the Contract, the District shall pay to Contractor, as full consideration for the 
satisfactory performance by Contractor of the services and obligations required by this Contract, 
the below-referenced compensation in accordance with compensation provisions set forth in the 
Contract. 

3.7 Compensation and Payment. 

3.7.1 Amount of Compensation.  For all Work, at the prices stated in Contractor’s 
Proposal attached hereto as Exhibit A, and as consideration for the performance of the Work 
required herein, District Agrees to pay Contractor a lump sum of Thirty-Six Thousand Six 
Hundred Nineteen Dollars ($36,619.00) (“Total Contract Price”) as more fully set forth in Exhibit 
C, provided that such amount shall be subject to adjustment pursuant to the applicable terms of 
this Contract or written change orders approved and signed in advance by the District. 

3.7.2 Payment of Compensation.  On or before the fifth (5th) day of each month, 
Contractor shall submit to the District an itemized invoice indicating the amount of Work 
completed since commencement of the Work or since the last progress payment.  The Contractor 
shall certify that the Work for which payment is requested has been done and that the materials 
listed are stored where indicated.  Contractor may be required to furnish a detailed schedule of 
values upon request of the District and in such detail and form as the District shall request, 
showing the quantities, unit prices, overhead, profit, and all other expenses involved in order to 
provide a basis for determining the amount of progress payments. Invoices shall be sent to 
AP@ivgid.org.  

3.8 Safety.  Contractor shall execute and maintain its work so as to avoid injury or 
damage to any person or property.  Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the 
specifications relating to safety measures applicable in particular operations or kinds of work.  In 
carrying out its Work, Contractor shall at all times be in compliance with all applicable local, state 
and federal laws, rules and regulations, and shall exercise all necessary precautions for the safety 
of employees appropriate to the nature of the Work and the conditions under which the Work is 
to be performed.  Safety precautions as applicable shall include, but shall not be limited to, 
adequate life protection and lifesaving equipment; adequate illumination for underground and 
night operations; instructions in accident prevention for all employees, such as machinery guards, 
safe walkways, scaffolds, ladders, bridges, gang planks, confined space procedures, trenching 
and shoring, fall protection and other safety devices, equipment and wearing apparel as are 
necessary or lawfully required to prevent accidents or injuries; and adequate facilities for the 
proper inspection and maintenance of all safety measures.   

3.9 Laws and Regulations.  Contractor shall keep itself fully informed of and in 
compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting 
the performance of the Contract or the Work, including all labor requirements, and shall give all 
notices required by law.  Contractor shall be liable for all violations of such laws and regulations 
in connection with Work.  If Contractor observes that the drawings or specifications are at variance 
with any law, rule or regulation, it shall promptly notify the District in writing.  Any necessary 
changes shall be made by written change order.  If Contractor performs any work knowing it to 
be contrary to such laws, rules and regulations and without giving written notice to the District, 
Contractor shall be solely responsible for all costs arising therefrom.  District is a public entity of 
the State of Nevada subject to certain provisions of the NRS.  It is stipulated and agreed that all 
provisions of the law applicable to the public contracts of a quasi-municipal corporation are a part 
of this Contract to the same extent as though set forth herein and will be complied with.  Contractor 
shall defend, indemnify and hold District, its officials, officers, employees and agents free and 

Page 180 of 257



 

 6  

harmless, pursuant to the indemnification provisions of this Contract, from any claim or liability 
arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with such laws, rules or regulations. 

 3.9.1 By executing this Contract, Contractor acknowledges that it is aware of 
District’s Ordinance 1, the Solid Waste Ordinance, and specifically Section 4.5. thereof, Dumpster 
Use, Location and Enclosure. Any construction dumpster on the job site that is not properly 
enclosed shall be a fully locking roll-top, and is to remain locked and secured at all times.  

3.10 Permits and Licenses.  Contractor shall be responsible for securing District permits 
and licenses necessary to perform the Work described herein, including, but not limited to, any 
required business license.    

3.11 Completion of Work.  When Contractor determines that it has completed the Work 
required herein, Contractor shall so notify District in writing and shall furnish all labor and material 
releases required by this Contract.  District shall thereupon inspect the Work.  If the Work is not 
acceptable to the District, the District shall indicate to Contractor in writing the specific portions or 
items of Work which are unsatisfactory or incomplete.  Once Contractor determines that it has 
completed the incomplete or unsatisfactory Work, Contractor may request a re-inspection by the 
District.  Once the Work is acceptable to District, District shall pay to Contractor the Total Contract 
Price remaining to be paid, less any amount which District may be authorized or directed by law 
to retain.   

3.12 Dispute Resolution. 

3.12.1 Contractor and District hereby agree to engage in alternate dispute 
resolution (“ADR”) pursuant to NRS 338.150, under the prevailing Nevada law in the Second 
Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in and for the County of Washoe.  Any dispute arising 
under this contract will be sent to mediation.  Any mediation shall occur in Incline Village, Washoe 
County, Nevada.  The mediation shall be conducted through the American Arbitration Association 
(AAA) and be governed by the AAA’s Mediation Procedures.   

3.12.2 The mediator is authorized to conduct separate or ex parte meetings and 
other communications with the parties and/or their representatives, before, during and after any 
scheduled mediation conference.  Such communications may be conducted via telephone, in 
writing, via email, online, in person or otherwise. 

3.12.3 District and Contractor are encouraged to exchange all documents 
pertinent to the relief requested. The mediator may request the exchange of memorandum on all 
pertinent issues.  The mediator does not have the authority to impose a settlement on the parties 
but such mediator will attempt to help District and Contractor reach a satisfactory resolution of 
their dispute.  Subject to the discretion of the mediator, the mediator may make oral or written 
recommendations for settlement to a party privately, or if the parties agree, to all parties jointly. 

3.12.4 District and Contractor shall participate in the mediation process in good 
faith.  The mediation process shall be concluded within sixty (60) days of a mediator being 
assigned. 

3.12.5 In the event that a complete settlement of all or some issues in dispute is 
not achieved within the scheduled mediation session(s), the mediator may continue to 
communicate with the parties, for a period of time, in an ongoing effort to facilitate a complete 
settlement.  Any settlement agreed upon during mediation shall become binding if within thirty 
(30) days after the date that any settlement agreement is signed, either the District or Contractor 

Page 181 of 257



 

 7  

fails to object or withdraw from the agreement.  If mediation shall be unsuccessful, either District 
or Contractor may then initiate judicial proceedings by filing suit.  District and Contractor will share 
the cost of mediation equally unless agreed otherwise. 

3.13 Loss and Damage.  Except as may otherwise be limited by law, Contractor shall 
be responsible for all loss and damage which may arise out of the nature of the Work agreed to 
herein, or from the action of the elements, or from any unforeseen difficulties which may arise or 
be encountered in the prosecution of the Work until the same is fully completed and accepted by 
District.    

3.14 Indemnification.   

 3.14.1  Scope of Indemnity.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the District, its officials, employees, agents and 
authorized volunteers free and harmless from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, 
suits, actions, proceedings, costs, expenses, liability, judgments, awards, decrees, settlements, 
loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful 
death, (collectively, “Claims”) in any manner arising out of, pertaining to, or incident to any alleged 
acts, errors or omissions, or willful misconduct of Contractor, its officials, officers, employees, 
subcontractors, consultants or agents in connection with the performance of the Contractor’s 
services, the Project or this Contract, including without limitation the payment of all consequential 
damages, expert witness fees and attorneys’ fees and other related costs and expenses.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor’s indemnity obligation shall not apply to liability for 
damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or any other loss, damage or 
expense arising from the sole or active negligence or willful misconduct of the District or the 
District’s agents, servants, or independent contractors who are directly responsible to the District, 
or for defects in design furnished by those persons. 

 3.14.2  Additional Indemnity Obligations. Contractor shall defend, with 
counsel of District’s choosing and at Contractor's own cost, expense and risk, any and all Claims 
covered by this section that may be brought or instituted against District or its officials, employees, 
agents and authorized volunteers.  In addition, Contractor shall pay and satisfy any judgment, 
award or decree that may be rendered against District or its officials, employees, agents and 
authorized volunteers as part of any such claim, suit, action or other proceeding.  Contractor shall 
also reimburse District for the cost of any settlement paid by District or its officials, employees, 
agents and authorized volunteers as part of any such claim, suit, action or other proceeding.  Such 
reimbursement shall include payment for District's attorney's fees and costs, including expert 
witness fees.  Contractor shall reimburse District and its officials, employees, agents and 
authorized volunteers, for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in 
connection therewith or in enforcing the indemnity herein provided.  Contractor's obligation to 
indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the District, its officials, 
employees, agents and authorized volunteers. 

3.15 Insurance. 

3.15.1  Time for Compliance.  Contractor shall not commence Work under 
this Contract until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the District that it has secured all 
insurance required under this section.  In addition, Contractor shall not allow any subcontractor 
to commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence satisfactory to the District 
that the subcontractor has secured all insurance required under this section.  Failure to provide 

Page 182 of 257



 

 8  

and maintain all required insurance shall be grounds for the District to terminate this Contract for 
cause. 

3.15.2  Minimum Requirements.  Contractor shall, at its expense, procure 
and maintain for the duration of the Contract insurance against claims for injuries to persons or 
damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the Work 
hereunder by Contractor, its agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.  Contractor 
shall also require all of its subcontractors to procure and maintain the same insurance for the 
duration of the Contract.  Such insurance shall meet at least the following minimum levels of 
coverage: 

a.  Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Coverage shall be at least as broad 
as the latest version of the following: (1) General Liability:  Insurance Services Office Commercial 
General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 00 01) OR Insurance Services Office Owners 
and Contractors Protective Liability Coverage Form (CG 00 09 11 88) (coverage for operations of 
designated contractor); (2) Automobile Liability:  Insurance Services Office Business Auto 
Coverage form number CA 00 01, code 1 (any auto); and (3) Workers’ Compensation and 
Employer’s Liability:  Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of Nevada and 
Employer’s Liability Insurance.  Policies shall not contain exclusions contrary to this Contract. 

b.  Minimum Limits of Insurance.  Contractor shall maintain limits no 
less than: (1) General Liability:  $2,000,000 per occurrence and $4,000,000 aggregate for bodily 
injury, personal injury and property damage; (2) Automobile Liability:  $1,000,000 per accident for 
bodily injury and property damage; and (3) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability: 
Workers’ compensation limits as required by the State of Nevada.  Employer’s Liability limits of 
$1,000,000 each accident, policy limit bodily injury or disease, and each employee bodily injury 
or disease.  Defense costs shall be available in addition to the limits.  Notwithstanding the 
minimum limits specified herein, any available coverage shall be provided to the parties required 
to be named as additional insureds pursuant to this Contract. 

 3.15.3  Insurance Endorsements. The insurance policies shall contain the 
following provisions, or Contractor shall provide endorsements (amendments) on forms supplied 
or approved by the District to add the following provisions to the insurance policies: 

a.  General Liability.  The commercial general liability policy shall be 
endorsed to provide the following: (1) the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 
agents and volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds; (2) the insurance coverage shall 
be primary insurance as respects the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents 
and volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the 
Contractor’s scheduled underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the 
District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers shall be excess of the 
Contractor’s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way; and (3) the 
insurance coverage shall contain or be endorsed to provide waiver of subrogation in favor of the 
District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers or shall specifically allow 
Contractor to waive its right of recovery prior to a loss. Contractor hereby waives its own right of 
recovery against District, and shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses 
from each of its subcontractors. 

 b.  Automobile Liability.  The automobile liability policy shall be 
endorsed to provide the following: (1) the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 
agents and volunteers shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, 

Page 183 of 257



 

 9  

operation, maintenance, use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed 
by the Contractor or for which the Contractor is responsible; (2) the insurance coverage shall be 
primary insurance as respects the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and 
volunteers, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Contractor’s 
scheduled underlying coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s 
insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way; and (3) the insurance 
coverage shall contain or be endorsed to provide waiver of subrogation in favor of the District, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers or shall specifically allow 
Contractor to waive its right of recovery prior to a loss. Contractor hereby waives its own right of 
recovery against District, and shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses 
from each of its subcontractors. 

c. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Coverage. The 
insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the District, its officials, employees, 
agents and authorized volunteers for losses paid under the terms of the insurance policy which 
arise from work performed by Contractor. 

d. All Coverages.  Each insurance policy required by this Contract 
shall be endorsed to state that: (1) coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced or canceled 
except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has 
been given to the District; and (2) any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the 
policies, including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to the District, its 
officials, employees, agents and authorized volunteers. 

3.15.4  Separation of Insureds; No Special Limitations.  All insurance 
required by this Section shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions.  In addition, 
such insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the 
District, its officials, employees, agents and authorized volunteers. 

3.15.5  Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions. Any deductibles or self-
insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the District.  Contractor shall guarantee 
that, at the option of the District, either: (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles 
or self-insured retentions as respects the District, its officials, employees, agents and authorized 
volunteers; or (2) the Contractor shall procure a bond or other financial guarantee acceptable to 
the District guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation costs, claims and 
administrative and defense expenses. 

3.15.6  Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers 
with a current A.M. Best’s rating no less than A-VII, licensed to do business in Nevada, and 
satisfactory to the District.  Exception may be made for the State Compensation Insurance Fund 
when not specifically rated. 

3.15.7  Verification of Coverage. Contractor shall furnish District with 
original certificates of insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this Contract 
on forms satisfactory to the District.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy 
shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, and shall 
be on forms supplied or approved by the District.  All certificates and endorsements must be 
received and approved by the District before work commences.  The District reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time. 

Page 184 of 257



 

 10  

3.15.8  Subcontractors.  All subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 
this Section before commencing Work.  Contractor shall furnish separate certificates and 
endorsements for each subcontractor.  Subcontractor policies of General Liability insurance shall 
name the District, its officials, employees, agents and authorized volunteers as additional insureds 
using form ISO 20 38 04 13 or endorsements providing the exact same coverage.  All coverages 
for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein except as otherwise 
agreed to by the District in writing. 

3.15.9  Reporting of Claims.  Contractor shall report to the District, in 
addition to Contractor’s insurer, any and all insurance claims submitted by Contractor in 
connection with the Work under this Contract. 

3.15.10  Compliance with Coverage Requirements.  If at any time during the 
life of the Contract, any policy of insurance required under this Contract does not comply with 
these specifications or is canceled and not replaced, District has the right but not the duty to obtain 
the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid by District will be promptly reimbursed 
by Contractor or District will withhold amounts sufficient to pay premium from Contractor 
payments. In the alternative, District may terminate this Contract for cause. 

3.16 Bond Requirements. 

3.16.1 Payment Bond.  If required by law or otherwise specifically requested by 
District, Contractor shall execute and provide to District concurrently with this Contract a Payment 
Bond in an amount required by the District and in a form provided or approved by the District.  If 
such bond is required, no payment will be made to Contractor until the bond has been received 
and approved by the District. 

3.16.2 Performance Bond.  If specifically requested by District, Contractor shall 
execute and provide to District concurrently with this Contract a Performance Bond in an amount 
required by the District and in a form provided or approved by the District.  If such bond is required, 
no payment will be made to Contractor until the bond has been received and approved by the 
District. 

3.16.3 Bond Provisions.  Should, in District’s sole opinion, any bond become 
insufficient or any surety be found to be unsatisfactory, Contractor shall renew or replace the 
affected bond within (ten) 10 days of receiving notice from District.  In the event the surety or 
Contractor intends to reduce or cancel any required bond, at least thirty (30) days prior written 
notice shall be given to the District, and Contractor shall post acceptable replacement bonds at 
least ten (10) days prior to expiration of the original bonds.  No further payments shall be deemed 
due or will be made under this Contract until any replacement bonds required by this Section are 
accepted by the District. To the extent, if any, that the Total Contract Price is increased in 
accordance with the Contract, Contractor shall, upon request of the District, cause the amount of 
the bond to be increased accordingly and shall promptly deliver satisfactory evidence of such 
increase to the District.  If Contractor fails to furnish any required bond, the District may terminate 
the Contract for cause. 

3.17 Employee/Labor Certifications. 
   

3.17.1 Equal Opportunity Employment.  Contractor represents that it is an equal 
opportunity employer and that it shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, age or other interests 

Page 185 of 257



 

 11  

protected by the State or Federal Constitutions.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be 
limited to, all activities related to initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or 
recruitment advertising, layoff or termination.   

3.17.2 Verification of Employment Eligibility.  By executing this Contract, 
Contractor verifies that it fully complies with all requirements and restrictions of state and federal 
law respecting the employment of undocumented aliens, including, but not limited to, the 
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as may be amended from time to time, and shall 
require all subcontractors and sub-subcontractors to comply with the same.   

3.18 General Provisions. 

3.18.1 District’s Representative.  The District hereby designates Interim Director 
of Public Works Kate Nelson, P.E. or her designee, to act as its representative for the performance 
of this Contract (“District’s Representative”).  District’s Representative shall have the power to act 
on behalf of the District for all purposes under this Contract.  Contractor shall not accept direction 
or orders from any person other than the District’s Representative or her designee. 

3.18.2 Contractor’s Representative.  Before starting the Work, Contractor shall 
submit in writing the name, qualifications and experience of its proposed representative who shall 
be subject to the review and approval of the District (“′Contractor’s Representative”).  Following 
approval by the District, Contractor’s Representative shall have full authority to represent and act 
on behalf of Contractor for all purposes under this Contract.  Contractor’s Representative shall 
supervise and direct the Work, using his best skill and attention, and shall be responsible for all 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for the satisfactory 
coordination of all portions of the Work under this Contract.  Contractor’s Representative shall 
devote full time to the Project and either he or his designee, who shall be acceptable to the District, 
shall be present at the Work site at all times that any Work is in progress and at any time that any 
employee or subcontractor of Contractor is present at the Work site.  Arrangements for 
responsible supervision, acceptable to the District, shall be made for emergency Work which may 
be required.  Should Contractor desire to change its Contractor’s Representative, Contractor shall 
provide the information specified above and obtain the District’s written approval.  

3.18.3 Termination.  This Contract may be terminated by District at any time, either 
with our without cause, by giving Contractor three (3) days’ advance written notice.  In the event 
of termination by District for any reason other than the fault of Contractor, District shall pay 
Contractor for all Work performed up to that time as provided herein.  In the event of breach of 
the Contract by Contractor, District may terminate the Contract immediately without notice, may 
reduce payment to Contractor in the amount necessary to offset District’s resulting damages, and 
may pursue any other available recourse against Contractor.  Contractor may not terminate this 
Contract except for cause.  In the event this Contract is terminated in whole or in part as provided, 
District may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it may determine appropriate, 
services similar to those terminated.  Further, if this Contract is terminated as provided, District 
may require Contractor to provide all finished or unfinished documents, data, diagrams, drawings, 
materials or other matter prepared or built by Contractor in connection with its performance of this 
Contract.  District shall not be liable for any costs other than the charges or portions thereof which 
are specified herein.  Contractor shall not be entitled to payment for unperformed Work including, 
without limitation, any overhead and profit on the portion of the Work that is terminated and shall 
not be entitled to damages or compensation of any kind or nature for termination of Work. 

Page 186 of 257



 

 12  

3.18.4 Contract Interpretation.  Should any question arise regarding the meaning 
or import of any of the  provisions of this Contract or written or oral instructions from District, the 
matter shall be referred to District’s Representative, whose decision shall be binding upon 
Contractor.  

3.18.5 Notices. All notices hereunder and communications regarding 
interpretation of the terms of the Contract or changes thereto shall be provided by the mailing 
thereof by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid and addressed 
as follows:  

CONTRACTOR: Croft-Beck Group LLC, dba Croft-Beck Floors 
  2133 South 1260 West 
  Salt Lake City, UT 84119 
  Attn: Carl Newland and Crystal Dial 
 
DISTRICT: Incline Village General Improvement District  

893 Southwood Blvd.  
Incline Village, Nevada 89451 
Attn: Kate Nelson, P. E. 
 

Any notice so given shall be considered received by the other Party three (3) days after deposit 
in the U.S. Mail as stated above and addressed to the Party at the above address.  Actual notice 
shall be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice occurred, regardless of the method of 
service. 

3.18.6 Assignment Forbidden.  Contractor shall not, either voluntarily or by action 
of law, assign or transfer this Contract or any obligation, right, title or interest assumed by 
Contractor herein without the prior written consent of District.  If Contractor attempts an 
assignment or transfer of this Contract or any obligation, right, title or interest herein, District may, 
at its option, terminate and revoke the Contract and shall thereupon be relieved from any and all 
obligations to Contractor or its assignee or transferee.   

3.18.7  No Third Party Beneficiaries.  There are no intended third party 
beneficiaries of any right or obligation assumed by the Parties. 

3.18.8  Controlling Law.  This Contract shall be interpreted in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Nevada.   

3.18.9  Counterparts.  This Contract may be executed in counterparts, each 
of which shall constitute an original. 

3.18.10 Successors. The Parties do for themselves, their heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors, and assigns agree to the full performance of all of the provisions 
contained in this Contract. 

3.18.11 Conflict of Interest.  Contractor maintains and warrants that it has 
not employed nor retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for Contractor, to solicit or secure this Contract.  Further, Contractor warrants that it has 
not paid nor has it agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for Contractor, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration 
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Contract.  For breach or violation of 
this warranty, District shall have the right to rescind this Contract without liability.  For the term of 

Page 187 of 257



 

 13  

this Contract, no official, officer or employee of District, during the term of his or her service with 
District, shall have any direct interest in this Contract, or obtain any present or anticipated material 
benefit arising therefrom.  

3.18.12 Certification of License. Contractor certifies that as of the date of 
execution of this Contract, Contractor has a current contractor’s license of the classification 
indicated below under Contractor’s signature. 

3.18.13 Authority to Enter Contract.  Each Party warrants that the 
individuals who have signed this Contract have the legal power, right and authority to make this 
Contract and bind each respective Party. 

3.18.14 Entire Contract; Modification.  This Contract contains the entire 
agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior 
negotiations, understandings or agreements.  This Contract may only be modified by a writing 
signed by both Parties. 

3.18.15 Non-Waiver. None of the provisions of this Contract shall be 
considered waived by either party, unless such waiver is specifically specified in writing. 

3.18.16 District’s Right to Employ Other Contractors.  District reserves right 
to employ other contractors in connection with this Project or other projects. 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE]  

  

Page 188 of 257



Page 189 of 257



 

 15  

EXHIBIT A 

Scope of Work 
 
Contractor’s services will include:  
 

 
 
The following exclusions and Project clarifications will apply:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 190 of 257



 

 16  

EXHIBIT B 

Le Lena A Forever Marley Sell Sheet and Warranty 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 191 of 257



Le Lena A 
Robbins’ Performing Ar ts Flooring System

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
I

N
G

 A
R

T
S

 &
 T

H
E

A
T

E
R

• Durable Forever Marley Performance Surface: seamless, slip resistant, non-reflective & dimensionally stable

• Comfort & Safety: thick resilient pad for great force reduction, vibration damping, and deflection to 

soften landing

• Excellent Acoustics: continuous resilient subfloor for consistent sound and uniformity

• Uniform Resilience: continuous subfloor for uniformity and rolling load carrying ability

*FSC® Materials Available for Purchase

FEATURES

FLOOR TYPE:
Sprung Floor: Floating

FLOOR SURFACE:
Forever Marley

FLOOR SYSTEM THICKNESS:
2” (51mm)

APPLICATIONS:
Classical, Ballet, Multi-Functional, Modern, 
Contemporary, Hip Hop, Swing, Belly Dancing, 
Percussive, Tap, Irish, Flamenco 

1. Seamless polyurethane dance surface.

2. High Grade Semi-Flexible Upper Load 

Distribution Sheathing Layer.

3. Semi-Flexible Lower Load Distribution 

Sheathing Layer.

4. Dual Density, Recycled, Open Celled 

Resilient Polyurethane Pad layer.

5. Recycled, Open Celled Resilient

 Polyurethane Pad layer.

6. 6 mil Polyethylene vapor retarder.

FLOOR BUILD-UP

LE LENA  has been tested per the ANSI  E1.26  Standard

Forever   MarleyTM

Page 192 of 257



Recent Robbins Performing Arts Installations:

EDGE Performing Arts Center (Los Angeles, CA)
Reed College (Portland, OR)
Kentucky Center for the Arts (Louisville, KY)
The Banff Centre (Banff, Alberta, CA)
Choate Rosemary Hall (Wallingford, CT)
Tracey Anderson Manhattan Studio (New York, NY)
Carleton College (Northfield, MN)
Buckley School (New York, NY)

All Rights Reserved. ©2016 Robbins, Inc. LLV201612

For Dancers, By Dancers
Performance like NO other...

robbinsdancefloors.com    |    800-831-8987

Characteristics of a Superior Dance Floor System* Includes:
•  Significant enhancements to dancer “comfort’’.

•  Provides unparalleled uniformity in feel and performance

•  Tightly controls magnitude and timing of deformation for 

       proper energy return

•  Damps vibration, quickly limiting effect on neighboring  

       performers

•  Minimizes floor system vibration in general and specifically 

       in the natural frequency range of soft tissue packages, p

       providing comfort and reducing fatigue 

•  Separates the input vibration frequency (i.e., the skeletal 

       deceleration (frequency) from the natural frequency of soft 

       tissue packages 

•  Induces small Electromyography (EMG) muscle activity response

•  Limits the amount of flooring set into motion upon impact through excellent deformation control

•  Provides outstanding acoustics - control of audible vibration

•  Eliminates excessive rebound e.g., “trampoline effect” 

•  Prevents “hard & soft spots” through uniform suspension across the entire floor

•  Uniformity, vibration control, and force reduction working together in unison to dramatically enhance    

        performance, while also increasing comfort and safety. 

•  Provides excellent stability under theatrical loading.

   *defined by Dr. Benno Nigg, The Human Performance Lab, University of Calgary

Robbins most advanced professional sprung floor systems are designed & biomechancially researched, specifically for 
performers with dancer input to create the world’s most comfortable and highest performing surfaces. Robbins unique 
dance floor designs clearly unites legendary performance with all the qualities necessary to withstand the rigors of even 
the most demanding venues, delivering long-lasting, superior performance characteristics that traditional sprung floors 
cannot. Outstanding uniformity,  vibration control, impact force reduction, and deflection allow performers of all levels 

to concentrate on their art, not the fear of falling or potential injury.   

Page 193 of 257



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

     Forever™ Marley 
 
 5 – Year Limited Material Warranty  

 
 

 
Thank you for choosing Robbins Forever Marley, our premier performing arts/ dance surface. Forever 
Marley’s design and stringent manufacturing standards assure its longevity and performance. In the 
unlikely event, you encounter a problem with your purchase contact your installing contractor and or 
Robbins for guidance.  Please keep this document for reference. 
 
This Limited Material Warranty applies exclusively to Robbins Forever Marley (the “Product”) purchased on or after 
January 1, 2019 for dance and performing arts applications only.  This warranty does not apply to commercial use.  

5 – Year Guarantee on Structural Integrity and Workmanship  
Robbins Inc. warrants to the original owner (the “Customer”) purchasing the Product, that the Product will be free from 
manufacturing defects.  This non-transferrable warranty commences upon your purchase of the Product.  Installing 
Robbins authorized flooring contractor to warrant deficiencies in workmanship.   

This Limited Warranty does not cover damage to the Product caused in whole or in part by accident, circumstances 
beyond Robbins control, neglect, negligence, ordinary wear and tear, abuse, excessive point and/or rolling loads, use for 
which the Product is not designed, faulty construction of the facility, faulty installation of the Material, failure to comply 
with recommended maintenance instructions, repair or alteration of the Product by anyone other than an Authorized 
Robbins Flooring Contractor, settlement of the facilities walls, slab or structure, failure of other contractors to adhere to 
specifications, mechanical failure, excessive dryness, or excessive moisture from humidity, spillage, migration through 
the slab or walls, or any other source (the “Excluded Conditions”). 

THIS LIMITED WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER ORAL, WRITTEN,  
EXPRESSED, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY WARRANTY OF  
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND OF ANY OTHER OBLIGATION  
ON THE PART OF Robbins Inc.  Robbins Inc. makes no warranty or representation that the Product complies with the 
requirements of federal, state and local laws and/or industrial codes, or any other warranty or representation, express 
or implied, not specified herein.   Any and all representations or warranties by Robbins Inc. or any other party that differ 
in any manner from the terms of this written Limited Warranty shall be of no force or effect. 

This Limited Warranty completely and exclusively states the obligations of Robbins Inc. for any breach of this  
Limited Warranty.  If this Limited Warranty is breached, Robbins Inc. liability for such breach shall be limited to  
either, at Robbins Inc. option, repairing the defective Product, replacing the defective Product, or returning the  
sales price of the Product received by Robbins Inc.  In no event shall any breach of this Limited Warranty render  
Robbins Inc.  liable for any other damages of any kind, whether special, direct, indirect, incidental, consequential, or  
of any other sort, associated with the use of or in the inability to use the defective Product.   In no event shall Robbins Inc. 
be obligated to pay for or otherwise assume the responsibility for repair work ordered or performed by  
the Customer without the prior written consent of Robbins Inc.  Robbins Inc. obligation under this Limited  
Warranty shall be contingent upon the receipt by Robbins Inc. before the end of the warranty period of a written  
notice of a claimed defect from the Customer, and proof to Robbins Inc. satisfaction that the Product is defective  
in manufacture and was not subjected to any of the Excluded Conditions.   If Robbins Inc. shall elect to replace  
Product proven to be defective, it shall not be responsible for any labor charges of any kind either in the reinstallation  
of the Product or in the dismantling of the defective Product; rather, the obligation of Robbins Inc. shall be limited  
to delivering replacement Product to the Customer.  In no event shall Robbins Inc. have any liability to any party  
other than Customer. Some States do not allow the exclusion or limitation of incidental or consequential damages, so  
the above limitation may or may not apply to you.  

Page 194 of 257



 
 
 
 
 
Owner’s Responsibility  
In order to receive the limited warranty protection described above, you must do the following:  

1)   Save your original receipt.  
2)   Inspect all flooring immediately after installation, and if you are not 100% satisfied with it, contact Robbins 

Technical Department within 30 days. 
3)   Only use the floor for its intended purpose.  Do not push, pull or drag anything across the floor.  Do not place objects  

with a heavy point load on the floor.  
4)   Allow Robbins Inc. a reasonable number of attempts to repair or replace any claimed defect.  
5)   Maintain the flooring correctly using the Recommended Maintenance Program listed below  

 
Floor Care Maintenance Program  

1)   Position walk off mats at all doorways to help eliminate introducing dirt and grit onto finished floor. 
2)   Sweep or vacuum your floor at least once a week (more frequently in high traffic areas).  Do not use vacuums with  
      beater bars or hard heads. Using a quality dust mop to eliminate fine grit and other abrasive dirt is highly  
      recommended daily.  
3) As needed, damp mop floor with a high quality neutral pH non-abrasive general-purpose floor cleaner 

designed for urethane based floor systems. 
4)   Clean up spills immediately. 
5)   Never apply a wax or sealer coatings. 
6)  Follow Forever Marley recommended maintenance procedures. 
 
Note: An auto scrubber with a red pad can be used when the surface becomes extremely dirty or slippery. 

 
Warranty does not cover:  

Expansion and contraction of flooring due to excessive changes in temperature and/or humidity.  
   Changes in color due to maintenance or spillage.  
   Damage caused by heavy point loads like high heels, chairs, tables, pianos, casters, etc.    
   Damage caused by fire, flood, leaking or broken pipes, leaking/open windows during storm events or  

     other natural disaster.  
   Damage caused by sharp objects.  
   Reduction in gloss, scratches, or indentations due to: sand, grit, or other abrasives, pets, insects, construction  

      traffic, vacuums with beater bars, etc.  
   Color variations, shade variation, gloss variation or texture variation between samples or printed color  

 photography used in marketing materials such as literature.  
   Damage caused by deficiencies in the building’s structure or sub-floor.  
   Damage caused by faulty installation including but not limited to violation of applicable state or local building  codes.  

    
     While Robbins Inc. will do it’s best to repair the Product or provide replacement Product that closely matches your   

original floor, due to the nature of the flooring, age and condition of the remaining existing floor, changes in  
manufacturing processes, and other conditions beyond Robbins Inc. control, Robbins Inc. will not guarantee exact 
matches in color, texture, gloss, etc.  
 
Filing a Claim  
Robbins Inc. wants you to be satisfied with your purchase, if you are not, first contact your flooring contractor where you  
purchased your Product.  In many cases, they can answer your question and resolve your issue. Should it be necessary to file a 
claim, your contractor can begin that process for you.  
 
If you have further questions, please contact us at:  
 
Robbins Performing Arts 
4777 Eastern Avenue  
Cincinnati, OH 45226  
800-831-8987  

 

Page 195 of 257



 

 17  

EXHIBIT C  
 

Schedule of Charges 
 

Materials:  $18,075.69 
Estimated Freight: $1,000.00 
Labor:    $12,050.46 
Overhead & Profit:  $5,492.85 
TOTAL:  $36,619.00 

Page 196 of 257



Gaps between floor boards. 

Marred floor with all floor 
boards separa ng. 

Separa ng floor boards and 
damaged wood. 

Fitness Room Flooring 

April 15, 2024 

Page 197 of 257



Damaged wood. 

Warped  wood. 

Page 198 of 257



ITEM G.7. 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
TO: Board of Trustees 

 
THROUGH: Bobby Magee, District General Manager 

 
FROM: Adam Cripps, Assistant Director of Finance 

 
SUBJECT: Authorization to Increase and Transact Under Existing Blanket 

Purchase Order for Fiscal Year 2023/24, Pursuant to NRS 332.115 
and Board Policy 21.1.0 for Vendor US Foodservice, Inc., in the 
Amount of $80,000 for an Updated Amount Not to Exceed $559,500. 

 

RELATED FY 2023 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
BUDGET INITIATIVE(S): 

LONG RANGE PRINCIPLE #3 - FINANCE The 
District will ensure fiscal responsibility and 
sustainability of service capacities through prudent 
fiscal management and maintaining effective financial 
policies for internal controls, operating budgets, fund 
balances, capital improvement and debt management. 

 

RELATED DISTRICT 
POLICIES, PRACTICES, 
RESOLUTIONS OR 
ORDINANCES 

 
 
Purchasing Policy for Goods and Services (21.1.0)

 
DATE:    April 24, 2024 

 
 

 
I. RECOMMENDATION 
That the Board of Trustees approve an increase to the fiscal year 2023/24 blanket 
purchase order for the following vendor: US Foodservice, Inc., in the amount of 
$80,000 for an updated total not-to-exceed $559,500. 

 
II. BACKGROUND 
June 28, 2023, Item F.2, the Board granted staff the authority to transact under 
blanket purchase orders under NRS 332.115 and Board Policy 21.1.0. At this time, 
the purchase order for US Foodservice, Inc. is approaching the originally set not-
to-exceed limit of $479,500. This is due to the unforeseen increase in the cost of 
goods. There is available budget to support the change order increase of 
$80,000 in order to update the not-to-exceed limit to $559,500. 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 199 of 257



III. FINANCIAL IMPACT AND BUDGET 
There is no impact to the fiscal year 2023/24 budget. 

 
IV. ALTERNATIVES 
Without approval to increase the purchase order, the current not-to-exceed limit 
will likely be met within the next few weeks, resulting in staff no longer having the 
authority to continue to purchase goods from US Foodservice, Inc., which is one 
of the largest sources used by the Food and Beverage staff in order to continue 
operations. 

 
 
 

Page 200 of 257



 ITEM H.2. 
M E M O R A N D U M 

  
TO: Board of Trustees 
  
THROUGH: Bobby Magee, District General Manager 
  
FROM: Kate Nelson, Interim Director of Public Works 
  
SUBJECT: Set the Date/Time of June 12, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. for the Public 

Hearing to Implement Amendments to the Sewer and Water rates, 
as well as Adjustments to the Fee Schedule and to Publish the 
Notice in Accordance with the NRS 318.199 (Requesting Staff 
Member: Interim Public Works Director Kate Nelson) 

  
RELATED FY 2023 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
BUDGET INITIATIVE(S): 

LONG RANGE PRINCIPLE #3 - FINANCE 
The District will ensure fiscal responsibility and 
sustainability of service capacities through 
prudent fiscal management and maintaining 
effective financial policies for internal controls, 
operating budgets, fund balances, capital 
improvement and debt management. 

  
RELATED DISTRICT 
POLICIES, PRACTICES, 
RESOLUTIONS OR 
ORDINANCES 

Ordinance No. 2 – Sewer Ordinance 
Ordinance No. 4 – Water Ordinance 

  
DATE: April 24, 2024 
 

 
 
I. RECOMMENDATION  
Authorize Staff to Schedule a Public Hearing on June 12, 2024, to Discuss and 
Approve the Proposed Amendments to the Sewer and Water Rates, as well as 
Adjustments to the Fee Schedule and to Publish the Notice in Accordance with 
NRS 318.199.  
 
II. BACKGROUND  
The District provides water and sewer utility services through its Utility Fund 
(Fund 200). These utility operations are supported through target annual 
revenues each year, collected from utility customers based on Board approved 
rate schedules. 
  
In 2023, a comprehensive five-year rate study was conducted by HDR 

Page 201 of 257



Engineering, Inc. and the rates for FY 2023/24 (year 1 of the rate study) were 
adopted by the Board of Trustees at the June 14, 2023, Board Meeting (Item G.3 
moved to G.4).  Subsequently, at the January 10, 2024, Board meeting (Item 
G.4), the Board requested staff bring back the previously adopted rate study’s 
rate chart for approval of the proposed year 2 rates. 
 
Attached to this memorandum are the rate structure tables from the rate study. 
These tables provide detailed information on the proposed year 2 (FY 2025) 
rates. 
 
Following is the current fee schedule and the proposed fee additions and 
adjustments: 
 

Current Fee Schedule Proposed 
Change 

Sewage Drop-off at Treatment 
Plant 

$85/per 1,000 gal No change 

Backflow Inspections - up to 1 hr 
labor 

$75/ per device - 
Repairs at cost 

No change 

Plan Check Fees $100/hour No change 

Inspection Fees $100/hour No change 

Upgraded Meter, Register or 
Transponder 

Billed at cost No change 

Service Calls - 1/2 hour minimum 
with equipment billed at cost 

$45/per half hour No change 

Tampering with Equipment $100 minimum 
Repairs at cost 

No change 

Water Waste Penalty $100  No change 

Hydrant Meter Rental Charges $1,150/deposit 
$45/month 

$1,500 Deposit 
 $45/month 

1" Meter Rental Charges $225/deposit 
$20/month 

$230/deposit 
 $20/month 

3/4" Meter Rental Charges $110/deposit 
$15/month 

$140/deposit 
 $15/month 

Bulk Water for Construction $2.02/per 1,000 gal $2.15/per 1,000 
gal 

Violation of air-gap on truck fill-up $500  No change 

Returned Check Fee $25 No change 

Posting Service Charge $20 No change 

Page 202 of 257



Mainline Tapping, if performed by 
IVGID 

Cost plus 15% No change 

 
Staff proposes the following additional fees to be included in the fee schedule:  
 

 Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) Disposal Storage Shed 
Fee: $1.23 

This fee is necessary to cover the costs of replacing the HHW storage shed, 
which was not previously included in the rate study.  This additional fee would be 
in effect for one fiscal year only.  Ensuring adequate funding for the HHW 
program is essential to maintain environmental safety standards, protect Lake 
Tahoe source waters, protect the Water Resource Recovery Facility, and fulfill 
the District's commitment to responsible waste management practices. 
 

 Waste Management Bad Debt Fee: $25.00 

Fee for customers for whom the District incurs bad debt for their Waste 
Management past due account over 120 days, as stipulated in the Waste 
Management franchise contract. This fee will cover the administrative costs 
associated with paying off the debt to Waste Management for the customer and 
subsequently collecting payment from that customer. 
 

 Compliance Appointment No-Show Fee: $20.00   

Fee for customers who fail to attend compliance appointments (i.e. Backflow and 
inspections). This fee will cover administrative costs incurred due to scheduling, 
preparing and showing up for appointments that are not honored without 
sufficient notice. 
  
Staff proposes the following adjustments to the fee schedule:  
 

 Bulk Water for Construction: $2.15 /per 1,000 gal 

This adjustment will match the water use cost for all other customers. 
 

 Hydrant Meter Rental Charges: $1,500 deposit / $45 per month 

This adjustment is necessary to cover the latest cost of hydrant meters, ensuring 
that rental fees accurately reflect the expenses associated with their 
replacement. 
 

Page 203 of 257



 1” Meter Rental Charges: $230 deposit / $20 per month 

This adjustment is necessary to cover the latest cost of meters, ensuring that 
rental fees accurately reflect the expenses associated with their replacement. 
 

 ¾” Meter Rental Charges: $140 deposit / $15 per month  

This adjustment is necessary to cover the latest cost of meters, ensuring that 
rental fees accurately reflect the expenses associated with their replacement. 
 
Schedule 
 
The timeline for the proposed rate and fee schedule adoption is as follows: 
 
Utility Rate Implementation Schedule Date 

Set Date of Public Hearing to Adopt New Utility 
Rates and Fee Schedule 

April 24, 2024 

Publish Notice of Public Hearing in Newspaper May 9, 2024 

Conduct Public Hearing and Adopt New Utility Rates 
and Fee Schedule 

June 12, 2024 

New Utility Rates and Fee Schedule Become 
Effective – Pending Approval  

June 19, 2024 

  
 
III. BID RESULTS  
There are no bid results associated with this Memorandum. 
 
IV. FINANCIAL IMPACT AND BUDGET  
The water and sewer utility rates are recommended to increase to provide a 
combined revenue of approximately $16.3 million (FY 2024/25) which is collected 
from the District’s water and sewer customers via monthly utility bills.  Although 
the public works department generates revenue from various sources, it is 
important to note that the revenue mentioned here is solely derived from rates. 
 
V. ALTERNATIVES  
Not Applicable 
 
VI. COMMENTS  
The applicable Nevada Revised Statute for this Memorandum is NRS 318.199 
Rates, tolls and charges for sewerage or water services or products: Schedules; 
public hearings; adoption of resolution; action to set aside resolution. 
 
VII. BUSINESS IMPACT/BENEFIT  

Page 204 of 257



This item is not a “rule” within the meaning of Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 
237, and does not require a Business Impact Statement.  
 
VIII. ATTACHMENTS  
1. Attachment 1 - 2023 Rate Study - IVGID Water Rate Structure Chart 
2. Attachment 2 - 2023 Rate Study - IVGID Sewer Rate Structure Chart 
 
IX. DECISION POINTS NEEDED FROM THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES   
 

Page 205 of 257



Attachment 1 – IVGID Water Rate Structure Chart

Source: Incline Village General Improvement District 2023 Water Sewer Rate Study (Pg. 92)

Present Proposed
Rates FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028

Meter Fee
3/4" $15.10 $17.30 $18.75 $20.10 $20.10 $21.00
1" 25.22 28.89 31.31 33.57 33.57 35.07
1 1/2" 50.28 57.61 62.44 66.93 66.93 69.93
2" 80.48 92.21 99.94 107.13 107.13 111.93
3" 151.00 173.00 187.50 201.00 201.00 210.00
4" 251.72 288.39 312.56 335.07 335.07 350.07
6" 503.28 576.61 624.94 669.93 669.93 699.93
8" 805.28 922.61 999.94 1,071.93 1,071.93 1,119.93
10" 1,157.72 1,326.39 1,437.56 1,541.07 1,541.07 1,610.07

Capital Improvement Fee
3/4" $15.10 $15.10 $18.23 $20.92 $24.85 $23.35
1" 25.22 25.22 30.44 34.93 41.50 38.99
1 1/2" 50.28 50.28 60.70 69.66 82.76 77.74
2" 80.48 80.48 97.16 111.50 132.47 124.44
3" 151.00 151.00 182.29 209.19 248.53 233.46
4" 251.72 251.72 303.88 348.72 414.30 389.19
6" 503.28 503.28 607.59 697.22 828.35 778.14
8" 805.28 805.28 972.18 1,115.60 1,325.41 1,245.07
10" 1,157.42 1,157.72 1,397.65 1,603.84 1,905.48 1,789.97

Admin Fee $4.23 $4.44 $4.66 $4.90 $5.14 $5.40
Defensible Space $1.05 $1.05 $1.05 $1.05 $1.05 $1.05

Residential and Commercial Water Use
Tier 1 $1.95 $2.15 $2.15 $2.22 $2.22 $2.29
Tier 2 3.12 3.44 3.44 3.55 3.55 3.66
Tier 3 3.64 4.01 4.01 4.14 4.14 4.27

Irrigation Water Use
      

Tier 1 $2.00 $2.65 $2.90 $3.15 $3.15 $3.25
Tier 2 3.20 4.24 4.64 5.04 5.04 5.20
Tier 3 3.73 4.94 5.41 5.87 5.87 6.06

06/01/23 

Page 206 of 257



Incline Village General Improvement District
Sewer Rate Study
Rate Structure - Alt 1

Present
FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028

Residential
Base Charge $25.10 $32.25 $36.50 $40.00 $42.25 $44.25
Capital Improvement 31.45 31.45 31.45 31.45 31.45 31.45
Admin Fee 4.23 4.44 4.66 4.90 5.14 5.40

Multi-Family
Base Charge $25.10 $32.25 $36.50 $40.00 $42.25 $44.25
Capital Improvement 31.45 31.45 31.45 31.45 31.45 31.45
Admin Fee 4.23 4.44 4.66 4.90 5.14 5.40

Commercial
Base Charge

3/4" $25.10 $32.25 $36.50 $40.00 $42.25 $44.25
1" 41.92 53.86 60.96 66.80 70.56 73.90
1 1/2" 83.58 107.39 121.55 133.20 140.69 147.35
2" 133.78 171.89 194.55 213.20 225.19 235.85
3" 251.00 322.50 365.00 400.00 422.50 442.50
4" 418.42 537.61 608.46 666.80 704.31 737.65
6" 836.58 1,074.89 1,216.55 1,333.20 1,408.19 1,474.85
8" 1,338.58 1,719.89 1,946.55 2,133.20 2,253.19 2,359.85
10" 1,923.92 2,472.61 2,798.46 3,066.80 3,239.31 3,392.65

Capital Improvement
3/4" $31.45 $31.45 $31.45 $31.45 $31.45 $31.45
1" 52.52 52.52 52.52 52.52 52.52 52.52
1 1/2" 104.73 104.73 104.73 104.73 104.73 104.73
2" 167.63 167.63 167.63 167.63 167.63 167.63
3" 314.50 314.50 314.50 314.50 314.50 314.50
4" 524.27 524.27 524.27 524.27 524.27 524.27
6" 1,048.23 1,048.23 1,048.23 1,048.23 1,048.23 1,048.23
8" 1,677.23 1,677.23 1,677.23 1,677.23 1,677.23 1,677.23
10" 2,410.64 2,411.27 2,411.27 2,411.27 2,411.27 2,411.27

Admin Fee $4.23 $4.44 $4.66 $4.90 $5.14 $5.40

Sewer Use
Residential $4.00 $4.75 $5.37 $5.88 $6.00 $6.22
Multi-Family 4.00 4.75 5.37 5.88 6.00 6.22
Commercial 4.70 5.60 6.35 6.95 7.10 7.37

Proposed

06/01/23

Page 207 of 257



 ITEM H.3. 
M E M O R A N D U M 

  
TO: Board of Trustees 
  
THROUGH: Bobby Magee, District General Manager 
  
FROM: Kate Nelson, Interim Director of Public Works 
  
SUBJECT: Review, Discuss and Approve the Agreements for the Purchase of 

Laboratory Equipment - 2023/24 Capital Project Fund: Utilities; 
Division: Public Works Shared: Project #LE24200100 Lab 
Equipment/Expansion; Vendors: Orange County Medical Sales in 
the Amount of $12,755.00, Thermo Electron North America LLC in 
the Amount of $19,932.00, Thermo Electron North America LLC in 
the Amount of $80,372.06 and Aqua Solutions in the Amount of 
$7,498.95. (Requesting Staff Member: Interim Director of Public 
Works Kate Nelson) 

  
RELATED STRATEGIC 
PLAN BUDGET 
INITIATIVE(S): 

LONG RANGE PRINCIPLE #5 – ASSETS AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE  
 
The District will practice perpetual asset 
renewal, replacement and improvement to 
provide safe and superior long term utility 
services and recreation venues, facilities, and 
services.  Maintain, renew, expand and enhance 
District infrastructure to meet the capacity needs 
and desires of the community for future 
generations. 

RELATED DISTRICT 
POLICIES, PRACTICES, 
RESOLUTIONS OR 
ORDINANCES 

Ordinance No. 2: Sewer; Ordinance No. 4: 
Water; Purchasing Policy for Public Works 
21.2.0. 

DATE: April 24, 2024 
 

 
 
I. RECOMMENDATION  
That the Board of Trustees make a motion to:  

1. Make the Following Findings: IVGID's Purchase of the Following 
Laboratory Equipment: Autoclave from Orange County Medical Sales, UV-
Vis from Thermo Electron North America LLC, Ion Chromatograph from 
Thermo Electron North America LLC, and Dionized Water System from 
Aqua Solutions are Exempt from Competitive Solicitation for the Following 

Page 208 of 257



Reasons: NRS 332.115.1.(d); and, 
2. Approve the Agreements for the Purchase of Laboratory Equipment - 

2023/24 Capital Project Fund: Utilites; Division: Public Works Shared: 
Project #LE24200100 Lab Equipment/Expansion; Vendors:  

a. Orange County Medical Services in the amount of $12,755.00 
(Autoclave) 

b. Thermo Electron North America LLC in the amount of $19,932.00 
(UV-Vis Spectrophotometer) 

c. Thermo Electron North America LLC in the amount of $80,372.06 
(Ion Chromatograph) 

d. Aqua Solutions in the amount of $7,498.95 (Dionized Water 
System) 

3. Direct the General Manager to Sign and Execute the Agreements. 

  
 
II. BACKGROUND  
The Public Works Laboratory is responsible for analyzing, tracking, and reporting 
all water and wastewater samples in accordance with EPA Drinking Water and 
NDEP Discharge Permit requirements.  These samples are analyzed on a 
weekly, monthly, quarterly and yearly basis, depending on the constituents and 
requirements.   
 
Two pieces of laboratory equipment are planned to replace existing pieces of 
equipment that have outlived their useful lives.  The two pieces of equipment 
being replaced are the deionized water system and the autoclave.  The original 
equipment has been in service for 23 years and 18 years respectively, and a 
reduction in quality of performance has been observed. 
 
The two new pieces of equipment being proposed are an Ion Chromatograph 
and UV-Vis Spectrophotometer.  The proposed purchase will allow staff to 
analyze additional required samples in-house and reduce the dependency on an 
outside laboratory.   Currently, the tests performed by these two pieces of 
equipment are performed by an outside laboratory located in Sparks, Nevada 
and the District not only incurs the vendor's costs associated with performing the 
tests but also the staff time delivering the samples to Sparks.  A few of the tests 
that staff will be able to perform in-house include: total nitrogen, Total Kjeldahl 
Nitrogen (TKN), nitrate/nitrite sampling, total phosphorus, chloride, ammonia, 
ortho-phosphorus, and bromate.  These pieces of equipment are produced and 
sold in the United States, providing ease of servicing and/or repairs as needed. 
 
 
 
III. BID RESULTS  
The proposed purchase agreements are in compliance with the District's 
Purchasing Policy for Public Works 21.2.0 and NRS 332.115. These purchases 
are exempt from competitive solicitation requirements because the purchase is in 
accordance with NRS 332.115-1. Contracts which, by their nature, are not 

Page 209 of 257



adapted to award by a competitive solicitation, including contracts for: (d) 
Equipment which, by reason of the training of the personnel or of an inventory of 
replacement parts maintained by the local government, is compatible with 
existing equipment. 
 
The proposed purchase agreements are also in compliance with NRS 80.015 
and 80.055, in reference to purchasing equipment from companies outside the 
State of Nevada. 
 
IV. FINANCIAL IMPACT AND BUDGET  
The District's Capital Improvement Program Budget for the Shared Utility Fund in 
FY 2023/24 includes funding of $250,000 for the purchase of laboratory 
equipment and expansion.  The life expectancy of the new lab equipment is 15–
20 years. The annual cost savings, resulting from the elimination of the need for 
Wetlab testing and the reduction in staff handling time, is approximately $36,000. 
 
V. ALTERNATIVES  
The District Board of Trustees may defer or delay the purchase of the laboratory 
equipment. 
 
VI. COMMENTS  
The purchase orders and agreements have been reviewed and approved by the 
District's Legal Counsel.   
 
VII. BUSINESS IMPACT/BENEFIT  
This item is not a "rule" within the meaning of Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 
237, and does not require a Business Impact Statement.    
 
VIII. ATTACHMENTS  
1. Agreement PO - OCMS - Tuttnauer Benchtop Sterilizer 
2. Agreement PO - Thermo - UV VIS 
3. Agreement PO - Thermo Electron - Integrion RFIC 
4. Agreement PO - Aqua Solutions - DI System 
 
IX. DECISION POINTS NEEDED FROM THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES   
 

Page 210 of 257



Page 211 of 257



Page 212 of 257



Page 213 of 257



ACCOUNT NO. REQ. NO. PURCHASE ORDER NO. 
Order Date: 
Delivery By: 
Buyer: Kaylen Prior, Chief Chemist 
Phone Number: 775-298-9210 
E-mail:krp@ivgid.org 

CONTRACTORs 
Thermo Electron North America LLC 
5225 Verona Road 
Madison, WI 53711 
Attn: Alexander James 
Phone: 916-753-4884 
Email: alexander.james@thermofisher.com 
 

INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

Public Works Department 
1220 Sweetwater Road 
Incline Village, NV 89451 
Attn: Jim Youngblood 
Phone: 775-832-1214 
Email: jey@ivgid.org 
 

This Purchase Order is subject to the attached terms and conditions. 
 
Services:  
 
 The Incline Village General Improvement District (IVGID) agrees to purchase an Evolution One UV-

VIS System, comprised of each and all of the following components: 
 

Part Number Description Price Quoted 
840-341400 Evolution One UV-Vis $9,000 

701-059090 Factory Warranty Onsite Conversion, Evolution One/One Plus (Qty. 
2) $3,586.00 

701-059083 Unity Extended Warranty Evolution One/One Plus Onsite Svcs. $4,576.00 
701-061068 Evolution One Series Installation $1,943.00 
331742-000 Rec Quartz Cell Lidded 10 mm – 8.5 and 15 mmZ, matched set of 2 $702.00 
 Shipping $125.00 

Total Package: $19,932.00 
 

 
 

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 
  

Page 214 of 257



 
OWNER:  
INCLINE VILLAGE G. I. D. 

 CONTRACTOR:   
 

Agreed to:  Agreed to: 

 
By: 

  
By: 

Bobby Magee 
General Manager 

 Signature of Authorized Agent 
 
 
 

 

 Print or Type Name and Title 
 
 
 

Date 

Reviewed as to Form: 
 Date 

 
 

  

Sergio Rudin 
District General Counsel 

  

   
Date 

 
 

 
 

Note:  If you are purchasing analytical instruments such as chromatography, mass 
spectrometry, trace elemental analysis and/or lab automation products and related services 
from Thermo Electron North America LLC, whose name would appear on your order 
documents as the Seller, and your quotation for these products and services contains a link to 
Terms and Conditions of Sale for Products and Services, these are the terms apply to your 
order. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE FOR PRODUCTS 
AND SERVICES  
1. GENERAL.  ("Seller") hereby offers for sale to the buyer named on the face hereof ("Buyer") 
the products ("Products") and/or annual support plans (“Support Plan(s)”) and billable services 
(“Technical Support”) [Support Plans and Technical Support may be referred to collectively as 
“Services”] as listed on the face hereof on the express condition that Buyer agrees to accept and 
be bound by the terms and conditions set forth herein (“Agreement”).  Any new or different 
provisions contained in any document issued by Buyer in response to this offer are expressly 
rejected; and if Buyer’s response is deemed to be an offer, this document is a rejection of 
Buyer’s offer and a counter offer by Seller and shall not constitute acceptance of any proposal by 
Buyer.  Buyer’s receipt of Products or Seller’s commencement of Services hereunder will 
constitute Buyer’s acceptance of this Agreement. This is the final, complete and exclusive 
statement of the contract between Seller and Buyer with respect to Buyer's purchase of Products 
and Services specified herein, which terms may not be altered in any way by Buyer’s purchase 
order terms.  No waiver, consent, modification, amendment or change of the terms contained 

Page 215 of 257

Kadija 
Locklear

Digitally signed 
by Kadija 
Locklear 
Date: 2024.04.09 
12:03:25 -04'00'



herein shall be binding upon Seller unless agreed in writing and signed by Seller.  Seller's failure 
to object to additional or different terms contained in any subsequent communication from Buyer 
will not be a waiver or modification of the terms set forth herein and all such proposals contained 
in Buyer’s order are subject to acceptance in writing by an authorized representative of Seller. 

2. PRICE.  All prices published by Seller or Seller's representatives may be changed at any time 
without notice.  All prices quoted by Seller or Seller’s representatives are valid for thirty (30) 
days, unless otherwise stated in writing.  All prices for the Products or Services will be as 
specified by Seller and as set forth in Exhibit A, Sales Quotation, incorporated herein and made a 
part hereof by this reference; or, if no price has been specified or quoted, will be Seller's standard 
prices in effect at the time of shipment of Products or delivery of Services.  All prices are subject 
to adjustment on account of specifications, quantities, raw materials, cost of production, 
shipment arrangements or other terms or conditions that are not part of Seller's original 
quotation.  Unless otherwise stated in the quotation, the quoted rate for Technical Support 
includes Work Time, Travel Time and Standby Time in accordance with the following schedule 
and conditions; except that Technical Support requested without at least seven (7) days advanced 
notification shall be subject to airfare charges in addition to the Standard Rate.  

(a)  Work Time – shall include all hours that Seller’s service personnel are on the Buyer’s 
job site, either working or ready for work and shall be payable at the applicable specified 
rates. 

(b)  Travel Time – shall include the time spent by Seller’s service personnel in traveling 
between their customary headquarters and the Buyer’s job site and in returning (including 
travel occurring on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays).  Except as otherwise stated in the 
Services quotation, Travel Time will be invoiced per diem at the applicable Travel Zone rates 
in Seller’s standard service list prices.  Air travel and car hire related expenses will be 
charged in addition to the daily rate at cost plus a 10% administration fee. 

(c)  Standby Time – shall include the time that Seller agrees in writing, at its sole 
discretion, to reserve its service personnel to be ready to perform work for the Buyer, 
whether on the job site or not, up to a maximum of 8 hours a day, between the hours of 8:00 
a.m. and 5:00 p.m., local standard time on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays.  Standby Time 
shall be paid for at the special rates quoted by Seller at the time of Buyer’s request or, if 
none, at the current Double Time Rate; and Standby Time preceded and/or followed by Work 
Time is cumulative in determining Overtime.    

(d)  Standard Rate – the Service rate quoted by Seller that shall be paid for time worked 
on a regular schedule of eight (8) hours per day, Monday through Friday (excluding Seller’s 
holidays), between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. local standard time. 

(e)  Overtime Rate – if applicable for the quoted Services, the rate of one and a half times 
the Standard Rate shall be paid for any time worked in excess of eight (8) hours or between 
the hours of 5:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. local standard time; but not exceeding sixteen (16) hours 
per day, Monday through Friday, and for any time on Saturdays, not to exceed sixteen (16) 

Page 216 of 257



hours. Overtime shall be billed in 30 minute blocks; or longer time blocks, if quoted by the 
Supplier. 

(f)  Double Time Rate – the rate of twice the Standard Rate shall be paid for time worked 
in excess of sixteen (16) hours per day, without a six (6) hour break, Monday through Friday, 
and for all time on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays.  Holidays shall be those observed by 
Seller. 

3. TAXES AND OTHER CHARGES.   Prices for the Products and Services exclude all sales, 
use, value added and other taxes and duties imposed with respect to the sale, delivery, or use of 
any Products or Services covered hereby, all of which taxes and duties must be paid by Buyer.  If 
Buyer claims any exemption, Buyer must provide a valid, signed certificate or letter of 
exemption for each respective jurisdiction. 

4. TERMS OF PAYMENT.   Seller may invoice Buyer immediately for the single lump sum 
amount equal to the total charges for the initial Term of a Support Plan, upon shipment of 
Products or upon completion of Technical Support for the price and all other charges payable by 
Buyer in accordance with the terms on the face hereof.  If no payment terms are stated on the 
face hereof, payment shall be net thirty (30) days from the date of invoice.  International 
Technical Support may require payment in advance. If Buyer fails to pay any amounts when due, 
Buyer shall pay Seller interest thereon at the greater of a periodic rate of one and one-half 
percent (1.5%) per month or the highest rate stipulated by applicable law, together with all costs 
and expenses (including without limitation reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements and 
court costs) incurred by Seller in collecting such overdue amounts or otherwise enforcing Seller's 
rights hereunder.  Seller reserves the right to require from Buyer full or partial payment in 
advance, or other security that is satisfactory to Seller, at any time that Seller believes in good 
faith that Buyer's financial condition does not justify the terms of payment specified.  All 
payments shall be made in U.S. Dollars unless otherwise specified in Seller’s invoice.  

5.A. PRODUCT DELIVERY. All Products will be shipped to the destination specified by Buyer, 
FCA (INCOTERMS 2010) at OEM shipping point or Seller’s distribution facility, as applicable, 
which will vary depending on Product type and availability and may include points outside the 
United States (U.S.) (inquire for specific shipping point information).  Notwithstanding specified 
INCOTERMS, Seller shall select carrier on Buyer’s behalf and Seller agrees to arrange 
transportation of Products to Buyer’s destination, and to act as the importer of record on behalf 
of Buyer to clear the Products through U.S. customs.   All freight, taxes, duties and insurance, if 
any, charges shall be prepaid and added to Buyer’s invoice. Seller may, at its election, make 
partial shipments of the Products and invoice each shipment separately.  Seller reserves the right 
to withhold shipments in whole or in part and/or terminate any Services, if Buyer fails to make 
any payment to Seller when due or otherwise fails to perform its obligations hereunder.  Seller’s 
termination of Services will not relieve Buyer’s obligation to pay all amounts due for Services 
provided by Seller prior to the termination date.  All shipping dates are approximate only, and 
Seller will not be liable for any loss or damage resulting from any delay in delivery or failure to 
deliver which is due to any cause beyond Seller's reasonable control.  In the event of a delay due 
to any cause beyond Seller's reasonable control, Seller reserves the right to terminate the order or 

Page 217 of 257



to reschedule the shipment within a reasonable period of time, and Buyer will not be entitled to 
refuse delivery or otherwise be relieved of any obligations as the result of such delay.  

5. B. CANCELLATION OR CHANGES BY BUYER If Buyer requests that Seller delay 
delivery of Products for any reason, Seller may place Products in storage at Buyer's risk and 
expense and for Buyer's account.  Orders in process may be cancelled only with Seller's written 
consent and upon payment of Seller's cancellation charges.  Orders in process may not be 
changed except with Seller's written consent and upon agreement by the parties as to an 
appropriate adjustment in the purchase price therefore.  Credit will not be allowed for Products 
returned without the prior written consent of Seller.  Before returning any item, contact Seller's 
Order Administration Department for a Return Material Authorization (RMA) number at . Buyer 
may need to complete an RMA Form which includes a Hazard Free Form and/or Instrument 
Contamination Data Form.  If authorized by Seller, Buyer must return items to Seller in their 
original or equivalent packaging, prepay shipping charges, and insure the shipment or accept the 
risk if the item is lost or damaged in shipment. In addition, Seller reserves the right to charge the 
Buyer the list price for missing components or subassemblies when incomplete items are 
returned to Seller.  Authorized returns of any unused items which are free from material defects 
to Seller, in its sole discretion, may be subject to a twenty percent (20%) restocking charge. 

Requests by Buyer to delay, postpone or suspend on-site Services, due to no fault of Seller, shall 
be subject to Seller’s ability to recall its service representatives and to cancel and/or reschedule 
of any of their travel arrangements; and provided that, Buyer pays any and all additional costs 
(including, Travel Time and expenses) incurred by Seller as a result of the Services being 
postponed or suspended by Buyer. Cancellation of scheduled Services may be subject to a 
cancellation fee of twenty percent (20%) if Seller is notified less than 7 business days prior to the 
scheduled date of service. 

6. DELIVERY OF SERVICES.  Except as otherwise stated on the face hereof, all Services will 
be provided by Seller or its agent between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. local standard 
time, Monday through Friday, excluding Seller’s holidays, either at Seller’s principal offices or, 
at Seller’s option, at Buyer’s installation address.  If Seller advises Buyer that Services should be 
performed at Seller’s facility, Buyer will properly package the Products to prevent damage, 
clearly mark the RMA number on the outer packaging, and ship it, via postage/freight prepaid, to 
the address set forth on the face hereof or such different address as Seller may from time to time 
provide to Buyer. After Seller completes the Services, or has made a determination that the 
products are beyond repair, Seller may, at its option, either advise Buyer to scrap the Products or 
to have the Products shipped, postage/freight prepaid, back to Buyer’s installation address stated 
on the quotation, or to such other address as Buyer requests.  In the event Buyer requires 
expedited delivery, such delivery will be made at Buyer’s expense.  If Seller advises Buyer that 
Services should be performed at Buyer’s site, Buyer will use its best efforts to provide Seller 
with all requested diagnostic information for any products requiring Services; and subject to 
compliance with Buyer’s reasonable security requirements, will allow Seller free access to all 
relevant equipment, documentation and records.  In addition, Buyer will cooperate with Seller’s 
efforts to perform the Services and will provide such additional assistance as Seller may 
reasonably request.  At the completion of the Services, Seller’s representatives will provide 
Buyer with a field service report on which will be indicated the number of hours spent and the 

Page 218 of 257



materials used in completing the work.  Buyer’s signature on the field service report will signify 
approval of the information in the report and Seller’s satisfactory completion of the Services.  If 
Buyer does not sign the report or provide written objection within five (5) business days after 
receipt, then the report will be deemed unequivocally approved and accepted by Buyer. 

7. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  Notwithstanding the transport terms indicated above, title to 
and risk of loss of the Products will pass to Buyer when the Products are transferred to Buyer at 
Buyer’s facility; provided, however, that title to any software incorporated within or forming a 
part of the Products will at all times remain with Seller or the licensor(s) thereof, as the case may 
be.  All risk of loss or damage to Buyer’s products being transported for Services shall remain 
with Seller during shipment to and from the Buyer’s site and during Seller’s performance of 
Services hereunder. 

8. WARRANTIES.  Seller’s sole obligation with respect to the Services is to provide the quoted 
Services in a workmanlike manner and if Buyer provides notice of defect in Service within 
ninety (90) days of completion of such Services, Seller will, at its sole option, either reperform 
the Services without charge to Buyer or grant Buyer a credit for the amount paid by Buyer with 
respect to such Service.  Seller warrants that the Products will operate or perform substantially in 
conformance with Seller's published specifications and be free from defects in material and 
workmanship, when subjected to normal, proper and intended usage by properly trained 
personnel, for the period of time set forth in the Product documentation, published specifications 
or package inserts (the "Warranty Period").  If a Warranty Period is not specified in Seller’s 
Product documentation, published specifications, or package inserts, the Warranty Period for 
new instruments is twelve (12) months from the date of shipment to Buyer; and for all other 
Products is ninety (90) days from the date of shipment.  During the Warranty Period, Seller 
agrees to repair or replace, at Seller's option, defective Products so as to cause the same to 
operate in substantial conformance with Seller’s published specifications; provided that Buyer 
(a) promptly notifies Seller in writing upon the discovery of any covered defect in the Products, 
including the Product model and serial number (if applicable) and details of the warranty claim; 
and (b) after Seller’s review, Seller will provide Buyer with an RMA number and services data, 
which may include biohazard decontamination procedures and other Product-specific handling 
instructions. Then, if applicable, Buyer may return the defective Products to Seller with all costs 
prepaid by Buyer.  Replacement parts may be new or refurbished, at the election of Seller.  All 
replaced parts shall become the property of Seller.  Shipment to Buyer of repaired or replacement 
Products will be made in accordance with the Delivery clause of this Agreement.   Except for 
new consumable items manufactured and sold by Seller, this warranty expressly excludes all 
other consumable parts or components (e.g., bulbs, belts, cartridges, etc.) in the Products. If 
Seller elects to repair defective medical device instruments, Seller may, in its sole discretion, 
provide a replacement loaner instrument to Buyer as necessary for use while the instruments are 
being repaired. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Products supplied by Seller that are obtained by Seller from an 
original manufacturer or third party supplier are not warranted by Seller; but Seller agrees to 
assign to Buyer any warranty rights in such Product that Seller may have from the original 
manufacturer or third party supplier, to the extent such assignment is allowed by such original 
manufacturer or third party supplier. 

Page 219 of 257



In no event shall Seller have any obligation to make repairs, replacements or corrections under 
the Warranty, in whole or in part, as the result of or with respect to: (a) use of the Products in a 
manner for which they were not designed; (b) improper storage and handling of the Products; (c) 
use of the Products in combination with equipment or software not supplied by Seller (d) 
shipping damage incurred en route to Buyer’s site or because of moving equipment, in which 
case Seller will promptly provide a cost estimate for Technical Support to the consignee for 
filing claims to carriers for shipping damage; (e) flood, lightning,  earthquake, tornado, hurricane 
or fire, bombing, armed conflict, malicious mischief, sabotage or other natural or man-made 
disasters; (f) normal wear and tear, physical abuse, misuse, sprinkler damage, electrical surge or 
abnormal power variation; (g) repairs, maintenance, or modifications made by anyone other than 
Seller trained personnel or without Seller’s supervision and/or approval; (h) relocation and 
reinstallation of equipment; although upon request Seller will supervise the removing, crating, 
relocation and reinstallation of the Products at Seller’s current Services rates; (i) maintenance or 
replacement of media (i.e., floppy disks, plotter supplies, etc.) whatever the reason for loss, 
failure or damage; (j) beta-site support; (k) operator training; or (l) repairing Product 
malfunctions if the fault is not with the equipment.  If Seller determines that Products for which 
Buyer requested warranty services are not covered by this warranty, Buyer will pay or reimburse 
Seller for all costs of investigating and responding to such request at Seller's then prevailing time 
and materials rates.  If Seller provides Services or replacement parts that are not covered by this 
warranty, Buyer shall pay Seller therefore at Seller's then prevailing time and materials rates.  

ANY INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, SERVICE, RELOCATION OR 
ALTERATION TO OR OF, OR OTHER TAMPERING WITH, THE PRODUCTS 
PERFORMED BY ANY PERSON OR ENTITY OTHER THAN SELLER WITHOUT 
SELLER'S PRIOR WRITTEN APPROVAL, OR ANY USE OF REPLACEMENT PARTS 
NOT SUPPLIED BY SELLER, SHALL IMMEDIATELY VOID AND CANCEL ALL 
WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE AFFECTED PRODUCTS AND/OR 
SERVICES.  THE OBLIGATIONS CREATED BY THIS WARRANTY STATEMENT FOR 
SELLER TO REPAIR OR REPLACE A DEFECTIVE PRODUCT OR TO REPERFORM OR 
CREDIT THE PRICE OF DEFECTIVE SERVICES SHALL BE THE SOLE REMEDY OF 
BUYER FOR SUCH DEFECTIVE PRODUCTS OR SERVICES UNDER THIS 
AGREEMENT.  EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED IN THIS  WARRANTY 
STATEMENT, SELLER DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS 
OR IMPLIED, ORAL OR WRITTEN, WITH RESPECT TO THE PRODUCTS, INCLUDING 
WITHOUT LIMITATION ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, 
FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR NONINFRINGEMENT.  SELLER DOES 
NOT WARRANT THAT THE PRODUCTS OR SERVICES ARE ERROR-FREE OR WILL 
ACCOMPLISH ANY PARTICULAR RESULT. 

9. INDEMNIFICATION. 

9.1 By Seller.   Seller will indemnify, defend and save Buyer, its officers, directors, and 
employees from and against any and all damages, liabilities, actions, causes of action, suits, 
claims, demands, losses, costs and expenses (including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ 
fees) (“Indemnified Items”) asserted by another party against Buyer for (i) bodily injury to or 
death of persons or damage to tangible property to the extent caused by the negligence or willful 

Page 220 of 257



misconduct of Seller, its employees, agents or representatives or contractors in connection with 
the performance of Services at Buyer’s premises under this Agreement; and (ii) claims that a 
Product infringes any U.S. patent, copyright or trade secret; provided, however, Seller’s liability 
under this Section does not extend to any such Indemnified Items caused by either (u) the 
negligence or willful misconduct of Buyer, its employees, agents or representatives or 
contractors, (v) by any third party, (w) use of a Product in combination with equipment or 
software not supplied by Seller where the Product alone would not be infringing, (x) Seller’s 
compliance with Buyer's designs, specifications or instructions, (y) use of the Product in an 
application or environment for which it was not designed, or (z) modifications of the Product by 
anyone other than Seller without Seller's prior written approval.  Buyer will promptly notify 
Seller in writing of any claim covered by Seller’s indemnification obligations hereunder.  Seller 
may assume exclusive control of the defense of such claim or, at the option of the Seller, to settle 
the same.  Buyer agrees to cooperate reasonably with Seller in connection with the performance 
by Seller of its obligations in this Section. 

Notwithstanding the above, Seller’s infringement related indemnification obligations shall be 
extinguished and relieved if Seller, at its discretion and at its own expense (a) procures for Buyer 
the right, at no additional expense to Buyer, to continue using the Product; (b) replaces or 
modifies the Product so that it becomes non-infringing, provided the modification or replacement 
does not adversely affect the specifications of the Product; or (c) in the event (a) and (b) are not 
practical, refund to Buyer the amortized amounts paid by Buyer with respect thereto, based on a 
five (5) year amortization schedule.  THE FOREGOING INDEMNIFICATION PROVISION 
STATES SELLER'S ENTIRE LIABILITY TO BUYER FOR, AND BUYER’S SOLE AND 
EXCLUSIVE REMEDY IN RESPECT OF, THE CLAIMS DESCRIBED HEREIN. 

10. SOFTWARE.   With respect to any software products incorporated in or forming a part of 
the Products hereunder (i.e., firmware), Seller and Buyer intend and agree that such software 
products are being licensed and not sold, and that the words "purchase", "sell" or similar or 
derivative words are understood and agreed to mean "license", and that the word "Buyer" or 
similar or derivative words are understood and agreed to mean "licensee".  Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary contained herein, Seller or its licensor, as the case may be, retains all 
rights and interest in software products provided hereunder.  Seller hereby grants to Buyer a 
royalty-free, non-exclusive, nontransferable license, without power to sublicense, to use software 
licensed hereunder solely for Buyer's own internal business purposes on its hardware Products 
and to use the related documentation solely for Buyer's own internal business purposes.  This 
license terminates when Buyer's lawful possession of the hardware Products provided hereunder 
ceases, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  Buyer agrees to hold in confidence and not 
to sell, transfer, license, loan or otherwise make available in any form to third parties the 
software products and related documentation provided hereunder.  Buyer may not disassemble, 
decompile or reverse engineer, copy, modify, enhance or otherwise change or supplement the 
software products provided hereunder without Seller's prior written consent.  Seller will be 
entitled to terminate this license if Buyer fails to comply with any term or condition 
herein.  Buyer agrees, upon termination of this license, to immediately stop using all software 
products and related documentation provided hereunder and all copies and portions thereof. 

Page 221 of 257



Certain of the software products provided by Seller may be owned by one or more third parties 
and licensed to Seller or may be stand-alone software products, which Buyer hereby agrees are 
subject to a separate browse-wrap, shrink-wrap or click-thru end user license agreement 
(EULA).  Accordingly, the warranty and indemnification provisions herein do not apply to such 
software, which are exclusively provided in the applicable EULA. 

11. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.   NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE 
CONTRARY CONTAINED HEREIN, THE LIABILITY OF SELLER UNDER THESE 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS (WHETHER BY REASON OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, 
TORT, INDEMNIFICATION, OR OTHERWISE, BUT EXCLUDING LIABILITY OF 
SELLER FOR BREACH OF WARRANTY (THE SOLE REMEDY FOR WHICH IS 
PROVIDED UNDER THE PRODUCT AND SERVICES WARRANTIES HEREIN) SHALL 
NOT EXCEED AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO THE LESSER OF (A) 1.5 TIMES THE TOTAL 
PURCHASE PRICE THERETOFORE PAID BY BUYER TO SELLER WITH RESPECT TO 
THE PRODUCT(S) OR SERVICES GIVING RISE TO SUCH LIABILITY OR (B) ONE 
MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000).  NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE 
CONTRARY CONTAINED HEREIN, IN NO EVENT SHALL SELLER BE LIABLE FOR 
ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES 
(INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF USE OF FACILITIES 
OR EQUIPMENT, LOSS OF REVENUE, LOSS OF DATA, LOSS OF PROFITS OR LOSS OF 
GOODWILL), REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SELLER (a) HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE 
POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES OR (b) IS NEGLIGENT. 

12. EXPORT RESTRICTIONS. Buyer acknowledges that each Product and any related services, 
software and technology, including technical information supplied by Seller or contained in 
documents (collectively “Items”), may be subject to export controls of the U.S. government 
and/or other governments.  Such export controls may include, but are not limited to, the Export 
Administration Regulations of the U.S. Department of Commerce (the “EAR”), which may 
restrict or require licenses for the export of Items from the U.S. and their re-export from other 
countries and all other applicable laws, regulations, laws, treaties, and agreements relating to the 
export, re-export, and import of any Item.  Buyer shall not export, re-export, distribute or supply 
any Item, directly or indirectly, to (i) any country, person or entity, in each case, without first 
obtaining from the U.S. government and/or other appropriate government agency any license 
required to do so lawfully; (ii) any person or organization in Cuba, Iran, North Korea, Sudan, 
Syria, or other country then the subject of a U.S. embargo, or any person or entity considered a 
part of the government of any such country; or (iii) any person or entity who is involved in 
improper development or use of nuclear weapons, or  of chemical/biological weapons (CBW) or 
missiles, or in terrorist activities.  Buyer shall cooperate fully with Seller in any official or 
unofficial audit or inspection related to applicable export or import control laws or regulations, 
and shall indemnify and hold Seller harmless from, or in connection with, any violation of this 
Section by Buyer or its employees, consultants, agents and/or representatives. 

13. SUPPORT PLAN TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 

A. General.  In the event Buyer purchases a Support Plan from Seller under this Agreement, 
Seller agrees to maintain and/or repair those Products or instruments identified on the face hereof 

Page 222 of 257



as covered under a Support Plan ("Covered Equipment") in a manner consistent with the 
specifications and entitlements included in the purchased Support Plan as specified by Seller on 
the face hereof, which may include various levels of service at the Buyer’s site(s) and/or Seller’s 
Depot Repair locations and are purchased separate from the original Product Warranty above 
(the "Support Service(s)").  The Support Services will only be valid for Covered Equipment 
within , Monday through Friday (excluding Seller’s holidays) during the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m. local standard time ("Normal Hours") during the term of the Agreement. The Covered 
Equipment must be operated according to the manufacturer's supplied instructions, including 
without limitation the Operator's Manual(s) and any malfunction must be promptly reported to 
Seller. Support Service calls requested outside of Normal Hours or for any non-Covered 
Equipment or for services not included in the Support Plan will be billed at Seller’s standard 
rates for Technical Support in effect at the time of Buyer’s request. Seller reserves the exclusive 
right to determine the assignment of its employees in the performance of Support Services. 

B. Term. (a) The Support Plan will begin and remain effective for the period of time stated 
on the face hereof ("Term"). To renew the Support Plan, Buyer must sign a Renewal Service 
Agreement accompanied by a purchase order prior to the expiration of the current Term 
("Renewal"), which shall also be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Either 
party may terminate a Support Plan for any/no reason by providing at least thirty (30) days 
written notice to the other party. Seller will use commercially reasonable efforts to stop work and 
to incur no additional expenses.  Regardless, if a Support Plan is cancelled, Seller will charge 
Buyer for the total price of Services actually performed and expenses actually and reasonably 
incurred in servicing the covered equipment under the underlying Support Plan from its effective 
date until the cancellation date or the prorated price of the underlying Support Plan from its 
effective date until the cancellation date, whichever is greater, plus fifteen percent (15%) of the 
total fee paid for the underlying Support Plan. In the event Buyer prepaid the Support Plan fees 
in full and a credit balance exists for the underlying Support Plan, Seller will provide a credit or 
refund the amount remaining to Buyer. 

C. Pricing and Pricing Assumptions.  Except as otherwise agreed in writing, the annual 
charge for each Renewal will be Thermo Fisher's standard support plan rates in effect at the start 
of the Renewal.  All Support Plan pricing is based on the assumption that the Covered 
Equipment operates in accordance with product specifications as of the coverage start date; 
therefore, prior to the start of each Term and Renewal, Seller reserves the right to verify and 
correct the condition of the Covered Equipment and invoice Buyer at Seller’s current billable 
rates for any Support Services deemed reasonably necessary to bring the Covered Equipment 
into good operating condition. Notwithstanding the above, Seller agrees to waive its right to bill 
the Buyer for bringing the Covered Equipment into good operating condition if there is no lapse 
between the end date of the current Support Plan Term and the beginning of any Renewal. 

D. Parts and Consumables: The Support Plan level defines when and if the cost of parts is 
included under the Support Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the cost for parts that are 
consumed in the normal and usual operation of the Covered Equipment including, but not limited 
to, sample preparation and analysis, consumables, paper, ink cartridges, ribbons, pens, lamps 
and/or data media are not covered under any Support Plan. 

Page 223 of 257



E. Key Operator: Buyer will designate a key operator of Covered Equipment who can 
describe instrument malfunctions to Seller’s service representatives by telephone and who is 
qualified to perform simple adjustments and corrections to the Covered Equipment as requested 
by Seller’s service representatives.  Buyer’s failure to designate a key operator or to perform or 
to have an authorized representative perform the routine maintenance specified in the Covered 
Equipment’s instructions or Owner’s Manual may result, at Seller’s option, in Buyer being 
invoiced at Seller’s standard Technical Support rates to provide such non-covered services. 

F. Equipment Modification: Seller reserves the right to make any changes in the design or 
construction of Seller’s Products without incurring any obligation to make any updates or 
changes whatsoever in the Covered Equipment under the Support Plan. Buyer agrees to allow 
Seller, at its expense and option, to make retrofits or design changes which improve product 
reliability, but do not change its performance characteristics.  Any Buyer requests to modify or 
add devices or accessories to Covered Equipment that are not manufactured by Seller are outside 
the scope of the Support Plans and covered Support Services. 

G. Support Services Warranty: Seller’s sole obligation under any Support Plan is to provide 
the Support Services in a workmanlike manner in accordance with the entitlements of the 
Support Plan purchased by Buyer hereunder. SELLER MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTIES 
FOR SUPPORT SERVICES PROVIDED UNDER A SUPPORT PLAN, EXPRESS OR 
IMPLIED, AND DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, 
IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE AND ANY OTHER OBLIGATIONS OR LIABILITIES WHETHER IN 
CONTRACT, WARRANTY, NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE. 

H. Support Plan Exclusions: The following occurrences are not covered by any Support Plan 
purchased by Buyer from Seller under this Agreement: 

(a) Covered Equipment malfunctions caused by any of the following abnormal 
conditions; and if Seller performs Support Services as a result thereof, Seller will invoice 
Buyer at Seller’s standard billable rates for service, travel or move, labor and parts: (i) 
Shipping damage incurred en route to Buyer’s site or any subsequent transport 
thereafter;  (ii)  Force Majeure events, including for example, floods, lightning, earthquake, 
tornado, hurricane or fire, bombing, terrorism, armed conflict, malicious mischief, sabotage 
or other such natural or manmade disasters;  (iii) Physical abuse, misuse, sprinkler damage, 
electrical surge or abnormal power variation;  (iv) Repairs, maintenance, or modifications 
made by anyone other than Seller’s trained personnel or without Seller’s supervision and/or 
approval; and (v) Relocation and reinstallation of Covered Equipment are not covered under 
the Support Plan; however, upon request Seller, will supervise the removing, crating, 
relocation and reinstallation of its products at Seller’s standard billable rates for service, 
travel or move, labor and parts. 

(b) Maintenance or replacement of media (i.e., floppy disks, printer supplies, etc.) 
whatever the reason for loss, failure or damage; 

Page 224 of 257



(c)  Servicing of material or instruments manufactured by anyone other than Seller, 
including third-party material or instruments purchased for engineering specials; 

(d)  Beta-site support; 

(e)  Service calls made to train operators; and/or 

(f) Service calls made as a result of Buyer-identified areas of responsibility, i.e. 
malfunctions related to Buyer’s site conditions, utilities and/or facilities (power, water, 
temperature, humidity, vibration, dust, etc.) or site computer/data network problems or 
integrity. 

I. Buyer Responsibilities: Buyer will give Seller’s personnel reasonable access to the 
Covered Equipment whenever Support Service is required. Buyer will cooperate with Seller’s 
personnel so that Support Services can be performed efficiently and without interruption. Buyer 
will permit Seller to use of Buyer’s equipment, including Covered Equipment, that Seller’s 
personnel deem necessary to perform the Support Services. Buyer is solely responsible for the 
procurement, installation, maintenance and fees associated with all third party communication 
equipment and media as needed for the performance of Support Service under the Support Plan 
including, but not limited to, telephone and equipment for remote transmission of data. 

14. INSURANCE. For the Term of a Support Plan and/or for the provision of on-site Services 
purchased hereunder, as applicable, Seller agrees to maintain and carry liability insurance in 
amounts set forth below with insurance companies rated B+ or better by “BEST” rating 
services.  Insurance includes (a) commercial general liability insurance for a limit of 
US$2,000,000 (two million) for each occurrence and US$4,000,000 (four million) in the 
aggregate, (b) Statutory workers’ compensation and employer’s liability insurance for a limit of 
US$1,000,000 (one million), (c) Automobile liability of US$2,000,000 (two million) and (d) 
Umbrella coverage of US$5,000,000 (five million).  Seller will include a waiver of subrogation, 
except this waiver shall not extend to claims of Buyer negligence or willful misconduct.  Upon 
request from Buyer related to applicable Services, Seller will provide to Buyer a certificate of 
insurance using the standard ACORD form to evidence the insurance coverage required herein. 

15. MEDICARE/MEDICAID REPORTING REQUIREMENTS.  If Buyer is a recipient of 
Medicare/Medicaid funds, Buyer acknowledges that it has been informed of and agrees to fully 
and accurately account for, and report on its applicable cost report, the total value of any 
discount, rebate or other compensation paid hereunder in a way that complies with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws and regulations which establish ‘Safe Harbor” for discounts.  Buyer 
may make written request for additional information from Seller as needed to satisfy Buyer’s 
reporting requirements.  Buyer acknowledges that agreement to such reporting requirement was 
a condition precedent to Seller’s agreement to provide Products and that Seller would not have 
entered into this Agreement had Buyer not agreed to comply with such obligations. 

16. MISCELLANEOUS.  (a) Buyer may not delegate any duties or assign any rights or claims 
hereunder without Seller's prior written consent, and any such attempted delegation or 
assignment shall be void. (b) The rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall be 

Page 225 of 257



governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada, U.S.A. without 
reference to its choice of law provisions.  Each party hereby irrevocably consents to the 
exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts located in the County of Washoe, Nevada 
U.S.A. for any action arising out of or relating to this Agreement. Each party hereby waives any 
other venue to which it may be entitled by domicile or otherwise.  (c) In the event of any legal 
proceeding between the Seller and Buyer relating to this Agreement, neither party may claim the 
right to a trial by jury, and both parties waive any right they may have under applicable law or 
otherwise to a right to a trial by jury. Any action arising under this Agreement must be brought 
within one (1) year from the date that the cause of action arose.  (d) In the event that any one or 
more provisions contained herein shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, 
illegal or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining 
provisions contained herein shall remain in full force and effect, unless the revision materially 
changes the bargain.  (e) Seller's failure to enforce, or Seller's waiver of a breach of, any 
provision contained herein shall not constitute a waiver of any other breach or of such 
provision.  (f) Unless otherwise expressly stated on the Product or in the documentation 
accompanying the Product, software and/or Services, they are not approved medical devices and 
are intended by Seller to be for “Research Use Only” as defined by the U.S. Food and Drug 
Administration regulations and is not to be used for any illegal or unapproved regulatory 
purposes, including without limitation, in vitro diagnostic uses, ex vivo or in vivo therapeutic 
uses, or any type of consumption by or application to humans or animals.  (g) Seller agrees not to 
knowingly disclose any confidential information or data obtained by it during the performance of 
Services when such information or data is clearly identified in writing by Buyer as confidential. 
Buyer agrees that all pricing, discounts and technical information that Seller provides to Buyer 
are the confidential and proprietary information of Seller, except to the extent necessary to 
comply with Buyer’s legal obligations as a public agency. The parties agree to keep such 
information confidential and not disclose each other’s confidential information to any third party 
for one (1) year hereafter, and to use such information solely for Buyer’s internal purposes and in 
connection with the Products supplied hereunder.  Nothing herein shall restrict the use of 
information available to the general public. (h) Any notice or communication required or 
permitted hereunder must be in writing and shall be deemed received when personally delivered, 
upon delivery by any internationally recognized carrier such as Federal Express or similar 
overnight delivery service, or three (3) business days after being sent by certified mail, postage 
prepaid, to a party at the address specified herein or at such other address as either party may 
from time to time designate to the other. (i) Seller may, in its sole discretion, provide (I) 
applicable Product training to Buyer or its employees, or (II) samples of Products to Buyer for 
distribution to patients of Buyer.  Buyer agrees to distribute any such samples to patients for 
patient use or, if not so distributed, to return them to Seller.  Buyer may not use the samples to 
provide care to patients and must not bill any patients or third party payers when Buyer dispenses 
the samples. (j) Seller hereby rejects and disclaims any rights of Buyer contained, or obligations 
imposed upon Seller, in any document provided, referenced or otherwise submitted by Buyer, in 
each case, that Seller has not expressly included in this Agreement or a writing manually 
executed by Seller (including, without limitation, any rights of Buyer in respect of designs, 
specifications, source code or intellectual property, owned, created, developed or licensed, by 
Seller; any rights to items or services not specifically identified in Seller’s quotation; any audit 
rights or financial offset rights of Buyer; any penalties or liquidated damages imposed upon 
Seller; any obligation by Seller to comply with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability 

Page 226 of 257



Act of 1996 (as amended), Current Good Manufacturing Practice regulations (as amended), the 
requirements, as amended, of the Customs-Trade Partnership Against Terrorism or any code of 
conduct, quality program, information security program, background or drug screening program 
or other guidelines, programs or policies, in each case, promulgated or required by Buyer; any 
obligation that Seller comply with any law that, under law, would not otherwise apply to Seller 
in respect of the transaction(s) contemplated hereby; any right of Buyer to withhold all, or any 
portion, of the purchase price of any products or services provided hereunder for any period of 
time; any right of Buyer, itself or through any third party, to remediate any defects in, replace or 
re-perform, any products or services provided hereunder at Seller’s cost or expense; any 
obligation of Seller to waive, or require its insurers to waive, any rights of subrogation; any 
obligation of Seller that would impair, restrict or prohibit Seller’s ability to freely conduct any 
business with any person or in any geography or market; any early-payment, or other, discount; 
any obligation of Seller to maintain a supply of spares, or otherwise make any services available, 
for any particular period of time; any representation, warranty or other obligation of Seller to 
provide pricing comparable to, or more favorable than, the pricing that Seller provides to others; 
any restriction of, or prohibition on, Seller’s ability to modify, change or discontinue any of its 
products, processes or services; or any waiver by Seller of any right to enforce any of the terms 
hereof). 

Updated August 1, 2020 

 

Page 227 of 257



Page 228 of 257



ACCOUNT NO. REQ. NO. PURCHASE ORDER NO. 
Order Date: 
Delivery By: 
Buyer: Kaylen Prior, Chief Chemist 
Phone Number: 775-298-9210 
E-mail:krp@ivgid.org 

CONTRACTOR 
Thermo Electron North America LLC 
5225 Verona Road 
Madison, WI 53711 
Attn: Alexander James 
Phone: 916-753-4884 
Email: alexander.james@thermofisher.com 
 

INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

Public Works Department 
1220 Sweetwater Road 
Incline Village, NV 89451 
Attn: Jim Youngblood 
Phone: 775-832-1214 
Email: jey@ivgid.org 
 

This Purchase Order is subject to the attached terms and conditions. 
 
Services:  
 
 The Incline Village General Improvement District (IVGID) agrees to purchase a Dionex Integrion 

RFIC System, comprised of each and all of the following components: 
 

Part Number Description Price Quoted 

22153-60303 

Integrion, RFIC, DEGAS, Oven. Full Integrion system, including 
HPIC Pump, 6-port injection valve, 25 L injection loop, 2 L 
eluent bottle, one electrolytic power outlet (for suppressor), low-
pressure eluent degasser, high pressure RFIC-EG degasser, and an 
additional two electrolytic power outlets (for eluent generation). 

$44,100.00 

068907 AS-DV Autosampler $10,600 
7350.0104A CM License Code: New $.01 
7100.0108 Chromeleon Single Edition $4,600.00 
7200.0850-ICSP PC, XE4, 2x512SSD, 32GB, i7, W10, RoHS $2,480.00 
071664 Monitor, Dell, 24”, RoHS $554.00 
960708 Cable, 3-cond., line cord, US, RoHS (Qty. 2) $27.80 
038677 Service, Install, Appl., DX-SPRT, Day $.01 

22153-62038 

Prod. VLV, 3-Way, Pump, ITGN. This option replaces the 
Integrion eluent shutoff valve with a 3-way valve, giving the 
ability to switch eluent sources. However, the eluent shutoff 
ability is removed 

$666.00 

702-026102 2-day IC Course at TI Location $6,600.00 

075778 Dionex™ EGC 500 KOH Potassium Hydroxide Eluent Generator 
Cartridge $2,000.00 

088662 
Dionex CR-ATC 600 Continuously Regenerated Anion Trap 
Column for 
Consumables Tracking enabled systems 

$1,480.00 

Continued… 

Page 229 of 257



Part No. Description Price Quoted 

083223 

COL,IP,AS19,4UM,2X250MM. The Dionex IonPac AS19-4 m 
column is a high-capacity, hydroxide-selective column for 
determination of oxyhalides and inorganic anions in diverse matrices. 
It meets or exceeds the requirements specified in U.S. EPA Methods 
300.0 (B) and 300.1 (B). 

$1,810.00 

083225 
COL,IP,AG19,4UM,2X50MM. The Dionex IonPac AG19-4 m 
guard column is optimized for use with the Dionex IonPac AS19-
4 m column. 

$593.00 

08667CMD ADRS600, 2MM, CMD $1,350.00 
062986 Dionex™ CRD 200 (2 mm) Carbonate Removal Device $1,100.00 

038141 PolyVials and Filter Caps (20 m), 250 each, for 5.0 mL vials (Qty. 
2) $272.00 

303173 PRD, RGNT, STD, NINE ANION, 50 ML $264.00 
701-086201 YEAR 2 AND 3 IC/SP PARTS ONLY WARRANTY (Qty. 2) $.02 

701-055805 

Yr 2 or 3 Extended Warranty - Integrion RFIC, no Detector (Qty. 2) 
 Quantity 1 provides coverage for year 2 only. Quantity 2 provides 

coverage for years 2 and 3. 
 On-site corrective maintenance visits including labor and travel 

with a target of three 
 (3) business day on-site response time (see note) 
 Annual Preventive Maintenance visit and a standard Preventive 

Maintenance Kit 
 Priority status for technical support telephone inquires 
 10% Loyalty discount on parts, accessories, and consumables 

(may not be available in all regions) 
Note: Parts are covered by Factory Warranty 

$11,896.00 

701-016800 

Yr 2 or 3 Extended Warranty - AS-DV for 5.0ml vials (Qty. 2) 
 Quantity 1 provides coverage for year 2 only. Quantity 2 provides 

coverage for years 2 and 3. 
 On-site corrective maintenance visits including labor and travel 

with a target of three (3) business day on-site response time (see 
note) 

 Annual Preventive Maintenance visit and a standard Preventive 
Maintenance Kit 

 Priority status for technical support telephone inquires 
 10% Loyalty discount on parts, accessories, and consumables 

(may not be available in all regions) 
Note: Parts are covered by Factory Warranty 

$2,204.00 

Dionex Integrion RFIC System Subtotal: $92,606.84 
Dionex Integrion RFIC System Discount: -$12,930,78 

Dionex Integrion RFIC System Total: $79,676.06 
Shipping $696.00 

Total Package: $80,372.06 
 
  

Page 230 of 257



 
OWNER:  
INCLINE VILLAGE G. I. D. 

 CONTRACTOR:   
 

Agreed to:  Agreed to: 

 
By: 

  
By: 

Bobby Magee 
General Manager  

 Signature of Authorized Agent 

 
 Print or Type Name and Title 

Date 

Reviewed as to Form: 
 Date 

 
 

  

Sergio Rudin 
District General Counsel 

  

   

Date 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Note:  If you are purchasing analytical instruments such as chromatography, mass 
spectrometry, trace elemental analysis and/or lab automation products and related services 
from Thermo Electron North America LLC, whose name would appear on your order 
documents as the Seller, and your quotation for these products and services contains a link to 
Terms and Conditions of Sale for Products and Services, these are the terms apply to your 
order. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE FOR PRODUCTS 
AND SERVICES  
1. GENERAL.  ("Seller") hereby offers for sale to the buyer named on the face hereof ("Buyer") 
the products ("Products") and/or annual support plans (“Support Plan(s)”) and billable services 
(“Technical Support”) [Support Plans and Technical Support may be referred to collectively as 
“Services”] as listed on the face hereof on the express condition that Buyer agrees to accept and 
be bound by the terms and conditions set forth herein (“Agreement”).  Any new or different 
provisions contained in any document issued by Buyer in response to this offer are expressly 
rejected; and if Buyer’s response is deemed to be an offer, this document is a rejection of 
Buyer’s offer and a counter offer by Seller and shall not constitute acceptance of any proposal by 
Buyer.  Buyer’s receipt of Products or Seller’s commencement of Services hereunder will 
constitute Buyer’s acceptance of this Agreement. This is the final, complete and exclusive 
statement of the contract between Seller and Buyer with respect to Buyer's purchase of Products 

Page 231 of 257

Kadija 
Locklear

Digitally signed 
by Kadija 
Locklear 
Date: 2024.04.09 
08:51:17 -04'00'



and Services specified herein, which terms may not be altered in any way by Buyer’s purchase 
order terms.  No waiver, consent, modification, amendment or change of the terms contained 
herein shall be binding upon Seller unless agreed in writing and signed by Seller.  Seller's failure 
to object to additional or different terms contained in any subsequent communication from Buyer 
will not be a waiver or modification of the terms set forth herein and all such proposals contained 
in Buyer’s order are subject to acceptance in writing by an authorized representative of Seller. 

2. PRICE.  All prices published by Seller or Seller's representatives may be changed at any time 
without notice.  All prices quoted by Seller or Seller’s representatives are valid for thirty (30) 
days, unless otherwise stated in writing.  All prices for the Products or Services will be as 
specified by Seller and as set forth in Exhibit A, Sales Quotation, incorporated herein and made a 
part hereof by this reference; or, if no price has been specified or quoted, will be Seller's standard 
prices in effect at the time of shipment of Products or delivery of Services.  All prices are subject 
to adjustment on account of specifications, quantities, raw materials, cost of production, 
shipment arrangements or other terms or conditions that are not part of Seller's original 
quotation.  Unless otherwise stated in the quotation, the quoted rate for Technical Support 
includes Work Time, Travel Time and Standby Time in accordance with the following schedule 
and conditions; except that Technical Support requested without at least seven (7) days advanced 
notification shall be subject to airfare charges in addition to the Standard Rate.  

(a)  Work Time – shall include all hours that Seller’s service personnel are on the Buyer’s 
job site, either working or ready for work and shall be payable at the applicable specified 
rates. 

(b)  Travel Time – shall include the time spent by Seller’s service personnel in traveling 
between their customary headquarters and the Buyer’s job site and in returning (including 
travel occurring on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays).  Except as otherwise stated in the 
Services quotation, Travel Time will be invoiced per diem at the applicable Travel Zone rates 
in Seller’s standard service list prices.  Air travel and car hire related expenses will be 
charged in addition to the daily rate at cost plus a 10% administration fee. 

(c)  Standby Time – shall include the time that Seller agrees in writing, at its sole 
discretion, to reserve its service personnel to be ready to perform work for the Buyer, 
whether on the job site or not, up to a maximum of 8 hours a day, between the hours of 8:00 
a.m. and 5:00 p.m., local standard time on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays.  Standby Time 
shall be paid for at the special rates quoted by Seller at the time of Buyer’s request or, if 
none, at the current Double Time Rate; and Standby Time preceded and/or followed by Work 
Time is cumulative in determining Overtime.    

(d)  Standard Rate – the Service rate quoted by Seller that shall be paid for time worked 
on a regular schedule of eight (8) hours per day, Monday through Friday (excluding Seller’s 
holidays), between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. local standard time. 

(e)  Overtime Rate – if applicable for the quoted Services, the rate of one and a half times 
the Standard Rate shall be paid for any time worked in excess of eight (8) hours or between 
the hours of 5:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. local standard time; but not exceeding sixteen (16) hours 

Page 232 of 257



per day, Monday through Friday, and for any time on Saturdays, not to exceed sixteen (16) 
hours. Overtime shall be billed in 30 minute blocks; or longer time blocks, if quoted by the 
Supplier. 

(f)  Double Time Rate – the rate of twice the Standard Rate shall be paid for time worked 
in excess of sixteen (16) hours per day, without a six (6) hour break, Monday through Friday, 
and for all time on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays.  Holidays shall be those observed by 
Seller. 

3. TAXES AND OTHER CHARGES.   Prices for the Products and Services exclude all sales, 
use, value added and other taxes and duties imposed with respect to the sale, delivery, or use of 
any Products or Services covered hereby, all of which taxes and duties must be paid by Buyer.  If 
Buyer claims any exemption, Buyer must provide a valid, signed certificate or letter of 
exemption for each respective jurisdiction. 

4. TERMS OF PAYMENT.   Seller may invoice Buyer immediately for the single lump sum 
amount equal to the total charges for the initial Term of a Support Plan, upon shipment of 
Products or upon completion of Technical Support for the price and all other charges payable by 
Buyer in accordance with the terms on the face hereof.  If no payment terms are stated on the 
face hereof, payment shall be net thirty (30) days from the date of invoice.  International 
Technical Support may require payment in advance. If Buyer fails to pay any amounts when due, 
Buyer shall pay Seller interest thereon at the greater of a periodic rate of one and one-half 
percent (1.5%) per month or the highest rate stipulated by applicable law, together with all costs 
and expenses (including without limitation reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements and 
court costs) incurred by Seller in collecting such overdue amounts or otherwise enforcing Seller's 
rights hereunder.  Seller reserves the right to require from Buyer full or partial payment in 
advance, or other security that is satisfactory to Seller, at any time that Seller believes in good 
faith that Buyer's financial condition does not justify the terms of payment specified.  All 
payments shall be made in U.S. Dollars unless otherwise specified in Seller’s invoice.  

5.A. PRODUCT DELIVERY. All Products will be shipped to the destination specified by Buyer, 
FCA (INCOTERMS 2010) at OEM shipping point or Seller’s distribution facility, as applicable, 
which will vary depending on Product type and availability and may include points outside the 
United States (U.S.) (inquire for specific shipping point information).  Notwithstanding specified 
INCOTERMS, Seller shall select carrier on Buyer’s behalf and Seller agrees to arrange 
transportation of Products to Buyer’s destination, and to act as the importer of record on behalf 
of Buyer to clear the Products through U.S. customs.   All freight, taxes, duties and insurance, if 
any, charges shall be prepaid and added to Buyer’s invoice. Seller may, at its election, make 
partial shipments of the Products and invoice each shipment separately.  Seller reserves the right 
to withhold shipments in whole or in part and/or terminate any Services, if Buyer fails to make 
any payment to Seller when due or otherwise fails to perform its obligations hereunder.  Seller’s 
termination of Services will not relieve Buyer’s obligation to pay all amounts due for Services 
provided by Seller prior to the termination date.  All shipping dates are approximate only, and 
Seller will not be liable for any loss or damage resulting from any delay in delivery or failure to 
deliver which is due to any cause beyond Seller's reasonable control.  In the event of a delay due 
to any cause beyond Seller's reasonable control, Seller reserves the right to terminate the order or 

Page 233 of 257



to reschedule the shipment within a reasonable period of time, and Buyer will not be entitled to 
refuse delivery or otherwise be relieved of any obligations as the result of such delay.  

5. B. CANCELLATION OR CHANGES BY BUYER If Buyer requests that Seller delay 
delivery of Products for any reason, Seller may place Products in storage at Buyer's risk and 
expense and for Buyer's account.  Orders in process may be cancelled only with Seller's written 
consent and upon payment of Seller's cancellation charges.  Orders in process may not be 
changed except with Seller's written consent and upon agreement by the parties as to an 
appropriate adjustment in the purchase price therefore.  Credit will not be allowed for Products 
returned without the prior written consent of Seller.  Before returning any item, contact Seller's 
Order Administration Department for a Return Material Authorization (RMA) number at . Buyer 
may need to complete an RMA Form which includes a Hazard Free Form and/or Instrument 
Contamination Data Form.  If authorized by Seller, Buyer must return items to Seller in their 
original or equivalent packaging, prepay shipping charges, and insure the shipment or accept the 
risk if the item is lost or damaged in shipment. In addition, Seller reserves the right to charge the 
Buyer the list price for missing components or subassemblies when incomplete items are 
returned to Seller.  Authorized returns of any unused items which are free from material defects 
to Seller, in its sole discretion, may be subject to a twenty percent (20%) restocking charge. 

Requests by Buyer to delay, postpone or suspend on-site Services, due to no fault of Seller, shall 
be subject to Seller’s ability to recall its service representatives and to cancel and/or reschedule 
of any of their travel arrangements; and provided that, Buyer pays any and all additional costs 
(including, Travel Time and expenses) incurred by Seller as a result of the Services being 
postponed or suspended by Buyer. Cancellation of scheduled Services may be subject to a 
cancellation fee of twenty percent (20%) if Seller is notified less than 7 business days prior to the 
scheduled date of service. 

6. DELIVERY OF SERVICES.  Except as otherwise stated on the face hereof, all Services will 
be provided by Seller or its agent between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. local standard 
time, Monday through Friday, excluding Seller’s holidays, either at Seller’s principal offices or, 
at Seller’s option, at Buyer’s installation address.  If Seller advises Buyer that Services should be 
performed at Seller’s facility, Buyer will properly package the Products to prevent damage, 
clearly mark the RMA number on the outer packaging, and ship it, via postage/freight prepaid, to 
the address set forth on the face hereof or such different address as Seller may from time to time 
provide to Buyer. After Seller completes the Services, or has made a determination that the 
products are beyond repair, Seller may, at its option, either advise Buyer to scrap the Products or 
to have the Products shipped, postage/freight prepaid, back to Buyer’s installation address stated 
on the quotation, or to such other address as Buyer requests.  In the event Buyer requires 
expedited delivery, such delivery will be made at Buyer’s expense.  If Seller advises Buyer that 
Services should be performed at Buyer’s site, Buyer will use its best efforts to provide Seller 
with all requested diagnostic information for any products requiring Services; and subject to 
compliance with Buyer’s reasonable security requirements, will allow Seller free access to all 
relevant equipment, documentation and records.  In addition, Buyer will cooperate with Seller’s 
efforts to perform the Services and will provide such additional assistance as Seller may 
reasonably request.  At the completion of the Services, Seller’s representatives will provide 
Buyer with a field service report on which will be indicated the number of hours spent and the 

Page 234 of 257



materials used in completing the work.  Buyer’s signature on the field service report will signify 
approval of the information in the report and Seller’s satisfactory completion of the Services.  If 
Buyer does not sign the report or provide written objection within five (5) business days after 
receipt, then the report will be deemed unequivocally approved and accepted by Buyer. 

7. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  Notwithstanding the transport terms indicated above, title to 
and risk of loss of the Products will pass to Buyer when the Products are transferred to Buyer at 
Buyer’s facility; provided, however, that title to any software incorporated within or forming a 
part of the Products will at all times remain with Seller or the licensor(s) thereof, as the case may 
be.  All risk of loss or damage to Buyer’s products being transported for Services shall remain 
with Seller during shipment to and from the Buyer’s site and during Seller’s performance of 
Services hereunder. 

8. WARRANTIES.  Seller’s sole obligation with respect to the Services is to provide the quoted 
Services in a workmanlike manner and if Buyer provides notice of defect in Service within 
ninety (90) days of completion of such Services, Seller will, at its sole option, either reperform 
the Services without charge to Buyer or grant Buyer a credit for the amount paid by Buyer with 
respect to such Service.  Seller warrants that the Products will operate or perform substantially in 
conformance with Seller's published specifications and be free from defects in material and 
workmanship, when subjected to normal, proper and intended usage by properly trained 
personnel, for the period of time set forth in the Product documentation, published specifications 
or package inserts (the "Warranty Period").  If a Warranty Period is not specified in Seller’s 
Product documentation, published specifications, or package inserts, the Warranty Period for 
new instruments is twelve (12) months from the date of shipment to Buyer; and for all other 
Products is ninety (90) days from the date of shipment.  During the Warranty Period, Seller 
agrees to repair or replace, at Seller's option, defective Products so as to cause the same to 
operate in substantial conformance with Seller’s published specifications; provided that Buyer 
(a) promptly notifies Seller in writing upon the discovery of any covered defect in the Products, 
including the Product model and serial number (if applicable) and details of the warranty claim; 
and (b) after Seller’s review, Seller will provide Buyer with an RMA number and services data, 
which may include biohazard decontamination procedures and other Product-specific handling 
instructions. Then, if applicable, Buyer may return the defective Products to Seller with all costs 
prepaid by Buyer.  Replacement parts may be new or refurbished, at the election of Seller.  All 
replaced parts shall become the property of Seller.  Shipment to Buyer of repaired or replacement 
Products will be made in accordance with the Delivery clause of this Agreement.   Except for 
new consumable items manufactured and sold by Seller, this warranty expressly excludes all 
other consumable parts or components (e.g., bulbs, belts, cartridges, etc.) in the Products. If 
Seller elects to repair defective medical device instruments, Seller may, in its sole discretion, 
provide a replacement loaner instrument to Buyer as necessary for use while the instruments are 
being repaired. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Products supplied by Seller that are obtained by Seller from an 
original manufacturer or third party supplier are not warranted by Seller; but Seller agrees to 
assign to Buyer any warranty rights in such Product that Seller may have from the original 
manufacturer or third party supplier, to the extent such assignment is allowed by such original 
manufacturer or third party supplier. 

Page 235 of 257



In no event shall Seller have any obligation to make repairs, replacements or corrections under 
the Warranty, in whole or in part, as the result of or with respect to: (a) use of the Products in a 
manner for which they were not designed; (b) improper storage and handling of the Products; (c) 
use of the Products in combination with equipment or software not supplied by Seller (d) 
shipping damage incurred en route to Buyer’s site or because of moving equipment, in which 
case Seller will promptly provide a cost estimate for Technical Support to the consignee for 
filing claims to carriers for shipping damage; (e) flood, lightning,  earthquake, tornado, hurricane 
or fire, bombing, armed conflict, malicious mischief, sabotage or other natural or man-made 
disasters; (f) normal wear and tear, physical abuse, misuse, sprinkler damage, electrical surge or 
abnormal power variation; (g) repairs, maintenance, or modifications made by anyone other than 
Seller trained personnel or without Seller’s supervision and/or approval; (h) relocation and 
reinstallation of equipment; although upon request Seller will supervise the removing, crating, 
relocation and reinstallation of the Products at Seller’s current Services rates; (i) maintenance or 
replacement of media (i.e., floppy disks, plotter supplies, etc.) whatever the reason for loss, 
failure or damage; (j) beta-site support; (k) operator training; or (l) repairing Product 
malfunctions if the fault is not with the equipment.  If Seller determines that Products for which 
Buyer requested warranty services are not covered by this warranty, Buyer will pay or reimburse 
Seller for all costs of investigating and responding to such request at Seller's then prevailing time 
and materials rates.  If Seller provides Services or replacement parts that are not covered by this 
warranty, Buyer shall pay Seller therefore at Seller's then prevailing time and materials rates.  

ANY INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, SERVICE, RELOCATION OR 
ALTERATION TO OR OF, OR OTHER TAMPERING WITH, THE PRODUCTS 
PERFORMED BY ANY PERSON OR ENTITY OTHER THAN SELLER WITHOUT 
SELLER'S PRIOR WRITTEN APPROVAL, OR ANY USE OF REPLACEMENT PARTS 
NOT SUPPLIED BY SELLER, SHALL IMMEDIATELY VOID AND CANCEL ALL 
WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE AFFECTED PRODUCTS AND/OR 
SERVICES.  THE OBLIGATIONS CREATED BY THIS WARRANTY STATEMENT FOR 
SELLER TO REPAIR OR REPLACE A DEFECTIVE PRODUCT OR TO REPERFORM OR 
CREDIT THE PRICE OF DEFECTIVE SERVICES SHALL BE THE SOLE REMEDY OF 
BUYER FOR SUCH DEFECTIVE PRODUCTS OR SERVICES UNDER THIS 
AGREEMENT.  EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED IN THIS  WARRANTY 
STATEMENT, SELLER DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS 
OR IMPLIED, ORAL OR WRITTEN, WITH RESPECT TO THE PRODUCTS, INCLUDING 
WITHOUT LIMITATION ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, 
FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR NONINFRINGEMENT.  SELLER DOES 
NOT WARRANT THAT THE PRODUCTS OR SERVICES ARE ERROR-FREE OR WILL 
ACCOMPLISH ANY PARTICULAR RESULT. 

9. INDEMNIFICATION. 

9.1 By Seller.   Seller will indemnify, defend and save Buyer, its officers, directors, and 
employees from and against any and all damages, liabilities, actions, causes of action, suits, 
claims, demands, losses, costs and expenses (including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ 
fees) (“Indemnified Items”) asserted by another party against Buyer for (i) bodily injury to or 
death of persons or damage to tangible property to the extent caused by the negligence or willful 

Page 236 of 257



misconduct of Seller, its employees, agents or representatives or contractors in connection with 
the performance of Services at Buyer’s premises under this Agreement; and (ii) claims that a 
Product infringes any U.S. patent, copyright or trade secret; provided, however, Seller’s liability 
under this Section does not extend to any such Indemnified Items caused by either (u) the 
negligence or willful misconduct of Buyer, its employees, agents or representatives or 
contractors, (v) by any third party, (w) use of a Product in combination with equipment or 
software not supplied by Seller where the Product alone would not be infringing, (x) Seller’s 
compliance with Buyer's designs, specifications or instructions, (y) use of the Product in an 
application or environment for which it was not designed, or (z) modifications of the Product by 
anyone other than Seller without Seller's prior written approval.  Buyer will promptly notify 
Seller in writing of any claim covered by Seller’s indemnification obligations hereunder.  Seller 
may assume exclusive control of the defense of such claim or, at the option of the Seller, to settle 
the same.  Buyer agrees to cooperate reasonably with Seller in connection with the performance 
by Seller of its obligations in this Section. 

Notwithstanding the above, Seller’s infringement related indemnification obligations shall be 
extinguished and relieved if Seller, at its discretion and at its own expense (a) procures for Buyer 
the right, at no additional expense to Buyer, to continue using the Product; (b) replaces or 
modifies the Product so that it becomes non-infringing, provided the modification or replacement 
does not adversely affect the specifications of the Product; or (c) in the event (a) and (b) are not 
practical, refund to Buyer the amortized amounts paid by Buyer with respect thereto, based on a 
five (5) year amortization schedule.  THE FOREGOING INDEMNIFICATION PROVISION 
STATES SELLER'S ENTIRE LIABILITY TO BUYER FOR, AND BUYER’S SOLE AND 
EXCLUSIVE REMEDY IN RESPECT OF, THE CLAIMS DESCRIBED HEREIN. 

10. SOFTWARE.   With respect to any software products incorporated in or forming a part of 
the Products hereunder (i.e., firmware), Seller and Buyer intend and agree that such software 
products are being licensed and not sold, and that the words "purchase", "sell" or similar or 
derivative words are understood and agreed to mean "license", and that the word "Buyer" or 
similar or derivative words are understood and agreed to mean "licensee".  Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary contained herein, Seller or its licensor, as the case may be, retains all 
rights and interest in software products provided hereunder.  Seller hereby grants to Buyer a 
royalty-free, non-exclusive, nontransferable license, without power to sublicense, to use software 
licensed hereunder solely for Buyer's own internal business purposes on its hardware Products 
and to use the related documentation solely for Buyer's own internal business purposes.  This 
license terminates when Buyer's lawful possession of the hardware Products provided hereunder 
ceases, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  Buyer agrees to hold in confidence and not 
to sell, transfer, license, loan or otherwise make available in any form to third parties the 
software products and related documentation provided hereunder.  Buyer may not disassemble, 
decompile or reverse engineer, copy, modify, enhance or otherwise change or supplement the 
software products provided hereunder without Seller's prior written consent.  Seller will be 
entitled to terminate this license if Buyer fails to comply with any term or condition 
herein.  Buyer agrees, upon termination of this license, to immediately stop using all software 
products and related documentation provided hereunder and all copies and portions thereof. 

Page 237 of 257



Certain of the software products provided by Seller may be owned by one or more third parties 
and licensed to Seller or may be stand-alone software products, which Buyer hereby agrees are 
subject to a separate browse-wrap, shrink-wrap or click-thru end user license agreement 
(EULA).  Accordingly, the warranty and indemnification provisions herein do not apply to such 
software, which are exclusively provided in the applicable EULA. 

11. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.   NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE 
CONTRARY CONTAINED HEREIN, THE LIABILITY OF SELLER UNDER THESE 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS (WHETHER BY REASON OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, 
TORT, INDEMNIFICATION, OR OTHERWISE, BUT EXCLUDING LIABILITY OF 
SELLER FOR BREACH OF WARRANTY (THE SOLE REMEDY FOR WHICH IS 
PROVIDED UNDER THE PRODUCT AND SERVICES WARRANTIES HEREIN) SHALL 
NOT EXCEED AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO THE LESSER OF (A) 1.5 TIMES THE TOTAL 
PURCHASE PRICE THERETOFORE PAID BY BUYER TO SELLER WITH RESPECT TO 
THE PRODUCT(S) OR SERVICES GIVING RISE TO SUCH LIABILITY OR (B) ONE 
MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000).  NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE 
CONTRARY CONTAINED HEREIN, IN NO EVENT SHALL SELLER BE LIABLE FOR 
ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES 
(INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF USE OF FACILITIES 
OR EQUIPMENT, LOSS OF REVENUE, LOSS OF DATA, LOSS OF PROFITS OR LOSS OF 
GOODWILL), REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SELLER (a) HAS BEEN INFORMED OF THE 
POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES OR (b) IS NEGLIGENT. 

12. EXPORT RESTRICTIONS. Buyer acknowledges that each Product and any related services, 
software and technology, including technical information supplied by Seller or contained in 
documents (collectively “Items”), may be subject to export controls of the U.S. government 
and/or other governments.  Such export controls may include, but are not limited to, the Export 
Administration Regulations of the U.S. Department of Commerce (the “EAR”), which may 
restrict or require licenses for the export of Items from the U.S. and their re-export from other 
countries and all other applicable laws, regulations, laws, treaties, and agreements relating to the 
export, re-export, and import of any Item.  Buyer shall not export, re-export, distribute or supply 
any Item, directly or indirectly, to (i) any country, person or entity, in each case, without first 
obtaining from the U.S. government and/or other appropriate government agency any license 
required to do so lawfully; (ii) any person or organization in Cuba, Iran, North Korea, Sudan, 
Syria, or other country then the subject of a U.S. embargo, or any person or entity considered a 
part of the government of any such country; or (iii) any person or entity who is involved in 
improper development or use of nuclear weapons, or  of chemical/biological weapons (CBW) or 
missiles, or in terrorist activities.  Buyer shall cooperate fully with Seller in any official or 
unofficial audit or inspection related to applicable export or import control laws or regulations, 
and shall indemnify and hold Seller harmless from, or in connection with, any violation of this 
Section by Buyer or its employees, consultants, agents and/or representatives. 

13. SUPPORT PLAN TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 

A. General.  In the event Buyer purchases a Support Plan from Seller under this Agreement, 
Seller agrees to maintain and/or repair those Products or instruments identified on the face hereof 

Page 238 of 257



as covered under a Support Plan ("Covered Equipment") in a manner consistent with the 
specifications and entitlements included in the purchased Support Plan as specified by Seller on 
the face hereof, which may include various levels of service at the Buyer’s site(s) and/or Seller’s 
Depot Repair locations and are purchased separate from the original Product Warranty above 
(the "Support Service(s)").  The Support Services will only be valid for Covered Equipment 
within , Monday through Friday (excluding Seller’s holidays) during the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m. local standard time ("Normal Hours") during the term of the Agreement. The Covered 
Equipment must be operated according to the manufacturer's supplied instructions, including 
without limitation the Operator's Manual(s) and any malfunction must be promptly reported to 
Seller. Support Service calls requested outside of Normal Hours or for any non-Covered 
Equipment or for services not included in the Support Plan will be billed at Seller’s standard 
rates for Technical Support in effect at the time of Buyer’s request. Seller reserves the exclusive 
right to determine the assignment of its employees in the performance of Support Services. 

B. Term. (a) The Support Plan will begin and remain effective for the period of time stated 
on the face hereof ("Term"). To renew the Support Plan, Buyer must sign a Renewal Service 
Agreement accompanied by a purchase order prior to the expiration of the current Term 
("Renewal"), which shall also be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Either 
party may terminate a Support Plan for any/no reason by providing at least thirty (30) days 
written notice to the other party. Seller will use commercially reasonable efforts to stop work and 
to incur no additional expenses.  Regardless, if a Support Plan is cancelled, Seller will charge 
Buyer for the total price of Services actually performed and expenses actually and reasonably 
incurred in servicing the covered equipment under the underlying Support Plan from its effective 
date until the cancellation date or the prorated price of the underlying Support Plan from its 
effective date until the cancellation date, whichever is greater, plus fifteen percent (15%) of the 
total fee paid for the underlying Support Plan. In the event Buyer prepaid the Support Plan fees 
in full and a credit balance exists for the underlying Support Plan, Seller will provide a credit or 
refund the amount remaining to Buyer. 

C. Pricing and Pricing Assumptions.  Except as otherwise agreed in writing, the annual 
charge for each Renewal will be Thermo Fisher's standard support plan rates in effect at the start 
of the Renewal.  All Support Plan pricing is based on the assumption that the Covered 
Equipment operates in accordance with product specifications as of the coverage start date; 
therefore, prior to the start of each Term and Renewal, Seller reserves the right to verify and 
correct the condition of the Covered Equipment and invoice Buyer at Seller’s current billable 
rates for any Support Services deemed reasonably necessary to bring the Covered Equipment 
into good operating condition. Notwithstanding the above, Seller agrees to waive its right to bill 
the Buyer for bringing the Covered Equipment into good operating condition if there is no lapse 
between the end date of the current Support Plan Term and the beginning of any Renewal. 

D. Parts and Consumables: The Support Plan level defines when and if the cost of parts is 
included under the Support Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the cost for parts that are 
consumed in the normal and usual operation of the Covered Equipment including, but not limited 
to, sample preparation and analysis, consumables, paper, ink cartridges, ribbons, pens, lamps 
and/or data media are not covered under any Support Plan. 

Page 239 of 257



E. Key Operator: Buyer will designate a key operator of Covered Equipment who can 
describe instrument malfunctions to Seller’s service representatives by telephone and who is 
qualified to perform simple adjustments and corrections to the Covered Equipment as requested 
by Seller’s service representatives.  Buyer’s failure to designate a key operator or to perform or 
to have an authorized representative perform the routine maintenance specified in the Covered 
Equipment’s instructions or Owner’s Manual may result, at Seller’s option, in Buyer being 
invoiced at Seller’s standard Technical Support rates to provide such non-covered services. 

F. Equipment Modification: Seller reserves the right to make any changes in the design or 
construction of Seller’s Products without incurring any obligation to make any updates or 
changes whatsoever in the Covered Equipment under the Support Plan. Buyer agrees to allow 
Seller, at its expense and option, to make retrofits or design changes which improve product 
reliability, but do not change its performance characteristics.  Any Buyer requests to modify or 
add devices or accessories to Covered Equipment that are not manufactured by Seller are outside 
the scope of the Support Plans and covered Support Services. 

G. Support Services Warranty: Seller’s sole obligation under any Support Plan is to provide 
the Support Services in a workmanlike manner in accordance with the entitlements of the 
Support Plan purchased by Buyer hereunder. SELLER MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTIES 
FOR SUPPORT SERVICES PROVIDED UNDER A SUPPORT PLAN, EXPRESS OR 
IMPLIED, AND DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, 
IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE AND ANY OTHER OBLIGATIONS OR LIABILITIES WHETHER IN 
CONTRACT, WARRANTY, NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE. 

H. Support Plan Exclusions: The following occurrences are not covered by any Support Plan 
purchased by Buyer from Seller under this Agreement: 

(a) Covered Equipment malfunctions caused by any of the following abnormal 
conditions; and if Seller performs Support Services as a result thereof, Seller will invoice 
Buyer at Seller’s standard billable rates for service, travel or move, labor and parts: (i) 
Shipping damage incurred en route to Buyer’s site or any subsequent transport 
thereafter;  (ii)  Force Majeure events, including for example, floods, lightning, earthquake, 
tornado, hurricane or fire, bombing, terrorism, armed conflict, malicious mischief, sabotage 
or other such natural or manmade disasters;  (iii) Physical abuse, misuse, sprinkler damage, 
electrical surge or abnormal power variation;  (iv) Repairs, maintenance, or modifications 
made by anyone other than Seller’s trained personnel or without Seller’s supervision and/or 
approval; and (v) Relocation and reinstallation of Covered Equipment are not covered under 
the Support Plan; however, upon request Seller, will supervise the removing, crating, 
relocation and reinstallation of its products at Seller’s standard billable rates for service, 
travel or move, labor and parts. 

(b) Maintenance or replacement of media (i.e., floppy disks, printer supplies, etc.) 
whatever the reason for loss, failure or damage; 

Page 240 of 257



(c)  Servicing of material or instruments manufactured by anyone other than Seller, 
including third-party material or instruments purchased for engineering specials; 

(d)  Beta-site support; 

(e)  Service calls made to train operators; and/or 

(f) Service calls made as a result of Buyer-identified areas of responsibility, i.e. 
malfunctions related to Buyer’s site conditions, utilities and/or facilities (power, water, 
temperature, humidity, vibration, dust, etc.) or site computer/data network problems or 
integrity. 

I. Buyer Responsibilities: Buyer will give Seller’s personnel reasonable access to the 
Covered Equipment whenever Support Service is required. Buyer will cooperate with Seller’s 
personnel so that Support Services can be performed efficiently and without interruption. Buyer 
will permit Seller to use of Buyer’s equipment, including Covered Equipment, that Seller’s 
personnel deem necessary to perform the Support Services. Buyer is solely responsible for the 
procurement, installation, maintenance and fees associated with all third party communication 
equipment and media as needed for the performance of Support Service under the Support Plan 
including, but not limited to, telephone and equipment for remote transmission of data. 

14. INSURANCE. For the Term of a Support Plan and/or for the provision of on-site Services 
purchased hereunder, as applicable, Seller agrees to maintain and carry liability insurance in 
amounts set forth below with insurance companies rated B+ or better by “BEST” rating 
services.  Insurance includes (a) commercial general liability insurance for a limit of 
US$2,000,000 (two million) for each occurrence and US$4,000,000 (four million) in the 
aggregate, (b) Statutory workers’ compensation and employer’s liability insurance for a limit of 
US$1,000,000 (one million), (c) Automobile liability of US$2,000,000 (two million) and (d) 
Umbrella coverage of US$5,000,000 (five million).  Seller will include a waiver of subrogation, 
except this waiver shall not extend to claims of Buyer negligence or willful misconduct.  Upon 
request from Buyer related to applicable Services, Seller will provide to Buyer a certificate of 
insurance using the standard ACORD form to evidence the insurance coverage required herein. 

15. MEDICARE/MEDICAID REPORTING REQUIREMENTS.  If Buyer is a recipient of 
Medicare/Medicaid funds, Buyer acknowledges that it has been informed of and agrees to fully 
and accurately account for, and report on its applicable cost report, the total value of any 
discount, rebate or other compensation paid hereunder in a way that complies with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws and regulations which establish ‘Safe Harbor” for discounts.  Buyer 
may make written request for additional information from Seller as needed to satisfy Buyer’s 
reporting requirements.  Buyer acknowledges that agreement to such reporting requirement was 
a condition precedent to Seller’s agreement to provide Products and that Seller would not have 
entered into this Agreement had Buyer not agreed to comply with such obligations. 

16. MISCELLANEOUS.  (a) Buyer may not delegate any duties or assign any rights or claims 
hereunder without Seller's prior written consent, and any such attempted delegation or 
assignment shall be void. (b) The rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall be 

Page 241 of 257



governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada, U.S.A. without 
reference to its choice of law provisions.  Each party hereby irrevocably consents to the 
exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts located in the County of Washoe, Nevada 
U.S.A. for any action arising out of or relating to this Agreement. Each party hereby waives any 
other venue to which it may be entitled by domicile or otherwise.  (c) In the event of any legal 
proceeding between the Seller and Buyer relating to this Agreement, neither party may claim the 
right to a trial by jury, and both parties waive any right they may have under applicable law or 
otherwise to a right to a trial by jury. Any action arising under this Agreement must be brought 
within one (1) year from the date that the cause of action arose.  (d) In the event that any one or 
more provisions contained herein shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, 
illegal or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining 
provisions contained herein shall remain in full force and effect, unless the revision materially 
changes the bargain.  (e) Seller's failure to enforce, or Seller's waiver of a breach of, any 
provision contained herein shall not constitute a waiver of any other breach or of such 
provision.  (f) Unless otherwise expressly stated on the Product or in the documentation 
accompanying the Product, software and/or Services, they are not approved medical devices and 
are intended by Seller to be for “Research Use Only” as defined by the U.S. Food and Drug 
Administration regulations and is not to be used for any illegal or unapproved regulatory 
purposes, including without limitation, in vitro diagnostic uses, ex vivo or in vivo therapeutic 
uses, or any type of consumption by or application to humans or animals.  (g) Seller agrees not to 
knowingly disclose any confidential information or data obtained by it during the performance of 
Services when such information or data is clearly identified in writing by Buyer as confidential. 
Buyer agrees that all pricing, discounts and technical information that Seller provides to Buyer 
are the confidential and proprietary information of Seller, except to the extent necessary to 
comply with Buyer’s legal obligations as a public agency. The parties agree to keep such 
information confidential and not disclose each other’s confidential information to any third party 
for one (1) year hereafter, and to use such information solely for Buyer’s internal purposes and in 
connection with the Products supplied hereunder.  Nothing herein shall restrict the use of 
information available to the general public. (h) Any notice or communication required or 
permitted hereunder must be in writing and shall be deemed received when personally delivered, 
upon delivery by any internationally recognized carrier such as Federal Express or similar 
overnight delivery service, or three (3) business days after being sent by certified mail, postage 
prepaid, to a party at the address specified herein or at such other address as either party may 
from time to time designate to the other. (i) Seller may, in its sole discretion, provide (I) 
applicable Product training to Buyer or its employees, or (II) samples of Products to Buyer for 
distribution to patients of Buyer.  Buyer agrees to distribute any such samples to patients for 
patient use or, if not so distributed, to return them to Seller.  Buyer may not use the samples to 
provide care to patients and must not bill any patients or third party payers when Buyer dispenses 
the samples. (j) Seller hereby rejects and disclaims any rights of Buyer contained, or obligations 
imposed upon Seller, in any document provided, referenced or otherwise submitted by Buyer, in 
each case, that Seller has not expressly included in this Agreement or a writing manually 
executed by Seller (including, without limitation, any rights of Buyer in respect of designs, 
specifications, source code or intellectual property, owned, created, developed or licensed, by 
Seller; any rights to items or services not specifically identified in Seller’s quotation; any audit 
rights or financial offset rights of Buyer; any penalties or liquidated damages imposed upon 
Seller; any obligation by Seller to comply with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability 

Page 242 of 257



Act of 1996 (as amended), Current Good Manufacturing Practice regulations (as amended), the 
requirements, as amended, of the Customs-Trade Partnership Against Terrorism or any code of 
conduct, quality program, information security program, background or drug screening program 
or other guidelines, programs or policies, in each case, promulgated or required by Buyer; any 
obligation that Seller comply with any law that, under law, would not otherwise apply to Seller 
in respect of the transaction(s) contemplated hereby; any right of Buyer to withhold all, or any 
portion, of the purchase price of any products or services provided hereunder for any period of 
time; any right of Buyer, itself or through any third party, to remediate any defects in, replace or 
re-perform, any products or services provided hereunder at Seller’s cost or expense; any 
obligation of Seller to waive, or require its insurers to waive, any rights of subrogation; any 
obligation of Seller that would impair, restrict or prohibit Seller’s ability to freely conduct any 
business with any person or in any geography or market; any early-payment, or other, discount; 
any obligation of Seller to maintain a supply of spares, or otherwise make any services available, 
for any particular period of time; any representation, warranty or other obligation of Seller to 
provide pricing comparable to, or more favorable than, the pricing that Seller provides to others; 
any restriction of, or prohibition on, Seller’s ability to modify, change or discontinue any of its 
products, processes or services; or any waiver by Seller of any right to enforce any of the terms 
hereof). 

Updated August 1, 2020 

 

 
End of Purchase Order 

 

Page 243 of 257



Customer Info:
 

 

Sales Contact Info:
 

Customer Name:
 

Kaylen Prior
 

 

Contact Name: Rhonda Oesterle
 

Company Name:
 

Incline Village General Improvement District
 

 

Phone: +1 (760) 815-2822
 

Address:
 

1250 Sweetwater Rd
Incline Village Nevada 89451
United States
 

 

Email:
rhonda.oesterle@thermofisher.com
 

     

Phone: (775)298-9210 

  

Email: krp@ivgid.org 

   

 

Integrion RFIC for EPA 300 
 

 

Item
 

Description
 

Unit Price
 

Qty
 

  

Total Price
 

1.1 22153-60303 

 $44,100.00 1 

  $44,100.00 

 PROD,INTEGRION, RFIC, DEGAS, OVEN
 

   

 Full Integrion system, including HPIC Pump, 6-port injection valve, 25 μL injection 
loop, 2 L eluent bottle, one electrolytic power outlet (for suppressor), low-pressure 
eluent degasser, high pressure RFIC-EG degasser, and an additional two electrolytic 
power outlets (for eluent generation). 
 The Column Oven provides precise temperature control over a wide temperature 
range with fast heat-up times. This supports all standard bore and microbore guard 
and separator column sizes, in addition to single and dual valve configurations. The 
forced air, in-line temperature control stabilizes operating conditions and reduces 
temperature gradients to ensure consistent separations.
 • Ensure analytical reproducibility 
 • Optimize separation to increase result accuracy
 Consumables Tracking enables tracking and monitoring of performance and usage 
across all consumables to enable proactive maintenance and replacement. 
 • Ensure correct setup and initial performance
 • Evaluate laboratory expenditure and usage
 • Monitor consumables for optimal performance
 Eluent Generation generates high-purity eluents on-line, ensuring perfectly 
consistent performance. With eluent generation, gradient separations can be as easy 
as isocratic applications. 
 • Increased sensitivity with a reduced background
 • Reduce pump maintenance
 • Reduce errors with no manual preparation
 • Ensure analytical reproducibility
 • Easily run complex and simple gradient separations
 

   

1.3 068907 

 $10,600.00 1 

  $10,600.00 

 PROD,AS-DV
 

   

 AS-DV Autosampler
 

   

1.10 7350.0104A 

 $0.01 1 

  $0.01 

 

CM LICENSE CODE: NEW
   

Sales Quotation
 

  

Quote Number
 

Version
 

Quotation Date
 

Page
 

 

Thermo Electron North America LLC
5225 Verona Road
Madison WI 53711

1400 Northpoint Parkway
West Palm Beach FL 33407
 

CPQ-00655429 
 

1.01 
 

March 12, 2024
 

1
 

 

Lead Time
 

Payment Terms
 

Freight Terms
 

Expiration Date
 

 

4-6 weeks
 

NET 30 DAYS UPON
INVOICE DATE

 

Origin - Prepay And
Add

 

May 31, 2024
 

 

Company Name
 

Customer Name
 

 

Incline Village General Improvement District
 

Kaylen Prior
 

 

* See end pages of quote for PO Submission details 

  

 

Thermo Electron North America LLC                             
 

Page 244 of 257



Item
 

Description
 

Unit Price
 

Qty
 

  

Total Price
 

 

 

Required for all new Chromeleon 7.3 or later installations and includes:
• New license Code
• Installation media
• Chromeleon box
 

   

1.11 7100.0108 

 $4,600.00 1 

  $4,600.00 

 

CHROMELEON SINGLE EDITION (SE)
 

   

 

Provides one client and enables control of one Thermo Scientific instrument and:
• includes Instrument Controller, Class 1 Instrument license, Data Client, Instrument 

Operation, Report Designer Pro and Fraction Collection
• must be ordered with 7050.0104A or one of its variants
• can only be used for Workstation installations
 

   

1.12 7200.0850-ICSP 

 $2,480.00 1 

  $2,480.00 

 

PC,XE4,2x512SSD,32GB,i7,W10,RoHS
 

   

     

1.13 071664 

 $554.00 1 

  $554.00 

 

MONITOR,DELL,24 IN,RoHS
 

   

     

1.14 960708 

 $13.90 2 

  $27.80 

 

CBL,3COND,LINE CORD,US,RoHS
 

   

 

Power Cord US
 

   

1.16 038677 

 $0.01 1 

  $0.01 

 

SVC,INSTAL,APPL,DX-SPRT,DAY
 

   

     

1.20 22153-62038 

 $666.00 1 

  $666.00 

 

PROD, VLV, 3-WAY, PUMP, ITGN
 

   

 

This option replaces the Integrion eluent shutoff valve with a 3-way valve, giving the 
ability to switch eluent sources. However, the eluent shutoff ability is removed
 

   

1.22 702-026402 

 $6,600.00 1 

  $6,600.00 

 

2 DAYS IC ONSITE SUPPORT
 

   

     

1.4 075778 

 $2,000.00 1 

  $2,000.00 

 

Dionex EGC 500 KOH Cartridge
 

   

 

Dionex™ EGC 500 KOH Potassium Hydroxide Eluent Generator Cartridge
 

   

1.5 088662 

 $1,480.00 1 

  $1,480.00 

 

Dionex CR-ATC 600 Trap Column
 

   

Sales Quotation
 

  

Quote Number
 

Version
 

Quotation Date
 

Page
 

 

Thermo Electron North America LLC
5225 Verona Road
Madison WI 53711

1400 Northpoint Parkway
West Palm Beach FL 33407
 

CPQ-00655429 
 

1.01 
 

March 12, 2024
 

2
 

 

Lead Time
 

Payment Terms
 

Freight Terms
 

Expiration Date
 

 

4-6 weeks
 

NET 30 DAYS UPON
INVOICE DATE

 

Origin - Prepay And
Add

 

May 31, 2024
 

 

Company Name
 

Customer Name
 

 

Incline Village General Improvement District
 

Kaylen Prior
 

 

* See end pages of quote for PO Submission details 

  

 

Thermo Electron North America LLC                             
 

Page 245 of 257



Item
 

Description
 

Unit Price
 

Qty
 

  

Total Price
 

 

Dionex™ CR-ATC 600 Continuously Regenerated Anion Trap Column for 
Consumables Tracking enabled systems
 

   

1.6 083223 

 $1,810.00 1 

  $1,810.00 

 

PROD,COL,IP,AS19,4UM,2X250MM
 

   

 

The Dionex IonPac AS19-4μm column is a high-capacity, hydroxide-selective column 
for determination of oxyhalides and inorganic anions in diverse matrices.  It meets or 
exceeds the requirements specified in U.S. EPA Methods 300.0 (B) and 300.1 (B).  
Compared to the standard Dionex IonPac AS19 column, this column uses smaller 
resin particles for more efficient separations resulting in more accurate peak 
integration and more reliable results.  A high-pressure IC system is required to 
operate this column under standard conditions.
 

   

1.7 083225 

 $593.00 1 

  $593.00 

 

PROD,COL,IP,AG19,4UM,2X50MM
 

   

 

The Dionex IonPac AG19-4μm guard column is optimized for use with the Dionex 
IonPac AS19-4μm column.
 

   

1.8 088667CMD 

 $1,350.00 1 

  $1,350.00 

 

PROD,ADRS600,2MM,CMD
 

   

     

1.9 062986 

 $1,110.00 1 

  $1,110.00 

 

Dionex CRD 200 (2mm)
 

   

 

Dionex™ CRD 200 (2 mm) Carbonate Removal Device
 

   

1.15 038141 

 $136.00 2 

  $272.00 

 

PolyVials+Filter Caps, 250 each, 5mL
 

   

 

PolyVials and Filter Caps (20 μm), 250 each
 for 5.0 mL vials
 

   

1.17 303173 

 $264.00 1 

  $264.00 

 

PROD,RGNT,STD,NINE ANION,50ML
 

   

     

1.2 701-086201 

 $0.01 2 

  $0.02 

 

YEAR 2 AND 3 IC/SP PARTS ONLY WARRANTY
 

   

 

Factory warranty for service parts required to perform repairs during years 2 and 3 
after the date of instrument installation
 

   

1.18 701-055805 

 $5,948.00 2 

  $11,896.00 

 

Yr 2or3 Ext War Integrion w/RFIC no Det
 

   

 

Yr 2 or 3 Extended Warranty - Integrion RFIC, no Detector**
   

Sales Quotation
 

  

Quote Number
 

Version
 

Quotation Date
 

Page
 

 

Thermo Electron North America LLC
5225 Verona Road
Madison WI 53711

1400 Northpoint Parkway
West Palm Beach FL 33407
 

CPQ-00655429 
 

1.01 
 

March 12, 2024
 

3
 

 

Lead Time
 

Payment Terms
 

Freight Terms
 

Expiration Date
 

 

4-6 weeks
 

NET 30 DAYS UPON
INVOICE DATE

 

Origin - Prepay And
Add

 

May 31, 2024
 

 

Company Name
 

Customer Name
 

 

Incline Village General Improvement District
 

Kaylen Prior
 

 

* See end pages of quote for PO Submission details 

  

 

Thermo Electron North America LLC                             
 

Page 246 of 257



Item
 

Description
 

Unit Price
 

Qty
 

  

Total Price
 

• Quantity 1 provides coverage for year 2 only. Quantity 2 provides coverage for years 
2 and 3.
• On-site corrective maintenance visits including labor and travel with a target of three 
(3) business day on-site response time (see note)
• Annual Preventive Maintenance visit and a standard Preventive Maintenance Kit
• Priority status for technical support telephone inquires
• 10% Loyalty discount on parts, accessories, and consumables (may not be available 
in all regions)
Note: Parts are covered by Factory Warranty
 

1.19 701-016800 

 $1,102.00 2 

  $2,204.00 

 

Yr 2or3 Ext War AS-DV
 

   

 

Yr 2 or 3 Extended Warranty - AS-DV for 5.0ml vials
• Quantity 1 provides coverage for year 2 only. Quantity 2 provides coverage for years 
2 and 3.
• On-site corrective maintenance visits including labor and travel with a target of three 
(3) business day on-site response time (see note)
• Annual Preventive Maintenance visit and a standard Preventive Maintenance Kit
• Priority status for technical support telephone inquires
• 10% Loyalty discount on parts, accessories, and consumables (may not be available 
in all regions) 
Note: Parts are covered by Factory Warranty
 

   

Dionex Integrion RFIC System Subtotal:   $92,606.84 

Dionex Integrion RFIC System Discount :  - $12,930.78 

Dionex Integrion RFIC System Total:   $79,676.06 

 

  

Quote Subtotal:
 

$92,606.84
 

Promotions / Discounts:
 

- $12,930.78
 

Quote total less discounts:
 

$79,676.06
 

  

Shipping:
 

$696.00
 

Quotation Totals:
 

$80,372.06
 

  

 

Sales tax exemption/resale certificates or direct pay permits must be provided with the order documents, if applicable. If valid sales tax
exemption documentation is not provided, buyer shall pay all applicable federal, state and local taxes in addition to the price stated on this
quotation.

Sales Quotation
 

  

Quote Number
 

Version
 

Quotation Date
 

Page
 

 

Thermo Electron North America LLC
5225 Verona Road
Madison WI 53711

1400 Northpoint Parkway
West Palm Beach FL 33407
 

CPQ-00655429 
 

1.01 
 

March 12, 2024
 

4
 

 

Lead Time
 

Payment Terms
 

Freight Terms
 

Expiration Date
 

 

4-6 weeks
 

NET 30 DAYS UPON
INVOICE DATE

 

Origin - Prepay And
Add

 

May 31, 2024
 

 

Company Name
 

Customer Name
 

 

Incline Village General Improvement District
 

Kaylen Prior
 

 

* See end pages of quote for PO Submission details 

  

 

Thermo Electron North America LLC                             
 

Page 247 of 257



Please see below for monthly payment options and contact financialservices@thermofisher.com or call (800) 986-9731 ext. 7 for more 
information. Please note: Payments are estimates only and availability of lease financing is subject to credit approval and acceptance of terms. 
Terms and interest rates may vary based on customer's financial profile.

Leasing estimate is based on a total cost of $80,372.06; you may choose from the monthly payment options below:
 

     

 

Lease Term (months)
 

 

24
 

36
 

48
 

60
 

Fair Market Value Purchase Option:
 

$2,976.18
 

$2,198.18
 

$1,623.52
 

$1,392.85
 

$1.00 Purchase Option:
 

$3,511.46
 

$2,399.11
 

$1,840.52
 

$1,510.19
 

Number of Advance Payments:
 

1
 

1
 

1
 

1
 

 

Choosing the Lease that Best Meets Your Needs:
 

 

Fair Market Value (FMV) Purchase Option
 

The intent of this lease is not to own but to gain the benefits of the equipment in exchange for a low monthly payment. Your End-of-Lease
Options are: continue to lease the equipment, purchase a fair market value or return/upgrade the equipment.
 

 

$1.00 Purchase Option
 

This is a lease-to-own option where you would own the equipment after all monthly payments have been made. It is similar to a finance
agreement and provides you a defined payment schedule over the lease term.
 

Options / Recommendations

Item
 

Description
 

Unit Price
 

Qty
 

  

Total Price
 

1.21 701-061195 

 $5,639.00 1 

  $5,639.00 

 

Fact Warr PM- Integrion RFIC no Det w/AS
 

   

 

• Annual standard Preventive Maintenance visit and a standard Preventive 
Maintenance Kit
 

   

 

 Options Total:  $5,639.00 

Sales Quotation
 

  

Quote Number
 

Version
 

Quotation Date
 

Page
 

 

Thermo Electron North America LLC
5225 Verona Road
Madison WI 53711

1400 Northpoint Parkway
West Palm Beach FL 33407
 

CPQ-00655429 
 

1.01 
 

March 12, 2024
 

5
 

 

Lead Time
 

Payment Terms
 

Freight Terms
 

Expiration Date
 

 

4-6 weeks
 

NET 30 DAYS UPON
INVOICE DATE

 

Origin - Prepay And
Add

 

May 31, 2024
 

 

Company Name
 

Customer Name
 

 

Incline Village General Improvement District
 

Kaylen Prior
 

 

* See end pages of quote for PO Submission details 

  

 

Thermo Electron North America LLC                             
 

Page 248 of 257



To place your order and expedite shipment, please 1) sign and date the last page of this document; and 2) fax or e-mail
it along with your Purchase Order to one of the addresses below.

Please note-all Purchase Orders must show the vendor name of Thermo Electron North America LLC

Thermo Electron North America LLC 
 

 

Thermo Electron North America LLC
 

5225 Verona Road
Madison WI 53711
 

or
 

1400 Northpoint Parkway
West Palm Beach FL 33407
 

Complete System Orders:
 

 

Parts or Service Orders:
 

Fax: 412-200-6542
 

 

Fax: 877-680-2565
 

e-mail: usmadorderprocessing@thermofisher.com
 

 

e-mail: USMAD.ServiceOE.PO@thermofisher.com
 

Notes:
• Items marked with an asterisk (*) on the face of the quotation are non-Thermo Electron North America LLC products.
• Prices, warranty, installation and service on the items quoted herein are available only in the United States and may not be

otherwise assigned.
• Tax exemption certificates or direct pay permits must be provided with the order documents, if applicable. If tax exemption

documentation is not provided, buyer shall pay federal, state and local taxes in addition to the price stated on this quotation.
• Buyer shall not export or re-export technical data or products supplied by Thermo Electron North America LLC in violation of

applicable export regulation.  Buyer who exports products purchased hereunder assumes all responsibility for obtaining
required export documentation, authorization, and payment of all applicable fees.

• All prices are quoted in USD 

Purchase Order - Submission Details
 

 

Quote Number
 

Version
 

Quotation Date
 

Page
 

 Thermo Electron North America LLC
5225 Verona Road
Madison WI 53711

1400 Northpoint Parkway
West Palm Beach FL 33407
 

CPQ-00655429 
 

1.01 
 

March 12, 2024
 

6 
 

 

Lead Time
 

Payment Terms
 

Expiration Date
 

 

4-6 weeks
 

NET 30 DAYS UPON INVOICE DATE
 

May 31, 2024
 

 

Inco Terms 1
 

Inco Terms 2
 

Shipping Method
 

 

Origin - Prepay And
Add

 

 
 

Fed Ex Ground 
 

 

See below
 

  

 

Thermo Electron North America LLC                             
 

Page 249 of 257



Page 250 of 257



Page 251 of 257



Items 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES LONG RANGE CALENDAR 

May 8, 2024 
SCHEDULE 1st draft agenda to Board Chairman on 04/26; all memos materials due in by 

04/30 GM Venue Report Due; Packet out on 05/01; agenda posted no later 
than 8:45 a.m. on 05/03 

PW Report: Beach House Project Update 
PW Report: Close Out Project Reports from monthly report (GMP #1; Diamond 

Peak Kitchen etc) 
PW Agreement: Survey Tennis Center – Odyssey ($19,200) 
Finance Review Board Policy 8.1.0 – Capitalization of Fixed Assets 
GM Review Pricing Practice 6.2.0 
LEGAL Review Free Speech Policy 136 
P&R Review and Discuss Ordinance 7 revisions and Recommendations 
P&R Recommended Rates for the Rec. Fee/ Tennis/ Pickle-Ball 
P&R Consideration of a Donation to Red White and Tahoe Blue 
PW Agreement: Professional Services for Rec Center HVAC Replacement 

Review and Discuss - PRR Log Direction 

Special May 20, 2024 
SCHEDULE 1st draft agenda to Board Chairman on 05/07; all memos materials due in by 

05/09; Packet out on 05/10; agenda posted no later than 8:45 a.m. on 05/06 
Finance Public Hearing Recommended District Budget 

Page 252 of 257



Items 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES LONG RANGE CALENDAR 

 

May 29, 2024 
SCHEDULE 1st draft agenda to Board Chairman on 05/17; all memos materials due in by 

05/21; Packet out on 05/22; agenda posted no later than 8:45 a.m. on 05/24 
PW Report: Beach House Project Update 
P&R Annual Update from the Parasol Foundation 
P&R Annual Update from the Incline Tahoe Foundation 
P&R Report: Update non-profit discounted use of Venues “1895 Report” 
ADMIN Report: Fire Protection District (per Contract) Documented Plan for upcoming 

Season) 
Finance Public Hearing: Adoption of final budget 
P&R Resolution to adopt Rec. Roll (to Send to Washoe County) 
GM  Marcus Faust Agreement (Legal Counsel) 
P&R Public Hearing: to Adopt Ordinance 7 revisions and recommendations  
PW Easement: SPS #5 Easement 
  
  

 

June 12, 2024 
SCHEDULE 1st draft agenda to Board Chairman on 05/31; all memos materials due in by 

06/04 GM Venue Report Due; Packet out on 06/05; agenda posted no later 
than 8:45 a.m. on 06/07 

PW Report: Beach House Project Update 
FINANCE Report: Indebitness Report and 5 year CIP 
PW Public Hearing: Reccommended Amendments to the Sewer and Water fee 

schedule 
  
  
  

 

June 26, 2024 
SCHEDULE 1st draft agenda to Board Chairman on 06/14; all memos materials due in by 

06/18; Packet out on 06/19; agenda posted no later than 8:45 a.m. on 06/21 
Board Chair Review board goals for the year 
PW Report: Beach House Project Update 
  
  
  

Page 253 of 257



Items 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES LONG RANGE CALENDAR 

 

July 10, 2024 
SCHEDULE 1st draft agenda to Board Chairman on 06/28; all memos materials due in by 

07/02 GM Venue Report Due; Packet out on 07/03; agenda posted no later 
than 8:45 a.m. on 07/05 

PW Report: Beach House Project Update 
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

July 31, 2024 
SCHEDULE 1st draft agenda to Board Chairman on 07/19; all memos 

materials due in by 07/23; Packet out on 07/24; agenda posted no 
later than 8:45 a.m. on 07/26 

IT IT Server Purchase 
PW Report: Beach House Project Update 
  
  
  

 

August 14, 2024 
SCHEDULE 1st draft agenda to Board Chairman on 08/02; all memos 

materials due in by 08/06; Venue Status Reports Due in folderby 
08/07;  Packet out on 08/08; agenda posted no later than 8:45 
a.m. on 08/09 

PW Report: Beach House Project Update 
  
  
  

 

 

Page 254 of 257



Items 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES LONG RANGE CALENDAR 

August 28, 2024 
SCHEDULE 1st draft agenda to Board Chairman on 08/16; all memos 

materials due in by 08/20; Packet out on 08/22; agenda posted no 
later than 8:45 a.m. on 08/23 

PW Report: Beach House Project Update 
  
  
  

 

September 11, 2024 
SCHEDULE 1st draft agenda to Board Chairman on 08/30; all memos 

materials due in by 09/03; Venue Status Reports are Due in 
Folder 09/04; Packet out on 09/05; agenda posted no later than 
8:45 a.m. on 09/06 

PW Report: Beach House Project Update 
FINANCE Carry Forward 
  
  

 

September 25, 2024 
SCHEDULE 1st draft agenda to Board Chairman on 09/13; all memos 

materials due in by 09/17; Packet out on 09/19; agenda posted no 
later than 8:45 a.m. on 09/20 

PW Report: Beach House Project Update 
  
  
  

 

October 9, 2024 
SCHEDULE 1st draft agenda to Board Chairman on 09/27; all memos 

materials due in by 10/01; Venue Status Reports Due in folder by 
10/02: Packet out on 10/03; agenda posted no later than 8:45 
a.m. on 10/04 

Page 255 of 257



Items 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES LONG RANGE CALENDAR 

PW Report: Beach House Project Update 
Finance 1st Quarter Est. Acc. 
  
  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
PARKING LOT ITEMS 

Date of 
Request 

Item Requester Status/Notes Date 
Completed 

1/18/21 Possible discussion on IVGID 
needs as it relates to potential 
land use agreement with 
DPSEF  

Trustee Schmitz DPSEF continues to have 
discussion amongst themselves 
about this item 

 

Unknown Next step on Diamond Peak 
parking lot/Ski Way – Staff 
added reminder 

GM DPSR 
Bandelin 

This should be a part of the 
Budget Planning Process.  

To be removed 
after the Board 

Page 256 of 257



Items 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES LONG RANGE CALENDAR 

review in 
December 

2/8/23 Capitalization Policy 8.1 Trustee Schmitz Assigned to the 
Investment/Capital Improvement 
Committee 

 

2/8/23 Update on Snowflake Lodge  GM Bandelin   
2/8/23 Workforce Housing for 

Seasonal Employees 
Trustee Noble Staff to share with Trustee 

Noble the current situation. 
 

5/25/23 Two (2) Policy 20.1.0 on the 
Website 

Trustee Schmitz This is correct and it will be 
corrected when one of these 
policies comes before the Board 

02/14/2024 
To be removed 

05/25/23 Family Tree (Ordinance 7 
Review)  

Trustee Schmitz   Adia 
Presentation?  

07/12/23 Writing a letter to schools 
regarding programs 

Chairman Dent   

07/26/23 Update on Food and Beverage 
(from 7/26/2023 meeting) 

GM Magee To be determined  

08/09/23 UNR and Washoe County 
BOT’s Additional Training 

Trustee Tonking Date to be determined after 2nd 
training is rescheduled 

 

11/21/2023 Strategic Plan update  GM Magee   
12/13/2023 Consolidate advisory Meeting 

Minutes  
Trustee Tonking   

07/12/2023 Waste Management Trustee Schmitz   
 Capital Investment Committee 

Policy Updates 
 Update on the Capitalization 

Policy (old policies 12.1, 13.1 
and practice 13.2 – combined 
into new policy 8.1) Moss 
Adams Recommendations 
related to these policies 

 

03/22/2024 Ordinance 7 Reports REC/ IT  By Feb 2025 
On Calendar 
for May 8, & 
29 2024 

03/22/2024 Marcus Faust Contract 
Renewal 

GM Magee  By March 
2025 On 
Calendar for 
May 29, 2024 

03/22/2024 Report: Tax Delinquincies for 
Cards to be shut-off 

Finance   

03/25/2024 Space Planning GM   
03/25/2024 Policy 136 Update -

Expression 
GM   

04/08/2024 Capitalization Policy  Update  Finance   
04/10/2024 Tax Delinquencies Report Finance   
04/10/2024 Dog Park Survey Rec Center   
04/10/2024 Rec. Center Projects and 

Budget & Planing   
Trustee Tulloch Defered Maintenance and 

compiled Projects and Long 
Range Plan/ Projection for Rec. 
Center 

 

04/10/2024 Forensic Audit Results GM   
04/10/2024 Vacation Accrual Policy  HR/ GM   
04/10/2024 Utility Rate Study PW   
04/10/2024 Review of All Pendng 

Contracts to be reviewed ?  
Trustee Schmitz   

 

Page 257 of 257


	A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE*
	B. ROLL CALL OF TRUSTEES*
	C. INITIAL PUBLIC  COMMENTS
	D. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
	E. GENERAL BUSINESS (for possible action) - PART 1
	E.1. Audit Committee Appointment - pg. 6 - 38

	F. REPORTS TO THE BOARD
	F.1. - Treasurers Report for February 2024
	F.2. - Verbal Report and update on Beach House Porjects
	F.3. Verbal Report and update on Public Works Department

	G. CONSENT CALENDAR
	G.1. Approval of April 10, 2024 Meeting Minutes  pg 81 - 115
	G.2. Approval of Amendment 3 Clean Tahoe Contract Services pg 116 - 120
	 G.3. Professional Service Agreement for CIP Water Main Replacement pg. 121 - 156
	G.4. Professional Service Agreement for Effluent Storage Tank Project pg. 157 - 165
	G.5. Carpet Replacement Public Works building A Lower Level pg 166 - 172
	G.6. Agreement for Services fo rFloor Replacement Rec Center pg. 173 - 198
	G.7. Transact under Existing Blanket Purchase Order for FY 2023/24 Vendor : US Foodservice pg. 199 - 200

	H. GENERAL BUSINESS (for possible action) PART 2
	H.1. -2024 - 2025 Recommended Golf Rates 
	H.2. 2024 - 2025 Recommended Water and Sewer Rates pg. 201 - 207
	H.3. Agreements for Laboratory Equipment pgs - 208 - 251

	J. LONG RANGE CALENDAR pg 252 - 257



